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Highlights

Group Group profit before Group underlying profit Dividend
turnover interest and tax before interest and tax’ per share
£1,6941m £528.4m  £541.0m  86.55p

2017.£1.638 Om 2017 €5367m 2017 £520 1m 2017 81.5p

Basic earnings per share  Underlying basic Focus on operational

from continuing earnings per share’ improvement:
operations 1 21 0 Net ODI outperformance

. p payment £80 2m
102_2p 2017 115 7p In 2012/13 prices pre-tax
2017 136 8p
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Welcome to the Severn Trent
Annual Report 2018

OUR PURPOSE IS TO SERVE OUR
COMMUNITIES AND BUILD A LASTING
WATER LEGACY. THIS DRIVES OUR VISION
TO BE THE MOST TRUSTED WATER
COMPANY BY 2020, DELIVERING AN
OUTSTANDING CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE,
BEST VALUE SERVICE AND
ENVIRONMENTAL LEADERSHIP.

This report highlights the progress we have made over the past year
in achieving that vision through our strategic objectives and absolute
focus on delivering value for all of our stakeholders.

We're committed to keeping your water flowing clearly and making your
waste water clean again, so you can carry on enjoying this force of
nature in your very own home, for generations to come.

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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20 MINUTES
OF TRANQUILITY...

eeeeeeeeeeee




MADE BY DECADES
OF CONTINUED
INVESTMENT

Image removed

We have always been committed
to investing for the benefit of our
customers and future
generations. This year we
invested a total of £855 million
across our business, including
in renewable energy and the
resilience of our networks.

See mare on page 38

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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1 MINUTE
NURTURING...

Image removed
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MADE BY 100%
COMMITMENT

Image removed

We are proud of the fact that we
have outperformed against our
commitments that our
customers most care about.
Our customer service and
operational improvements have
contributed to customer ODI
rewards of £80.2 million.

See our '0DIs  on page 32

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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240ml OF
PURE QUALITY...

Image removed
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DELIVERED BY
49,000 km OF PIPES

Image removed

Qur drinking water is rated at
99.96% for quality. We distribute
1.6 billion litres of quality drinking
water through 49,000 km of
pipework. This, combined with
94,000 km of sewage pipework,
is enough pipes to go around the
world three and a half times.

See more on page 36

WONDERFUL ON TAP
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Strategic report

What we do

We provide clean water and
waste water services and develop
renewable energy solutions
through our businesses:

Regulated Water
and Waste Water

Our Regulated Water and Waste
Water business includes the
wholesale and household retail
activities of Severn Trent Water
and Dee Valley Water.

Image removed

The primary markets we focus on

* Wholesale operations and engineering
* Household customer services

About us

We are one of 10 targest regulated water and waste
water businesses in England and Wales We provide
high quality services to more than 4 3 million
households and businesses in the Midlands and Wales

Where we operate

Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from
the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from North and
rmid-Wales to the East Midlands

Image removed
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Turnover

£1,5974.6m

Households and
businesses served

4.3mM

Profit before interest

Litres of drinking water

and tax supplied each day
£503.8m  1.6bn
Underlying profit hefore Litres of waste water
interest and tax’ treated per day
£514.9m 2.77bn
Revenue split Employees

Dee Graph 5 [ 6 6 0

Valley remaved average during 2017/18

00% (see page 157)

Severn Trent
Water

00%

__Severn Trent Water 98 2%

Dee Valley Water 1.8%

Read moere on page 34

I Allernative Perfermance Measures
ate gefined in Note 46 Lo the uroup
financial statements on pages 192
tc 194




Severn Trent
Business Services

Image removed

The markets we focus on

s Operating Services
* Renewable Energy

Where we operate
Business Services operatesin the UK and Ireland

There are two parts of Business
Services:

UK Operating Services (including Ireland)

UK Operating Services provides contract services to
municipal and industrial clients in the UK and Ireland
and the UK Ministry of Defence (MOD'] for design, build
and operation of water and waste water treatmant
facilities and networks, and services to developers

Renewable Energy

Business Services generates renewable energy from
anaerohic digestion, hydropower, wind turbines and
solar technology

1oday ybajensg

O2UE 113404

Turnover

£138.7m

Profit before interest
and tax

£34.2m

Underlying profit before
interest and tax’

£36.0m

Employees in continuing
operations

996

average during 2017/18
[see page 197

Read more on page 42

1 Atlernative Perlarmance Medgsures
are defined In Note 46 to the group
financial staternants an pases 192
L 194
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Strategic report

OQur business model

Running

an efficient

water
business

Severn Trent
provides clean
water every time
our customers

turn on the tap

and removes

their waste water

in an affordable,
sustainable and
reliable way.

It does so through its
regutated subsidiaries and
draws upon its skills 1n
water and waste treatment
to provide services to other
organisations through its
Business Services division,

Critical
inputs

The Water Cycle

Water is collected

We pay the Ernviranment
Agency and Natural Resources
Wales for the water we cotlect
from reservoirs, rivers and
underground aqguifers across
our region

Natural resources

Water from rescrvoirs, rivers

and undergraund aguifers
Read more on page 45

Water is cleaned

Our 116 groundwater and 23
surface water treatment works
clean raw water to the hignest
standards, making it safe

to drink

Power

The treatment and distribution
of clean and waste water
consumes sighit cant energy

Read more on page 43

Clean water
is distributed

Our 49,167 km network of
pipes and cnclosed storage
reservoirs bring a continruous
supply of clean water right

1o our customers’ taps

miremmdaprmehprothorntbpnatipredt st R NIARINIARYINAENaNIEIRNBEE o

Image removed
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Our investments in renewable energy production

Cleaning waste water is an ‘energy
hungry’ process so we are utilising
waste and renewables to help us

power our operations.

We are on track to produce 50%
of our own energy needs by 2020

Outcomes

10 severn Trent Ple Anpwat Report and Accounts 2018

Natural resources

« Clean water for 4 3 million
homes and businesses

« Clean gas produced from
anaerobic digestion
plants, contributing to the
decarbonisation of the
UK economy

Food waste anaerobic

digestion plants

Physical assets

e =fficient and reliable services
14 pilion Litres of drinking
water supplied each day and
2 8 billion Utres of wastewater
treated each day




Physical assets

A resilient, well maintained
network of clean water pipes
and reservoirs, sewers and
pumping stations

Read more on page 47

Customers enjoy
our services

Wa serve 4 3 million businesses

and houscholds w tn a safe,
rel-able supply of water and
cotlect wastewater 24 hours
a day, 365 days a year

Qur people Relationships
We look to attract, develop and » Qur suppliers and partners
retain talented people, and to Joint ventures and strong
bring the next generation of water suppler retationships
experts into the industry » Our customers

Read more on page 48 and communities

The heart cf sur business

Waste water : Waste water

is collected : is cleaned

Qur 94 077 km of sewers v Waste water s carefully

and pumaing stations collect 5 screened. filtered and treated
waste wate~ from homes and » inaur 1,010 sewage treatment
businesses and take it to our 5 works to meat stringent
treatment warxs + environmental standaras

.

* Qur regulators
Ourindustry is regulated
by Ofwat and several other
regulators and public hodies

Read more on page 90

Water is recycled
to the environment

We pay the Environment Agency

and Notural Resources Wales

annual cansent tees to return the
treated water (0 the water syslem

L R I R e e

Sessessssrscsensfhocrerrrars sttt tansras

R L R R e e I

Image removed
Solar and Clean gas from our sludge
wind turbines anaerobic digestion plants
Our people Relationships
* Anawesome place 1o work * Our suppliers and partners s Qur customers « OQurregulators
e Adivarse, sklled and Arcbust supply chain We work and communities Pos tive and constructive
talented workforce with partners gver the five years The lowest average combined relatronships and industry-
of an AME which means more water and waste water bills leading ODIs and KPIs
competitive pricing in Britain Educational visits on

water e*ficiancy and
being sewer savvy

Severn Trent Pl Annualt Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

Chairman’s statement

Image removed

—

PROVIDING RESPONSIBLE
LEADERSHIP

“High levels of customer service create financial rewards. This means
we are able ta share the benehits of our work with shareholders
as well as with our customers and other stakeholders.”

Andrew Duff, Chairman

Dividend per share Group turnover Group profit before interest and tax
86.55p £1,694.1m £528.4m
2017.81,50p 2017, £1,638 Om 2017 €536 7m

12 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018



This has been a good year for aur customers and therefore for
Severn Trent. Our operational performance is discussed in
detail in our Chief Executive’s statement. Here, | want to take
the apportunity to look at the bigger picture by highlighting
the improvements we have made to customers’ lives in the
last 25 years ~ and to underline our commitment to running
aresponsible business,

Water services in England and Wales have been transformed for
the better over the last 25 years - leakage 15 down by over a third
since its peak in 1994/95, service quality 1s up, as evidenced by a
6% reduction inwritten complaints since its peak in 2007/08 and
environmental performance is unrecognisable from that which
we inherited from the nationalised industry in 1989, with an 86%
reduction in serious pollution incidents 1n England and Wales
These changes have not happened by acaident, they are the direct
result of the near doubling of investment that has been pumped
into the sector since privatisation

At Severn Trent, we have played a major role in this step-
change, investing £21 bitlon in today’s money in infrastructure
imgrovemnents over the last quarter of a century We are proud
of the achievermnents that this investrment has generated for our
customers They drink and wash in cleaner water, experience
fewer supply Interruptions and floods, and enjoy healthier and
more pleasant surrcundings, all thanks to our work Al the same
time, and despite the huge capital investments we have made,
we have been able to keep prices down This last year, as in the
previous seven year s, the average price paid by a custormer in
the Severn Trent region was the lowest anywhere in England
or Wales

Ourteam s absolutely cemmutted to continuing this good

work - and a key aspect of that 1s demonstrating the highest
standards of governance and behaviour Qur values of putting
customers first, creating an awesome place to work, being
passionate about what we do, acting with integnity, and
protecting our environment sit right at the heart of our decision
making We fully support the governance changes that the
regulator and Government wish te see ~ indeed, as a listed
company these standards of transparency and responsible
behaviour are already in place at Severn Trent we are prudent
In how we manage financial risk and even-handed in the way
we share the returns from aur gutperfermance wath custormers
and shareholders, we pay our taxes in full and on time,

we pay dividends and execulive salaries that are reasonable
and sustanable and linked to the delivery of outcomes to
customners, avold cornplex offshore financial vehicles, and

we communicate progress on all of these matters 1n the
Annual Report which we provide to stakeholders and to the
public at large on our website avery year

Having strong and transparent corporate governance s the
right way to carry out cur achivities It will ensure the long-term
sustainability of our business and reinforce our legtimacy in the
eyes af the communtities we serve

Sharing the rewards

Under our industry s requlatory regime, tugh levels of custormer
service create hinancial rewards This means we are able to
share the benefits of cur work with shareholders as well as with
custorners and other stakeholders. In this five year period we
arereinvesting £220 milion of Totex cutperformance back into
our business, with a further £120 million of outperformance
being shared with customers in the form of lower bills in AMPY

Our investors oo have bensfited through cur base dividend
commitment of growth at RPI+4%, and thig has all been achieved
whilst maintaining a sustamable, resilient financial structure

We delivered a 3 4% increase in Group turnover to

£1,694 1 rillion, Group PBIT of £528 4 million, down 1 5% from
the prior year, and underlying basic earnings per share of
121.0 pence, up 4.6% from the prior year

We are therefore proposing a final dividend of 51.92 pence per
share to be paid on 20th July 2018 This will take the total dividend
for the year to 86 b5 pence

Your Board

Emma FitzGerald stepped down from her position as a Director
during the year On behalf of the Beard, | thank her for her insight,
professionalism and dedication [t has been a privilege to work
alongside her

We have worked with regulators te successfully realign

our English and Welsh licences along national boundaries

From 1 July 2018, all our Welsh interests will sit under & single
licence, and we will rebrand Dee Valley Water as Hafren

Dyfrdwy after the two main rivers which supply the region
Hafren Dyfrdwy will serve the interests of all our Welsh
customers, and we are pleased 1o have made positive progress
to ensure the robust governance of that company through the
appointrment to its Board of three new independent non-executive
directors with a wealth of experience i business, public services
and Welsh public policy 1 am delighted that they all enhance the
already diverse make up of our business

A diverse team doing great work

Severn Trent's people are a significant asset We have 2 fantastic
team here who worked tirelessly through the year, often in severe
weather conditions, to deliver extracrdinary service They are
rightly proud of both their efforts and the outcomes

It s important that the makeup of our workforce 1s representative
of the communities we serve So | am pleased to report that

21% of the 124 graduates, placement students and apprentices
who joined us during the year came frem black or minority
ethric backgrounds We are also mindful of the role that

gender diversity plays in supporting a successful team

The representation of wornen an our Board {ed to us again being
recognised by the Hampton-Alexander Review 1in 2017, which
placed us second amaong FTSE 100 companies for representation
of women on boards and in leadership In addition, 40% of the
members of our Exacutive Cammittee are female and, at 2 4%,
our mean hourly pay gap 1s one of the lowest in the FTSE index

Looking ahead

We are now working hard to cantinue to position the business
for success during the next requlatary period Our draft business
plans are well advanced and will be subrmitted to Ofwat in
Septernber 2018 We took forward to continuing Lo outperform
against our service camimitments through the rest of this AMP
and into the next

Andrew Duff, Chairman

Severn Trent Plc Annuai Report and Accounts 2018 13
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Strategic report

Market and industry overview

Our context and peers

Atotal of 17 regional businesses supply water services to

20 million household and non-household custemers in England
and Wales. Ten of these, including our regulated business
Severn Trent Water Limited, also provide waste water services
The remaining seven, including our regulated business Dee
Valley Water Limited, provide water only

Over 25 years of continuous improvement...

Water services in England and Wales have been transformed in
recent years, with a totalinvestment of around £130 tillion driving
significant increases in reliability, efficiency and quality

We're very proud of our industry s achieverments Far example,
whilst adverse weather such as that encountered last winter and
spring can skew the picture, custormers are still five times less
likely to be without water than they were 25 years ago and eight
times less likely to be affected by sewer flooding. Leakage has
fallen by 29% since the mid-1990s, and 99 6% of drinking water
as well as 98.6% of batfung waters now meet EU standards

As discussed below, our regulatory framework is continuing to
evolve We believe that improving this existing mechanism, for
example, by encouraging lower gearing and greater oppenness
and transparency. 1s a more viable way forwards than embarking
on a disruptive course of action that would distract attention from
our industry’s core priorities

Regional businesses

17

Number of households and
non-household customers

50 million

Total investment
for transformation

£130 billion

1 4 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

...hut there's still more to do

Were exaited about the opportunities to continue the good work
the industry has recorded sa far But although we ve taken

huge strides in embedding customers right at the heart of what
we do, we recognise that there's still room for improvement.
Customers rightly expect the highest standards of water quality
and waste water treatment, 24 hours a day and seven days
aweek, and while these are continuing to move in the right
direction there's absolutely ho room for complacency. We have
to target capital investrment programmes wisely in order to
make sure our network - parts of which originate in the late

19th Century - 1s equipped to mest the demands of 271st Century
lving That s no easy matter, in light of an increasing population
and more housing, as well as all the challenges to water supplies
and drainage caused by the droughts and floods associated with
climate change it requires experience, expertise and a great deal
of maoney - in fact Severn Trent alone will have invested some
£3.000 rniullion in assets ovet the five year s to March 2020,

Customers alse want to be able to contact us whenever and
however they want, whether that's to ask for advice, question

a bill or notify us of a leak Digital technology 1s playing a major
role here at Severn Trent, helping us interact with custorners via
nine different channels, ensuring we are always there to talk to In
person over the phone, or in wniting

“Water quality... waste water
treatment... reliability and efficiency...
service and support... all delivered
with great value... these are the things
our custamers expect.”



And, of course, customers rightly expect all this while enjoying
great value for money Bills matter to everybody - and while
we're pleased that yet again Severn Trent Water’s custemers
benefited from the lowest bills in England and Wales over the last
year, we're also committed to doing even more to support those
vulnerable members of aur lecal communities who struggle

tc pay

Water quality waste water treatrent  reliability and efficiency.
service and support  all delivered with great value. . these are
the things our customars expect. We've made terrific progress
in the last quarter of a century and we know there's more to do
- and we re committed to working with our peers in the industry
and with our regulators to give our customers a service to be
proud ot

Our regulatory framework

The Government's approach to our industry is set by the
Departrnent for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs [Defra’)
in England and the Welsh Government in Wales Ofwat is the
industry’s econormic regulator This means it sets bimits on

the prices we can charge cur custemers over five year Asset
Management Plan [AMP ] cycles This financial year was the
third of AMPS, which runs from April 2015 te March 2020

We also work closely with a varety of ather requlators and
public bedies

 The Drinking Weter Inspectorate ['DWI'] independently checks
that water supplies i England and Wales are safe and that
drinking water quality 1s acceptable to consumers [ts work
includes assuring water quality, ensuring companies make the
changes necessary to improve, developing new regulations to
further improve water quality, and science and policy

The Consumer Council for Water [ CCW'] speaks on behalf of
water consumers in England and Wales. It advises consumers
and takes up complaints on their behalf

e The Environment Agency [ EA] allows us to cellect water from
reservorrs, rivers and aquifers and return it to the enwironment
after it s been used by our customers and treated by us

*

Natural Resources Wales is the envirenmental regulator in
Wales It oversees how the country s natural resources are
mamtaned, iImproved and used now and In the future

Natural England advises the Government on the naturat
envirenment in England and hetps to protect nature and the
landscape, especially for plant and animal life in fresh water
and the sea

The Health and Safety Executive helps us to reduce the

health and safety risks faced by our employees, customers
and visitors

Image removed
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Strategic report

Market and industry overview continued

Moving into the next phase of regulation

Every five years, our regulator Ofwat reviews industry pricing
The mast recent price review - known as PR14 - wasin 2014 and
heralded sweeping changes PR14 gave custorners a greater
voice in setting our priorities and also introduced a performance-
related reward and penalty system, called Outcorne Delivery
Incentives (O0Is] We welcomed these initiatives and believe
they're playing an important part in driving greater ethciency
across the industry

Now weTe moving towards the next price review, which

will take place i1 2019 In December 2017, Oftwat published

its methedology for the 2019 price review, known as PR19

This provided us with guidance on expectations for our business
plans, which we'll submit in Septernber 2018 In our view, the
methadology sets out a chatienging environment, but alse one
where high performing companies can succeed We're fully
supportive of Ofwat s reform agenda, which includes stronger
0Dls - and although they're currently still in development, our
business plans will lay out our ambitions in four key areas

“Reliable supplies and
services depend on reliable
infrastructure. But to us
‘resilience’ is a broader
issue than just having good
quality pipes, reservoirs and
treatment works. It means
being operationally resilient,
so our people are sufficiently
well trained to carry out the
tasks we need them to do.”

1 6 Severn Trent Plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2018

Customers

Our preparation work for PR19 has included the most
comprehensive customer engagement activity and research
programme in our history, in compunction with insight froem our
everyday interactions with them The result i1s a new level of
understanding about the 1ssues that are most important te our
customers. In brief, they want us to go beyond |ust balancing
supply and dernand, prowiding clean drinking water and taking
waste water away. They see us as key influencers in the everyday
lives of their local communities And they want us to step up and
play our rote to the full

Se, among other initiatives, we're iInvesting in better
communications and also redoubling our efforts around
custorner education, especially of children - for exarnple on what
not to put down therr tollets - as well as supporting our people to
do more volunteering to benefit the communities which we serve

Affordability

In 2017, and for the 8th year running, Severn Trent Water's
customers had the lowest bills in England and Wales That's an
achievernent in its own right, but we're commutted to making sure
that thase bills are affordable for all aur customers — including
the most vulnerable Struggling to pay a water bill can be an
indicatien of ather 1ssues in a customer’s life, sc we're working
with partnersin local communities to identify those who may
need some extra help

image removed




Resilience

It goes without saying that reliable suppbes and services depend
on a reliable infrastructure Butto us resilence’ 1s a broader 1ssue
than just having good quality pipes, reservoirs and treatrment
waorks |t means being operationally resilient, so eur people are
sufficiently welf trained to carry out the tasks we need them to

do, both in a steady state and in an emergency And it means
financially resilient, with a stress-tested capital structure to
manlam an investment-grade rating for cur requlated business
and the appropriate equity strength to effectively manage

risks. It also means having corporate resilience, with the right
governance processes ensuring that were fair and transparent at
all imes, and recognised as a responsible and trusted business
by society at large We re rightly reqarded as a public service
company and we'll do everything in our power to deliver a service
that the public can be proud of

Innovation

You can't deliver outstanding customer service, keep bills
affordable or run a resilient buziness without innovation We're
pleased to sea that Otwat s PR1? melhodology embraces the role
of rarkets, not only In buoresources but also in water resources
through water trading

In fact we re working with United Utilities te engage with
Thames Water on the evaluation of a project to bulld a super
interconnector that would enable us to transfer and trade water
between the Severn and Thames catchment areas

How our marke_t environment influences
our five strategic priorities
Embedding customers at the heart of allwe do

we tl continue to anticipate and to meet changing
customners’ and wider societal needs [see page 22]

Driving operational excellence and continuous innovation

innavation helps us to deliver the services customers
need and keep bills affordable [see page 24)

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

What happens next?

Ofwat's timetable for PR19.1s as follows

Submission of business plans - 3 September 2018
Initial assessment of plans - late January 2019
Fast-tracked draft determinations - March/April 2019
Rernaining draft determinations - July 2019

Final determinations - Decernber 2019

Playing our partin the debate

We agree with the general direction inwhich Ofwat s
taking the industry and have continued to add our voice
to the debate wherever and whenever possible.

For exampte, in addition to evaluating the possibiliies of water
trading, we worked with a number of cur peers and the Social
Market Foundation to publish a report into the Ukely implications
of renationalisation on public sector debt levels

We've also stepped up Gur consumer-facing cammunications,
including launching our new brand - ‘Wonderful on tap -

to improve understanding of what we do and how we do 1.
Please see our website for more details

we Invest Io make sure we continue to benefit from a resilient,

well-maintained network that meets the demands of a

growing pepulation and a changing climate [see page 76)

Changing the market for the better

we work constructively with regulators, helping to prepare

the industry for the opportunibies and challenges of the future

(see page 28|

Creating an awesome place to work
we can only succeed if we have the support of nspired,
talented, diverse and engaged people [see page 30]
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review

GETTING THE
BALANCE RIGHT

"What truly matters Is balance...
balance between today and tormorrow,
between making improvements
where customers value them
most, keeping bills affordable
and providing a fair return
to our investors.”

Liv Garfield,
Chief Executive

Image removed
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Times have changed. Today, all of us, across all walks

of life expect the companies that serve us to be sacially
responsible. It's time for leading businesses to step up
to the challenges of running a sustainable operation and
to embrace all aspects of their perfermance: social and
environmental as well as financial.

Success is not as easy to quantify as it was in the past Gone are
the days when a company was Judged purely on its balance
sheet and income statement At Severn Trent, this i1s a change
we welcome wholeheartadly

That's not to say that financial performance no longer matters.
It does, and we're extremely proud of our track record in that
respect, as you can see from the figures for 2017/18 that you'll
find elsewhere on these pages, nctably in James financial
report What truly matters s balance balance between

today and tomorrow, between making improvements where
custorners value them the most, keeping bills affordable and
providing a fair return to our investors

We can debate what has caused this shift of cpinion well into
the early hours, whether it's the financial crnisis or globat
poliical unrest, government action or the poor behaviour of

a handful of companies, or sormething else entirely What s
undeniable 1s that this change has happened And that the new
world it's ushered in 15 here to stay

50, instead o a traditional CEQ review, | want to use these 1,500
wards or 50 to tell you what I'm really proud of and what makes
Severn Trent different, through the lens of secial responsibility
I'want to show you how have we performed when the metrics of
success are extended beyond financial returns

Our environment: everybody’s most
important priority

Climate change has focused everybody’s minds on the need
ta look after the planet we call home At Severn Trent were
fortunate that our estate, which 1s one of the largest corporate
land-holdings in the UK at over 53,000 acres, includes several
Sites of Special Scientific Interest [ 35517 as well as many
other areas that are important for plants and wildhife Butwith
great fertune comes great responsibility — more than most
companies, we're in a positicn to have significant impacts on
these wonderful environments

So we work very hard to make sure that these impacts are as
positive as possible That means encauraging greater biodiversity
by working with groups such as The Wildlife Trust and farmers
Over the last year, we improved biodiversity on 986 hectares of
G555 and are targeting many more by 2620 We also encourage
and empewer our peaple to focus thew volunteering efforts on
local rivers and other habitats near theirhomes And last year,
40% of our colleagues chose to clean up 50 km of riverbank
through our volunteering scheme

Enwironmentat responsibility aiso means reducing sewer
flooding - where we reduced the pumber of external flooding
events by around 2,000, which1s a 49% culperformance against
our target - and serious pollution incidents, which came down
from seven to two We continued to improve the gquality of water
entering our rivers, for example by working In partnership with
farmers and rewarding them for using less metaldehyde on their
helds. It was great to see all these achieverments come together
and we believe they will help us regain the mark of exceptional
enviranmental performance in our sector, the coveted 4 status
from the Envirenment Agency

Looking to the long-term future of the emvironment, were
continuing to Invest heavily In renewable energy - and { was
delighted that we generated the equivalent of 38% of the energy
we consumed last year, and atso sold green gas back into

the grid

Group PBIT Group turnover
£528.4m  £1,694.1m
2017 £536 7m 2017 £1,638 0m

Dividend increase Net ODI outperformance

6_20/0 payment
2017 10% £80.2m
2017 £476m

Underlying Group PBIT

£541.0m

2017 £520 1m
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review continued

Our customers: the reason why we're all here

There are two ways of behaving when you're a natural monopoly
You can simply take advantage of the opportumties your situation
presents, or you can work night and day to creats a service thai's
so good that your customers weuld still choose you, if they had
the choice We firmly beljeve that this s wital for any business that
wants to still be a business in the years ahead

So how do we do that? Firstly by striving to give custemers what
they tell us they want - low bills, less sewer flooding and high
quality water at the turn of a tap Our Upper Quartile positioning
in the UK Customer Service Index and our Customer ODI
performance show that we're making good progress

Affordability 1s right at the top of our agenda and I'm delighted

1o report that at an average of £348 1n 2018/19, Severn Trent
Water's bills will once again be the lowest in England and Wales
That's £57 lower than the average household bill, £35 lower than
the next cheapest and - if we look beyond the UK - half those in
Bertin and a quarter of those i Copenhagen

We're also increasing our efforts ta suppert the most vulnerable
people in our communtties As well as providing discounts te
customers who are struggling to pay their bills, we ve started

to work more closely with other agencies and use our close
relationship with local commurnibies to identify where a ttle bit
of extra understanding and financial help can go a long way to
easing pressure on customers facing difficulties. This isn't the
hest way to improve our bottom line - but it 1s demonstrably the
right thing to do

As | ve already menticned, the number of sewer floodings are
one of a number of measures in which we have outperforrmad,
but it is disappainting when our customers are left with

nothing coming out of their taps, as happened tee often this
year Our performance on supply interruptions was our werst
performance in five years and the hirst ime we've missed

our target on that measure during that time Some of these
nterruptions to supply can be explained away by the extreme
freeze-thaw-freeze cycles of the butter winter, which also meant
that we missed our chatlenging target on leakage - despite
strong performance for 17 months of the year But the fact
remains that we know we have let some of our custormers down
in an area that really matters to them Although small succour for
these performance failures, customers are rightly compensated
for thern through compensation when cur performance falls
below regulatory standards and by virtue of the OD| penalty
systern, through reductions in future tills

We're working really hard to improve our abibty to cope with
extreme weather, as this is a fact of ife for us all now, through
intiatives (ke leakage detector rebots and other high tech tools
that can give us extra ‘eyes onthe network.
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Customers also tell us that iU's important that we're available for
thern when they need to talk to ys We all lead busy lives, and we
all know how frustrating it 15 when you can't talk to somebody
when you need to in the five minute stot that you have in between
dealbing with more important work or family rmatters Sc we ve
extended and improved our contact channels We're now the only
water company that customers can contact at any tirne of day or
night, on any 1Issue - not just for emergencies.

We need to help our customers understand what they should

and shouldn't put down the loo or the sink, and how to use water

more efficiently. While | passionately believe that rost people :
want to do their bast for the envircnment, they don't always have

the right knowledge to do so That's why we spend so much tirme

and effort on education, partcularly in schools If we can get

young people to value water and support what we're doing to

preserve and supply it, then we will all be in a much better place '
aswell as our children and grandchildren in years to come

Our people: the assets that make it all happen ,

Severn Trent is its people. Theyre the ones on the front ling,
the ones wheo talk to customers, the ones who innovate and

implerment the bright 1deas that help us delwer a service you
would choose to have

To be your best, you have to be happy and supported in your
workplace 5o we re constantly looking for new and better ways
ta help them thrive, fulfil then potential and show therm how
much we value their expertise and commitrment Over the last
year we ve increased our facus on traming Ours 1s a techncal,
engineering-led industry where there's absolutely ne substitute
for the nght expertise Of course, investing in training 1s good

for our business, because it helps us be more technically
competent Butit s also good for our colleagues, becatse it gives
them a platform for growth, promation and mare rewarding
careers —and it s good for local cornmunities and industry too,
because it improves the skills base across the Midlands This1s
what businesses like Severn Trent can and should be doing
buillding our employees talents and playing our part as members
of society to benefit everybody.

As a significant employer in our region and presence in local
communities across the Midlands, we can also do a lot to help
change general athtudes towards issues that affect individuals
everywhere, For example, according to the World Health
Orgamzahon, one in four peopie In the world will be impacted

by mental or neurolagical disorders at some paint in their lives.
Sa last year we decided that we needed to remove the stigrna
assoclated with mental health, particularly for men We now have
over 400 qualfied mental health first aiders at Severn Trent, who
have undertaken forrnal training programmes and also listened
to first-hand stories of how mental health can affect lves -
including persanal contributions from my senior teamn Now we're
turning our attention to the menopause, which s another area
that s a bit of a taboo in soctety at large but which can have a
massively detrimental impact on women and therr families,



Our employee engagernent score rose by a full six percentage
points last year, proving that the things we're doing for our
people are appreciated, and we are turning Severn Trent into an
even better place to work Our teams respond to the sense of
belonging and community that we're trying te create here — and
an incredible 40% of them turned out to volunteer therr time to
improve their local envirenment during the last 12 months

Dee Valley Water 1s now substantially integrated, and the people
there are already a vital part of the Severn Trent family 1 m so
proud of the fact that they haven't missed a beat in delivering a
great year from an operational perspective, with zero coliforms
lan important feature of water qualityl at thewr sites probably
being the standout achievement We're learning from each other
and adopting each other s best practices in order to provide
better services 1o our customners and the environment

I d Uke to thank all 6,000 of our people for the passion they've
applied to alt they do gyer the year, sometimes in difficult
circumnstancas, but always with a sroile on their faces They make
it an honour to have my job Thank you!

Qur outlook: lots to look forward to, but more
hard work lies ahead

In Septernber, we L submit our plans to Gfwat for our next
five year business plan Make no rmistake, from an industry
perspective this s gaing to be tough

But for customers, this s the right thing at the right time
Putting the fecus farly and squarely on custorner service,
affordability and long term resilience is absolutely the correct
thing to do and we fully support Ofwat s goals

We've been working hard over the last few years to make sure
were In good shape to rise to these challenges As this report
hightights, Severn Trent Water's customers again had the lowsast
bills :n England and Wales, and we're making good progress in
most other areas of the business Are we getting it night all the
time? No But we know where and how we can improve - and we
have a total determination with our peapte’s support te get there

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives

Embed customers at
the heart of all we do

What do we mean by this?

We'll improve the way in which
customers engage with us through
improved insight and understanding
of what's important to them.

Image removed

Lowest bills in the land
- yet again

Research tells us that with so many competing demands
on househeld budgets, affordability 1s one of the biggest
cancerns for our customers. Which s why it was great
to see that our efforts to keep water hills down yet again
proved so worthwhile,

For the 8th year running, Severn Trent Water’s customers

What we said we would do in 2017/18

.

-

-

Make a step change in customer service

Continue to deliver on the things that matter most
to our customers to achieve a substantial reward of
around £23 rullion in customer ODIs

Provide a service that 1s affordable for all and
support our financially vulnerable customers by
assisting 50,000 custorners with their bills

Be recognised as an upper quartile wholesaler in
the new non-household retail market

Provide an industry leading experience for property
developers and customers who need new water
and waste connections,

Image removed

Protecting the interests
of our customers

From investing in robotic leakage detectors to encouraging
farmers and fast food chains to be more careful about
what they put op fields or down drains, we work tirelessly
to make Severn Trent water as clean, available and
affordable as possible.

Although customers certainly appreciate what we do

have the lowest bills in England and Wales. Our average
combined bill for 2018/19 will be £348. That's £57 below
the average across the two nations and £35 less than the
next cheapest.

Nevertheless, we know that some vulnerable customers still
struggle to make ends meet - so over the last 12 months, we
used our Big Difference scheme to give discounts of up to 90%

to 36,000 people.

2 2 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

- infact water quality complaints are down 12% year-on-
year - not everybody buys inte the need to look after this
precious resource. We don't enjoy taking people to court,
but sormetimes it's the only way to protect the interests
of all those who pay their bills and play by the rules.
Since the start of 2016, we've successfully prosecuted
over 50 companies that have been caught illegally using
hydrants to access our network, And to prevent future
misuse, we've now fitted 30,000 locking caps to hydrants
across our network.



Our progress 2017/18

* Achieved upper guartile position in the UK
Customer Service Index and reduced custormer
written complaints by 17%

Achieved better cutcomes for customers on
a number of measures including external and
internal sewer flooding, and achieved 00|
outperformance payments of £80.2 million

Maintained the lowest bills i England and
Wales, and assisted mare than 50,000 vutnerable
custormners with their bills

Developer Services teamn recogrised by Ofwat
as 1st for Water and 2nd for Waste inits SLA
compliance comparison tables

Image removed

Improving our performance
for developers

Every year, we connect around 20,000 new properties and install
and adopt around 100 km of new water and waste water pipes.

And whether we're working with an individual doing a self-build, a
national housebuilder constructing a new 2003-home estate or office
block, or afarmer wanting a new water supply for a distant drinking
trough for his cattle, we aim to make this process as simple and
cost-effective as possible

By reorganising our Developer Services business around our
three main customer segments - small and first time devetopers,
large developers and self-lay providers - we evolved our
approach over the last year to meet the needs of our customers
more precisely.

The result? The best customer service within eur sector - finishing
1st for water and a close 2nd for waste water as measured by

the Ofwat customer service KPI. We also saw a 2%% reduction in
customer complaints compared to the previous year

Areas of focus for 2018/19

* Build greater capability in incident management
focusing on continuous IMprovement

Develop the use of the 'Wonderful on tap brand to
increase the focus of all colleagues on enhancing
the quality of our products and customer service,
and make our customers aware of what we do for
thern and our connection with their daily bives

Deliver on the things that matter most to our
customners as measured 10 Customer 001s

L]

Provide a service that 1s affordable for all and
support our finangially vulnerable customers
by assisting 50,000 customers with their bills.

“We continue to maintain the
lowest bills in England and
Wales, and assisted more than
50,000 vulnerable customers
with their bills.”

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Drive operational
excellence and
continuous innovation

What do we mean by this?

We'll build a smarter water and
waste water network, develop our
business intelligence and simplify
our ¢ross business processes.

24 Severn Trert Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

* Ontrack delivery of our plans to be Upper Quartile
for Retail, Water and Waste

* Ontrack delivery of Upper Quartile financing
performance by the end of 2019

Continue to provide enwironmental leadership as
evidenced by EA 4 status

Develop the profitabitity of our US and UK Business
Services operations

Deliver budgeted benefits fromimplementing

10 innovalion projecls and 10 digilal projects,

and developing a sustarnable pipeline and process
for innovation

* Drnive nnovative developer solutions to deliver

a step-change in the new connections service
to customers

Reduce the number of water quality complaints

Image removed

Seeking out best practice,
wherever in the world it Llives

Qur teams are constantly coming up with brilliant ideas on how we can
do things better, faster ar cheaper for our customers - and the Bike
on a Boat project gives them all the suppert they need to become even
maore innovative,

Named after a ¢clever idea developed by an America's Cup yacht racing
team, Bike on 3 Boatis all about learning from each other as well as
from best practice around the world. Towards the end of 2017, we tock
Bike on a Boat on tour, holding 64 roadshows at 10 different venues over
six weeks and generating over 6,200 ideas from cur people.

In October 2017, we launched a £100,000 Bike on Boat fund to enable any
of our people to apply to travel anywhere in the world in order to learn
more about how other companies are reducing water usage and leakage.

We have received over 30 applications and approved 13 trips as far afield
as Australia and Singapore.



Our progress 2017/18

e Achieved Upper Quartle performance in key waste
measures including exter nal sewer flooding.

Delivered sector leading environmentat
performance, which we expect to lead to
EA 4% status

¢ UK Business Services profit increased,
and US business sold

Expanded aur search globally for innovative
solutions to deliver the highest standards and
greatest efficiency for our customers

Achieved 1st and 2nd place in Ofwat s water and

waste rankings respectively for new connections
S5LA compliance

years, reducing water guality complaints by 12%

L ]

Deplayed innovative solutions, such as the addition
of bio-augmentstion to prevent the builld-up

of fatbergs, to deliver higher standards and
greater efficiency.

Delivered cur best water quality performance 1n five

Areas of focus for 2018/1%

« Deliver our plans to be Upper Quartile for Ratall,
Water and Waste

« Continue ta provide environmental leadership
» Regain self-assured status for our English business

= Mzke further progress on the quality of our water
as measured by the DWI s Compliance Risk Index

Customer water
quality complaints

12%

Image removed

Trizlling the use of augmented reality technology
at one of our cperational sites
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Invest responsibly
for sustainable growth

What do we mean by this?

We'll develop an effective strategy
which optimises our regulated asset
base, whilst creating new growth
opportunities for the future.

Image removed

26 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

What we said we would do in 2017/18

« On track to delivering on our PR14 commitments
and make appropnate targeted investments for
the future

Integrate and deliver the benehits of the Dee Valley
acquisition, combining the strengths of the two
companies to create a strong Welsh entity focused
on detivering local prionities

Complete the transfer of our non-household
customers to our joint venture business Water Plus

Generate the equivalent of 38% of our energy needs
from renewable sources

Achieve maternial improvements in some of our key
Enterprise Risk Management risks

Bringing new resilience
to local infrastructure

The market town of Newark in Nottinghamshire has survived
everything from the black death to the civil war. But an expanding
population coupled with an ageing, inadegquate sewer network was
challenging the town's resilience. The infrastructure was at breaking
point, with 400 properties regularly at risk of sewer flooding - after
fire, the worst thing that can happen to a property.

We're currently investing £ 60 million in a three year project to replace
more than 20 km of pipes, inctuding a 2.8 metre diameter tunnel
running 15 metres below Newark’s streets. Despite short term
disruption, the end results will be wetcomed by ail. The town will have
a sewer and water pipe network fit for its future population. And for
the 400 households at the heart of the project, a drop of rain will no
longer raise the fear of sewage flooding their homes and gardens.



Our progress 2017/18

* Embraced Totex, identifying a further £100 million
of efficiencies which witl be re-invested in the
business to further improve customer service and
ensure were In the best possible position for AMPY

Substantially completed the integration of Dee
Valley Waterinto the Severn Trent Group, allowing
the two companies to learn and share best practice
with each other for the benefit of ther customers

Well advanced in realigring the boundaries of
Severn Trent Water and Dee Valley Water along
English and Welsh national borders

Generated the equivalent of 38% of our energy
needs from renewable sources, and made good
progress on the canstruction of new renewable
energy plants

Delivered key milestones in major capital schemes,
including the Birmimgham Resilience Programme
and the Newark waste and water improvement
project Major capital schermes are on track to meet
any associated ODI commitments

The end of an era

Custamers in North Wales are now enjoying higher
quality water, thanks te the completion of a cormnplex
scheme to close an old treatment works and instead
supply water from a more resilient and efficient facitity.

Constructed in the 1920s, the works at Legacy an

the outskirts of Wrexham was licensed to abstract

water from nearby former lead mines This water was
then treated through a series of pressure filters and
chlortnation plants before being held in a 350,000 gallon
tank. However, despite regular upgrades, the faciity was
nearing the end of its useful tife and some customers
were experiencing occasional discolouration problems.

In March 2018, following several years of hard work

by the team at Dee Valley, a project to transfer the raw
water to Llywn Onn was completed - including a new
distribution water pipe - and the Legacy treatment works
was finally closed.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

» Deliver fully on our PR14 [AMPS] investment
commitments, being confident that we are able
to deliver against our current plans and make
appropriate investments for the future

¢ Achieve material iImprovements in some of our kay
ERM risks

+ Drive a facus on efficiency across all business
areas including centrat functions to support
frontline investrnent

Continue to embed innovation across the Company,
rnaking it part of every team’s way of working

Image removed
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Change the market
for the better

What do we mean by this?
We'll embrace market opening in

the UK and explore opportunities
for growth in new water markets.

Image removed

Tanker arriving at our sludge treatment centre
at Worksop, north Nothnghamshire
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What we said we would do in 2017/18

¢ Have a clear PR19 outline plan in place that
evidences our leading status

* Produce compelling cases for investment that
customers want to see, at PR19, that enables strong
RCV growth over AMPs 7 and 8.

* Design and implement the Bioresources change
programme and business model

Be seen as the waler sector’s thought leader

e Create a strong Welsh entity focused on delivering
local priorities

Preparing for competition
in new markets

During the year we commenced preparatiens for
the separation of our Bioresources activity from
our Regulated Water and Waste Water business
into Business Services to ready ourselves for
competition. We have created regional treatment
hubs, streamlined logistics; optimised treatment
strategy and rationalised sites. We are already
active in the market having completed our first trial
trade with Yorkshire Water in April 2018.



Our progress 2017/18

-

*

Our PR19 plans are corming tegether well, co-
creating them with our largest ever customer
engagement programme, and we are in a good
position to submit in September 2018

Restructured our waste business (o create a stand-
alone Bioresources team, identifying opportunties
for operating efficiencies and trading with

our companies

Worked with the Social Market Foundation
to assess the likely costs associated with
renationalising the water and sewerage
industry in England.

Worked with United Utilities to engage with Thames
Water on the canstruction of a super interconnectar
to transfer and trade water between the Severn and
Thames catchment areas

Integration of Dee Valley Water 1s well advanced,
and plans to realign the boundary of the Company
wholly within Wales will take effectin July 2018

Areas of focus for 2018/19

.

Produce compelling cases for investment at PR19
that enable strong RCV growth over AMPs 7 & 8

Deliver phase two of the energy and renewables
strategy to achieve 50% self-generation

Build a sector leading appreach te Bioresources

Finalise the creation of Hafren Dyfrdwy and deljver
a great first year.

Image removed
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Integration of Dee Valley Water 1s well advanced, and plans to realign the
boundary of the Company wholly within Wales will take effect in July 2018
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Strategic report

How we are doing against our
strategic objectives continued

Create an awesome What we said we would do in 2017/18

* Deliver a step change in our safety performance

p la Ce to WO rk * Improve the wetlbeing of our colleagues

* Deliver a further uplft in our employee
; engagement scores

Pregress our talent agenda

Continue to strive for the most diverse and inclusive
bustness with increasing numbers of Black, Astan
and Minority Ethnic { BAME ] talent in our business

Further improve employee engagement
What do we mean by this? by resolving the top 10 1ssues dentified by

We'll create a culture of el
empowerment and accountability

with a focus on skills, talent

and career development.

Opportunity and support for all

We're striving to make Severn Trent an awesome place to work -
| where anybody who wants to reach their potential can thrive,

image removed Graduates already recognise the opportunities we offer - and
apprentices are continuing to follow suit, with another increase in their
numbers over the last year. We're also succeeding in attracting a more
diverse workforce - BAME employees on our graduate programmes
were up 12.74% during the year, Now we're redoubling our efforts te
encourage people from less socially mobile populations to join us,
removing artificial barriers to entry and working with more schools in
disadvantaged areas. For example, for the year ahead we've ring fenced
25 work experience opportunities at five schools across five social

i mability ‘cold spots’in our region.

Once they're part of our team, we provide all our people with a range of
training programmes. We've committed to invest in technical skills and
will create a new Severn Trent Training Academy, focused on delivering
tailored programrnes for staff across our region, with the aim of making
our workforce the most technically skilled in the industry.

We recognise the importance of supporting people in all aspects of
thewr lives. During the year, we continued our major programme to
improve our employees’ understanding of mental health issues, as well
as encouraging greater awareness of cancer and menopause. In April
2018, we also signed up to the TUC’s Dying to Work charter which aims
to protect employees with a terminal diagnosis.
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Our progress 2017/18

-

Achieved a 23% reduction in lost time injuries,
resulting in an LTI rate of 0 17, through an enhaniced
focus on safety culture, standards compliance

and traming

Continued cur focus on mental and
musculoskeletal healti to drive an improvement
in employee wellbeing and reduce absences.

Achreved & six percentage points iImproverment in

our employee engagerment survey, demanstrating
impraovement in all areas, and achieving an upper
quartile position relative to cur peers

Continued Investrnent both in our graduate

and apprentice schemes, aswell as innovative
investment in the ongoing training and development
o our broader amployee population

Focused efforts on further improving social
mobility within gur region, through targeted
recruitment from secial mebility cold spots
Delivered solutions for two of the top 101ssues
identified by our employees, and made progress

to resolve the remaining 1ssues

Image remaved

Supporting clean, safe water
and sanitation

As afounding member and long term supporters of WaterAid,
we've raised over £450,000 for the charity over the last two

years. We believe that our continued support can help WaterAid
realise our shared ambition for clean water, decent toilets and

hygiene for everyone everywhere by 2030.

Areas of focus for 2018/19

» Deliver a further step change in our safety
performance and support the wellbeing of
our colleagues

+ Continue 1o bulld on our strong volunteering
performnance and drive the CR agenda

¢ Continue our focus on improving overall Quest
engagement scares

& Delver the foundations of the new
Acaderny, to make a positive contribution
to technical development.

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

ODIs and KPIs

We continue to make progress against
our customer ODls and financial KPis.

Progress against our
Outcome Delivery Incentives?

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Internal sewer floeding

External sewer flooding

Minutes without supply

Actual Artual Actual
662 3,763 3429
rapt removed Graph removed -~ - { oo Graph rempved -}
Reward/Penally Reward/Penalty Reward Perally
940 T.447 1108 12

Rate of Rpwardﬂ’F’ﬂna lylpcr mmdenﬂ

EAZ 820’

Why we measure it

To ensure we da cverylhing we can Lo provent llooding
of vustemers hamies orbusinesses, [Lis ane of our
customers rno=-Limpertant prionlies

Pregress in the year

We are reperting a performance of 662 internal
incidents, ahead of pur committed perfarnyinre Level
of 62 1ncklents

Rate o Reward/Pena\U [pi ring |dem]

1‘:1‘?7791

Why we measure it

To ensure we do everylhing we can Lo prevent (loed ng
of eustarmers homes or busing sses Itis ene of our
customers mestimpartant prionties

Progress in the year

We arereporung a porfermand e af 3,763 external
incidents, ahead of cur cormmitted performance wvel
of 7447 inuident s

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation

Improvements to river water quality

Number of category 3 pollution incidents

Rte ef Reward/Penalty [per minutel

£1.10m!’

Why we measure it

Our cuslamers value water buing there when thoy
need it This perforimance commitmenl ensures v
are driving down the impact of any interruptions te
supply a6 ross Qur netaork o minmsy thempact
ancustomers

Prograss inthe year

We interrupted customers supplies for anavarage of
34 27 munutes in Z0T7/18, sl betund cur perfermance
commitment of 108 minute <

Successful catchment management schemes

Actual Actual Actual
19 327 0
[ ! .
. " Graph removed I "7 77 Graphremoved I Graphrémoved

Penalty/Reward
233

Rate of Penaity/Reward [per unit]

~ £150,000"

Why we measure it

We have statutory obligations 1o deliver, bt cur
custormers teld us that we should de maore where we
can This performance commitment ensures we meet
our cbligations and drives us ta dehver mare where it
15 possible

Progress in the year

There were 19 iIndradual points completed in 2017/18,
bringing our curmulalive tatal 1o 34 pointa, and we are
on track for our end cf AMP target

3. Invest responsibly for
sustainable growth

See our Regulated Water and Waste Water
performance review an pages 34 te 41
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Reward/Penalty
s

Rate of Reward/Penalty (per nuident]

Why we measure it

Minirmising the 1mpact our ac vty has on the
emaronment s a key cencern for our customers
This performance comrmitment ensures we drive
lomprove performance in this area

Progress in the year

We are reperting 327 category 3 incidents against
acommitted performance level of 374, this1s 47
ahead of target and our reward dead-band

Penalty/Roward Reward Cap
12

Rale of Penalty/Ruward [per s hemel

Whywe measure it

Qur custamers want us ta look for new andinnovative
ways tosrnprove waler quabty, whilst working in
partnershipwith ather stakeholders to deliver wider
benzlus, This performance cormilman [ocuses on
how our apprearhes are encauraging farmers and
lanaz owners to cnange tneir behaviour and pracnices

Progress inthe year

Over the last year we have undertaken areview af our
schemas and processes and oplirmsed our appreach
based on previcus year s experience We are entrack
ta deliver more than our pe~lormance commitrnent of
12 catzhments i 20N8/17

4. Create an awesome place to work

Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked

Severn Trent Water Limited

01 7 2016/17:0.22

wvern Trent Business Services

O 15 2016/17:0.04




SIM - Customer experience

Not yet defined by Ofwat

83.25IM score

Why we measure it

Prowding joad quality ervice to gur - ustomersis kay
and the Sorwce Incentee Me haren [ SIM ] provides us
with 3 regular gppor turily 1 under stand oor perfermance
and implementiniliatives tomprae the guahty of serace
we provide but alsc deliver value for monoy

Progress inthe year

We have seen a slight decline in our guaritati
areas of curbusiness and maintained sur qualizatie
scores whech has meant that we have reported a SIM
srore o83 2 for 20190 bokind aur o ngt upper
quartite *arget

Asset Stewardship - coliform failures

Artua'
8

Complaints about water quality

Artuai
12,687

:* Graph removed

Reward/Penalty
9,992

£900"

Why we measure it

Cuslemer s value the aesthetr qualdy ot ther

water Thisporforman eocmimatrment is dezigned
€ @nsare we Mand ge cur network o minmise the
nLmberef events that o wse diso o'varatizn, tastecr
cdoaurprobleome

Progress inthe year

In 2077, the numEer ot doinking water gaa'ity
~omplaints decreased from 14 481 10 12,657 but
we did not achieve our comritted performance
evel ol 9997

Leakage

Actual
443
|

" Graph feroved

o ""G'réﬁﬁi"rém'oiléd

Penalty
7

Raie of Penatty
£463,000
Why we measureit

The gresence of velifarms e gur drinking water 1=
unacceptable asitis anindicator ef poor quality sowe

continually reaniior ourworks to ensure thoy sre nol
being detes ted

Progressinthe year

Curing 2017, we detected coliforme at eighbwater
treatment works sites, which s wor o than cur
cotmitted pertormance level of seven o {eaer
works with coliform detections

Severn Trent engagement scare iImprovement’

Raward/Fenalty
434

Rate of Reward/Penally [per megautre per dayl

£123,000"

Why we measure it

Custumers see leakage as 3 waste of akey resours,

cur customers want us te reduce our level of Loak gt
a5 apriorty

Progress inthe year

Qur cutturn positicn for 2017/18 was . total

of 443 MUAay whichaas behind cur comrmitted
performance level ol 434 Mifay

6 percentage points

Progress against
our financial KPis*

Group turnover

£1,694.1m

2016/17: €£1,638.0m

Group undertying PBIT

£041.0m

2016/17: £520.1m
Underlying earnings per share
121.0p

2016/17: 115.7p

MNates

In 2012/173 prizes after Lax

These are also koy megsurcments uand to ass2ss
ot Corporate Responsibility perform e
Erygagement index used forth Groug =ime
2095416 Lo nupportbenchimorkang ans gain better
nsight shant us as ar employer
Alter native Ferformance Messures are detined
In Note 46 to the Group Financal Staternent s
on pages 192 10 194

Key

Actual

Sovere Trent Actual Performan e 2017713
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Strategic repott

Performance review

Regulated Water
and Waste Water

Our Regulated Water and
Waste Water business
performed well during the
year, as we continued to deliver
our five strategic priorities.

Here, we provide greater detail on the achievernenits
and challenges we encountered while delivering
our five strategic priorities over the last 17 months
- and also identify some of the areas where there's
still more to do

Litres of drinking water
supplied each day

1.6bn

Kilometres of sewerage
pipes in our network

94,027

Households and
businesses served

4.3m

Image removed

We aim to educate and inspire an entire generation, not just about water
conservation and environmental pratection, but also by emphasising
the importance of hydration to their health and wellbeing

34 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Embedding customers
at the heart of all we do

Serving our 4 3 rillion custorners and doing our best for their
local communities sits right at the very centre of everything
we do

During the year, we carriad out the most intensive customer
engagement activity in our history This included a range of
in-depth, deliberative sessions with custorners to get nght to
the heart of their needs, and close collabor ation to explore how
those needs — and cur service - couid evolve in the future

The customer cngagernent canfirmed that the prionities lor our
customers are consistent and simple - including less sewer
flooding and lower bills Simple to understand, of course, but not
so simple to achieve So it s extremely pleasing to report that this
was the third consecutive year where we outperformed on the
measures that our custormers care most about

Less sewer flooding

An improved record on sewer [tooding sits right at the top of our
st of achievernents There's been a 35% reduction in the number
of customers affected by external sewer flooding, largely due to
our continued focus on prevention,

With rnany blockages caused by wipes and other non-degradabie
items, we've continued to use a wide range of initiatives to
educate our custorners about what they can and can't put

down tollets and drains Among households, wipes are the

main culprits and during the year we interacted with 200,536
customers to help thern to improve their understanding of

how sewers work and to be careful around how much water s
consumed Were paying particular attention to the custorners
of the future, and engaged with 154,102 schoolchildren during
the year We aim to educate and inspire an entire generation, not
|ust about water conservation and environmentat protection, but
also by emphasising the importance of hydration to their health
and wellbeing

In the non-household sector, we followed up last year's
pioneering agreement with McDenald's by engaging with more
fast food restaurants In Gloucestershire, for example, we
worked with companies including YO! Sushi, J ) Wetherspoon
and The Mayflower to help prevent fatbergs by educating staff
about what they shouldn't be pouring down sinks and drains,
and adwising them on whal grease contamment and treatment
1s needed



frmage removed

We're the first water company to provide a 24/7 service for
non-emeargencies, 50 custermers can contact us to discuss anything
they want in the middle of the night, if that's what fits in with their lives.

Lower hills

For the 8th consecutive year, Severn Trent Water s custorners
paid the lowest bills in England and Wales, with our average
combined bill for the year being £341 Were proud of this record
- but we're even more proud of cur continuing efforts to do more
every year to help vulnerable customers who are struggling to
make ends meet In its third year, our Big Difference scheme
helped 36,000 customers access discounts of between 16% and
90%. which 1s a critical part, along with other tailored schemes,
to ensure we deliver on our commitment to help at least

50,000 custorners with bills every year Experience tells us that
financial difficutties can often indicate 1ssues in other areas of a
customer’s life, so we've expanded our care and assistance team
to give us the capacity to engage with agencies such as housing
associations, the NHS, Citizens Advice and charities including
MIND, Samaritans and local food banks, as well as other utility
companies By working together, sharing appropriate information
and adopling a holistic approach te vulnerable people, we believe
we |l be able to do even moare to play a key role at the heart of
local communities

More ways to contact us

It's iImportant to our custorners that they can get in touch with us
how they want, when they want We now maintain nine different
customer communicatien channels, including webchat which
saw an Increase in traffic during the year. We're the first water
company to provide a 24/7 service for non-emergencies, so
customears can contact us to discuss anything they want in the
nuddle of the right, it that's what hits m wath therr lves. The value
of round-the-clock avallability can be seen in the fact that an
most nights, more people contact us with guestions about
payment of their bills and other issues than about emergencies

Although our customer Serwvice Incentive Mechanism ('SIM]
score ~ which Ofwat uses to measure how well and how quickly
we put things right when our service fails to meet customars’
expectations - 1s disappointing, we are working hard to improve
the consistency of our customer experience There s still mare
to do, and we re going to focus extra effort in areas such as the
time we take to respond when customers inform us of a leak
Butit's encouraging to see that cur drive to emnbed customers at
the centre of all we do I1s paying off where It matters most —n the
hearts and minds of customers themselves Custorner written
complaints for the year are down 17%

We continued to perform well on the institute of Customer
Service s UK index, which measures customer satisfaction
across the utilities sector, achieving upper quartile position for
custorner satisfaction, equivalent to fourth pesition in the Utilities
sector We look forward to the intraduction of Ofwat's new C-MeX
measure, currently in development, we believe that this measure
will provide a truer reflection of our relative performance
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Strategic report

Performance review continued
Regulated Water and Waste Water

Driving operational excellence
and continued innovation

We're fully supportive of the incentive environment that Ofwat
has created. The clear linkage between performance and
reward has encouraged us to think differently about how we
work and to develop a sharper focus than ever on improving
customer service The result has been a good performance
which has generated significant COl outperformarnce paymerits
of £80 2 million We ve decided to defer these earnings and
access them in the years to come, when they'll help us to
smooth future customer bills

Nowhere 15 our performance better demaonstrated than on
our waste measures, \ncluding sewer flooding As reported
above, we achieved a significant reduction in the number of
customers affected by such incidents over the last year In fact
we ve outperformed our internal sewer flooding regulatory
target by 31% and our external target by 49% How have we
achieved this? By continuous investment supported by leading
edge technology At a macro level, we re using sophisticated
data and analytics tc predict the areas at greatest risk and then
addressing these with targeted capital investment Ata more
micro level, we're carrying out root cause analysis of incidents
when they do occur and putting measuresin place to prevenl
renccurrence - whether caused by gecgraphic factors or
customer behaviours.

Regaining 4* status

Pollution 1s an area where the investments made since
privatisation are really paying off - and we re delighted to
repert that our environmental performance should enable us
to regam coveted 4* status from the Environment Agency

Our number of serious pollution incidents (categories | and 2]
decreased to two from seven the previous year while category
3 performance again improved, with 327 incidents against a
regulatory target of 374 At the same time, we worked hard

to improve the guality of the water entering our rivers and
reservoirs Metaldehyde is an effective pesticide against slugs,
snails, and other gastropods - but once it runs off flelds and
enters the watercourse, It's extremely expensive to remove
We continued to use financial Incentives to encourage farmers
to pursue different and less environmentally damaging
alternatives, with considerable success
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Image removed

We've outperformed our internal sewer flooding regulatory target
by 31% and our external target by 49%.

The Drinking Water Inspectorate [ DWI) plays a key role in

our regulalory environment, and we continued to fulfit our
commitment to carry out diagnostics at our 16 largest sites

Our performance 1s measured by a metric known as mean zonal
compliance, and during 2017/18 we improved our performance
compared with the prior year at 99 96% (2016/17 99 94%)

Scope for improvement

Unfortunately, our performarnice on supply Interruptions was less
pleasing. with a two-fold year-on-year deterioration Due toa
number of significant bursts some of cur customers were lefl
without water The major burst at Tewkesbury in December,
which affected many thousands of people, was challenging both
to locate and 1solate Although we worked tirelessly to reconnect
our customers and provided 100,000 Litres of bettled drinking
water, we recognise that our performance was unacceptable

Then, in March 2018 the very rapid thaw following 'The Beast
from the East’ led to a substantial increase over a seven day
period 1nthe number of burst pipe notifications we would typically
receive during that period, followed by complications caused

by airlocks, further snowfall and then further bursts We were
incredibly disappeinted that homes and communities were

left without water as a resull of the unprecedented weather

We know how difficult everyday tife was for our custormers until
we could restore supplies - and we decided immediately to pay
£30 compensation, roughly equivalent to our average monthly
cormnbined il for water and waste, to any who were without water
for more than 12 conttnuous hours, or experienced mtermittent
supply for more than 15 hours We also worked with business
customners and their relailers who were allected With around
70% of 1ssues occurring on private property, we know we need to
do more to advise customers better on how to prepare for winter.



The guality ef aur drinking water s constantly monitored and
strictly requlated Our strategy for the year was to focus more
efforts on our surfzce water treatment works — and while this
generated good results it was accompanied by a shight dip in
performance at our ground water sites For examiple, the number
of sites where coliforms were detected rose from five to eight
While coliforms are harmless bacteria, their presence can be

an indication that water quality 15 not as high as it should be

Overall, we received 12,687 complaints about water quality
during the year, down by 12% This was our best performance
for six years, and sustained the prior year s improvements
We're committed to further improvement and acknewledge that
the number of complaints in 2017/18 1s st significantly above
our requlatory target of 9992 We re targeting improvements in
many ways, including adopting the water flushing programme
mnitiatives in place at Dee Valley Water which helped the team
there achieve 100% compliance during the year

One of the Dee Valley Water teams 15 currently leading the
Severn Trent water quality improvement progratmme - a good
example of how we re sharing best practice and learning from
each other's experiences

Investing in innovation

We continue to seek out innovative ideas that can transform our
performance, no matter where they originate For example, our
cornmitment to remove phosphorus from our sewage treatment
works has seen our mnovation team evaluate technologies from
across the world Following intensive £2 millien trials at our
Packington site aver the last two years, we re now commencing
the roll-out of five different and highly advanced technologies
These inctude a magnetite ballasted coagulation process
pioneered in the US At one site this technology has replaced
our original solution, which was costed at £211 million The new
solution reduced the cost to £12 5 rmillion and will lead to a total
expenditure [Totex] saving of £8 7 mullion - a return on investment
of 218% on one scheme alone

We're also seeking to improve our performance on leaks
through innovative projects, such as the introduction of detector
robets into the pipe network This innovative solution uses
small touch sensors to spot the nature and exact location of
leaks rather than the current visual and acoustic techniques.
Based on technology first used in Nor th Armerica, we were the
first test case in Europe and only the third test case globally
with very encouraging early results,

Image removed

We re also seeking to improve our
performance on leaks through
innovative projects, such as the
introduction of detector robots
into the pipe network
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water continued

Investing responsibly
for sustainable growth

At Severn Trent, we've been responsible for £21 billion of the
£130 billion invested by our iIndustry since privatisation — and our
capital programme continued at pace through 2017/18, as we
invested £855 million across our estate Last year, we committed
tenvesting a further £120 mullien in AMPé in order to make sure
we're in the best passible shape for AMP7, and we ve increased
our torecast lotex effriciencies by £100 million These now stand
at £870 mullion. Trus additional £100 nullion of Totex efficiencies,
which 1sin addition to the £120 million previously announced, will
also be reinvested in our business, for the benefit of custormers,

Delivering our capital programme

Looking at our major capital projects, we started work on a

£50 rmutlion project to protect 400 homes and businesses at
Newark in Nottinghamshire from sewer flooding, and provide the
town with a more reliable water supply On track for completion
in 2019, the project will see us install 4 km of new sewers and

10 km of new water marins, and alse builld a 3km, 2 8 metre
diameter, tunnel 15 metres below Newark

The £300 million Birmingham Resilience Project s the largest
capital project undertaken in the industry during AMP4 Due to
be completed in 2020, this will create a second major source

of water for Birmingham Progress during the year included
preparatory works for the Lickhill to Frankley pipeline comgrising
the laying of 17 km of pipework and major tunnelling operaticns

Meanwhile, the £40 million investment to replace an ageing
reservoir with two new ones at Ambergate was completed a year
early in February 2018 This project will lower the nsk to drinking
water quality while \mpraving our storage capacity resilience at
the sarme time.

Our capital programme is delivering rewards In many areas
of the business We've retained our Upper Quartile position
In waste and are moving In that direction on water In terms
of OUls, we ve sigrificantly cutperformed our targets and our
0Dl outperformance paymenls have exceeded £80 rmillion
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Building a sustainable business

It's important to balance capaaity-building projects with the
need to create a sustainable business that's able to deliver
customer benefits in the long term = not just next year but over
the coming decade and beyond

Fer example, we carned out 15367 home water efficiency checks
during the year. These help customers save money by using
water mare efficiently - and that means less pressure onwater
resources In the future We re now using demoegraphic data such
as socioeconomic profiling, to target custormers who we believe
stand to gain most from a visit by our team In total, our education
programmes helped over 171,469 customers use water more
wisaly in 2017/18

We're fortunate that the Severn Trent estate 1s home to a
diverse array of species of plants and armimals Ouring the year,
we improved hiodiversity at Sites of Special Scientific Interest
[SSSls] covering 9 86 heclares, reprasenting good progress
against our 2020 target of 75 hectares - and we also improved
almost 120 km of rivers as part of the Water Framework
Directive We continue to focus on exploring innovative ways

to generate renewable energy from waste, and last year self-
generated the equivalent of 38% of our energy needs Please see
the Business Services perfermance review on page 42 for
more details

On a more negative nate, our emissions performance was
disappointing as we failed to achieve our Water carbon ODI due to
higher than expectad energy use In response, we've introduced
new energy Mmanagement initiatives for the corning year We've
also agreed to help the National Grid batance energy supply

and demand by turning some of our operational sites off at
certan times

We know that our own efforts to become more sustainable
become even more effective when we're joined by others — and
in May 2017, we were delighted to see our supply chain partners
stepping up to support cur ambitions At an event in Coventry,
seniar delegates from cur top suppliers engaged with our
rmanagement team to explere opportunities to work together for
mutual benefit The outcome included a series of pledges from
these influential suppliers to work on improving sustainability in
areas relevant to their business For example, embedding carbon
and water reductions in therr processes and pledging to work
closely with us on mitigating the risks of modern slavery.

Closer to home, we are working with PwC and Hope for Justice
to prowide our pecple with bespoke training on modern slavery.
This programpme raised awareness of the issue and how to
identify it, particularly among our suppliers - and it s encouraged
cur people to become advocates of our zero tolerance approach
ta modern slavery.



Changing the market
for the better

Severn Trent Water and Dee Valley Water are very active players
in the water industry across England and Wales We're keen to
play our part to the full - promoting the industry and the positive
influence it has had on life in the UK since privatisation, and
encouraging greater awareness amoeng regulators and others
of the 1ssues we lace,

During the year, we supported the Social Market Foundation in
publishing a report inta the Lkely impbcations of renationalising
the water industry on public sector debt levels With scrme
commentators estimating the cost of such a development to

be in excess of £90 billion, our view 1s that the public should be
tully aware cf the facts around all aspects of renationalisation
We also collaborated with Thames Water and United Unliues to
publish a thought leadarship document on how water companies
could create and manage a systems cperator for water trading in
erder to drive greater efficiency.

Image removed

Encouraging new ideas

We have a track record of embracing markets where we believe
we can create value for cur customers For example, our

Water Plus joint venture with United Utilities 1s enabling us te take
advantage of the opportunities presented by the opening of the
non-household retail market in April 2017

We continued te engage with our industry peers on a wide range
of 1ssues throughout 2017/18, in order to identify and evaluate
new and better ways of working Our draft Water Resources
Management Plan outlines a range of potential trading options
to help meet future demand pressures and to secure supples
for the long term We've already worked with Thamas Water

and Urnted Unlities to Investigate the benefits that a super
interconnector could bring to our respective regions, by enabling
us to move and trade water Additional future options include bio-
resources trading - and we've taken part in trials to make sure
we're ready for the opportunity when it arises

We atsc worked closely with the Water Forum, which not anly
gave us valuable customer insights but also helped guide the
new and deeper approach we re taking to supporting vulnerable
members of our local communities

Acquiredin 2017, Dee Valley Water has now been substantially
tntegrated into the Group, and we've been busy sharing ideas
between the businesses The acquisition gave us the opportunity
to realign both Dee Valley Water and Severn Trent Water around
national boundaries Once the realignment 1s complete in July
2018, Dee Valley Water will be answerable to the government

in Wales, while Severn Trent Water will be answerable to the
government in England

We recognise the importance of leading by example, and

aim to help cur industry regam public trust and legitimacy by
demonstrating the highest standards of governance Our Board
leads from the front and 15 responsible for the oversight of all
aspects of the business, including cutture During the year, the
Directors continued to evaluate a broad set of cultural indicators,
such as exit Interviews and external stakeholders’ perceptions,
in order to ensure that our values remam central to everything
we do
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Regulated Water and Waste Water continued

Creating an awesome
place to work

Qur people are key to the success of our business — and wa
want to make sure we motivate, reward and suppoert them
accordingly. It was very encouraging to sce our efforts reflected
by a six percentage points improvemeant in our anpual employee
engagement survey in 2017 The mncreased score butlds on the
positive momenturn of recent years as our culture matures,
and was achieved acress the board - people in every part of the
business support what we're doing

We're creating an awesome place to work by focusing on a
broad set of projects and inihatives Recrutment and career
paths clearly play an important role - graduates continue to be
attracted to the challenges and opportunities we offer, and our
apprentice intake increased yet agan In fact during 2017/18 we
were delighted to see four experienced employees siart onour
first ever Masters level apprentice pragramme.

Image removed

Celebrating diversity

The last 12 months saw the establishment of our first LGBT+ snclusion
group The mission of this team was to create a proud and inclusive
culture for our LGBT+ community, supporting cur colleagues

and ongoing commuitment to being recogmised as a diverse and
inclusive business
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Helping people progress

We invest In skills and development at all levels of the business,
doing all we can to provide people with progressive, successful
careers A number of our current senior managers started in
junior pesitions We aim to provide great opportunities for all,
regardless of gender, race or background We continually strive
to be a diverse, inclusive business that reflects the demograplives
of our region, and achieved a 13% increase in the numbers of
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic [ BAME'] employees on our
graduate programmes during the year. The populatien in the East
and West Midlands 1s among the least socially mobile groups

in the UK - but as a major employer we can help change that

and enable people to realise their potential To this end, we've
removed barriers to entry such as the requirement te have a
degree for some of our programmes and we have changed our
selection process to focus on potential rather than experience

Our gender diversity performance improved during the year

and we now have a mean gender pay gap of just 2.4% However,
we're working hard Lo reduce it stll further We benefit from high
fernale representation at executive level and were pleased to be
placed second among FTSE 100 companies for representation
of women on boards and in senior (eadership roles by the 2017
Hampton-Alexander Review The last year also saw the creation
of our frst LGB T+ nclusion group. | he rmussion of this tearm was
to create a proud and inclusive culture for cur LGBT+ community,
supperting our colleagues ongoing commitment te being
recognised as a diverse and inclusive business

We encourage all our people, across all roles and age ranges,

to be creative and put forward their ideas for iInnavations that can
Improve custemer service We repeated the all-employee staff
roadshow, following its success in 2015 The Bike on a Boat’
tour, Inspired by the innovative approach of the New Zealand
America’s Cup-winning team of 2017, captured and shared a
wide range of brlliant ideas Since ts launch we have funded

13 ideas, including sending employees to evaluate inthiatives in
Singapore, Austratia, Denmark and USA that could be adopted in
our business.



We also restructured the busmess during the year This brought
arenewed emphasis on our care work in water and waste
water, it's also improved our customer focus and, crucially,
brought a new tevel of clanty to our employees on roles and
responsibilities We all know what's expected of us, and we all
know that the business will do its best to support us by giving

us the tools we need — whether that s a robot leakage detector,
an innovative agreement with a farmer or a day of intensive
management training

Pay and conditions are hugh on everybody s list of priorities,

and we ve made good progress here too We provide jobs that
are well paid and with excellent pensions Our bonus scheme
also embraces everybody, ensuring that the rewards of a good
year’'s work are shared among us all The annual employee
engagemeant survey identified pay transparency and relativity

as two of the top 10 1ss0es where our people thought we could
improve We re now addressing this by clanfying pay rates and
being more thorough in the way we explain career opportunitias.

Promoting health, safety and wellbeing

We pay particular attention to the health, safety and wellbeing of
curteams, and in 2017/18 cantinued our major initiative around
mental health. Our aim s to remove the stigma around mental
health, for example by creating a workplace where people can
talk abeut problems with depression or stress To date, we ve
trained over 400 mental health first aiders to spot the signs of a
possible issue, while a number of senior managers have brought
mental health more into the open by talking frankly about their
own experiences During the year, we held an initiative en the
rmenopause and othar areas that people can be uncomfortable
discussing, Including cancer, and we signed up to Dying to Work,
which supports employees with a terrminal diagnosis

We're committed to the hughest standards of behaviour at all irmes,
not only in our own business but also zrmong our suppliers, who
are reguired to s1ign up to our Cede of Conduct, anti-corruption
and bribery policy and our sustainable supply chain charter to
illustrate that they share our values and are committed to helping
us achieve our goals, We audit suppliers as part of our tendering
process for large contracts, and they must demonstrate full
compliance with our standards at all tmes

Image removed

Over 40% of employeas volunteered during the year, a huge increase
on the 11% that took partin 2016/17

During the year, we worked with Hope for Justice to develop a
training package. including upskilling our contract managers

on how to spot the signs of slavery and hurnan trafficking and the
steps they should take if any concerns are raised We have clear
policies and tramning in place - and these are supported by an
independent and confidential whistleblowing service which we
actively promote via communications such as messages on
payslips Every report of possible corrupticn or bribery, from

any source, 1s Investigated and reported to both the Corporate
Responsibibly and Audit Cormmmittees of the Board.

We want our people ta feel part of a progressive company

that plays its part to the full - and the record tevel of employee
volunteering 1s ancther positive sign of this Over 40% of
employees volunteered during the year, a huge increase on the
11% that took part in 2016/17 Mast volunteering was through
our new Community Champions programme, working alongside
key partners such as The Wildlfe Trust to improve 50 km of
riverside enviranments in our regions Qur volunteers alse
helped our corporate charities, Comic Relief, Sport Relief and
Children in Need, as well as continuing our long term suppert for
WaterAwd In addition to raising nearly £300,000 during the year,
our people alse drew on specific industry skills to give practical
hetp to WaterAud, for example by supporting the chanty s
campaign to improve water quality in Cambodia.
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Strategic report

Performance review continued

Business Services

We have transformed Business
Services during the year: divesting

our overseas operating services
businesses and increasing our focus

in the UK; expanding our energy
production capacity and establishing
our Bioresources business; and setting
up our Property division.

Image removed
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Focusing on the domestic UK market

Following the sale of our itablan business 1n the previcus year,
i June 2017 we sold the Dperating Services’ US business

to Public Pensions Capital for $62 million This enabled us

to sharpen our focus on our core UK and ireland domestic
market, in line with our strategy

Qur UK contracts business again provided a solid foundation
for the year's performance The 25 year operating and
maintenance contract with the Ministry of Defence [MOD'] has
now reached the halfway point We're delighted to continue to
recewve positive feadback from our custormners regarding the
service were delivering and we've continued to see strong
returns from project work across the MOD estate

We continue to grow and value our close working relationships
with customners For example, this was demonstrated to

good effect an our Coal Authority contract Our team (s now
co-located in the customer’'s Manstield office, irom where we
rmanage the contr act to prevent flooding and pollution issues
at disused mines

Seizing new opportunities

We've completed the integration of our nen-household retail
operation into Water Plus This joint venture with United
Utitities 1s focused on the opporturities created by the
cpening of the non-household retail market to competition
in Aprik 2017 Water Plus s working well, rnaintaiming

its share of a growing market by winrning several major
contracts The emphasis for the year ahead wall be on driving
improvermnents in the market and improving our service to
meet customer needs, as we striva 1o be recognised as a
leader in this new market

In & move that will help us extract maximum value from our
estate, we crested @ new property divisien during the year
The Property Development business unit aims to develop
land previously used for operations through the planning
process for onward sale to developers to enable new homes
and commercial premrses to be built, creating new homes,
communities and jobs Our experienced, dedicated team has
significant property expertise and will assess the potential in
our surplus tand Together with Severn Trent Water's Estates
Management Teamn, cur aim 1s to deliver £100 rilion profit
over the next decade.
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Construction of our third food waste plant is also progressing well Sited in Derby, this new plant
15 the first in the UK to incorporate advanced thermopressure hydrolysis, which will enable us

to generate more energy and take in waste from the broader waste market.

Generating our own energy

Our sewage sludge anaerobic digesters, food waste and crop
digestion plants, two wind turbines and solar PVs generated
the equivalent of 38% of our energy during the year - and

we remain on track Lo achieve our target of increasing thal
percentage to 50% by 2020

In pursuit of that goal, we took steps to expand our renewable
activities by announcing a new Bioresources business unit
Set to begin operations in Apnl 2018, the new umit vall manage
all bio-resource activities within our regulated business, in
preparaticn for the opening up of the hio-resource market

in 2020

Gur crop digestion plant near Nottungham wilt play an
important rele 1n achieving our 50% target The plant
produces gas by digesting maize that's been grown

on contaminated land around our treatment works
Construction of a new biogas facility to expand capactty by
50% completed in December 2017 and delivers biomethane
directly into the National Grid

Food waste plants — which take waste food from restaurants,

supermarkets and other facilities - are another way in which
we're lurning waste into renewable energy Our second

food waste plant at Stourbridge opened for business in June
2017 Itwill produce enough green gas to power around
3.000 homes and help the Government meet its objective to
decarbonise the environment Construction of cur third food
waste plant s also progressing well Sited in Derby, this new
plant Is the first in the UK to incorpor ate advanced therme-
pressure hydrolysis, which wilt enable us to generate more
energy and take in waste from the broader waste market
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships

Every day, we rely on six key
resources and relationships
to support the long-term
sustainability of our business.

On these pages we explain these resources
and relationships in detail, and showcase

a number of practical examples of how we
managed them over the last year.

This year we have integrated our CR metrics
among our commentary on managing our
critical resources and relationships.

Water Framework
Directive classification
improvement points

Positive engagement
with land managers

85% 19

201715

Hectares improved from
unfavourable or deteriorating
condition using Natural
England’s database of S55Is

9.86

2017 2974

Expected EA rating Number of Environment
* Agency Category 1 & 2 incidents
4 [calendar year metric]
2017 3* 2
017 7
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Reduction in Group
carbon emissions

4.46%

{scope 1 and 2] - our direct ermissions
and those from the energy we use

2017 83%



Our natural resources

Maintaining our reservoirs, rivers
and underground aquifers

We're fortunate to be respansible for some of the UK’s most
impressive natural resources. From the chain of man-made
lakes created by damming the Elan and Claerwen rivers in
Wales, which provide clean water to Birmingham, to stunning
stretches of rivers such as the Severn, the Dee and the Trent,
these wonderful resources provide the raw materials for

our services.

Despite the relatively dry winter, our reservoirs were full at the
end of the financial year, and we're in a strong posttion to ensure
areliable supply to customers during the year ahead

Working with landowners...

Prevention 1s better than cure, so we work hard to make
sure that the water entering our watercourses is as clean
as possible Supported by the skills 0¥ a dedicated team

of agricultural adwvisers, the Severn Trent Environmental
Protection Scheme [[STEPS] aims tg Improve watercourses
and the wider environment

STEPS provides grants of up to £0,000 for infrastructure
improvernent and land management changes in our target
areas Thisis part of our plan to invest £271 million by 2020 to
help farmers improve water guality - an investment that will
pay off several imes over by protecting the environment and
reducing treatment costs

For example, we continued to recompense farmers prepared
to switch from metaldehyde to less invasive alternatives for
the control of slugs Once in the watercourse via field run-
off, metaldehyde 1s extremely expensive to remove - and the
scheme has again delivered excellent value while helping us
achieve our catchment management target

We impraved biodiversity on 9 86 hectares of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest [S55187] during the year, and have a target of
improving 75 hectares of S55Is by 2020

...and ensuring long term supply

As the financial year closed, we published our draft Water
Resources Management Plans [ WRMP ] Our long term

view an supply avaitability, the WRMP articulates the nead to
make significant investments in water supply and demand
managerment schemes, particularly in Light of the Government s
reguirements for the industry to reduce levels of water
abstraction Forexample, Severn Trent Water has targeted a
15% reduction In leakage over the next five years, and we plan
to iIncrease the use of water meters, in addition to stepping up
our home water efficiency checks We carried out 15,367 checks
during the year - helping customers save manay and protect
future supples by using water more etficiently.

Image removed

Helping farmers step up
to the challenge

Prevention can be more cost-effective than treatment,
particclarly when it comes to pesticides which can enter
our rivers from surrounding fields. Through STEPS we offer
farmers grants of up to £5,000 per year to undertake works
which will help reduce pollution.

Logo
removed

Retaining the Carbon
Trust Standard

We were proud to once again be reaceredited with the Carbeon
Trust Standard during the year. This achievernent verifies that
we have sound carbon management processesin placeand are
reducing absolute carbon emissions year-on-year Infact, we've
reduced our GHG emissions by 17% since 2014,
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Cleaning our rivers

Under the EU Water Framework Directive [WFD'}, we re
charged with achieving good status for all watercourses.
We continued to support the aims of the WFD duning 2017/18
and again made significant progress towards achieving our
ambitious target of improving the health of 1,800 km of river
by 2020 We completed 10 WFD sewage treatment projects
during the year which improved almost 120 km of river - an
increase of around 650% over the previous year - and we re
now approximately 15% of the way to reaching our objective
River health s assessed by the Erviranment Agency and
measured against a set of criteria including oxygen levels and
the presence of fish and invertebrates.

Managing our environmental impact

During 2017118, we outperformed our internal sewer flooding
regulatory target by 31% and our external target by 49% - and
these have been key factors that should help us regain a 47
rating from the Environment Agency

We also achieved all of our regulatory targets relating to
potlution incidents, reducing serious category 1 and 2 pollutions
to two events during 2017/18, down from seven in the prior year

We failed to reach our water ODI carbon emissions target

far 2017/18, primarily due to greater energy consumption as

we need to meet increases in demand for water production
Efiiciency measures now in place are expeciled to drive the
required reduction in the corming 12 menths Meanwhile, we
continue to Increase the amount of renewable energy we
generate Ouring the year, we produced the equivalent of 38% of
Severn Trent Waler Limited’s energy needs and are ontrack to
mcrease this to 50% by 2020
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Using technology to
prevent pollution

Combined sewer overflows ['C$0s’) are suscaptible to
pollution if they block or stop working properly. So over

the last year we've invested in momitors at aver 70% of our
CS0s. We're also installing over 1,000 moniters in manhales
where there’s a high risk of internal flooding or pellution.

Image removed

40% of employees volunteer
to clear 50 km of rivers

Our volunteering scheme continues to go from strength to
strength. During the year, over 40% of our people worked
with partners such as local Wildlife Trusts ta help clean up
the environment alongside 40 km of rivers in England and
afurther 10km in Wales.



Our physical assets

Ensuring a resilient and well-mantained network

Our physical assets include over 49,000 km of water mains,
27 dams, 139 water treatment works and a vast range of
equipment, sites, offices and other structures across an
estate that covers more than 53,000 acres. While a significant
number of these assets are over 100 years old and of historic
importance, many are among the most technologically
advanced examples of their type in the water industry - not
only in the UK but worldwide.

We're committed te ensuring that cur assets are in optimum
condition at alt imes, able to deliver the high quality services that
our customers depend on At dams and reservoirs, for example,
we carry out regular checks to identify any remedial actions that
need to be undertaken —and every year, the Board receves a full
report on the condition of each dam and reservoir in cur portfolic

Security 1s an increasingly importantissue for all key UK
infrastructure Mindful of cur role and responsibilities, we
co-operate closely with the Governmeant en potential terrorist
targets and provide physical security at all major sites At the
same time, our cyber security team constantly moniters our IT
assets, identifying and addressing any vulnerabiliies in order
to protect our data and that of our customers,

Improving our portfolio to improve efficiency...

Since privatisation, the water industry has invested some

€130 billion in assets to improve services for customers, with
our own capital programme involving an investment of around
£3 billion over the five years to March 2020,

The major projects currently underway include the £300 rillion
Birmingham Resilience Project - the largest ongoing capital
project in the industry - and a2 £60 mitlion scheme to improve
sewers and water mains at Newark in Nottingharmshire

We also have a continuous investment programme to improve
the effectiveness of our sewage treatment works, including a
£12 5 mitlion project to rermove phosphorus

...and reduce interruptions and leakage

While cur capital programme 1s delivering rewards in many
areas of the business, we recognise that cur customers
experienced too many supply interruptions during the year
Some of these caused major hardships, notably at Tewkesbury
in December 2017, when we tock too long to locate, 1solate and
rectify a burst main, and in March 2018 when the countrywide
freeze and subsequent thaw contributed to some custemers
being left without water or with only intermittent water supplies
for extended periods of ime

We re working hard to improve our performance, including
investing in robot leakage detector technelogy which we
believe would have been invaluable at bursts such as the one
at Tewkesbury

The time we take to respond when customers tell us about a

leak 15 another area where we need to improve However, this

15 not as clear cut as it appears Our performance commitment
target 1s to respond wathin 24 hours, but, this may not be the most
operationally effective way to provide a good serwice to customers
or manage our network afficiently. We re currently evaluating

our response capabilities in order to assure ourselves and our
custormers that our current approach i1s appropriate
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Our people

Creating a place where people enjoy coming to work -
where theyre safe, well rewarded and treated with respect

The Group employs around 6,000 people at locations primarily
across the East and West Midlands as well asin North and
mid-Wales. We know that we're only as good as our people.,

So we strive to create a workplace that's welcoming, safe

and well-rewarded ~ and where they're treated with respect.
This year's employee survey showed a six percentage points
increase in engagement, clearly demonstrating that we're on
the right path to making the Group an awesome place towork.

Health, safety and wellbeing

The health and safety of our people 1s a core aspect of haw we
waork, and we ensure that they re provided with the training
and resources 1o follow our safety rules Our Lest Time Injury
['LTV) frequency rate for the year was 017 per 100,000 hours
warked, a significant decrease of 23% aver the previous year.
Our rnigorous approach to safety has led ta this irmnprovement
over the last three years, from 0 2110 2015 However, there's
no room for complacency and we'll continue to promote safe
warking practices through nitiatives including traiming and
regular communicabions

We also made good progress in ensuring our people’s wellbeing
during the year We continued cur mental health programme and
now have over 400 trained mental health first aiders across the
Group This s part of our drive to promote greater awareness of
some of the more challenging 1ssues that people can face in their
everyday lives - for the year ahead we're continuing to focus on
the menopause and cancer

Logo removed

Signing up to help those
with a terminal illness

We were preud to sign up to the TUC's Dying to Work
charter during the year, which aims to protect employees
with a terminalillness. We believe that nebody should
have to worry about keeping their job if they have a
terminal diagnesis.
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Pay and career paths ‘

We aim to provide people with careers, not just jobs Pay scales
are relatively hugh for our Midlands heartlands, and we wark
hard ta make sure that our people can see haw and where they
can progress up through aur organisation - regardless of therr
starting point

Attracting ligh quality peaple 1s a challenge for all employers,
sowe're pleased o see the high numbers of graduates that
apply to Severn Trent Qur apprentice programme expanded yet
agamn during the year and for the first time mcluded a Masters
level option

Over the next 12 months we're going to respond to1ssues raised
in the employee survey, including greater clarification on pay
rates and extra focus on how we explain career opportunities

Diversity and inclusion

We're already a diverse, inclusive business — but we know
there are opportunities to do even more to reflect the
dernographics of our region

The year saw a 13% increase In the numbers of Black,

Asian and Mionity Ethric | BAME') employees on our

graduate programmes, and we've introduced new ways

of working designed to drive a further increase in future

years Thesenclude removing barners to entry such as the
requirement to have a degree for some of our programmes and
impraving the way we target recruitrent activities at schools

Gender diversity 1s another area where we're performing well
Our mean gender pay gap for the year was 2 4% ~ and were
commutted to reducing it stll further. Qur execubve tearm

has particularly high female representation, which 1s why we
were placed second among FTSE 100 comparnies by the 2017
Harnpton-Alexander Review

Raising awareness
of mental health

Since 2015, 19% of our employees have taken part
in mental heaith awareness training. Were going to
continue to focus on this issue during the year ahead
- while also expanding our efforts to embrace

other aspects of wellbeing such as physical health,
nutrition, exercise and sleep.



Our suppliers and partners

Building strong relationships that provide

mutual benefit

We rely on a pool of suppliers that use their expertise and
resources to maintain and improve our infrastructure.
Through the One Supply Chain programme, we agree

long term contracts that give suppliers greater certainty

of workflow and revenue, while the benefit to Severn Trent
lies in the opportunity to negotiate more competitive prices.
The long term nature of the contracts also enables both
parties to build stronger relationships, work more closely
together and explore maore efficient ways of working.

In addition to achieving operational excellence and mesting cur
efficiency targets, our contracts also stipulate that suppliers
must adhere to our own high safety standards and sign up

to our policy on bribery and corruption and our sustainable
supply chain charter We ensure cormpliance with these
reguirements through a comprehensive audit during the
tendering process, and throeugh regular commurications and
meetings For example, @ nurmber of our suppliers nave signed
up to corporate responsibility targets agreed with us, and we
review progress against these monthly Through our supplier
events, we have set out our plans and expectations, and have
invited delegates to contribute their own ideas o how we cauld
work better together We also took the opportunity te underline
the role that safety and ethics play in creating enduring
supplier relationships

Partnering with others

We re keen to work with partner organisations from both inside
and outside our Industry. combining theirr specialist knowledge
with our own in order to address some of the chailenges and
opportunities we face

For example, during the year we extended our drive to

support vulnerable customers - and have now formed deeper
relationships with bodies including MIND, Samaritans, Citizens
Advice, tocal food banks, the NHS and other utility firms.

By sharing our knowledge, we aim to build & holistic view of
people who are potentially vulnerable and to put measures in
place to help them at an earlier stage

We've continued to collaborate with our peers in the industry
We engaged with Thames Water to evaluate a project to build

a super interconnector that would enable water trading,

and with the Social Market Foundation to publish a repart

nto the possible financial implications of renationalisation

In partnerstip with Tharmes Water and United Utilities, we
also published our joint iIdeas on how the creation of a systermns
operator could support greater efficioncy

Image removed

Inspecting the condition of our waste water assets
at Packington treatment works.
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Suppliers paid on time

96%

2017 97%

Suppliers signed up
to sustainable supply
chain charter

211

Introduced in May 2017
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Strategic report

Managing our critical resources
and relationships continued

Our customers
and communities

Improving the customer experience

We're responsible for meeting the needs of 4.3 million
household and business customers, across an area stretching
from the Bristol Channel to the Humber, and fram North and
mid-Wales to the East Midlands. We provide these customers
with around 1.4 billion litres of high quality drinking watet
every day and treat around 2.77 billion litres of waste water,
which we clean and return to the system.

Everything we do 15 to the benefit of our custorner s and thent
cornmunities — and during the year we carried out our most
extensive research project ever, to make sure that we're
addressing the issues that matter most to them.

Making a difference

Communication is the key to managing expactations, and we
work hard to keep customers and commumtes informed and
to minimise disruption when we carry out planned work on our
network Through our education programme, we help people
save waler and prevenl blockages in our sewers and drains,
supperting the long term integrity of the netwerk and protecting
water supplies for future generations

The scale of cur operations and the nature of our assets

means we have a great opportunity to be a positive influence

on the environment n local communities WeTe continuing

to implement inthatives - and working with local businesses,
including farmers - to improve important habitats such as rivers,
for the ultimate enjoyment of all. Our 17 visttor sites host & total of
4 million wisits a year, and provide access to water for a range of
ieisure facilities, as well as custemer education facilities

Many of our people continued to play ther part in the lives of their
local cormnmunities during 2017/18 In fact rmore of our people than
ever before took the chance to join In some form of volunteering
or fundraising activity

Customers who rate Custormers we help
our service value for each year through
money in anindependent  social tariffs and
quarterly survey assistance schemes
59% 21,716
2017 58% 2017 50,903
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Regulators

Working with the authorities
to shape our industry

We maintain positive and constructive relationships
with Ofwat and other regulatory bodies. Complying with
their requirements at all times isn't just the right thing
to do - it'’s essential to our licence to operate and our
ability to meet our commitments to our customers and
other stakeholders.

We engage with regulators on a regular basis in erder to
share our knowledge and promote developments which
could lead to improved services for customers across
the industry

Image removed

Qur 17 visitor sites host a total of 4 million visits a year, and provide
access to water for a range of leisure facilitres, as well as customer
education facilities



Chief Financial Officer’s review

We have delivered a yood financial performance in 2017/18,
absorbing the upward pressures from sector-wide changes in
business rates and energy pass-through costs In our Regulated
Water and Waste Water husiness, a full year s contribution from
Dee Valley Water and higher revenues more than offset the
impact of these pressures on our operating costs In Business
Services we have delivered good growth both inrevenues

and PBIT

Underlying basic earnings per share mcreased by 4 6% to
121.0 pence per share in the current year, Reported basic EPS
from continumng operations was 102.2 pence

Our Return on Regulated Equity (RoRETat 115%1s 15
percentage points higher than the previous year, driven by a
strong performance across all three levers - Totex, custamer
ODls and financing | ast year our RoRF was amongst the best
In the sector and we expect to be In a similar positigcn when this
year's results for all cornpamnes are published in July

In ine with the revised dividend policy announced last year of
growth of RPI plus at leasl 4% per annum, the proposed dividend
for the year has Increased by & 2%

On financing, we have a strong funding position, with alt our
projected investment and other cash flow needs coverad by

cash or committed faciiies through to March 2020 This year
saw the first rate increase from the Bank of Fngland in more
than 10 years We actively monitor and manage our interest rate
exposure and took sleps to hold cur proportion of debi al floating
rates at 26% through the year end We are also preparing for

the introduction of CPIH indexation in AMPY, entering into CPI/
RPIswaps with a notional value of £100 mellion in the second half
of the year, which increased the total amount of these swaps to
£150 mithion at 31 March 2018 And we have entered into a furthar
swap for £100 million since the year end

We are committed to paying the right amount of tax at the right
time {n addition to the carporation tax, which 1s included in
our tax charge in the income statement, we also pay busiess
rates, employers’ national insurance and ervironmental

taxes such as the Climate Change Levy and the Carbon

Regulated Water and Waste Water

Reduction Commitment_ In 2017/18 we incurred £146 5 rmillion

in these taxes, charges and levies [2016/57 £147 2 millicn)

Our corporation tax charge for the year was just above the
statutory rate of 19% with our cash tax payments reduced by the
benefit of allowances on our capital programme, contributions to
our pension schemes and by the timing of instalment payments
to HMRC under the current rules

Abnief aoverview of our financial performance for the year 1s
as follows

* Group turnover from continuing operations was £1,694 1 million
(2016/17 £1,638 0 million], an increase of 3 4% as Regulated
Water and Waste Water revenue increased by 3 0%, rainly due
to the RPI-linked tarff increases and a full year of Dee Valley
Water, and Business Services external turnover grew by 9 2%

We increased underlying PBIT by 4 0% to €541 0 million
(2016/17 £520.1 rmullion] The first full year of Dee Valley Water
centributed an additionat £5 7 millien and, excluding Dee
Valley Water, underlying PBIT in our Severn Trent Regulaled
Waler and Waste Water business grew by £14 5 mithon
Business Services underlying PBIT grew by £3 8 million, offset
by & reduction in corporate and other PBIT of £3 7 rillion

We recorded net exceptional costs of £12 6 million (2016/17
credit of £16 4 million] Costs to prepare our Bioresources
business for the introduction of the competitive market in
2020 were £20 9 million, partally offset by a credit from
the Pension Exchange Arrangement reperted at the hal®
year Reported Group PBIT was down as a result by 15%
to £528 4 mutlion [2016/17. £536.7 million).

* Net finance costs were £219 5 million [2016/17 £205 1 million)]
Qur effective interest rate of 4 5% was up only marginally
from 2016717 [4 4%) despite the impact of higher RP| on our
index-linked debt

Our full effective tax rate was 20 5% and our undertying
effective tax rate was 12 7%, down from 16 6% n 2016/17
largely due to higher capital allowances from the larger
capilal programme in the year.

Turnover for our Regulated Water and Waste Water business was £1,574 6 million {2016/17- £1,528 8 million} and underlying PBIT

was £514.9 million [2016/17 £494.7 millicn).

2018 2017 Better/[wor s¢l
Excluding
Excluding Excluding Dee Valley

DeeVailey Dee Valley Total Dee Valley Dec valley Tatal
m Em £m L L m £rn %
Turnover 1,546 7 279 1,574.6 1526 4 22 15288 201 13
Net labour costs (136 4) (54 (141.8) (139 8] (10 (140 8] 34 24
Net hired and contracted costs (145 8) (191 (4770 (144 ¢] - (1444 12) (08)
Power ) (93 8] (23] (95.9) (86 7] 1) (Be 8] (&9l (8 0)
Bad debts (251) 04 [(257) 04 o2l 208 (b7 (230
Other costs (188 1) (4 8] {192.9) [1877) (0 6] (188 3) (04] (02]
(589 0) (150} [604.0) (5792 19 15811) @8] (17
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (134 4) (08 (135.2) (134 2 - (136 2) 8 13
Depreciation 3143 62 [320.5) (316 7) 01 (3168 24 08
Underlying PBIT 5090 59 514.9 494 5 02 4947 145 (29]
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

Dee Valley Water was acquired on 15 February 2017 so this

15 s first full year in the Group It contributed £27.9 million

to turnover and £5 9 million to underlying PBIT in the year
The following commentary on the Regulated Water and Waste
Water business excludes Dee Valley Water and is therefore

on a uke-for-like basis

Turnover increased by 1 3%, as higher tariffs, including

the impact of the annual RPl increase on prices, increased
revenue by £33 8 mition Customer ODI rewards earned In
2015/16 increased turnover by £25 8 million but this was offset

by a reduction from the Whalesale Revenue Forecasting
Incentive Mechamsm of £24 5 million arising from revenue

biiled in excess of the wholesale price control alse in 2015/16

Our successful drive to help more vulnerable customers reduced
revenue by £4.6 million due to greater {ake-up of social tanffs
Other movements of £10 4 rmillion [net] iIncluding the impact of
custorners opting for metered status, offset by consumption
increases further reduced turnover In the current year our billed
revenue was around £3 million below the wholesale price control
and this will be added to revenue to be billed 1n 2019/20

Net labour costs were £3 4 mitlion (2 4%} lower Gross employee
costs increased by & 3%, due to the annual pay award and our
strategy to bring more work in-house The Increase in activity on
capital prejects resulted in anincrease in the level of own labour
capitalised, up £16 0 rillion on the previous year

Net hired and contracted casts were up £1 2 mitlion 10 8%)

Power costs were £6 ¢ million higher year-on-year driven as
forecasted by higher pass through costs, greater consumption
from a higher volurne of water produced and the costs of
responding 1o naidents The Group manages its power costs
through a combination of demand management, self-generation
and forward price contracts

QOur bad debt charge increased by £4 7 rmitlion this year, and
represented 2 2% of household revenue [up from 1.8% last
yearl Inthe year we improved cash collections on our current
debt, but saw a decline in the amounts collected on older debt -
both in accounts collected by us and by other water companies
on our behalf The prudent provisioning we apply to this older
debt increased both cur charge and the level of bad debt as a
percentage of household revenue for the year.

Other costs increased by £0 & nullion in total after tugher profits
on disposal of Iixed assets [up £5.8 mithion} offset by higher
business rates of around £3 million and other cost increases

Infrastructure renewals expenditure was £1 8 million lower in
the year, at the lower end of our guidance range, we expect to
see growth in the programme next year

Depreciation of £314 3 milbon was £2 4 million lower than the
prior year. Our underlying depreciation rate increased in line with
our asset base, but the change was lower year-on-year due to
impairments recorded in 2076/17
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Return on Regulated Equity (‘RoRE’]

RoRE is a key performance indicator fer the regulated business
and reflects our combined performance on Totex, customer
ODis and financing against the base return allowed in the

Final Determination

Severn Trent Water s RoRE for the year ended 31 March 2018

and for the three years ended on that date 15 set out in the
following tabte

AMP&

201718 to date

U %

Base return 2.6 26
Totex outperformance D8 13
0D outperformance 23 15
Financing outperformance 28 09
RoRE! 11.5 9.3

1 Calculated in accordance with Ofwat guidance set outin RAG 4 07

We have delivered strong returns across the beard - with
outstanding Customer ODI performance, improved operational
and invesiment cfficiency driving Totex savings, and continuing
oulperformance on financing.

Business Services
2018 2017 Increase
Irestated)
£m £m £m “
Turnover
Operating Services 78.3 74 4 39 52
Renewable Energy 60.4 54.0 b4 19
138.7 128 4 103 g0
Underlying PBIT
Operating Services 15.9 128 31 242
Renewable Energy 201 194 07 36
34.0 322 38 i18

Our Business Services division delivered good growth in
revenues [up 8 0%) and underlying PBIT [up 17 8%)

In our Operating Services business, turnaver and underlying PBIT
increased by £3.9 million and £3 1 million respectively, due in

part to higher incame from our new contract with plumbing and
drainage insurers

In the Renewable Energy bustness, turnover increased by 11 9%
targely driven by increased generating capacity in the non-
regulated business from our new food waste plant at Roundhill
Underlying PBIT increased by 3.6%, with our operating margin
impacted by start-up costs in the new plant.

The results above exclude the US Operating Services business,
which was sold on 30 June 2017, the Italian Operating Services
business [sold on 23 February 2017), and the non-household
Retall business (transferred to the Water Plus joint venture
during the prior year). All of these businesses have been
classified as discontinued pperations in the current and previous
periods and the resuits for the previous period have been
restated to reflect this.



Corporate and Other

Corporate overhezds were £8 9 million (2016/17 £6 9 million)
and our other businesses generated a net loss of £0 8 mullion
[2016/17 profit of £0 ¢ mitlion)

Exceptional items before tax

We recorded a net exceptional charge of £12 6 milbion {2016/17
credit of £16 6 millsonl

We have made an early start in preparing cur Bioresources
business for AMPY We have developed our business model and
identified the actions that we need to take to compete effectively
in the new market, determining the lowest cost structure

from our existing network of sites, optirnising our tanker fleet
operations and identifying opportunities for trading in the new
market We have implemented a programme to reorganise the
business to deliver our business maodel, reducing frorn 20 sites
to 12, and as a result incurred exceptional costs of £20 9 million
as follows

+ Setup and restructuring costs £2 1 million,

* Write-off o' assets that will not be used In the new
business £146 8 mullion, and

¢ Provision for costs to decormmission these assets
of £2 0 milhon

An exceptional gain of £8 3 million arose (2018/17 gam of

£16 6 milion] from the net benefit, after iImplementation costs,
of a Pension increase Exchange arrangement, under which
members of the defined benefit schernes will be offered the
cpportunity at retirement to exchange future non-statutory
infationary mcreases in a portion of therr pensions ear ned
prior to 1997 for a higher pension payment now in the prior
year the exceptional gain arose from a similar exercise for
existing pensioners

Net finance costs

Our net finance costs for the year were £219 5 rmithion, up

£14 4 rnillion on the prior year Our effective cash cost of interest
[excluding the RP uplift onindex-linked debt and pensions-
retated charges] was 3 4%, 40 basis points lower than 2016/17
Higher RPIlinflation on our index-linked debt (up £23 9 mitlion)
and pensions-related charges meant our overall effective
Interest rate Increased marginally year-an-year to 4 5%
(2016/17 4 &%), but still compares favourably to our pesition

at the start of AMP& [5 4%),

Capitalised inance costs were tugher than the prior year due

to the mcreased level of capital activity in the year

Qur earnings before mterest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
[EBITDA] interest cover was 4 3 times (2016/17 4 3 times} and
PBIT interest cover was 2 7 imes (2016/17 7 7 times] See note 46
for further details

Gains/losses on financial instruments

We use financial dervatives solely to hedge risks associated with
our normal business activities including

» Exchange rate expasure on foreign currency borrowings,
* Interest rate exposure on floating rate borrowings, and
» Exposure to increases in electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these derivatives are revalued at
each balance sheet date and, unless the strict criteria for cash
flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken

to the income statement If the risk that 1s being hedged does not
impact the incorne staternent in the same period as the change In
value of the derivative, then an accounting rmismatch arises and
there s a net charge or credit to the income statement

During the period a counterparty requested to terminate four
interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £150 mition

The fair value of the swaps at terrmination was a £42 6 million
hiability and the termination payment was £40 0 million The gain
on terrmination has been included in finance income,

We hold Interest rate swaps with a net notional principal of
£251.3 milbon, fixed to floating, and cross currency swaps
with a sterling principal of £98 3 mullion, which economically
act to hedge exchange rate risk on certain foreign currency
borrowings However, the swaps do not meet the hedge
accounting rutes of IAS 39 and so the changes in fair value are
taken to gains/losses] on financial instruments in the income
statement During the year there was a loss of £12 6 million
[2016/17 gain of €111 million] In relation to these instruments

Note 12 to the financial statements gives an analysis of the
amounts charged to the income staternent in relation to
financial instruments

As part of our power cost management strategy, we have fixed
arcund 95% of our estimated wholesale energy usaga for 2018/19

Taxation

We are committed to paying the right amount of tax at the right
tme, As well as corporation tax on profits, which s included in
the tax charge In our accounts, we Incur a range of taxes, charges
and levies imposed by government agancias

2018 2017

£m £m

Tax borne: .
Corporation tax 26.7 324
Business rates and property taxes 82.4 788
Emplayer’s National Insurance 23.2 216
Climate Change Levy 4.0 32
Carban Reduction Commitment 59 63
Other taxes 4.3 43
146.5 1466
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

The corporation tax charge for the year recorded in the income
statement was £61 ¢ million (2016/17 €6 5 million] and we
rnade net corporation tax payments of £6 5 million in the year
{2016/17 £21 8 millioni The difference between the tax charged
and the tax paid 1s summarised below

2018 2017
£m Em
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 61.9 65
Tax effect of brming differences [(29.0) [26 4)
Current tax credits recorded in Other
Comprehensive Inceme or Equity 10.1) (14 9]
Overprovisions In previcus years 3.9 274
Impact of rate change - 398
Corporation 1ax payable for the year 26.7 32.4
Payable by instalments next year 12.2) (180l
Instalments paid in the year 145 14 4
Repayments received {8.0) 20.8)
Payments relating to prior years 280
Net tax paid in the year 4.9 21.8

Tax payments were reduced by £29 0 million

[2016/17 £26 4 million) as a result of capital allowances
and other timing differences where tax relief 1s given ahead
of the cost being recogrused in the income staternent.

The total tax incurred was further reduced by £10 T mitlion
[2016/17 £14 9 rrullion) representing tax credits that we receive
on charges that are shown in the statement of comprehensive
inceme or equity - the tax for these tems is also shown in the
statement of cornprehensive Income or equity so1s not included
in the Income statement charge.,

The tax charge includes a credit of £3 9 million

(2016/17 €27 4 millien] for ameunts overprovided in prior
years In 2016/17 there was also a credit of £39.8 million
from the impact of adjusting our deferred tax liability to
reflect the tax rate reductions announced by the Government
to take effect in 2020. These accounting adjustments

do not impact the amount payable to HMRC.

Together these amounts represent the corporation tax payable
for 2018 of £26.7 million (2016/17. £32.4 million).

Corporation tax liabilities are currently settled in four instalments,
twa in the year of assessment and two in the following year

In the current year we have paid instalments on this year's tax
amounting to £14 5 million (2016/17 £14 4 rullion] and recerved
repayments of tax overpaid in previous years of £8 8 mitlion
[2016/17 £20 6 million], net of the instalments due from 2016/17,
resulting in a net tax payment of £6.5 million [2016/17 net payrnent
of £21 8 million including payments of £28 0 mullion relating to
prior years).
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Instalments of £12 2 million [2016/17 £18 § midtion] are due to be
paid to HMRC next year in respect of the current year's lUability.

Note 13 in the linancial statemenls sets cul the tax charges and
credits in the period, which are described in more detail below

The current tax charge for the year was £32.9 million
[2016/17 £199 million] In the previous year there was an
exceptional credit of £16 4 million from adjustments following
agreement with HMRC of prior years’ tax matters

The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was £29 0 rmullion
(2016/17 £22.4 milbonl inthe previous year there was an
exceptional deferred tax credit of £35 8 rillion compnising an
exceptional charge of £4 O mithion following agreement with
HMRC of prior years’ tax matters and an exceptional credit of
£398 million arising from a reduction in the cerporation tax rate,
enacted In that year, to 17% wath effect from 1 April 2020

Our full effective tax rate this year was 20 5% [2016/17 2 0% after
the exceptional tax credits described above] We expect this rate to
be close to the corporation tax rate in the UK of 19% (2016/17 20%)
because substantially all of our business s in the UK and the
profits of these businesses are chargeable to UK corporation tax

UK tax rules specify the period over which tax relief can be
obtained for capital expenditure Typically this1s a shorter peried
than that over which the assets are depreciated in the accounts
and this tends to reduce the corporation tax charge in the year
and the Group underlying effective current tax rate We make
provision for tax that will be paid in future periods when the

tax relief on the capital expenditure has been received and we
receive no allowance for the depreciation charge arising from
that expenditure. This 1s the most significant component of our
deferred tax posttion

Our underlying effective current tax rate was 12 7%
12016117 16 &%)

Profit for the year and earnings per share

Profit lor the year from continuing operalions decreased by
25 2% to £240.5 mullion [2016/17. €321 5 mullion]

The profit for the year from discontinued operations was
£13 2 mithon (2016/17 £21.1 miilion)

Total profit for the year including discontinued operations was
£253 7 million [2016/17 £342 & milkion]

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations decreased
by 25 3% to 102 2 pence [2016/17 136 8 pence] Underlying basic
earnings per share was 121 0 pence [2016/17. 115 7 pence]

For further details see note 19



Cash flow

2018 2007

€m £m

Cash generated from operations 773.3 8510
Net capital expenditure (591.0) 501 3)
Net interest paid (182.1) N770)
Purchase of subsidiaries
net of cash acquired (0.2) (7771
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries net
of cash disposed and disposal costs 251 (19 2]
Proceeds on maturity of
forward contracts _ - 43
Swap terrmination payment (40.0) -
Tax paid [6.5] (218}
Freecashflow 21.4}) 583
Dividends (197.0) (190 4)
Issue of shares 5.6 41
Change in net debt from cash flows (212.8) (126 0]
Non-cash mavaments (61.4) {133 0]
Change In net debt o [274.2) (25% 0]
Opening met debt (5082.4) (4823 4]
Closing net debt [5,356.6) (5,082 4]

2018 2017

Em £m

Net cash and cash equivalents 3B8.5 44 6
Bank loans {1,2174) 01,073 3]
Other loans (4,223.9) (4,090 0)
Finance leases (113.9] M57)
Cross currency swaps 245 434
Loans due from joint ventures 135.6 108 6
Net debt {5,356.6]  [5,082.4)

At 31 March 2018 we held £38 5 million [2017 £44 & million] 1n net
cash and cash eguivalents Average debt maturity was around

14 years [2017 15years) Including committed facilities, our cash
flow requirernents are funded until March 2020.

Net debt at 31 March 2018 was £3,356 6 mitlion

(2017 £5,082.4 millon] and balance sheet gearing [net debt/
net debt plus equityl was 84 4% (2017 84 6%] Group net debt,
expressed as a percentage of estimated Regulatory Capital
Yalue at 31 March 2018 was 60.6% (2017 &1 6%).

The estimated fair value of debt at 31 March 2018 was

£1184 3 million higher than book vatue (2017 £1.444 O rmillion
hugher] The decrease in the difference to book value 1s {argely
due to the increase in the discount rates applied, driven by higher
prevailing market interest rates

Treasury management and liquidity

Our principal treasury management objectives are

 Toaccess a broad range of sources of finance to cbtain bolh
the quantum and lowest cost compatible with the need for
continued availability,

* To manage our exposure to movements in interest rates
ta provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to our cost
of funds,

¢ To minimise our exposure to counterparty credit risk,

» To provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to our foreign
exchange exposure,

¢ To maintain aninvestrent grade credit rating for our requlated
subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited, and
e To maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure.
We invest cash in deposits with highly rated banks and lguidity
funds We regularly review the list of counterparties and report
to the Treasury Committee.
Our policy for the management of interest rates 1s that at least
40% of our borrowings in AMP4 should be at fixed interest rates,
or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements At 31 March 2018, interest rates for 48% (2017 51%)]
of our nel debl of [5,356 6 mitlion were hixed

Our long term credit ratings are

Severn Trent  Seven Trent

Long term ratirgs Pic Water Outiook
Moody's Baal A3 Negative
Standard & Poor s BEB BBB+ Stable

Treasury policy and operations

Our treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance
with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Staternent
The treasury operation’s role I1s to manage liguidity, funding,
investment and our financial rsk, ncluding risk from votability in
interest and (to a lesser extent] currency rates and counterparty
credit risk The Board determines matters of treasury policy
and its approvalis required for certain treasury transactions
The Board has established a Treasury Management Commitiee
to moniter treasury activities and to facilitate timely responses
to changes in markel conditicns when necessary.

Qur strategy 1s to access a broad range of sources of finance to
obtain bath the quantum required and lowest cost cornpatible
with the need for continued availability Our principal operating
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, is a long term business
characterised by multi-year investment programmes

Qur strategic funding objectives reflect this and the liguidity
position and availability of commutted funding are essential to
meeting our objectives and obligations We therefore aim for a
balance of long term funding or commmitment of funds across
arange of funding sources at the best possible economic cost
The Group also seeks to maintain an investment grade credit
rating and & flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure
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Strategic report

Chief Financial Officer’s review
continued

We use financial derivatives solely to manage risks associated
with our normal business activities We do not hold orissue
dervative frmancial instrurmnents for financial trading

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is fully hedged,
our business does not involve significant expesure to foreign
exchange transactions

The Group issues notes in foreign currency under its EMTN
programme and uses cross currency swaps to convert the
proceeds to sterling The effect of these swaps 1s that interest
and principal payments on the borrowings are denominated in
sterling and hence the currency risk is eliminated The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in the
balance sheet at their fair values and the changes in fair values
are taken to gains/(losses) on financial instruments in the Income
statement Since the terms of the swaps closely match those

of the underlying notes, such changes tend to be broadly equal
and oppesite

Pensions

We have lhree defined benefit pensions arrangements, two from
Severn Trent and one from Dee Valley Water The Severn Trent
schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015

Formal three-yearly actuarial valuations have been completed as
at 31 March 2016 for the Severn Trent schemes ( the Schemes')
and we have agreed the future funding plan for the Schemes
with the Trustee The agreement reached with the Trustee for the
STPS, which is by far the largest of the schemes, includes

* Defhicit reduclion contributions of £25 million paid in the year

ended 31 March 2017 and payments of £10 rillion for each
of the subsequent financial years ending 31 March 2019,

Inflation-tinked payments of £15 million per annum through
an asset-backed funding arrangement, potenhally continuing
to 31 March 2031, although these contributions will cease
earlier should a subsequent valuation of the STPS show

that these contributions are na longer needed.

Payments under another asset-backed funding arrangement
of £8 2 millon per annum to 31 March 2032

in addition to these payments, the Company will directly pay the
annual PPF levy incurred by the STPS (£1.1 mullion in 2017/18)

The 5chemes have entered into additional hedging arrangements
to reduce the impact of fluctuations in interest rates and inflation
on the Schernes’ iabilities without adversely impacting the
expected return from the Schemes’ assets

L ]

Dee Valley Water participates m the Dee Valley Water Limited
Section of the Water Companies Pension Scheme ('the Section’]
The Sectron funds are administered by trustees and are held
separately from the assets of the Group
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On anlAS 19 basis. the net position [before deferred tax] of all

of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes was a deficit

of £519 8 milion (2017 £574 6 million) To calculate the pension
deficit for accounting purposes, we are required to use corporate
bond yrelds as the basis for the discount rate of our long-term
Labilities, irrespective of the nature of the Scheme s assets

or their expected returns

The movernents in the net deficit during the period were

Defined
Fair value of benefil
plan assets  obligations Net def cit
£m £m £m
At start of the period 23528 (2,927 4) (574 &)
Amounts credited/lcharged]
to incorne statement 602 (697 19 5)
Actuarial (lossesl/gains
laken to reserves (13 304 291
Net contributions received
and benefits paid i719] 107 352
At end of the period 2,339.8  [2,859.4) {519.8)

Onan IAS 19 basis, the funding level has improved to 82%
(2017 80%)

Exchange rates

The trading results of overseas subsidiaries are translated to
sterling at the average rate of exchange ruling during the period
and their net assets are translated at the closing rate on the
balance sheet date The impact of changing exchange rates on
the subsidiaries’ trading results was immateral

Dividends

In line with our policy for the remainder of AMPS announced
last year to increase the dividend by at least RPI+4% each year,
the Board has proposed a final ardinar y drvidend ot 51.92 pence
per share for 2017/18 (2016/17 4890 pence per share}

This gives a total ordinary dividend for the year of 86 55 pence
[2016/17: 81 50 pence) The final ordinary diidend 1s payable on
20 July 2018 to shareholders on the register at 15 June 2018

Accounting policies and presentation

of the financial statements

Our consolidated financiat statements are prepared In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
that have been endorsed by the European Union. The Cornpany
financial statements are prepared in accordance with FRS 101



Risk management

Our approach to risk:

Risk 1s all about uncertainty and risk management describes the
activities performed within our arganisation to identify, assess,
and control events which may impact on our ability to achieve
our ams and ohjectives We also recognise that uncertainty can
rmanifest itself as bath negative and positive impacts, hence our
goal s to minirmise these threats and maximise the opportunities
for the benefit of our customers, peaple, contractors and

key stakeholders

The Beard has overall accountability for ensuring that risk s
effectively managed across the Group. The Board's mandate
includes defining risk appetite and monitoring risk exposure to
ensure significant risks are aligned with the overall strategy of
the Group The management of risk 1s embedded in our everyday
business actmities, with employees encouraged to play their part

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee assesses the
effectiveness of the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management [ERM']
process and internal controls to identify, assess, mitigate and
manage risk tnternal Audit supports the Audit Committee In
evaluating the design and effectiveness of internal controls and
risk mitigation strategies implernented by management

The Executive Committee reviews strateqic objectives and
assesses the level of risk taken in achieving these objectives
This top down' nisk process helps to ensure the "battorn up’
ERM process s aligned to current strategy and objectives

Across the Group, we manage risks within the overall
Governance Framework which includes clear accountabilities,
delegated authority imits and reward policies Thase are
designed 1o provide employees with a holistic view of effective
risk management

Within Severn Trent Water Limited, our approach reflects our
status as a regulated utility providing essential services and
operating as part of the Critical National Infrastructure for the
UK The nature of our Severn Trent Water Limited business is
such that there are some significant inherent nsks, as illustrated
on pages &0 to 65 We aim to have a strong control framework

in place to enable us to understand and manage these risks in
accordance with our risk tolerance and appetite

In our non-regulated businesses we take a more commercial
approach to nisk However, we recognise that we provide
products and services for clients who operate in regulated
environments As a resutt, for risks that could impact on our
clients  regulated services, we take a similar approach to risk
as Ih our own regulated busmess, The risks inherent in cur
non-regulated business are illustrated on pages 60 to 65

Our Enterprise Risk Management process

We use an established ERM process across the Group to
assess and manage our significant risks, which are Linked to
our corporate objectives, core processes, key dependencies,
stakeholder expectations and tegal and regulatory cbligations
The process is contretled by the central ERM tearn and
underpinned by standardised tools and methodology to ensure
consistency ERM Champions and Co-ordinators operate
throughout the business, with support and challenge from the
ERM team, to identify and assess risks in their business units
quarterly against a delined set of criteria that consider the
tiketihood of occurrence and polential financial and reputational
impacts The potential causes and subseguent impact of the risks
are docurnented to enable mitigating controls to be assessed
This assessment allows us to put in ptace effective strategies to
remediate defective controls or implement additional centrols

This information 1s cambined to form a consolidated view of

risk across the Group and allows the risks to be prioritised

Our sigmificant risks, in terms of Lkelihood and impact, form our
Group sk profile which 1s reported to the Executive Committee
for review and challenge ahead of final review and approval by
the Audit Committee and Board half-yearly The report provides
an assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each of those
risks and an action plan to improve controls where this has been
deemed necessary

To further enhance our ERM information, we now report risk
fughtpaths' These graptucally dermonstr ate the level of risk the
Group faces and the timeline for the key risk rmitigation steps
to Imanage the nisk to the target positicn. The flightpaths help
to facilitate a more thorough review of the target risk positions,
considering risk appetite and whether improvement actions

to achieve these are on target with the correct prioritisaticn

In place

In addition, indwidual risks or specific risk topics are also
discussed by the Board during the year

On a monthly basis, the status of open risk mitigation actions
across the Group risk profile is reported into the Executive
Cormmuttee by the central ERM tearn The tevel of ERM maturity
in each business unit1s assessed half-yearly and reported

to the Executive Commuttee Improvemant plans are agreed

to ensure ERM 1s fully embedded and effective. An overview

of accountability for our ERM process s illustrated in the
diagram opposite

Risk appetite
The Board keeps under ongoing review the relationship between
our strategic ammtions and the management of risk

The ERM process establishes target risk positions for each of
our significant risks. The Board formally discusses the progress
towards this position and the mitigating actions being undertaken
every sjx months
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Strategic report

Risk management continued

The ERM process

The Board

* Sets strategy and determines
regulatory outcomes
» Sots business plan objectives

s Defines risk appebte

Operational teams
¢ ldentify and assess risks
* Set risk target position

s Identify riskimprovernent actions

ERM team

s Monitors performance

* Assesses ERM maturity across
the Group

* Provides challepge and insight

* Reports to Executive Commuittee,
Audit Cammuittee and Board

Financial risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding in tine with
business need This is part of our normal business planning
process [see Principal Risk 2)

The Board recerves regular updates relating to funding, solvency
and higuidity matters through the Treasury Committee so we
can respond quickly to any changes in our ability to secure
financing (see Principal Risk 10! The pension fund Trustees

and Company regularly monitor our penston defioit, with adwvice
from investment managers and actuarial advisers An annual
pension fund review paper is produced for the Board to apprise
thern of fund performance and proposed inihatives to rnanage
down pension labilities and further balance pensions nisk (see
Principal Risk 9]

The ERM pracess and relevant risk assessments are factored
Into the ‘stress testing’ to assess the Group’s prospects as part
of cur Long-Term Viability Statement.

Sustainability risks

Sustamability risks are treated in the same way as all gur
other Company risks, captured at a local level by responsible
teams and managed centrally through our established ERM
process By the nature of what we do, several of our principal
risks have a Sustainahility focus, and we momtor our social and
envirenmeantal impacts in Line with our broader performance
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Long-Term Viability Statement
Assessment of current positon and long term prospacts

The Directors assessment of the Group s current financial position is set aut
in the Financial review on pages 5% to 56

The Group's principal operating subsidiary 15 Severn Trent Water Lirmited,
which 1s a regulated long term business characterised by mult-year
investment programmes and stable revenues The water industry in England
and Wales 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competitien and Ofwat, the cconormuc regulater, has a statutory sbligation
to secure that waler car~paries are able to finance their appointed actvities
Ofwat meels this sbhigation by setting price controls for five year Asset
Management Perieds [AMPs] This mechanism reduces the potential tor
vanabibty in revenues from the regulated business The carrent AMP runs
unul March 2020 Ofwat has published its Final Methodology for assessing
companies’ busingss plans and setting price controls for the AMP period
2020 - 2023 and Severn Trent Water Limited has ~—ade significa=t progress
in developing its business plan, which is due to be submitted to Ofwat

in September 2018

The Group has significant investrment programmes that are largely funded
through access to debt markets The Group s strategic funding objectives
reflect the long " m nature of the Severn Treri Water Limiled ousiness ana
the Group seeks to obtain a balance of long term funding at the best possible
economic cost The Group's Treasury Policy requires that it maintains
sutficient higuidity to cover cash flow requireents for a rollng period o*

18 months 10 arder to rrutigate the sk of restnicied access to capital markets
The Group s debt matunily profile s actwely managed by the Grouc Treasury
department to spread the timing of refinancing requirements and ta gnable
such requirements to be met under most market conditions The weighted
average maturity ot debl at the balance sheet date was 14 yea~s

The Group has an established process Lo assessits prospects The Board
undertakes a detalled assessment of the Group's strategy on an annual basis
and the outout from this assessment sets the framework tor the Group s
medium ter m plan, which s updated annually

The plan assesses ine Group's prospects and considers the potentiabmpacts
ol the principal nisks and uncertainhins Strosstests are performed fo assess
the potenhalimpacts of combinations of those risks and uncertantics

The plan also conseders the mitigating actions that might be taken ta reduce
the impact of such risks and uncertainties and the Likely offectivenass of the
mitigating actions

Period of assessment

The Directors considered a number of factors in defermining the period to

be covered by the assessment The long term nature of the Group s principal
business together with relatively stable revenues and a madel of economic
requlation that places a duty onthe regulator to secure that water companies
can fimance the graper carrying aul of their funchions supporl a longer perod
otassessment

However, the changing nature of regulation of the water industry increases
the uncertainty that 1sinherent nthe Group s financial projections

The Group has an established planming and forecasting process and the
Directars consider that the assessment of the Group s prospects s more
reliable if it 1s based an an established process The Group s latest medum
term plan extends to the end of the next AMP peried in 2025 and the Board
of Severn Trent Water Limited will make an assessment of viabilily covering
that period i its business plan subrission ta Ofwat in September 2018

Alonger period of assessmentintraduces greater uncertainty as the
variability of patential outcomes increases as the period considered extends

Bearing in mind the long term nature of the Group's business, the enduring
demand for its services, the nature of the Group's established planning
process and the changing nature of the regulation of the water industry in
England and Wales, the Directors have determinad that seven years 1s an
appropriate period nver which to assess the Group s prospects and make
its viability statement this year



Assessment of viability

Ir assessing the future prospects the Group has considered the potential
elfect of nisks *hat could have a signiticant financial irepact unider severe
but plassibic scenarios, The tisks considered were identified from Lhe
Groups ERM process, which s described on pages 57 to 58, and from
the key assumpt ons in the financial model. The scenarios tes od are
described below

The D ectors have idenufied aclio~s, including regucing discretionary
outftows of funds and working with providers of finance, that would be
avanlable to the Group to mitigate the impact of adverse outcomes

The Grauo has significant tunding -eguirements to refinance exist ny debt

that falls due for repayment during the period under review a~d to fund

the Group s capital programme Under all scenarios considered the Group

wauld remam solvent ang have access to sut "aient lunds innormal roarkel

cenditions The Groue s Treasury Policy requires that st retains suf oient

liguidity to reet its forecast ebligations, including debt repayments for the

next 18 manths In makirgits assessment the Board has made the following

koy assumption

= Any period inwhich the Group 1s unable to access capital markets toraise
linance during the periad under review w''! be sharler than 18 maonths

Onthis basis, the stress tests ind cated that none of these scenarios,
including the combined scenario resultcd inansmpact to the Group s
expected { quidity, solvency or credit met~cs that cou-d nat be addressed
by mitigating action and nence were not considered to be threats "o the
Group sviabibity

Scenario tested

Governance and assurance

The Board reviews and approves the redium term plan on which this
viability statement s based The Board also considers the period over
which the assessment of prospects and wiabibity statement should be

made The Audit Commuttee supports the Board in performing this review
Details of the Audit Commuttee’s activity in relation to the Viabelity Staternent
are set out in the Audit Commttee report on pages 83 to 89

This statcment 1s subyect to review by Deloitte, our External Auditor
Theiraudit report s set out on pages 136 to 140

Assessment of viability

The Directors have assessed the viatulity of the Company over a seven year
period to March 2025, taking into account the Company s current positign
and principal risks

Based on that assessment, the Qirectors have a reasonable cxpectation
that the Covparyw Ll be able (c continue In oceraticn a~d meetits habilities
as they fzll due over the period to 31 March 2025

Going Concern Statement

In preparing the financial statements the Jirectors considered the
Company s abi! ty to meet its debts as they fall due for a peniod of ore year
from the aate of this repert Thiswas carried out in cenjunction with the
consideration of the Long-Term Viaklity Statement above

Cn this basis the Directors considered it appropria*e to adept the going
concern basis 0 precacimg the tinanoal staterments

Related principalrisk

1. Anincrease in the fynding deficit of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes

Risk 2 Increased funding for pensior schernes

The planned unding far the Group s de” ned bene®t pension arrannements s based on
ass.mptionsanlulere n' adon, asset returns and members longevily U-de-performa-ce
against these assumptions mignt result in additional cash centributions being regquired
during the period under consideration Cenlributions a~e reviewed and agreea wilh the
scheme trustees on a triennial basis withn the next valuatian of the rain scheme due as

at 31 March 2019

2. A severe climate event, operational failure or other exceptional event with avery

significant financial impact

The Group s Enterp- se Risk Management process has identified a number of risks
including cyber securdy, fallure of <ey assels and severe wealher evenls thal m ghl

Risk 4 Cyher secunity

Risk & Falure of key assets

Risk 7 Health and safety and environmental impact
Risk 8 Impact of extreme weatner/chrmate change

have a significant impact on the Group s operatienal and financial performarce

3. Areduction in inflation and increase in interest rates for the duration of the period

under consideration

MN/A - koy asse mptionin finanoial rmodel

Severn Trent Water Lirn:led < revenues are linked to 'n” ation Low or negative inflation
tends o adversey impact proits and cash flows fincreases in costs exceed revenue

4. Underpertormance against performance commitments

Risk 1 Failure to delwver what our custamers want
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Severn Trent Water Limited operates under a regulatory medel which encourages companies
te deliver whal cuslomors want using per formance ~elated rewards and penallies tailure to
daliver performance at tha comritted level can lead ta signilicant panalties

Risk 2 changes in the requlatory environment for
the UK water industry

5. Higher costs than planned that are not funded

S gnifica~t gve~spending coule result in a detenorationin inancial metrics and
performance, which migh: adversely ympact the G oup ¢ solvency

4. Acombination of scenarios 2, 3and 4

It s unlikely that scenarios 1 ard 3 would sccur simultaneously ssnce lower inflation
and mgherinteres” rates would tand to rad.ce the pensicn deficil Therelore scenario 3,
which has a great indwidual impact has been included

See above
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Principal risks

The Directors have carned out a robust assessment of the s Operations, assets and people, and

principal risks facing the Company, including those that would
threaten its business madel, future performance, sclvency or
Lquidity. These have been categorised across

+ Custorner perception,
¢ Legal and regulatory environment,

Customer perception

1 What is the risk?

We may be unable to improve
or mamtain our levels of
customer service sufliciently
to deliver what our customers
tell us they want.

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Requiated Water and W aste Water busintesses

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[page 22)

Crnhedding customers at the Beart uf all we do
Link to our values
Wo put our customers firs:

We are pas=isnate about whatwe do

We act witht integrity
0Dls
0DIs 24-27

Key

Increase in net risk exposure
No change in net risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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* Finanoial nsks

For each risk we state what it means for us and what we are
doing to manage it

What dees it mean for us?

We are a regulated utibity providing essential services to nur customers We reccgnise that our customers
ncregsingly expact mos frarm s and Je ntand arompr oved and mure consistert expenienee Ag cther
industriesimprove ther levels s service, the bars entimues 1o be rased

Fallure tg delver the service that custarners expectwill lead to customer dissabsfaction This may resutt
n fina 'uial penalues under Grwal s Service Inzent ve Mechamsm { SV ] and assoaated U0  outturn

What are we doing to manage the risk?

The three upper quartite{ UG ) pregramimes in Retal, Water and Waste are koy to SIMimprovement

Whilst Retad has 3 nurbe- o translormation actions w flight thore gee Jurther act ons (2 be ael ver ad wineh

will improve custemer experience, for example website tansformation Custemers telt us they are delight: d
whenwe ar e able te complete bithng 1ssues for them at Point of Centact su the retail programme s Incking at
how to improve our Pant of Contact resolution tawnprove the overall expenence

The Wante UQ programmeas focusing en both the wark of our supply partner Ameyin cur day-to-day
custon o atfering and alse how Sovera Trent suppor s themon comples cases The Waste UQ programmee
hasidonmied some key areas to drive andmprove performance in order taimprave our SiM score

The Watar UQ proaramime s ot an early stage The rapid achon team pilot that = carrently gngeing in our

Der byshire ar2315 show ny fantastic customer benefit [he proygr arnmme s currently developirg a rollout p'an
toall ether areas The 20 custermar cormmunic abonswerkstrean s looking at the s xpecnion thad we zet
when g custeme e contatis us through thair channel of chei e and how we keep the custemer infarmc dalong
the jeurney An element of thig workstrean s a review sf our Trak my Job custemer ermmunaation tozl that
A e 1o keep customers informicd

Movementin net risk exposure



Legal and regulatory environment

2

What is the risk?

We may be unable to effectively
anticipate and/or influence future
developments in the UK water
industry resulting i cur business
plans becoming unsustainable

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Regulated Water an { Wasle Water businessos

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
(pages 26 to 29)

Changing the imarket ror the catter

Investing respunsibly for susta nable qre. nth
0DIs

N/~

What is the rigk?

The regulatory landscape 1s complex
and subject to ongoing change

There s a risk that processes may
fall or that our processes may not
effectively keep pace with changes

in legislation teading to the risk of
non-compliance

Which p;r@ of Severn Trent is affected?
Grcupfwwde

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
(pages 2410 29)

Driving operational excellence and
CONtNUCUS INNoyaticn

Changung the rarket ter the hetter

Investing responsibly for sustanable groweth
Link to aur values

Ve ad twith 'nl;érrrbl; i

We protect sul spvironmient

0DIs

OD00s 1-4, ¥9-23 311 43

What does it mean for us?
Severn Trent Water sperates n a hughly regatated emviroriment Whilst we are broadly content with the
direc ton nf changes proposcd tor ur ndustry, there remains a risk that futire changes could have o
signif.anlimpact on Severn Trent Warer

Changing Course publications We wit renhinue to be an active partivipant in these conversaticns, sowe can
help shape thinking ahout how to best serwe our customers in the future

We have cantributed to ombedding the rele of Market Operator Services Lid ithe ey wlir b ove reces the
nan-household retad mar kot and contributed towar ds the suwcess of compettion in the non-heusebotd market
We continue te participate in disc ussions wath Gfwat o the develapment of the future segulatety enarcnmaent
anz since pablication of Ohwat < final mat~odolagy mretat oo to Water 2020we are Jeveluping our business
plan Wo are actively partcipating in disius -onsor the epen ngof the competiive market for bioresources
Ergage ment vath cur peors, other regutators, UK Governmen. departments and other stake»slders
meluding the Welsh Govermment helos us to influence the direction ot regulatory policv where poss ble and
put forveard cur own case for change ina construclive vy

Vee contieue b engage constractivily with stakeholders rellewing Labauwr 5 2077 ninfeste cameutment to
re-naucnalisa the water sector We are entouraged “hat hoth the benafitz tacusto~ers cf the curre~t monel
and the costtetaxpa,srs o' re-nationalatian 300 row ong delter uredorstosd

Movement in net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

Our policies and processes mast reflact the current legal and ragulotery enviran~ent and ali relevant
ampleyees mustba kept aware of new requirements The Group as awhale may tace censure far non-
compliance in 3~ ndwvidual group company or aspecific reg.on nw=ichw2 agerale

What are we doing to manage the risk?
Qur Greernance Framework transparyney, engagement wiih custome s and stakehcldars pohoies and
interna centiols ensure cur engcing complian o wath stlapphicable laws and regulations

Far the oper aticn of meparate Wholosale and Retall business wi have a cenrol frames ork of protools,
policies systams gudance and traiming o ensure ongang compl ance with the relevantlegstatien inclurding
Caompetiticn Law

Foliewing the integration of Dee Valtey inte the Severn Trent Group w e ha.e refreshed our oglicy framewsrk
and sre upiating cur systems protozols ard policies in readiness for the Boundary reahignment s cur
regulated businesses

Ensunngreadiness fer the General Data Protc tion Regulaticn [ GOPR | worming into efte ot on 25 May 2018
has alsc beena key area of focus for us

Changes tg the legal and regulatery environmonl sre coptured as emerging nskes through our ERM process
withlre necessary owners and agtions idenliflied to e~sure cormpliance whan the changes come into efvect
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Strategic report

Principal risks continued

Operations, assets and people

What is the risk?

We may experience (nss of data or
mterruptions to our key business
systems as a result of cyber threats

Which part of Severn Trent is atfected?
Growp-wde

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
(pages 2210 25)
Ernbeading custerners at the heart ~ 3l we o

Driving operational excellenc= and
continuous NNGyatioh

Link to our values
We pul our customers lirs
0DIs

OOt 1-4, 5-18 19-24, 24-37

5 What s ?he |7'|5k'77

We may fail to meet our regulatory
targets including targets from
Ofwat for operational performance
of our assets resulting in
regulatory penalties

Which part of Severn Trent is atfected?
Regulated Watar and Waste Water businesses
Link to how we're achieving our strategy
lpages 22to0 27)

En-whe“ddlr-\g cu-st-cm-era a-l-the hoa;t-cfatl \n;e-du

Driving operational excellence and
continuous Mmpovation

Invasting respanatbly for sustainabite growth
Link to our values
We pul our customers first

We are passionale about what we do

We protect cur enviranirnent
0DIs
0Dl 1-45

Key

Increase in net risk exposure
Na change 1 net risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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What does it mean for us?
The risks artsing feom loss ol one or more of our mujor sy=lerms or cot rupton of dato held in these systernz
coutd have far reaching effects onour busingss We have recognised the increazing threals of c yber atlacks
an oul wystems and data Whilst this threat can never be ebninated and wall continue to e solve wy are focused
an the need to maintain effec ive mitwaation
What are we doing to manage the risk?

We confinue o follow guidance from the Naticnal Cyber Securty Centre { MC5C o improve cur detences
anainst cyhier attacks and have focused thisyear on more layered-securtly centrols to protect sensitive data
n readiness for the introauclion in May 2018 of .hs GOPR

We have alsc completed risk assessments of Cyberthroals to ourwater supply systems for the introduction
In May 2018 of 1ha Netwark and Iniormat.or Systems Directve L NISO |

We have parbap sed in a number of Government led and internal cyberinadent exercises to leat our
response wapatility to cyber attacks

Although ~ot directly irnpacted by sigilicant recent cyber irciderts le g WannaCry and Not=elyal, we did
review our secunty controbs and response plans to ensure we are prepared tor future attacks of this typc

Movement i net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

M we are yunatle to meel oper ! vnal pet ionmance largels we may ba subjedled to sigrificant regulatory
penalties auther within e s urrent price revies pericd or applivd to the neet price roview

Fegulatery targets apply to all of gur wator treatreent, distribution sowerage ind sewage treatment ansets
Measures ara in place in relalion to water qualily, corhinuaus supoltes, sawer flooding sewer collapses ang
polluticn events

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Qur business plariter 2005-2020im bades considerable investment in gur avaets 1o unprove the resilence
of our netwerks reduce INter ruptiens and IMproye the servce that our customers receive We recogrise
there are areas where our por formance 1s not as cansisbent as we would Uke and we are < ommitted o
irmprovina \hese

We are contiruing our Cleane=t Water Plan which drves the nspec tion, cleanming and rep-air of storage tankes,
Increasing our copital mamlenance iNterventions, oplimssing our cperation and mamtenanc e lasks and
formaliang pur pros esees, standsrds and apuer ating procedures vobved 1n debivering cean waler

We use teading measures on our cormm cells and performance meetings to track delvery odaimst custemer
ODls and perfarmance camemitmente so that we can inlat vene in a brmely fashiunf perfermance is drifting

The theee UG programmes in Retail, Water and Waoste are key to us delvering eur largets for the remainder of
this busipess plan

Movermnent in net risk exposure



)

7

What is the risk?

Fallure of certain key assets or
processes may result ininability
ta provide a continuous supply of
clean water and safely take waste
water away within our area

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
(pages 22to 31)
Embedding custamers at the heart of allw. de

Oriing speraticnal excellence an
centinuCUs INASvaticn

Investing re=ponsibly for sustaabls growth
Link to our values

We puln . customer shirs

W are passignate b utw b atve da

0DIs

Due to the nature of our operations
we could endanger the health and
safety of our people, contractors
and members of the public as well
as negatively impact our local and
wider environment

Group-wde

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[pages 24 to 27, and pages 30to 31)
Oriving operatiang! exellence and

CONtNUCUS Innovation

Irvesting respcrsibly for sustainobie growth

Creating an awesome placo to work

Link ta our values

Yee pratect cur emvircnrien?

W achwithinogrisy
ODIs

JDi= 30-a1, 42-43

What does it mean for us?
Some of our assets are cnitecal to the provision of water to larqe populativns for which we reguire alternatie
meaans of supply

Csarmplas include aur reservoirs and water treatrment works These asoets areregularly inspectod and
rnaintained and cur assessment of the ceerall -cnditicn of these assets s geod

Other examgles are our IT, telephany systems and remote manitoring systernswhich are alsokey tc
cur wperal eng

What are we doing to manage the risk?

We included substantial investment in our AMPS plan to roduce the bikelihaod of failure of strategic assets
that supply Birmmingham and 1o prowde the oty with @ second scurce of water W are aheart of delvery on the
improvernents te cur stralegic assets and on lrack weth the provision of asecand source

We continue Lo mantain snd tost cur Being preparad framework Lo ensure our busingss continagty
arrangements a-e bt for curpase and the Group can react guick v to sateq.ard our criical operafians

inaddibian e investing in resibence mpravements to cur netwcrkwe 350 have assurance plansin place to
romitcr, inspect and mamtam cur mcst criic il assels ind to ensure clean wate s always availabte 1o cur
custorr raand we il abway s be able to sately take theirwaste water aw y

We will Lontinue to make signiticant Investmen 1nty our nelywcrk and o ocesses ful we accept theme s always
arskofunexpocted fulures Sorexamp'e, we e zpenienced a number of trunk man b watin 20017 whicnred
t2 supplysnterruptians to our customers andin Mare b 2008 tnie very rapid thaw fallowing The Beast from the
Cact resulted in a substantialine rease in p pe bursts Ourincident respense helpe d o mitigate the impact

of the 3¢ failures Ouring the birsts we wnrse dweth loral res lience ferums and ather ageroes and had

qrea* camranity engaasrment to return sopgher s back £ nonmslas gquick’y 35 posaible We are taking the
Leareings from the inaidents te exeana anr notweork conddien memtoring pregramime o detect vidnerabiliies
before Balures oo ur ane s ensgre that carindidert response procedurt - are 390 1 tho e can be

What does it mean for us?

Trenature of cur aseets, operaticns and business are such that throats o the safety of our emple,ces
contracters custamoers and thewedur public exist Operaticnaltailures or aeahgerce could re sult mdamge
te the envircnmient

We are respensible for g large state ol assots ar d hewe o cecure these rrom unauthcrised acress lo ensure
wur cperaticns are notimeacted norihe sa‘ety o the public coripranused

What are we doing to manage the risk?

Our 2015-2020 business plan ncludes subsiant il investment in cammiunity schemes to ensure the risk of
failure at key points alang cur Elan vadey Aguedust thal wowid 13u-0 substanhial damage and endanger the
salfety el the puble s fur ther roduccd

We haus awell-ostablished Heatth, Safety & Wellbeing framework te cnsure ad epetations and processes
are conducted in cempliance with Health and Safety legislation and in the interests of the safely of our people
and centracters Our Geal Zerc imhat s <learly e stablishes our target that ne one should be inured or made
urwell as arcsult of what we do We ve continued to reduce totalimpurios to slaffand contractars threugh the
applicaticn af the Goal Zera ptan and wew ok collaboratiety with our supply chain and other key stk helder s
Lo conlinue (o seek improvements

There are a number of Q0! commitments we bawe marde to protect oar local envirenment including river
water quality, palluticn mcidents, iediversity improverncnts ind < ovironmental compliance: In AMPS we will
be delvering aur largest ever ervirgnmint programme, spendirg over £300 nullien 1o deliverimpravem=nts
torivess thraughoot our regicn a programme which s supperted by our customers whawant to seo e

Ao more taamprove rver e aler quatity The year we axpect to regain cor 4° Erarcnmentat Pertormianz
Assessmment status rrom the Eavironment Agency

We recogaize the impact our cperations have an the wider environmuent and we want te reduce aur carbon
foctprint by seek'ng lower ~arcen ways al operat ng ou” bus ness, drrang erergy eihciency and generating
ronewable energy We anm L inerease the ameount of renewable energywe aenerate and to mvestin ways o
make our processes more energy eff cient, and our target 15 Lo gqenerare the equivalent 50/ of Severn Trent
Waler sonergy needs by 2020

Movement in net risk exposure
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Strategic report

Principal risks continued

What is the risk?

We are unable to deal with the
impact of extreme and unpredictable
weather events on our assets and
infrastructure and/or are unable to
successfully ptan for future water
resource supply and demand due to
climate change

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group -wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
{pages 2410 27)

Orwing cperaticnal exccdtence and
continupus NNovalcn

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth
Link to our values
We profes t cur environmient

0DIs

QDI 1-4 §-14, 19-23, 42-43

What doesit mean for us?
Chrnate change [hetter and drier sumimor s, wetter winters and ingreased frequency of sterme] could result
I &~ nability lo meet customer demand lower river .evels Je.-eased rawwater guality, flooding of pur water
of wasle wor ke, sewer Capacity being exceeded and increased land movernent Chmate change could also be
a contributing fac tor fer pnincipal risks 1.5, 6 and 7 detailed above

There are alse some potential oppartunilies thal « lnnate change presents for us, including aquifer rech rge
and increased biolagical treatment [Lis impsertant that we under stand these oppat tunsties 12 maxmise

the benefits

Our chimate change adaptalion repcrt sets aut our strategy for coping with future changes Le our cimate

In February 2018, we published cur drafl waler resources management plan for the next 29years The plar
ncludes a dataded gssesament of climate chanige rnpact for sur regue dnd our demand management and
proposeyd new sources are designed to offset any supply risk resulting trom climate change

Our analysis for the Nat oral Fleod Resilience Review | N=RR |, that was instigated by Defra/the Cabinet 0%fice

a‘ler the flooding of winter 2015/16, 1dentified aur non-infrasiructure [overgrouna) siles that cou'd be at r sk
from river ar surface waler flapding using a new h gher standard called .he Exrreme Frood Quiling Thishas
informed cur contingency glans and fulur e nvestrnent plans

We durt t consider climiate change resks inisclation snd we vicw therm glengsick: all the challenges we face
Tathat efect g large number ef our current abjectives and targets agreed as psrl cf our O cammitmoents
will increase our resilience from climate chanae, incl.ding reducing leakage, improvinq wate- efficiency
redycing properbies preng to low pressure, proleching prone prope-ties/areas f-om sawer flaoding and
increasing the restience of cur water supply and water, wasle works

Qur gwiimpact and contibubien tz climate change - annot be wgnored and, as outlined i prinapal risk 7
overleal there are a number of ways inwhich we are addressing curimpaztonthe envirgnment

Movement in net risk exposure

Key

Increase in net risk exposure
Ne change in net risk exposure
Decrease in net risk exposure
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Financial risks

10

What is the risk?

Lower interest rates, higher inflation

orunderperforming equity markets
may require us to provide more
funding for our pension schemes.

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group-wide

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
[pages 26 and 27]

imvesting respensikly for sustainable grov th

What 1s the risk?

We are unable to fund the business
sufficiently in order to meet our
liabilities as they fall due

Which part of Severn Trent s affected?

Group-withe

Link to how we're achieving our strategy
{pages 26 and 27}

Investing responsibéy for sustanable grewth

deticr.sin our defined benefils schermes
What are we doing to manage the risk?

Follawing the Brextvote, our man detnod boneh! pen=ton schence has sezn 2 signiiican. growthin the
accounlingvalue of habiiies due ko the fallin lonz terminterest raes Volatile financiat condilions are like y 1o
remain for the foreseeable future The grawth in the accounhing defic 1 has ajverselyimpacted the haaaronm
snsemeof our creditratios, such a5 gearmg, which are relevant for debt covenant and credit ratings,
curpeses Italas has a reputational irmpact that could have a bearing eninvestrnent and d stributicn decisions

Wo have compleled the process ol immun 2ing ol bank f nancial covenants fram adver se movernens in the
accounting deficit, ga ming appraval from relevent banks and the Curgpean Investmen: Back [ 1B ] We nave
worked with the ratings agenzies te fecus cn the impazt of cur re pair payment s on cre ditratings, rather than
mevemenls in the aceounting «slue of Lhe de- @il Impartanlly ~e have agreed cash repar payments v h the
Trustee until the next Trienmal Valustion at 37 March 2019 We have also rompleted, with Trustee agreement
andit onal nilat o~ andintersst rate Pedqing and i~lroduzed dow=sige protec ion to the Lnd s 2quity haldings
The Pensian Requlator ~as canfirmed thal tha March 2016 astuanatyalualinn will nol be subyect tnfurther
review Howe sor, the Requlater has stated th st it nelisves that the currert repair perizd te 2032, 1 vevlang
andinthe esertof atorther deterioration ndehicit dogs ot see an etensian oo the recovery p arend date an
appropriate scluncn

Mavement in net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

Wa rnuctensure sullivie~t sudity s availoble te meet aun negr ter= finang sl commitments We have 2
sigrificant turding requine < ent i AMPa, o and cur imvestoent prs arasmine sad rehi~ande maturing Jebt
Thizis awell-controlled nek bud Limpertint that we mamtain these hiah standards ts ratigate thi= figh
What are we doing to manage the risk?

Wir 57 Brexi: may impact our access ofundngfromthe FIB a~ atiractive scurce of “nance, we have

other seurces of tund ng we ~ancallupon 'n Nevember 2015, we raised £477 muitlunthrsugh a US Private
Plarament debt issue and in Novemb. r 2016 te Derembper 2017, we raiced £90C rulhicr through thre e sborling
hor d1=sues Despite some nitiab velatiity fellowsng the Bre xit vote, glabal debt capital rmarket= continue to
delrer substantial wvels st lgndity

See aur Lang-Term iability Statement cn pages b8 and 59

The Strateqgic report, as set out from page 1 through to page 65, has been approved by the Board

By order of the Board

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Counset and Company Secretary

22 May 2013
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Governance

Governance report

Chairman’s introduction to governance

| eadership & Effectiveness

image removed

Andrew Duff
Chairman

The Board provides strong
leadership and support to the
business. All Directors have a
passion for the business and there
is a sense of “creating a legacy

for those who come after us”.

Manchester Square Partners
Board Effectiveness Report

Graph removed
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Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to introduce cur Governance report for 2018 on
behalf of your Board in accordance with the April 2016 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code'). This report reflects
the themes of the Code and provides details on the activities and
governance processes of the Board and its Committees [and
refers you to other areas of the Annual Report and Accounts
where further relevant information can be found)

The Board has had a diverse agenda during the year from
addressing the challenges of the upcoming Ofwat Price Review

[ PR19 | without losing focus on other key strategic and operational
prionties, to ensuring that Dee Valley Water 1s operating effectively
as a slandatone, licensed business within the Group PR1% 15 a

key strategic item for the business that has required a robust
governance process to ensure the right level of debate and
aversight without allowing this topic to dorminate the strategic
tandscape Insummary, the Board's principal areas of focus

have been

s PR19,

* Custorner service,

* Water quality,

« Environrnental performance,

¢ Financing our businesses,

» Dee Valley integration, and

* Profitable growth of the non-regulated business.

Customers continue to be at the forefront of cur attention, as
cur strategic focus on such topics as delivering Upper Quartile
Sector Performance and Customer Experience demonstrate
Customer Delivery, Water Quality and Environmental
Parformance have been the subject of regular performance
review’ items on the agenda Financing has been addressed
through the contimuing important work of the Treasury
Commuttee, through the Chiet hinancial Otficer’s regular 1eports
to the Board and via specific inance related items on the
agenda The cost of debt methodelogy for PR19 has been a key
consideration due to its wider impact for the business as a whole
(See Board actmvities on pages 76 and 77)

Alignment on strategy and ciarity on individual roles have
allowed clear strategic focus for the Board during the year, and
produced robust challenge where appropriate There s a positive
dynamicin the Boardroom but we are by no means complacent
and recognise that there are still many challenges to tackle

We continue to foster a culture of ownership, stewardship and
always deing the right thing, sharing the wider company values
we put our customers first, we are passicnate about what we do,
we act with integrity, we protect our environment, and we are
inspired to create an awesorne company.



The Board has continued to keep the Group's risk
management and internal control systems under close
scrutiny during the year and believes the quality of risk
management and reparting, and in particular the risk
identification, rmitigatien plans, busiress ownership and
tracking, are excellent and continue to evolve and iImpraove

In respect of the Company's stakeholders, there has been
oversight of, and a very active, engagement with shareholders,
regulators, customers, pension trustees, communities and
employees alike There have been regular communications
with shareholders and open lines of communication with

our regulators Ofwat, CCW and the DWI In particular, the
Corporate Responsibility Commuttee has averseen a broad
range of well received community inttiatives [detailed in its
repart on page 92] All the Board members have muttiple
formal and informal opportunities to engage with customers
and ernployees and are censtantly impressed at the quality

of Severn Trent ¢ people, wherever they work in the Group

and whatever their role Engagement scores from the annual
ernpleyee engagement questionnaire are excellent and this 1s
mirrored in the Board's communication with employees at and
below management level

We continue to strive for comprehensive talent development
and succession planning at all levels of the business

Whilst much has been done in this respect and plans are

i place, with well regard to graduate and apprenticeships
pregrammes and strong external hiring and internal
promotions, we are keen to make further progress in
identifying, developing and pregressing top talent through the
organisation and making further improverments in respect

of management and leadership development The focus on
improving diversity remains strong and, whilst we have made
good progress on gender diversity in tine with the Hampton-
Alexander Review, we are tooking to make further progress in
termns of wider diversity

Looking forward, Severn Trent has a stroeng unified Board
with the broad range of professienal backgrounds, skills
and perspectives needed to take the Cornpany into the next
regulatory period

Finally, on a personal note, whilst | hope you find this

report provides insight into governance within Severn Trent,

| always welcome feedbackif you feel there 1s more we could
do to enlighten sharehclders We encourage participation

at our AGM and look forward to meeting with many of our
shareholders in Jduly

Andrew Duff
Chairman

UK Corporate Governance Code
Compliance Statement

The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current
reperting period 1s the Aprit 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code (the
Code] The Code s available on the Financial Reporting Council’s [FRC )
website [www fre org k]

We are pleased to confirm thal Severr Trent =.c was compliant with all
of tne provisions sel oul inthe Code for the penied under review,

In December 2017, the FRC published proposals for a revssed code, which
we expect to apply to cur financial year ending 31 March 2019, ta ~eflect the
changing business enviranment and help in achieving the highest levels

of governance As the 1evised code s notyel inglised, we are reporting
against the 2016 Code in this report but are logking closely at the new
proposals and assessing what mare we can do to alignwith best practice
principles to further engender trust in our business

Inter~s of the principles of the 2016 Cedz, you can find out more
informatiaor on the followng pages

Leadership 68to 74

Orctalls of the Board are avallat' e uncludng ther skid set and
cxperience] and ao averviow ¢*the governance structure,
distinguishing between leadershio by the Board and by Executive
Management The differing roles of the Chairman, Exceutive
Directors ang Non Executive Directors i€ also set out

B0 to 82

Effectiveness

An gverview of the process tor appomntrent, inguction, and

evaluation of the Directors s provided here and further

detart 1s set outin pages 80 to 82 covering the work of the

Nominations Committee

Accountabhility 83t0 89
The report of the Audit Committer details the corporate

reporting, risk management and internal control measures

that are cverseen by the Board

Remuneration 9610 128
The Directors Remuneration Repert provides tull details

or remuneration

Relations with shareholders F4to 95

Detalls of the Group's engagement with sharehotdersis set out
Inthis section

Governance of subsidiaries

The membership of the Board of the listed Company, Severn Trent Ple.

15 the same as that of Severn Trent Water Lirmnited This structare was
implemented in 2007 1o make sure that the highest standards of corporate
governance arc applied at the regulated subsidiary level and to foster
greater visibility and supervis-on by the Severn Trent Plc Board

Severn Trent Water Lireited carnplies with the Code and oar regutator s
Srinciples of Leadership and Governance to ensure the highest standards
of governance

Taking into account the Cade and Ofwat s Principles of Leadership and
Gavernance, we have undergone a programme of change during the yearin
Dee Valloy Water Lirrited, and have appointed a majority of new independent
non-executive directors toats Board Oce Valiey Water Limited also
complies vath the Code to ensure the highest standards of governance

A rnore detalled oxplanation of the Governance Framework and Cormpany

structuras which apply o each of our regulated subsidarnes can be found
Ir Iheir respective Annual Reports avadable ontheirwebsites
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Governance

Board of Directors

[Leadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

1. Andrew Duff BSc FEI (59)
Appointed: Non-Executive Director on 10 May
2010, Chairman on 20 July 2010

Membership: Chair

Skills, competence and exparience-

Andrew s oxtensive experience of international
and regulated business, strategic management
and customer seryice in high profile, dynarmic
environmenits has equipped him well for the role of
Chairman of the Group Andrew spent 16 years at
BP inmarketing, strategy and ot trading He joined
National Power in 1998 and the Board of innogy plc
upon its demerger from National Power 1in 2000
He played a leading role imits restructuning and
transformation through the opening of competition
imenergy markets cutminating in its subsequent
sale to RWE in 2003 He becarne CEQ ot the
successor Carnpany and a member of the RWE
Group Executive Committee untit bvs retirement

11 2010 Hewas a Non-Executive Director o
Wolseley plc from July 2004 until Nevernber 2013
Andrew was appointed Non-Executive Deputy
Chairman of Elemnentis plc on T Apnil 2014 and
becarme Non-Executive Charman of Elementis
plc on 24 April 2014 Heis the senior trustec of
Macmillan Cancer Support and atrustee of the
Earth Trust

Gther roles.

s Merber of the CBY President s Cornmittee

+ Trustee of Macmillan Cancer Suppart and
Earth Trust

* Fellow of the Energy Inshtute

Committee membership key

2. Olivia Garfield BA (Hong] [42)
Appainted: Chief Executive on 11 April 2014

Skills, competence and experience:

Olrvia Ll brings to the Board a wealthi of

experence managing customer service delivery

and complex infrastructure and organisations

inaregulated environment Before joimng

Severn Tre~t, Livwas Chief Executve Dlficer

of Openreach, part of the BT Group, where she

spearheaded and oversaw the commercial rell-out

of fibre broadna~d (o two-th rds of the country

She joined BT 1n 2002 and held the pvotat roles

of Group Director of Strategy and Regulation,

Managing Director Cornmercial and Brands,

Global Services and UK Customer Services

Director From 1998 to 2002, Lv worked for

Accenture as a cansultant in the Communications

and High Tech Market Unit, designing and

implemnenting business change solutions across

anumber ohindustiy seclors

Other roles:

s Mermber of The 30% Club

» Director of Water UK

* Member of Take Over Panel

s Director of Water Plus Lirmited - jomnt venture
with United Utilities

Audit Comrmuttee

Corparate Respansibility Comrmittee
Excoutive Committes

Norminations Comrmittee

Rermuneration Commttee
Treasury Committee
Disclosure Committee

68 severnTrent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

3. James Bowling BA {Hons) Econ,
ACA49]

Appointed: Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2015
Membership:

Skilts, competance and experience:

Jamesse a chartered accountant, having started
his careerweih Tauchs Ross and brings significant
financial management, M&A ard business
transformatian expertise to the Board Priorta
Jjoming Severn Trent dames was intenm Chict
Finaaal Ofticer of Shire plc, wher e he had been
since 2005 st as Hoad of Greup Heporting

and from 2008 as Group Financal Controtier
Prior to jaining Shiee, James spent nine years at
Ford Mator Campany invarious finance rles of
ncreasing responsibility

4. John Coghlan BCam, ACA [60)
Appointed- Independent Non-Executive Director
on 23 May 2014

Membership: Chair Chair

Skills, competence and experience:

Johnis a chartered accountant and has a valuable
background in financial and genera! manage —ent
across avariety of sectors Currently, Johnis also
a Non-Executve Director and Audit Committee
Chatrraan of Clarion Housing Association and
Associated British Ports Holdings Limited
Previously, Johnwas a Director of Exel ple for

N years to 2006, where he was Deputy Chiet
Executive and Group Finance Director Since 2006,
John has been a Non-Executive Director of
various publicly-quoted and private equity-

owned Lompanies

Other roles:

« Charman of Freight Transport Association
ireland Limtied




Tenure and gender diversity

The graphics below show the tenure of the Non-Executive Directors aver the short, medium and long term, together with the
gender dwersity across the Executive team, the full Board, and amongst Non-Executive Directors See page 81 for gender

diversily across the rest of the Severn Trent Group.

Gender diversity as at 31 March 2018

Graph removed Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

5. Dame Angela Strank DBE, FRS,
FREng, CEng, FIChemE, D5c,

PhD (65)

Appointed independent Non-Executive Director
on 24 January 2014

Membership: Chair

Skills, competence and experience-
Angela brings awealth of strategie, technica ard
commrercial experience to the Board Angelais
Head af Downstream Technology and Group
Chief Scientist at BP plc She s a member of
the Bownstream Executive Leadership Team
Angelaisrespensible for enabling delvery of
the Downstream strategic agenda through
the development of diffcrentiated technology
advan'age across the refining fug s, lubricants
and petrochemicals businesses Since joining
BP in 1982, she has held many senior leadership
roles around the world in business development,
commerca’ and technology, includ'ng i 2812,
Vice President and Head of the Chief Executive s
Office In 2010, Angela was the winne-of t- ¢ LK
First Waman s Award in Science and Technalogy
in recognition of plonecring UK women in
bus-ness and industry Her track record and
experence In stratcgy, operations, technolagy and
transtormational change are a complementary
addition to the Board s skil set In Jung 2017,
Angela was recognised inthe Queen s Birthday
Henours Listwath the title Dame Cormmander of
the Most Excellent Order of the British Ermpire
[DBE] fer services to tne Oiland Gas Industry and
cnecouraging womnen into STEM careers
Otherroles.
« Board Governor of The University
of Manchester
« BP Group plc - Chief Scientist
* Member of the Royal Society s Science
Industry & Trans.ation Committee

6. The Hon. Philip Remnant

CBE FCAMA(63

Appointed Independent Non-Executive Director
on 31 March 2014

Membership: Chair

Skiils, competence and experience:

Shilip1s a senior investment banker ard brings
substantial adwisory and regulatory experience
‘othe Board Achartered accountant, he s

Senior Independent Director of Prudential ple and
Chairman of M&G Group Limited, Depuaty Charrman
of the Takeover Panel, Senior Independent Director
of UK Financial investrmerts Limited and Chairman
of C ty of London Investrent Trust ple Previously,
Philip was V ce Chairman of Crear Suisse First
Bostan Europe and Head ot the UK Investment
Banking Department Philipwas Oirector Generai of
the Takeover Panel for twoyears between 2001 and
2003, and again in 201} He served on the Board of
Northern Rock ple frorr 2008 to 2010 and trom 2007
to 2012 was Chairman of the Sharcholder Executive

Other roles:

= Governor of Goodenough College

* Director and Trustee of S5t Paul 5
Cathedral Foundation

7. Dominique Reiniche MBA (62)
Appointed: Independent Non-Executive Director
on 20 July 2016

Membership:

Skills, competence and experience

Demimgue has aweaith of operatioral
experience in Europe and has international
consurner marketing and innovation expericnce
Doemmigue s Independent Vice Chairman of
CHR Hansen Holdings A/S and also a Non-
Exccutive Director of Mondi ple ard Pay®al
[Europel Dominigque started her career with
Procter & Gamble AG betore moving to Kraft
tacobs Suchard AG as Director of Marketing

and Strategy wher o shewas also a member of
the Execut ve Committee Dormnigue proviously
held a number of semior rotes at Coca-Cola
Erterprises and at Coca-Cola Company, including
President - Western Europe, Presdent - Europe
and Chanman - Europe Until Decernber 2015,
Dormimigue was a Non Exccutive Director of
Peageot Citroen SA Untit April 2017 Dominigue
vas 3 Nen-Executive Dircetor of AXASA

B. Kevin Beeston FCMA [55)

Appointed: Senior Independent Non-Executive
Directaron 1 June 2016

Membership:

Skills, competence and experience:

Kevin has awea 'h of commerc al. linancial

and h gh level management expe~iznce

Kevinis Chairman of Tay or Wimbpey plc and
Elysiom Healthcare and alsn a Non-Execative
Dirccter of The Foo'bal. Association Premier
League Limited and Marston Corporate Limited
Previously, Kewin spent 25 years at Scrco pir,
where he held the roles of Finance D rector,
Crief Executrve and finally Chairan unhl 2010
Kewvin was previously Chairman of Domestic &
Gereral Lirrnted and Partnerships in Care Limited,
Equiniti Group ple and a Non-Executive Director
of IMl plc

Director serving for
part of the year

Emma FitzGerald MA, DPhil Oxon,
MBA (51)

Managing Director, Wholesale Operations
Directorship ceased on 31 December 2017

Emma stepped down from the Board on

31 December 2017 having becn a Director since
1 Apnil 2016 She remained or the Executive
Commuittee until 16 April 2018 and 15 due to .cave
Severn Trent in July 2018
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Governance

Executive Committee
| eadership & Effectiveness
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1. Olivia Garfield BA [Hons) (42)
Appointed- Chief Executive on 11 April 2014
Please see full biography on page 68

2. James Bowling BA (Hons| Econ, ACA (49]
Appointed: Chief Financial Officer an 1 April 2015
Please see full biography on page 68

3. Dr. Tony Ballance BSc Hons), MA (Econ), PhD (53]
Appainted: Director, Strategy and Regulation on 25 July 2005
Member of the Executive and Disclosure Committee
Career and responsibilities:
Tony s cxtensive expenence in utility policy. regulation and stakcholder
engagement leaves him ideally placed to lead the Company’s strategic,
regulatory and external affairs work Prior to joining Severn Trent, he held
the posts of Chief Economist for Ofwat, Director of London Ecanormics and
Directer of Stone and Webster Consultants
Other roles:
o Senior Independent Oirectar of the National Forest Company
¢ Member of Water UK Council
¢ Chairman af the Corparate Advisory Pancl of the Regulatory

Policy Institute
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4. Sarah Bentley BSc (Hons), Management Science
with Computing [46)

Appointed: Chief Customer Officer in December 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Careerand responsibilities:
Responsible for Custorner Retarl and Network operations, Group Technology
and Transformation She previously worked for Accenture as Managing

Director oftheir £3 billion globat digital business focused on digital marketing,

mobility and analytics for customers, employecs and the enterprise Priarto
Accenture, Sarah was CEQ of Datapoint, an Atchermy backed company
delivering CRM services, and Senior Vice President of eLoyatty, a global CRM
and marketing consultancy She was SVP of the Eurcpean Business led the
sales and operations actiity in North America and ran el oyalty Ventures

L L C working in Silicon Valley, Austin and New York

Other roles:
» Twizzletwig Limited - Director and Secretary

5. Martin Kane BSc, CEng, CEnv, MICE, MIWEM,

FIW [65)

Appointed: Martin joined Severn Trent Water in 1975 and was appointed
Chief Engineer in July 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

He has held various senior rotes giving him an extensive and unique
understanding of the design construction and operation of water and waste
watcr treatment plants, water distribution networks and sewerage systems
Martin was Dircctor of Custorner Relations, Severn Trent Ple, fram May 2006
until January 2012, and Chief Executive Officer of Severn Trent Services enul
July 2014

Other roles.

* Member of the Boards of Utilities and Service Industries Training Limited
» Trustec of International Society for Trenchless Technology

s Charrman, Panton McLead Ltd

* Chairman of the Coventry and Warwickshire Growth Hub



Image removed
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6. Bronagh Kennedy BA (Hons] (54]

Appointed: Group General Counsel and Company Secretary in June 2011
Member of the Executive and Disclosure Cornmittee

Career and responsibilities:

Branaghis a selicitar and was prev.ousty Group Campany Secretary and
Genera' Counse. and HR Director at Mitchells & Butlers, where she worked
for 18 years Priorto tnat, shewas a Senior Associate at Allen & Overy Sheis a
merber of the GC300 Group and an Independent Non-Executive Drector arg
Charman of the HR and Rermuneration Committee of British Canoeng

7. Helen Miles CIMA (47)

Appointed: Group Commercial Director in November 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Heler joined Severn Trentin Novermnber 2014 as the Chief Commercal
Officer and brings with her a breadth of commerzial experience having
warked within regulated bustnesses and sectors across Telezoms, Leisure
and Banking As a member of the UK Board, Helen was instrumental in
delvering HormeServe's future growth strategy and ensuring a sustainable,
custor-er-focused bus ness As an exper enced finance praolessionsl, Helen
was previously Chief Financial Officer for Openreach, part of BT Group ple,
and has extensive experience of delivering majer business transformation
across the Group Prior to BT Group, Helen worked inavariety of sectors
and organ-sations such as Bass Taverns, Barclays Bank, Compass Group
and HSBC

8. Andy Smith BTech [Hons] (57)

Appointed: Managing Director, Business Services in 2014

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

Andywas appointed to the rolo of MD, Business Services on its creation in
2014 having previousty been responsible for the drinking water business within
Severn Trent Water Andy brings to the role a broad range of executive and
operatonal expertise gained from diverse sectars Currently, Andyisalsoa
Non-Executive Director of Diplerma ple He has worked in the UK and overseas
with glabal businesses such as BP, Mars and Pepsi im both engineering, HR
and operaticnal management roles Previously, he has served as a member
of the Board at Severn Treni Pic and a- Boots Group ple

9. Neil Morrison Bsc [Hons), Charterad FCIPD [44)
Appointed: Director of Human Resources in August 2017

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsihilities:

Meil ,oined Severn Trentin August 2017 as a Director of Human Resources
Neil started a career in HR management in 1996 and for the subsequen:

12 years he worked ir avariety of HR roles with n FTSE 100 comparies,
mncluding Rentokil Intia and GUS lwhich latterly became Home Retaig

Groupl] Before joining Severn Trent, Neitwarked at Penguin Random House
taking responsibility for strateqic people 1ssucs across their gublishing and

d stribotion ofhices i the UK, APAC, Ind a and South Africe Hewas one of he
ma o leads 1~ helong to steer and finalise the globat imerger between Rardem
Housc and Penguin Neit also sits on the board of the Chartered Institute of
Personrcl and Development [CIPD)

10. Dr. James Jesic BEng [Hons), PhD, MIChemE,
Ckng (39

Appointed- Managing Director of Production on 1 December 2017

Member of the Executive Committee

Career and responsibilities:

James s a chartered chemical ergincer who jcined Severn Trenton s
graduate programme in 2003 and was appointed as Managing Director of
Productionn 2017 During his time with the business, James has had full
accountability for the management of the operational mutti-billien pound
asset base, being responsible for producing and supplying drinking water
and collecting and treating waste water for millions of customers across the
Midlands As part of that role, he has delivered industry-leading customer
service performance, aswell as drving sector-teading environmental results
He has a PhD i Chermical Engineering from the University of Birmingnam and
has attended Harvard Business School

Executives serving for part of the year

Evelyn Dickey BSc [Hons) (55)
Director of Hurnan Resources

Evelyn stepped down from the Executve Committee on 31 August 2017 after
Hyears o' service

Emma FitzGerald MA, DPhil Oxan, MBA [51)
See page 69
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Governance

Governance Framework
| eadership & Effectiveness

Board of Directors

Responsible and accauntable for the long term success of the Severn Trent Groug, ensunng Severn Trent delivers
the Group's strategic objectives whilst operating to the highest standards of corporate governance in meeting its
obligations to all stakeholders.

Board Committees

Nominations
Committee

Keeps the structure,
size, composition and
succession needs

of the Board under
review and assists
the Board onconflicts
of interest and
independence issues

Read more on
pages 80to 82

Audit Committee

Assists the Board
indischarging its
responsibilities for
the integrity of the
Company s financial
statements, the
assessment of

the effectiveness

of the systems of
Internal Control,
Risk Management
and scrutinises the
waork of the Internal
and External Auditors
It also reviews

the adeguacy of the
Cornpany s
whistleblowing
arrangements

Read mare on
pages 83 to 89

Corporate
Responsibility
Committee

Provides guidance
and direction to the
Company s
Corporate
Responsibility

and Sustanability
programme

based on Severn
Trent s values and
reviews the Group s
non-financial risks
and oppartunities

Read more on
pages91to0 93

Severn Trent Executive Committee [[STEC’)

Oversees the development and execution of Group strategy, with
accountability for achieving financial and operational performance

CEQ - Liv Garfield

Delegated respansibility for the development and implementation of strategy
and pverall commercial objectives, and respensible for the day-to-day
management of the business and the communication of Board agreed

ohjeclives to employees

Remuneration
Committee

Oetermines the
Company s policy on
the remuneration of
Executive Directors,
other members of the
Executive Commitiee
and the Chairman of
the Board

Read more on
pages 96 to 128

Treasury
Committee*

Provides oversight of
treasury activities in
irnplermnenting the
policies, funding

and treasury risk
managerment plan
including: the
measurement and
rmanagerment of risks
inrespect of interest
rales, funding,
counterparty credit,
Lqurdity and
treasury operations,
funding proposals,
relationshup with
rating agencies; debt
investar relabons,
bank relationship
managernent,

and treasury
internal controls

Read more on
page 90

Executive Sub-Committee

Disclosure Committee

Executive Sub-Committee overseeing
Severn Trent's compliance with its disclosure
obligations, considering the materiality,
accuracy, reliability and timeliness of
information disclosed and assessment

of assurance received,

. t + Board tegyd
Governance Matters Reserved to the Board oa‘r. strategy days Corporate
* Terms of Reference for + Training
Framework Board Commuttess « Board Effectiveness Review Governance
Foundations  ° Charter of Expectations + Policies and procedures Code
* Doing the Right Thing ~ + Diversity/independence
the Severn Trent Way
* Group Autherisation Arrangements
« Conflicts of Interest review
“M-mtershiuottr e cesst vCommittee in-iudes b ead s Gra 123507y 3 70r Boarpoatun
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The Board s responsible to all stakeholders, including the
Company's shareholders, for the approval and delivery of the
Group’s strateqic objectives It makes sure that the necessary
hinancial, techrical and human resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives The Board leads the Group
within a framewaork of practical and effective controts which
enable rsk to be assessed and managed

Responsibility for the development and implementation of the
Group's strategy and overall commercial objectives is delegated
to the Chief Executive who is supported by the Severn Trent
Executive Cormmittee [STEC

In cornpliance with the Code, the Board also delegates certain
roles and responsibilities to its varnious Committees, which
assist by focusing in detail on their particular areas, reporting
to the Board on decisions and actions they ve taken, and making
any necessary recommendations in Line with their Terms

of Reference

Charter of Expectations

The Severn Trent Charter of Expectations sets cut clearly the
defined roles of the Chairman, Chief Executive, Chief financial
Officer, Senior Independent Director and Nan-Executive
Directors, the operation of the Board and Beoard Committees,
and also reflects the Board's responsibility for setting the tone of
the Greup s culture, values and behaviour In accordance with the
Code, it sets out a clear division of respansibilities between the
roles of Chairman and CEO

The Charter of Expactations is reviewed annually, with the
last review undertaken in March 2018 It s also used to assist
in the ongoing assessment cf the effectiveness of the Board
and its Commuttees and that of individual Directors [see
page 79 for further details] Itis available on our website
[www severntrent com|

Matters Reserved to the Plc Board

The Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board sets out
the processes in place regarding the Board's tasks and
aclivities and lhe matlers speaifically reserved for the
Board's decision making A copy is available on our website
[www severntrent com)

The Board has reserved the following matters, amongst others,
for its own consideration

» the Group s strategic and operating plans,

e financial reporting and controls;

¢ major acgusitions and disposals,

* key Group policies, and

= Group Authorisation Arrangements [ GAA]

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference for each Board Committes are
reviewed annually, updated to take account of best practice,

and to reflect the reguirements of the UK Corpor ate Governance
Code [as revised frorm time to time)

The sub-committee structure 1s detailed m the Governance

Framework on page 72 and key responsibilities are set out
on page 4.

Conflicts

The Board formally considers conflicts of interest at every
meeting, and reviews the authorisation of any potential conflicts
of interest every six months

Group Authorisation Arrangements

The GAA s the framework through which the Severn Trent Plc
Board authorises the right people, at the right level, to take
impertant decisions to effectively control and manage legal,
financiat and administrative decisions throughout the Group
These arrangements are reviewed annually, with the last review
undertaken in April 2018

The flow of author ity 15 frorn the Severn Trent Ple Board to the
Chief Executive and the Severn Trent Executive Committee

in respect of certain decisions, the delegated authonty is subject
to an obligation to work with specialist business service areas
[such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finance, Group Cornmercial and
General Counsell, which provides additional expertise and a
group-wide perspective

‘Doing the Right Thing - the Severn Trent Way’

In addition to the Charter of Expectations and Terms of
Reference for the Board, and the company-wide GAA, Severn
Trent also sets out the cultural tone expected of its workforce
through clearty defined values and standards of behaviour that
are expected from everyone who works for the Severn Trent
Group Its Code of Conduct ‘Doing the Right Thing - the Severn
Trent Way has been rolled out across the Group in the form of
all-employee training prograrnme, 15 integral to the inducticn
process and I1s continuously re-enforced by management ta
rmake sure that all of cur people embody Severn Trent s values

* we put our customers first,

» we are passionate about what we do,

» we act with integrity,

« we protect our environment; and

* we are inspired to create an awesome company

Our Code of Conductis key to helping us achieve ourvisicn
of being the most trusted water company by 2020

We know that the right culture must be set from the top

Qur annual employee engagement survey, QUEST, is therefore
designed Lo provide us with actionable datain a clear and
camprehensive form, giving us a better understanding on what's
going well and what can be iImproved across the whole of our
business QUEST 15 carried out by an independent research
company to ensure the results are anonymaous and results are
reported to the Beard

Policies, Standards and Procedures

In addition to our Code of Conduct, Severn Trent has an
additional 17 policies which apply to everyone who works for
the Severn Trent Group These policias have been designed to
help employees and contractors understand their role within
the Company and their responsibility to the Severn Trent
Group They alsc, inturn, outline the Group's responsibility to
the individual These policies are the strategic link belween
the Severn Trent vision and how we manage our day-te-day
business, and are underpinned by specific company standards
and procedures
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Governance

Key Board responsibilities
| eadership & Effectiveness

Board composition, roles and attendance

Where Directors have not been able to attend meetings, they have stitl received related papers in advance of the scheduled meeting
and any input they have provided has been considered

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year, and the key roles of iIndividuals and their attendance 1s set out overleaf
For additianal information on the activities of the Board, sec pages 76 and 77,

There were 11 additional ad hoc meetings of the Board or Cornrrittee of the Board convened throughout the year

Director Responsibility
Chairman Andrew Duff * Leads our unified Board and 1s responsible for its effectiveness.
* Setsagendas and ensure timely dissemination of iInformation to the Board, n consultation
with CEQ, CFO and Company Secretary
* Responsible for scrutinising the performance of the Executive Commuttee
» Facilitates contribution from our Directors
* Ensures effective communication with cur shareholders and other stakeholders
CEO Lw Garfield * Develops and implements the Group's strategy, as approved by the Board
s Responsible for the overall commercial objectives of the Group
» Promotes and conducts Group affairs with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
corporate governance
* Setsthe cultural tone of the organisation
CFO James Bowling * Manages the Group's financial affairs
* Supports the CED in the iImplernentation and achigvernent of the Group s strategic objectives
51D Kevin Beeston * Supports the Chairrman in delivery of his objectives
*+ Alternative contact for shareholders should they have a cencern that s unresolved by the
Chairman, CEQ or CFO
* Leads the appraisal of the Chairman’s performance with the Non-Executive Directors
* Key role n succession planning for the Board, together with the Board Comiittees, Chanrman,
and NEDs
NED John Coghlan * Constructively challenge our Executive Directors in all areas
Deminigue ¢ Monitor the delivery of strategy by the Executive Commuttee within the risk and control
Reiniche framework set by the Board
Dame Angela * Satisfy themselves that internal controls are robust and that the External Audit 1s
Strank undertaken properly
Phiip Remnant  « Responsible for agreeing appropriate levels of remuneration for Executive Directors
* Key role in succession planning for the Board, together with the Board Comimittees, Chairman,
and 510
Executive Emma FitzGerald = Responsible for the Group's wholesale business until 31 December 2017
Director luntit 311217)

* Supported the CED in the implementation and achievement of the Group’s strategic objectives
until 31 December 2017
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_cdan vb e, ,

Board attendance g
April 17 3
May 17
June 17 —
July 17 ;
Aug 17 ;
Sept 17 -
Oct 17 :
Nov 17 B
Dec 17 d
Jan 18 é_
Feb 18 i
Mar 18

Board Meeting Audit Norninations Remuncration Treasury CR
Director Attendance Comrmttee ! Cormrrittee Committes Caommittece Committee
Andrew Duff 77 - 414 b/6 - 213 -
Liv Garfield "7 - - - - 3/3
James Bowling 77 - - - &/4 -
Kevin Beeston"' 67 414 414 &/6 - -
John Coghlan™ &/7 Li4 3/4 - 616 -
Cominigue Reiniche 77 - 414 - - 3/3
Darne Angela Strank 77 - 44 6/6 - 3/3
Philip Remnant 77 34 414 6/6 6/6 -
Emma FitzGerald [until 311217} 5/5 - - - - -

Il Imel, desthe achedulea Reard meeings Some additonal meelings have beer required to cover spesdf ¢ matters througrout the year

Il Kewin Beestzn vias unable t2 st nd o Boary meeling duc teallness dunng the year

) John Coghtan was unable t= diend a Beard wed Comimttes meeting due to a bereaw ment

Committee membership key

Audit Commuttee

Corporate Respensibilty Commuttee

Nem natens Commitioe

Remuneration Cormmittes
Treasary Commmittee

Boarg
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Governance

Key Board responsibilities continued

Leadership & Effectiveness

Board activities

The table below sets cut the main matters considered by the
Board in 2017/18 at tts scheduled Board meetings and the
updates covered as part of its Lunch and Learn and operational
site visit sessions. The Board's agenda 1s ordinanily structured
as follows

« procedura!l matters [including Board Committee reparts),

*» performance review [including health and safety, operationat,
customer and financial matters],

 strategic tems, and

* items for approval/noting including the Company Secretary's
Update oni governance, legal and regulatory ssues}

This structure has been agreed to ensure that Matters Reserved
to the Board are addressed appropriately and that the Board's
time 1s spent effectively Strategic erms are reqularly presented
to the Board by sentor managers within the business, giving

the Directors the opportunity to meet with key members of
management who repartinto the Executive tearm This also
assists the succession planning process

Board strategy days

in addition ta formal meetings at which strategic matters are
reqularly reviewed, in June 2017 the Board held a dedicated
strategy meeting along with the Executive Cornmuttee to cansider
areas of future value creation acrass the Group and spent time
considering asset strategy and potential future disruptors,
requlatery strategy and growth strategies across our portfolio

of businesses For 2018, success of the PR19 plans are key,
therefore a good pertion of the Board's strategy meeting 15
scheduled to focus on this Over the medium to long term it s
anticipated that opportunities and risks to the business will come
from emerging technologres such as artificial intelligence and
robotics so this will be on the agenda, together with mergers and
acquisitions and a discussion abeut our future people strategy

The format of each day involves a few topics being discussed
in-depth, with external speakers to challenge thinking and an
Interactive approach to each of the conversations

76 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Acceunts 2018

Summary Board Activities 2017/18

Overview

All Board meetings are a full day's agenda cansisting of
Procedural matters, Performance Reviews, Strategy, items
for approval/noting urther details are provided below

Board Focus - Topics & Actions

Procedural matters

Agreeing minutes of last meeting, reviewing progress against
specific actions Updates from the Chairman of each Board
Commuttee has been strategically moved to this early part of the
aygenda to reflect the inpot tance of the Commuttees’ activities
See Commutlee reports on pages 80 to 93 for further details

Performance Reviews

Reviews are received from the CEQ and CFQ at every meeting
and from Directorates at regular intervals There has been a
strong focus on Production, Customer Delivery and Capital
Delivery & Commercial during the year. The finanaial reviews
have included consideration of the Annual Report and Accounts
and the pension scherme funding, in addition to budget and
dividend approval From 2018, separate operational reviews for
the Regulated Business and those for Business Services have
been introduced to better reflect how the Group's divisions operate

Strategy

Whilst the following Is not an exhaustive list of all the matters
the Board have considered during the financial year, t does
indicate the key areas of activity and hopefully provide insight
inta the strategic workings of the Board

Upper Quartile As part ofits focus on achieving and
maintaining Upper Quartile retall, water and waste pertar mance
as measured by Ofwat, the Board have reviewed a route map of
key milestones on outputs so it can menitor progress towards
achieving thus aspiration

M&A Strategy The Board have continued to keep merger and
acquisition opportunities under review and gave more detailed
consideration to this matter at its Strategy Day.

Bioresources Trading The Board have been considering the
opportunities created by the developrment of this market
Technolegy and potential iInvestment opportunities have been
discussed and considered in more depth at its Strategy Day

Insourcing Opportunities To address service 1ssues, the
Board have censidered proposals for insourcing, exploring
alternative models and seeking practical worked examples
from management for specitied issues and considering the
resources required In each case

Water Resources Management Flan. The Board have
challenged the prescribed methodology and drilled down in
terms of the assumptions, variances and scenarios in addition
to simply testing alternative methadologies, applying the
expertise of those Board members who have the skills set

for such matters.

Dee Valley Water Limited Board Compeosition: Further to
censultation with Ofwat, the Board, in consultation with
the Norminations Commitiee, have constdered the future
make-up of the Dee Valley Water Lirmited Board, appointed
the Chairman of this Board and appointed three new
Independent Nan-Executive Directors



Customer Service: As well as receiving updates on performance
at every meebing the Board rmet with CCW for both England and
Wales to listen to its perspective on Customers views an Severn
Trent's performance

OSUK&I Update: Following the transfer of customers to Water
Plus and the sale of its Italian and US businesses, the Board has
reviewed the operaticnal effectiveness of its Business Services
operations in the UK and Irefand and the future structure of

this division of the business maving forward, commending
rnanagement on Markedly improved customer satisfaction and
better performance It1s keeping opportunities for growth and
the risk profile of each business unit under review.

PR19: This price review rs a particularly challenging area this
year [further details on pages 14 to 17) and the Board has
therefore spent 2 commensurate amount of time on it to enable
progressive scrutiny

Enterprise Risk Management [ERM’) Update: The Board
receives six monthly updates on ERM risks Fotlowing its
feedback to management, the Board now receives ‘Cost to
Target’ and Flightpath analysis on Board levet risks, the former
providing confirmation that risk reduction actions have been
reflected in the budgeting process, business plans and long
range plans, and the latter mapping out the nsk reduction over
time The combined effect of these enhancements now provides
the Board with greater insight to enable reprionitisation of such
risks enabling mor e efficient risk reduction. The Board 1s also
rolling out true cost of control approach across ali ERM risks

Health, Safety and Wellbeing Strategy: The Board receved an
update and noted pleasing progress with the achievernent of
certain important milestenes during the year [see page 41 for
further information) but acknowledges there are sl further
Issues to improve upon and the cultural challenge continues

Property Strategy: The Board considered the new clear strategy
and approved the communicahion of property profits ta the market
and the inclusion of property profits in future business targets

to reflect the value ansing from that strategy inthe Company’s
share price

Review of Water Plus Performance: The Board receives six
menthly updates on Water Plus Whilst the business has been
competing well in the market, the Board keeps the performance
of Water Plus under close scrutiny

HomeServe Update: The Board has reviewed the HomeServe
affinity par tnership

Re-nationalisation Debate: The Board has been closely
following topical debate around the proposat by the Labour
Party inits May 2017 election manifesto to re-nationalise
utilities including the water sector.

Water Quality: The Board matwith the DWI and invited 1t to give
feedback on the Company’s water guality performance, bothin
terms of current performance and challenges for the next AMP

Business Security and Resilience Review: The Board have kept
abreast of progress during the year through its established
ncident management steering group which continually reviews
and learns from incidents, both planned events and real
Incidents It receives reports which include a guide path showing
progress agamst specified targets,

Cyber Security: Given the Cyber Security landscape continues
to evolve with an increasing level of activity and 3 number of
high profile incidents tor other companies and government
departmenits, the Beard has received an update on the
Company's Cyber Security Roadmap during the year It noted
the scrutiny by the National Cyber Secunity Centre, 1ts risk based
approach and investment priorities, and increased in-house
support and positive reviews by Defra and PwC

GDPR: The Beard recognises that the implementation of GDPR
15 challenging but through a considered update during the year
was reassured about what has to be done by management
inorder to prepare forit It has scheduled future updates to
review pregress

Innovation Investment Review: The Beard reviewed the

work of the innovation team and the progress that has been
made to accelerate the pace of application in deploying value-
generating technology

Items for appraval/noting

This s a standing item on the agenda to meet the requirements
of the businessin terms of approving matters such as

leases and land disposals, the alignment of water licences
[particutarly in light of re-defining the English/Welsh boundaries
following the acquisition of Dee Valley Water Limited), and
setting tariff charges This item always includes the Company
Secretary’s Update to address regular reviews of governance
mallers by way ol example see annual reviews shown belowl,
keep abreast of requlatory changes and obtain Board approvals
for specific matters reserved to the Board

Annual Governance Reviews

s Directors conflicts of interest,

* Gifts and Hospitality Register,

¢ Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement,
« Board Diversity Policy,

* Sharesave Invitation,

¢ Board Evaluation Process,

« Board Committee Terms of Reference,

¢ Charter of Expectations,

* Matters Reserved to the Board,

» Group Authorisation Arrangements, and

s Feedback from Institutionai Sharehelders
Lunch and Learn Sessions

The Board's time has been maxirnised by utilising the time spent
over lunch to conduct deep dives into topics such as

* Investor Technology Day,
* Building an ethical culture,

*

HSZ, update on route, programrmes and costs,
» MNationalisation Defence Dehate,
Water Forum, and

* Responding to customers Inspiring the next generation
of water users

-
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Governance

Effectiveness
Leadership & Effectiveness

Term of office

The Board recogruses the Code s recammendation that Directors
serve a fixed term of appointment and considers plans for
orderly succession to the Board to maintain an appropriate
balance of skills and experience within the Company. As such,
the Company maintains a clear framework of Non-Executive
Director tenure and the skill set that each Dwector provides
Indmidual Directors biographies can be found on pages 68 and
469 In accordance with the Code, all the Directors will retire at
this year's AGM and submut themselves for reappointment by
shareholders An overview of tenure for the Board 1s shown in the
table on page 69 Each of the Nen-Execulive Directors seeking
reappointment at the AGM 1s considered by the Board to be
independent in character and judgement

Diversity

The Board and Nerminations Committee are committed to
diversity Female representation on the Board exceeds 30%

in respect of the main Board and 1s 40% on the Executive
Cornmittee (see table on page 4%) There s also a continual
focus on promoting wider diversity We believe that our Company
should reflect our communities and customers, and embrace

a diverse range of perspectives, experiences and expertise to
support our long term wiability and commercial success,

We are commutted to developing our talent pipeling, to ensure

we have appropriate representation from minority ethnic
candidates, as well as other relevant diverse groups You can find
additional details on our progress and ambitions on page 81 of
the Norminations Committee report and details of diversity across
the Severn Trenl Group on page 81.

Training and continuing professional
development

As well as Board agenda itemns, traming sessions in relation to
specific topics of interest that were presented to Uirectors during
the year are sel out on page 77,

The aim of the training sessions 1s to continually refresh and
expand the Board's knowledge and skills to enable them to

futfil therr roles effectively on the Board and its Committees and
contribute to discussions on technical and regulatory matters
The sessions also serve as an opportunity for the Board to
discuss strategy and risks with managernent below Executive
Commuttee level and gain further Insight into our businesses and
managernent capahility

Directors’ resources

An online resource lbrary and Continuing Professional
Development [CPD'] repository is avaiable for use by the
Directors, which1s constantly reviewed and updated The library
includes a Corporate Governance Manual, a Results Centre and
Investor Relations section, Strategy Day matenials and detaits of
Board traming sessons It also contains a further reading section
which covers updates and guidance on changes to legislation
and corporate governance best practice The Directors also have
access to professional development provided by external bodies
and our advisers. CPD requirements were considered, through
mdrvdual performance review meebtings between the Chairman
and each Director, as part of the externally facilitated Board
effectivenass review in 201718
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Induction programme

Whilst there hava been no new appointments to the Board
of Severn Trent Plc during the year, there 1s an induction
programme in place which can be tailored as applicable and
includes the following elements/details

+ Ofwat pre-appointment process,

« Company structure including regulatory overview
and performance,

« Company strategy,

* Key stakeholder relations including customers, suppliers,
regulators and service providers,

* Keyoperations and processes including operational areas and
key sites,

» Financial performance including anatyst and investor opinion,

» Our people - including health, safety and wellbeing, talent
and succession, trade unions and an overview of our
Remuneraticn Policy,

+ Group nisk profile and our approach to risk,

* Governance Framework,

» Board calendar, effectiveness reviews and action plans, and
+ Insightinlo key areas of focus for any specific appointment.

We will continue 1o enhance the Board s induction process,
particularly bearing in mind feedback from new appointees

The new Independent Non-Executive Directors of Dee Vailey
Water Lirnited receved an appropriate induction facilitated by
the Company Secretary covering the above topics aswellasa
tour of key operational sites to understand our water treatment
and distribution processes, and the customer journey, in a live
environment, as follows

* Water process - from rain to tap,
* Waste water process - from dram to rniver, and

» Customer journey - from moving into a new home to
moving aut

Independence of NEDs

The independence of our Non-Executive Directors is formally
reviewed annually by the Norminations Committee, and as part
of the Board evaluatian exercise. The Nominations Committee
and Board consider that there are no business or other
circumstances that are likely to affect the independence of any
Non-Executive Director and that all Non-Executive Directors
continue to demonstrate Independence The Beard recognises
the Code's recommendation that Directors serve a fixed term
of appointment and considers plans for orderly successien

to the Board to marntain an appropnate batance of skills and
experience within the Company Individual Director biographies
can be found on pages 68 and 69, In accordance with the Code,
all the Directors will retire at this year's AGM and submit
themselves for reappointrment by shareholders Each of the
Non-Executive Directors seeking reappointment are considered
to be independent in jJudgernent and character



Board Evaluation
Leadership & Effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Board and of the Board's committees 1s
reviewed annually and progress i1s reviewed every six months
Anindependent externally faclitated review of the effectiveness
of the Beard i1s conducted every three years. An externally
facilitated evaluation was therefore undertaken this year, the

last having taken place in 2014/15 Manchester Square Partners
[ MSP'], who undertoak the previous review, were chosen

to facilitate the exercise ta provide continuity and measure
progress against their prior review MSP has no other connection
with the Cormpany

While the Board was funchoning well at the time of the last
external review a number of areas were highlighted for attention

» Strategy While there was atignment at a high level on the
strategic priorities there was moere to be done on agreeing
the strategic opportunities to be pursued and the plans to
achieve these

* Pace of change There was a need to ensure the pace of
change could be dalivered in a sustainable way, with the

Board censider ing major change earlier in the process,

so as to be able 1o review over several meetings and provide
appropriate support and challenge

Mentoring Talent management and succession planning were
identified as needing further forus once the new Fxecutive
teamwas In place

L]

Board Agenda Change suggested to provide more time

to discuss a range of strategic opportunities and other key
inttiatives, whilst not losing tocus on perforimance and fimance
MSP concluded that signsficant progress had been made since
2014715 and there had been a noticeable step change in the focus,
aignment, contribution and effectiveness of the Board with well
planned and structured board agendas

Review dimensions
Strategy, challenges and risks, and values and culture,
Role of the Board, Board dynamics and engagement,

Structure of the Board, its composition and succession planning,

Governance, execution and leadership

The process for the 2017/18 review 1s set out below

MSP briefed by Chairman and Company Secretary and
attended the January Board Meeting in order to observe
the Board first hand. They were also provided with access
to prior years Board and Committee papers and minutes
and detaiis of the previous internal reviews and progress
updates to provide relevant background rnaterial

MSP conducted face-to-face interviews with each Director
and the General Counsel and Company Secretary.

Step1

Step 2

Step3 MSP produced a report setling out their findings
which they discussed with the Chairman and Senior
Independent Director Details of their observations and
suggested focus areas are shown below. together with

the related actions ansing from the evaluation process

The Chairman met with each of the Directors and the
General Counsel and Company Secretary to discuss

the parformance of the Board and their indwvidual
contributions The Semor Independent Director met with
the Non-Executive Directors to discuss the performance
of the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors met to
discuss the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

MSP s repart discussed by the Norminations Committee
n its consideration of the re-election of Directors and
reported to the futl Board at its meeting in April 2018,
together with a recemmendation by MSP

Step 4

Step5S

Stepé  Six-monthly reviews of prograss against

recommendations in the report

MSP reported favourably against all dimensions to the 2017/18

review with noticeable alignment on strategy and areas of

potential challenges and risk Overall, the Board functioned

extremely well and in Line vath first class corporate governance

There were only two areas requiring further development,

as foliows

* Continuing to maintain fecus on strategic, operational and
reputational prierities other than PR19, and

« Arnore structured plan for succession planning and talent
development discussions at Nominations Committes and
the Board

Step 1
Briefing and
observation
Step5 Step 2
Presentation ep
tothe Board and F.ace-to_—face
consideration interviews
by Nominations
Committee
Step 4 Step 3
Individual MSP report
meetings with onfindings

Chairman/siD
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Governance

Nominations Committee report

Leadership & Effectiveness

Image removed

“A significant part of the
Committee’s work this year
has been in developing our
talent pipeline with a focus
on the need for diversity.”

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

Attendance table

Meetings Max
Member of the Norminations Committee attended possible
Andrew Duff [Chairmant 4 4
Jahn Coghlan” 3 4
Dominique Reiniche 4 4
Kevin Beeston 4 4
Dame Angela Strank 4 4

1} John Coghlan was unable to attend a Commttee meeling due to
abereavemoent
The members of the Committee in 2017/18 were the
Non-Executive Directors of the Board Only members of the
Committee have the nght to attend Committee meetings
Other individuals such as the Chief Executive, members of
senior management, the Director of Human Resources and
external advisers may be invited to attend meetings as and
when appropriate
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Introduction

As Chairman of the Nominations Committee, | am pleased

to introduce the report of the Nominations Committee which
details the rofe of the Commuittee The pages that follow provide
additronal details on the role of the Commuttee and the work 1t
has undertaken during the year

Throughout the year, increased focus continued to be given to

the Broup’s succession and contingency planning and diversity
needs Discussion centred on the importance of developing, and
maintaining. a diverse range of perspectives, skills, experiences
and expertise, essential to ensuring our long-term viability and
commercial succass More information on our diversity intiatives
can be found in the Strategic report on page 40

Other significant parts of the Committee s work this year have
been the evaluatian of the Board, its Committees and Directors
and developing our talent pipeline for Directors and high
performing individuals below Board level with a focus on the
need for diversity The Commitiee also considered and approved
the appaintment of three Independent Non-Executive Directors to
the Board of Dee Valley Water Limited

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

Nominations Committee responsihilities
The respansibiities of the Nominations Commuttee include

« reviewing the structure, size and composition including the
skills, knowledge, experience, availability and diversity] of
the Board,

reviewing the leadership needs of the Company, both Executive
and Non-Executive, at regular intervals,

reviewing the adequacy of Board and Executive succession
planning in the long and short term,

ensuring an effectiveness review of the Beard, its Committees
and Directors are conducted annually,

recommending to the Board the appointrment or reappointment
by shareholders of Directors at the AGM, in accordance with
the Code, and

* carrying out an annual review of the Company policy on Board
level diversity

The Neminations Commuttee Terms of Reference, which were

updated in May 20718, can be found at www severptrent com



Nominations Committee activities

Diwversity and succession planning

As huighlighted earlier in the report, the Board and Nominaticns
Committee continue to drive the agenda of diversity across the
Group and are proud of the progress made, especially in respect
of femate representation on the Board and Executive Commuttee
(now at 37 5% and 40% respectivelyl A breakdewn by gender

of the number of persons who were Directors of the Company,
sentor managers and other employees as at 31 March 201815 set
out below

The Board also remarns focused on promoting broader
diversity, and creating an inclusive culture in line with the
recormrmendations from the Parker and McGregor-Smith
reviews. A diverse organisation benefits from differences in
skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender, sexual orientation, religion, belief and age, as well as
culture and personality The Board 1s commuitted to buillding
on existing graduate, apprentice and leadership programrmes
to embed inclusmity in our succession planning and talent
development work to strengthen our talent pipeline, with

an enhanced focus on ensuring appropriate representation
from rinority ethmic candidates, as well as other relevant
diverse cohorts

The Board Diversity Policy the Palicy ), which 1s approved
annually by the Board, was updated and approved by the Board
in October 2017 The objective of the Policy 15 to develop a
pipeline of diverse high calibre candidates for Board level roles
The Nominations Committes reviews the Board's effectiveness
and composition each year and, in particular, considers the
balance of skills, experience and independence of the Board,

in accordance with the Policy |t cansiders the benefits of all
aspects of diversity but without compromise as to the catibre

of Directors, when identifying candidates for appointment

The selection of candidates lo join the Board will continue to be
made based on ment and the individual’s ability to contribute to
the effectiveness of the Board, which in turn will be dependent
on the pool of candidates availabte To support this, we continue
onty to engage with executive scarch firms who have signed

up to the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender and BAME
diversity and best practice Diversity was a key consideration
for the Commuttee when nominating candidates to the Board of
Dee Valley Water Limited duning the year Throughout the year,
focus also continued to be given to succession and contingency
planning, including diversity needs Succession Planning1s
reviewed annually by the Committee with discussion centred on
the importance of developing and maintaining a diverse range
of perspectives, skills, experiences and expertise, essential

to ensuring our long-termviability and cornmercial success
With great graduate and apprenticeships programmes, as well
as external hires and internal promotions, we are keen to make
further progress in identifying, developing and progressing top
talent through the organisation, ensuring successton remains in
Line with the Groups strategic needs

Talent development

We continue ta recogrnise the impaortance of developing our
people and as such talent management remains a key topic of
discussion The Group's five year talent plan focuses on building
both technical and leadership capability, and creating talent
pipelines for the future

We currently have a total of 73 graduates in training -

38 places were offered in 2016 and 35 1n 2017, We have

four entry programimes for graduates - Business Leadership,
Finance, 15 and Engineering Our placements programme
for undergraduates offers a range o summerand 12 month
placements across Engineering, Finance and the Visitor
Experience teams, with 21 opportunities filled in 2017

We currently have 161 apprentices intraining In 2017, we
launched four new Apprenticeship programmes within Finance,
Group Commercial, Project Management and Senior Network
Technician populations This means we now have nine active
Apprenticeship programmes, and we expect this to increase to
121 2018, which includes a degree level legal Apprenticeship and
a Higher Apprenticeship in HR

Wa have been a key partner in the developrment and
implementation of the new water mdustry apprenticeships
standards through the Government s Trailblazer initiative

Gender diversity
at 31 March 2018

Graph removed Graph removed Graph removed

Graph removed

Severn Trent Board diversity figures
Tenure [Years)

Graph removed
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Governance

Nominations Committee report continued

Leadership & Effectiveness

As one of the 12 firms making up the employer group we have
ensured that Severn Trent has been at the forefront of the
developrnent of this new avenue for apprenticeships There are
now two Tratlblazer programmes being successfully delivered
across the industry for Water Process Technicians [WPT) and
Uulities Engineering Techmcian [UET ) and we currently offer
both of these Apprenticeship routes in partrership with cur
learnung provider, the EEF Technology College

Our innovative delivery model for Trailblazer has allowed us to
design a programme that ensures high quabity apprenticeship
tramning delivered in just 24 imonths - significantly faster than
any previous schemes, as elsewhere in the industry this course
would take at least 36 - 48 months for apprentices to complete,
and we are proud to have had the first four water industry
Trailblazer apprentices In the UK to complete the new standard
and gqualify through the new assessment model

Evaluation of the Board

The effectiveness of the Board (s reviewed annually and an
independent externally facilitated review of the effectiveness

of the Board is conducted every three years and cenducted
according to the guidance set outin the Code The Board
therefore conducted an externally facilitated board effectiveness
evafuation this year, the last having taken place in 2015

This year, the Board evaluation was externally faciitated by
Manchester Square Partners with support from the Chairman
and Company Secretary The next externally facilitated review s
scheduled for 2021, More information on the Board evaluation
can be found on page 79 of the Governance report

The subsequent report prepared by Manchester Sguare
Partners was discussed by the Nominations Committee in

Pragress against 2016/17 Action Plan

its consideration of the re-election of Directors and it was also
the subject of a presentation to the Board

As part of the evaluation, full consideration was given to

the nurnber of external pesitions held by the Non-Executive
Directors We reviewed Directors’ other appointments, including
the time commutment required for each, as part of the evaluation
exercise The outcome of which1s as follows

Namber of Lisred Compar y
ApLoir ments
asNer-Evwecu.ave

Dir~zror incladieg

Severn Trort Pl

Namter of Lisied Compar y
Appoirtmer 5
as Chairrmar binzludirg

Direcor Severn Trar- Ple]

Kevin Beestan 1 1
[t}
1

James Bowling

John Coghlan
Andrew Duff

RIS TO
[l

Emma FitzGerald -

[Stepped Down
31 December 2017)

Lw Garfreld 0

Domimque Reiniche 0

SIS ]

Philip Remnant 1
Dame Angela Strank 0 1

As aresult of this review, the Commuttee did not identify any
instances of overboarding and confirms that all indmnadual
Directors have sufficient time to cormrmit to their appointment
as a Director of Severn Trent Ple

The full ist of external appomtrnents held by our Non-Executive
Directors can be found on pages 68 and 69

The areas identified for further focus and attention in the April 2017 Board Effectiveness Report to the Board were-

A-eafor further focus identified

n 2016/17 internal review

Progress against areas for further focus identified 1in 2017/18 internal review

Seeking opportunities to improve
the ethnic diversity of the Board

Whilst there are currently no vacancies on the ST Ple and STW Boards, the recrutment
of Dee Valley NEDs gave an opportumty to seek to improve the diversity of the Group's
NED population

Succession planning for the
Executive team

Neil Morrison has only recently taken up the role of HR Director but talent development
and succession planning will be an area of focus for him going forward The new role

of Production Manager on STEC alse creates less of a big 'step up’ in terms of senior
operational succession

Additional/more depth of content
on regulatory topics in director
nduction matenal

The regulatory section of the iInduction matenial and the induction prograrnme wilt have
additional face to face meetings with the requlatory team, 3 and 6 manths in, following
appomntment John Coghlan has also kindly agreed to help provide support to any new
Director in this regard

Improved communicatien of
Cornmittee proceedings to
the Board

Committee meeting reports now take place at the beginning of every Board meeting giving

a greater opportunity for non-members to ask questions or seek clarification.

A distinct separation of strategy
days from Board meeting as

an opportunity to step back and
discuss, debate and interrogate

The recent strategy day was entirely differentin format, offsite and with external speakers,

and received very positive feedback frorn NEDs

Furtherinformation s available within the Board Evaluation section en page 79.
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Audit Committee report
Accountability

Image removed

“The Committee continues
to focus on ensuring the
adequate mitigation of risks
faced by the Group.”

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Audit Comm ttee attended possible
John Coghlan [Chairman) 4 4
Philip Remnant 3 4
Kevin Beeston 4 4

In addition to the attendance set out above, Andrew Duff, the
CEO, the CFO, the Head of Internal Audit, the Group Financial
Controller and the External Auditor normally attend, by invitation,
all meetings of the Committee. Other members of seniar
management are also invited to attend as appropriate

The Commuttee regularly hotds private discussions with the Head
of Internal Audit and the External Auditor separately, without
Executive management present The Chairman regularly holds
separate one-te-one meetings with the CFQ, the Head of Internal
Audit and the External Auditor te better understand any 1ssues or
areas for concern

During 201718, the Committee held five additional guarale
meetings convened at short notice

Introduction

As Chairman of the Audit Commuttee, | am pleased to introduce
the report of our role and the work we have undertaken during
the year The pages that follow provide additional detaill on the
actiiities and discussions of the Commuttee and prowides an
overview of the significant 1ssues the Commitiee assessed and
steps taken to address any issues identified

The Committee has continued to play a key role In supporting the
Board in discharging its oversight responsibilities for the integrnity
of the Compary’s financral stateinents and matters relating to
the Group's systern of Internat controls and risk management

As such, there 1s a continued focus on ensuring the adequate
mitigation of risks faced by the Group This report provides
additional detail of how we carried cut our risk assessment
activities and you can read more about how we identify and
manage risks on pages bY and 58 of cur Strategic report

Other significant parts of the Committee’s work this year

have included oversight o the relationship with cur External
Auditor, including the assessment of its ongoing ebjectivity

and independence, overseeing the assurance of requlatory
returns made by Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley
Water Limited to Ofwat, oversight o’ the wholesale charges,
new connections charging, PR19 assurance framework,
customer Q0 forecast, company monitoring framework and
Water Resource Management Plan for both Severn Trent Water
Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited.

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
« gversight of financial statements and accounting policies,

review of risk management and internal controels,

.

oversight of Internal and External Audit,

review of the adequacy of the Group's procedures for
whistleblowing, reporting fraud and other inapprepriate
behaviour, including reviewing reports of all aliegations
at their meetings,

-

review of the Financial Reporting Counal { FRCT reporting
requirements on Gong Concern and Long-Term Viability
Statements, and

+ regulatory reporting abligations of our subsidiaries Severn
Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited

The Audit Committee Terms of Reference, which were updated
in March 2018, can be found al www.scverntrent com
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

Audit Committee activities
A summary of the matters considered at each meeting 1s set out below

Meguny

Meeora corsidered

May 2017

« Financial results 2016/17

« Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17, including fair, balanced and understandable review

« Severn Trent Water Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17

¢ Regulatory Annual Performance Report and Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement for Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limited

¢ Requlatory Annual Performance Report assurance, including ODIs for Severn Trent Water Limited

» internal control and risk management effectiveness

» External Audit Deloitte yearend fi~al report

« Whistleblowing update

September 2017

s Internal Audit half-year report

= Gitts and Hospitality Update

« External Audit 201718 plan and terms of engagement

« External fudt Review of non-audit fees

o Draft Wholesale charges

» Enterprise Risk Management update

» Water Resource Management Plan tor Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Watar Lirnited
s Assurance Map re-design

s Whistloblowing update

* PR19 Assurance Framework

Novernnper 2017

= lnterim results

s External Audit Deloitte half-year report

» Management Representation tetters

» Regulatery Cornpany Monitoring Frarmewark

» Report from the Disclosure Comrmittee

« Severn Trent Water Limited Custorner ODI Forecast
» Water Resource Management Plan

= Material Litigation ana cormptiance update

« YWhstieblowing update

b;cembcr 2017

« Dee Valley Water Limited - Water Resources Management Plan
« Water Resources RCV Allocation for PR19
* New Connections Charging

January 2018

¢ New Connections Charging

March 2018

» Finance Year end considerations and Long-Term Viabitity Staternent update

= Regulatory Year end consideratiens, Annual Performance Report and Annuat Cormplance Staternent
« Regulatory WICS Compliance Statement

s External Audit Effectiveness review

» External Audit Non-audit fecs policy and review of non-audit fees

« Committee Terms of Reference

= Internal Audit Q4 Update

« |nternal Audit Plan 2018/19

« Enterprise Risk Management update - Draft Principal Risks 2018 for the Annual Report
» Report trom the Disclosure Committee

» Matenal Ltigation and legal comphiance update

= Whistleblowing update

s Bripery and fraud prevention and detection

« fssurance Map update

s Accounting policies update

» Subsidiary Audit Exemptions

In addition to the matters considered above, the Committee reviewed the proposed presentations to analysts in conjunction with the
draft results announcements for both the interim and full year results, applying particular attention to the tone of the announcements
and presentations to maintain consistency with the financial statements In reviewing the financial statements, the Comimittee
receives Input from the Disclosure Committee, a sub-commuttee of the Executive Commuittee which 1s chaired by the CFO

In May 2018, the Audit Committee also reviewed the outcome of the process te cenflirm thal the Annual Report and Accounts are

fair, balanced and understandable” The Disclosure Cemmittee undertook a detailed review of the Annual Report and Accounts prior

ta making a recommendation to the Board that it could make the fair, balanced and understandable statemments contained in the

Directors Responsibilities Staternent on page 135. |
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Significant financial statement reporting issues

The Commuttee looked carefully at those aspects of the financial statements which required significant accounting Judgements or
whare there was estimation uncertainty. These areas are explained in note 4 of the financial statements on page 152

The Cornrnittee receves detailed reports from both the CFO and the External Auditor on these areas and on any other matters

which they believe shauld be drawn to the attention of the Commuttee The Committee also reviews the draft of the External Auditor s
report on the hinancial statements, with particular reference to these matters reported as carrying risks of material misstatement.
The Commuttec discusses the range of possible treatments both with managerment and with the Exterpal Auditar and satisfies itself
that the judgements made by management are robust and should be supported. The significant issues that the Committee considered

In 2017/18 were

Issue

How the Issue was addressed by the Committee

Going concern basis for the fimancial statements and long-term
wiahility staterment

The Cormmittee reviewed and challenged the evidence and assumptions underpinning
the use of the go.ng concern assumption in preparing the accounts and in making the
staterments i the Strategre report on going concern and long-term yvsability

Detorminatior of the provision forimpairment of trade recewvables
in Severn Tront Water Lienited

At 31 March 20°8, the provision in Sovern Trent Water Lirited s
financial slatermenls was £124 3 mi ienand Lhe charge for the
vearwas {250 ~illion

Severn Trent Water Limited has a statutory abligation to cont aue
to supply water and waste water sorvices to custemers even
when ther bitls are unpaid This increases the risk of bad debs
Inadd horit has a large and diverse cus ome- base which
reguires mparrmente aganst trade ~ecewables to bo assessec
onasystematicbas s

The Committee chalicnged the changes made to tho methodoiogy for calculat:rg the
provisicn during the year and critically appraised management s explanations for
these changes

The Commitiee considered the work perfarmed by the Aaditor and the conclusions
they reached regarding the adequacy of the provision

The Cemmittze determined that no adjustment to the amouants recordad was
regaired

Revenue recognition in relatior to the estimauon of metered
revenue frem tre new non-household retar’ marke! in Severn
Trent Water Lim ted

Inthe year ended 31 March 2018, Severn Trent Water Lir.ted
recogmised L3714 millionin reven.e from saes toretalers
i the new non-household retail market

On 1 April 2017 thz non-household retall market in England opened
to competition This erabled all non-Pousehold customers to
choose their water and waste water supplier atthough whotesale
services remanca with the iIncumbent companies Market Operater
Services Limited [ MOSL) was establishea to operate the marke!
and to provide dara to wholesalers and retaiers to atlow settlement
betwecn market part:cipants to take place MOSL. provides data for
maonthly settierment periods based on actuat meter readings and
estimations extrapolated from the last known meter read Thisis
an iterative process with subsegquent settlement runs nctuding
more actual readings for the same period Empirical observations
have shown that metered consumption 1s cansistently higher than
the previous estimates

The Commities does nol consider that there is a 219~ ficant risk of a mate- al
adjustment inrespect of this estimate 1nthe next finanzielyear because the
estmated amount s not material Nevertheless the Committen considered th s to
be a sign can”issue because the systems and processes are new and the amounts
recognised are subject to management jJudgement

The Committee reviewed tne process for calculating the metered revenae estirrate
from non-household retailers and considered the reasonabteness of the estirates
inthe Light of emerging trends and the experience of other market participants

The Committee scrutimised mgnagement’s ewidence suppo-ting its udge —en's
and examined the data from the underlying evidence The Committee d scussed
the Auditor s werk and Ltheir conclusions

The Committee determined that the approach taken by management was
reascnable and that no adjustrment was required ¢ the ar~o .nts tccagnisad
inthe financial statements

The proposed classification o' costs between operating expendiiure
and capital expenditure ir Severn Trent Water Limited

Severn Tren. Water Limited has a sigmificant capital pregrarmme
that includes projects mmade up of 3 cambination of expenditure
and actwvities, some of which a~e recog=ised as property, plant and
equipment and some of which are recognised as operating costs
For most of the expenditure this distinction is clear but there 1s an
element where subjective judgements are required to determine
the appropriate accaunting treatment

The Committee considered the app'ication of the Group s accounting policies in
relation to capital expenditure during the year

The Commuittee cngqured of management whether the policies had been applied
consistently from year to year and sought explanation for the increase:n amounts
capitalised The Cammittee considered the results of the Auditor s work and
discussed the conclusions with the Auditor

The Committee determined that no adjustment to the armounts recorded
was required
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued
Accountability

Issue How the 1ssue was addressed by the Committee
Determmation of the amoun' of the Group s retirement benefit The Committee scrutimsed the assumptions underlying the valuation of the
obligaticns obligations, noting and probing assumptions that were not in inewith their

expectations The Committee considered whether the assurnptions taken
as a whole were appropriate, taking account the work of the Auditor and the
penchrmark intarmation provided by them

AL 3" March 2018, net retirement benell® obligations amounting to
£519 B roillinn were recognised

The net obligation recognised on the balance sheet s the difference
between the fair value of the schemes assets at the balance sheet
da“e and the present vatue of the benefits expected to be paid to
members of the schemes This reguires assurmptions to be made
regarding expected age of retirement and longewity of members,
future inflateor rates and incragses to benefits ltis alsa necessary
to determine an appropriate discount rate to calculate the present
vatue of the estimated gross obligations Management takes advice
Irom external oualified actuanes who perform the caleulation

of the present value of the benefits based on the assumptions

sct by managernent

The Cornmittec considered that the assumptions were reasonable and that
no adjustment was required to the draft lina~zial statemerts

For all of the matters described above the Committee concluded that the treatmenl adopted in the Group financial statemenls
was appropriate

Internal control over financial reporting
The Group has established procedures for exercising control and managing risk in relation to financial reperting and preparation
of consolidated financial statements including

« the formulatien and communication of Group accounting policies which are regularly updated for developments in IFRS and other
reporhing requirements,

specification of a set of financial controls that all of the Group's operating businesses are required to implement as a minimum,

a range of systern, transactional and ranagement oversight controls ernbedded into aur tinancial processes,
+ deployment of a group-wide consolidation system with controls to restrict access and maintain integrity of data,

recruitment training and development of appropriately qualilied and experienced hinancial reporting personnel,

oversight by the Disclosure Commuttee of the Group's compliance with its disclosure obligattens, and

monthly reviews by the Board of financial reports from the Group's operating businesses

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

The Committee’s performance was considered and reviewed as part of the annual review of the Board and its Commuttees,
details of which can be found on page 79

The Board 1s satishied that the Committee mermbers bring a wide range and depth ot financial and commercial experience across
various Industries and that all imember s have competence relevant to regulated and/or utilities businesses as well as significant
recent and relevant financial experience

internal and External Audit

Internal Audit and internal controls

internal Audit 1s an Independent assurance function available to the Board, Audit Committee and atl levels of management

The Internal Audit function 1s supported by a co-seurcing partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers The arrangement i1s reviewed annuatly
and the Committee believes this structure adds value, through greater access to specific areas of expertise, increased ability to

scale up operations, and the ability to challenge management independently Co-source specialists will continue to bring expertise

to support the team and delivery of the audit ptan where relevant During the year, and following a meeting with the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, a new Head of Internal Audit was appointed This appointment complemented planned changes to the Internal Audit
tear to help deliver third Une assurance for PR19 and other regulatory activities, without cornpromusing the delivery of the 2018/19
audit plan
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The role of Internal Audit s to provide assurance that the Group's
risk management and internal control systems are well designed
and operate effectively and that any corrective action is taken in
atirmely manner Each year, Internal Audit develops an annual
risk-based audit plan for approval by the Audit Committee and
Perforrnance Dashboards to enable onward monitoring of the
plan’s execution The Audit Committee challenges the Audit
plan, specifically whether the key risk areas identifred as part

of the Enterprise Risk Managernent process are being audited
with appropriate frequency and depth, and also by bringing

an external view of nsks the Company may be exposed to

The Performance Dashboards summarise the performance of
the Internal Audit function over the year against key measures
and are reviewed by the Commuttee twice a year Following the
completion of each planned audit, the Internal Audit function
seeks feedback from management which is reported through
the Performance Dashboards and assessed inturn by the Audit
Committee twice a year The effectiveness of the controls over
financial reporting 1s also maoniter ed by the Audit Cornmittee,
which receives regular reports of the testing conducted by the
External Auditor

The Audit Committee 1s conbident that, where any failings or
weaknesses are identified in the course of its review of internal
control systems, management puts in place rokust actions to
address these on a timely basis An internal control systern can
pravide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstaterment or loss, as it s designed to rmanage
rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business
abjectives To ensure continued efficiency, an external review of
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function will be carried out
in October 2018

External Auditor

Annually, the Commuttee reviews the External Auditor's audit
plan and reviews and assesses information provided by them
cenfirming their independence and objectivity within the

context of applicable regulatory requirements and professional
standards Deloitte contributes a further independent perspective
on certain aspects of the Company's financial control systems
arising from its work, and reports both to the Board and the

Audit Commuttee

Foliowing a farmal tender process in 2015/14, Deloitte LLP were
reappointed as Auditor at the 2016 AGM The seniar statutory
Auditor, Kari Hale, has overseen the audit of the Severn Trent
Group since 2015/16 The Company intends to put the External
Audit out to tender at least as often as 1s required by applicable
taw rules, regulations and hest practice in Line with the
Competition and Markets Authority and EU requirements for
mandatory tendering and rotation of the audit firm. Under current
regulations the External Audit must be put out to tender by 2025
and Deloitte will not be able to participate The Company has
comphied with the provisions of the CMA Audit Order during the
financial year

The Committee considers the effectiveness of the External
Auditor every year and, further to Deloitte's reappointment,

a full effectiveness review was conducted during this year

The review involved assessment of the Auditor by the Commitiee
and key Executives and evaluation of whether the Auditor meets
minimurmn standards of qualification, independence, expertise,
effectiveness and communication

Based on our consideration of the responses to the effectiveness
review the Committee remains satisfied with the efficiency and
effectiveness of the audnt

Non-audit fees

The Company has approved a formal pelicy on the prowision of
non-audit services aimed at safequarding and supporting the
independence and ebjectinty of the External Auditor The policy
sets out the approach to be taken by the Group when using the
services of the External Auditer, including requiring that certan
services provided by the External Audior are pre-approved by
the Cormmuttee orits Chairman and separately sets out those
non-audit services which are prohibited, since the independence
of the Extarnal Auditor could be threatened

The process for approving all non-audit work provided by our
Auditor 1s overseen by the Commuttee in order to safeguard the
abjectiaty and independence of the Auditer Prior to approval,
consideration 1s given to whether it 1s in the interests of the
Company that the sarvices are purchased from Deloitte rather
than ancther supplier Where Deloitte have been chosen, this
15 a5 a result of their detailed knowledge of our business and
understanding of our industry as well as demonstrating that
they have the necessary expertise and capabilily lo undertake
the work cost-effectively

The policy was revised in early 2016, ahead of new EU requlations
corming inte force iIn June 2016, to provide that non-audit fees

and independence of our Auditor would continue to be subject to
ongoing review in light of those rules The current policy, which
was reviewad by the Committee during the year, continues to
comply with the EU regulations and requires approval by the
Committee or its Chairman if a non-audit service provided by the
Auditor s expected to cost more than £100,000 The pelicy also
prohibits aggregate fees from non-audit services in excess of
70% of the audit fee for the year

Non-audit services where the External Auditor may be used
include audit-related services required by statute or regulation,
services related to fraud, Corporate Respensibility report reviews
and regulatory support
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Governance

Audit Committee report continued

Accountability

During the year, Deloitle received £558,000 in fees for work relating to the audit services they provide to the Group Non-audit related

work undertaken by Delotte amounted to fees of £201,000 this year, which amounts ta 36% of the total audit fees paid to them

Fees paid to Deloitte are set out In note 7 of the financial statements on page 157, but details of significant non-audit work undertaken

are set out below

MNatdtow sorviee Ressan or Delaice s oppain smort Fees [E200)
Audit related assurance services
Interim roview This work 1s akin to an audit and 15 expected 1o be performed by the £54
External Auditor The same safeguards that apply to the External Audit
also appiy to this work
Assurance of regulatory returns Audit of sections 1 and 2 of Dee Valley Water Lirmuted s and Severn Trent £45
Water Lirmited s Annual Performance Reports is closely related to the
External Auditor s statutory audit work and the two assignments are
3 performed in parallel
Reporung under Group financing documents These documents require reports from the Auditor . £49
Subtotal i ) €168
Other assurance services o
Assurance in connection with regulatary Agreed-upon procedures relating ta section 4 of Dee Valley Water Lumited's £15
reports to Ofwat and Severn Trent Water Limited s Annual Perfarmance Reports and Sovern
__ TrentWater Limited s wholesale scheme of charges
Other assurance {18
Subtatal o o £33
Total 2017/18 non-audit fees £201

In approving these non-audit fees, the Cornmittee considered the
overall ratio of non-audd tees to audit fees and, given the scope
of work, considered that Deloitte was best placed te perform
these services

Regulated subsidiaries

The requlated actrviies carried out by Severn Trent Water Lirnited
and Dee Valiey Water Limited also require annual reporting
subrmissions to Ofwat which are reviewed by the Commitiee

They include an annual subrmission on their regulatory
performance and cbligations known as the Annual Perforrmance
Report, togetherwith a Compliance Staterment and & statement
to underpin the customer charges made by each subsidiary

In Novernber 2017, the Committee reviewed the statement of
risks, strengths and weaknesses and draft assurance plans for
Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Lirmited, which
i5 a requirement of Ofwat's Company Monitaring Framework
These documents set out the process, imeline and assurance
framework m place for information published for customers and
other stakeholders, including the Annual Performance Report

For each of Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water
Limited, Deloitte provides an audit opinion on the regulatory
financial reporting and price control segrnentation sections of
the respective Annual Performance Reports, and assurance

of certain aspects of additional regulatory infarrmation that s
included. The respective Annual Performance Reports also
provide an overall picture of performance, covering rany
aspects which are not financial including performance against
commitments and ODls for each of Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Lirnited Both Severn Trent Water Limited
and Dee Valley Water Limited appoint independent engineering
consultants, Jacabs and Black & Veatch respectively, to repart
and provide assurance on those aspects The Commuttee
receves reports from Jacobs and Deloitte on therr work for
Severn Trent Water Limited, and Black & Veatch and Delotte for
Dee Valley Water Limited, as part of its review of the respective
Annual Performance Reports
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Risk management

The Audit Committee reviews the processes for, and outputs
frorn, the Group s Enterprise Risk Management [ERM | process,
threugh which our principal risks and related controls are
identified The Commuttee also reviews the elfectiveness of the
risk management system on behalf of the Board and keeps under
review ways in which to enhance the control and assurance
arrangements The Committee receives half-yearly reports from
the Head of Risk detailing the significant nisks and uncertainties
faced by the Group, an assessment of the effectiveness of
controls over each of those risks and an action plan to improve
controls where this has been assessed as necessary

To further enhance the clarty of reporting and insight that can
be gained from this ERMinformation risk flightpaths’ are now
reported to the Audit Commuttee. The flghtpaths graphically
demonstrate the level of risk the Group faces and the imeline
for the key risk mitigation steps to manage the risk to the targat
position This builds upon the established reporting dashboard
for the Group's significant rnisks. The fughtpaths and the reporting
dashboard help to facilitate a more thorough review of the
target risk positions considering risk appetite and whether
impravernent actions to achieve these are on target with the
cerrect prioritisation in place

The Board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the princpal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group have been in place
forthe year to 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this report,
which s 1n accordance with the Code and Guidance on Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and
Business Reporting September 2014 [the ‘Guidance’). Arisk
identification and horizon scanning update was provided to the
Board in March 2018. Buring its review of risk management
during the year, the Board explicitly considered the target
position for significant risks and whether target nisk pasitions
are appropriate and confirmed that suitable timescales had been
agreed for reaching them



Risk management governance process
The Group's risk management governance process 1s based on the three lines of defence model and 1s scrutinised by the Audst
Commuttee, through delegated authority from the Severn Trent Plc Board

Policy oversight
GAA | Doing the Right Thing | Group policies

Risk tolerance Risk appetite
BOARD
Report
Delegated authority ERM reports
Internat Audit
AUDIT COMMITTEE Whistleblowing

Bribery and fraud

Third line of defence - Internal Audit

Ingopendent review and aversight by Internal Audit, which independently
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group s nisk maragement
contrel and goverrance processes

Second line of defence — management/ERM team

Inform Business units are monitored by managerment and the ERM team which Inform
and monitors, and provide assurance, or compliance with Group policres and and
improve procedures The ERM team reports to the Aud t Committes and Board on prioritise

the ERM process, principal risks and related controls

First line of defence - line management/risk champions

Line management accountability for compliance with Group policies, Doing
the Right Thing and GAA Risk champions within each business unit identify,
collate and report risk data to the ERM tcam

OVERSIGHT
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Governance

Treasury Committee report
Accountability

Image removed

“The Committee has focused
on the ensuring that the Group
has sufficient ongoing liquidity
to meet the committed funding
requirements of its regulated
and non-regulated businesses,
provided through a sustainable,
resilient financial structure”.

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Treasury Committes

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Treasury Committog attended possible
John Coghlan 6 6
Philip Remnant & b
James Bowling & S

The members of the Commuttee in 2017/18 are shown abaove
The Group Treasurer Is also a member of the Comrmittee, but not
a member of the Board of Directors

The Treasury Commuttee Terms of Reference were updated In
March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent corn

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend
Committee meetings. In addition te the attendance set aut above,
Andrew Duff, Kevin Beeston, the Group Commercial Director and
the Group Financial Controller normally attend, by invitation, all
meetings of the Committee. Other individuals may be invited to
attend meetings as and when appropriate

To ensure that the Company's treasury practices are in Line with
best practice, the Committee has access to advice from advisers
Evercore are independent advisers o the Committee, with no
other connection to the Company, and provide regular rarket
updates to the Commuttee. The Committee 1s satisfied that the
advice It receves s abjective and independent

Curing 2017/18, the Commmittee held one addtional quorate
meeting convened at short notice
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Introduction

As Chairman of the Treasury Cornmittee, | am pleased to
introduce this report which details the role of the Comrrittee and
the important work it has undertaken during the year

The Committee has continued to play a key role In supporting the
Board in monitoring performance against the Group's approved
treasury policy and annual treasury plan, reviewing in detail the
Group’s funding requirements and providing oversight of the
Group's key financing risks and opportunities,

John Coghlan
Chairman of the Treasury Committee

Treasury Committee Respansihilities
The responsibilities of the Treasury Commuttee include

+ oversight of treasury activities in implementing approved
treasury policies,

oversight of nterest rate and inflation risk management
strategies In particular, the monitoring of the impact

of changes Iin forecast interest rates and inflation on
Group earnings,

oversight of the Group's funding strategy,

monitoring the Group's exposure to financial nstitution
credit risk,

monttoring the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk,

monitoring the Group's exposure to financial iguidity risk,

receiving updates on general financial market movernents, and
« oversight of treasury internal controls

Key areas of Focus in 2017/18

The Committee provides Board oversight of the Group's key
financing risks and opportunities

Some key areas of discussion for the Commuttee during
2017/18 included

» the impact of prevailing economic conditions on the accurate
forecasting of long-term mterest rates and associated interest
rale and inflation risk management policy,

the impact of Brexit on existing and future sources of funding
forthe Group's businesses,

the introduction of CPI-linked debt into the Group s debt mix,
analysis of Ofwat s proposed PR19 cost of debt methodolagy,
including an early view of the impacts of a number of scenarios
on the Company’s credit metrics going forward, and

* the review of the Group’'s European Medium Term Note
Programme and appreval for bonds to be 1ssued pursuant

to that Programme during the year.,



Governance

Corporate Responsibility Committee report

Stakeholder Engagement

Image removed

“Acting in a socially and
environmentally responsible
manner is embedded in our
Group strategy, and this year,
we are reporting our performance
against our CR Framework
as part of our annual Group
performance reporting”.

Dame Angela Strank
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Commmittee

Attendance table

Member of the Meetings Max
Corparate Responsibility Commuttes attended possible
Dame Angela Strank [Chairman) 3 3
Andrew Duff 2 3
Dormimigue Reiniche 3 3
Liv Garfield 3 3

In addition to the attendance set out above, the Company
Secretary normally attends, by invitation, atl meetings of the
Comrnittee Other members of senior management, including
the Head of Internal Audit, and subject matter experts are also
invited to attend as appropriate

introduction

As Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility [CR'] Comrmuttee,

| am pleased to intreduce this repart which details the role

of the Comrmittee and the important work it has undertaken
during the year The Committee has continued to play a key role
in supporting the Board, menitoring performance against aur
Corporate Responsibility Framework, reviewing in detail our CR
commitrments including several ODIs and providing an oversight
of the Group's key non-financial risks and opportunilies,

Dame Angela Strank
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

Corporate Responsibility Committee
responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Corporate Responsibility
Committee include

¢ development of the Corporate Responsibility Framework
and metrics,

* reqularly recewving and reviewing reports on progress against
our Corporate Responsibility Framework,

« consideration of our Code of Conduct and associated Group
policies for recornmendation to the Board Particular focus
includes the provision of a healthy and safe working
erwvironment for employees and contractors, human
nights [including Modern Slaveryl and employee diversity
and inclusion,

s review of our environmental perforrmance standards and
commitments, and

¢ the promotion of socially responsible values and standards
that relate to the social and econommic cemmunity in which
the Company operates,

The Corporate Responstbility Committee Terms of
Reference, which were updated in Aprit 2018, can be found at
www severntrent com

Our Corporate Responsibility Framework

Our Corporate Responsibility Framework 1s ambitious, broad
ranging and underpinnad by stretching targets, to ensure we are
delivering the commitments expected of a leading socially and
envircnmentally responsible business Actingin a responsible
manner 1s integrat to supporting our purpose of serving our
communities and custamers, building a lasting water legacy
and achieving our vision 1o be the most trusted water company
by 2020

We hold ourselves to account against our CR Framewerk and
agreed metrics threugh an effective performance management
system Our CR performance 1s embedded within the
organisation, with ODls embedded in the large majority of our
CR metrics, demonstrating we are focusing on 1ssues of upmost
importance to our customears

Performance against the CR Framework s reported on a
quarterly basis to the Commuttee, and externally on an annual
basis through our Annual Report and Accounts, through

our wehsite and through selected environmental, social and
governance indices Ouremployees reward s directly linked
to cur CR performance, with customer ODIs, heaith and safety
and our key CR metrics contributing to the bonus which our
employees receve We balieve that by focusing on theissues
maost iImportant to our custorners, our CR Framework has the
right focus, and we are proud that we have again been accradited
by FTSE4Good
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Governance

Corporate Responsibility Committee report continued

Stakeholder Engagement

Key areas of focus for 2017/18

The Cormmuttee provides Board oversight of our CR strategy and
our performance against our CR Framework The Committee
regularly reviews reputational risks, non-financial Internal Audit
reports, whistleblowing allegations and reviews in detall key
topics agamnst our CR Framework Same key areas of discussion
and review during 2017/18 included

» Qur goal zero mind-set for serious pollutions, as a key indicator
of our erwironmental leadership Reviewing our performance
and plan for continuous improvement

« Our ambition to make our region the most water efficient in the
UK Reviewing progress against our commitment to empower
our custorners to save 25 million Utres a day IMLd] and future
challenges we need to consider

Delivering our ambition for our vulnerable customers
Reviewing performance against our commitment to support
50,0060 customers who struggle to pay their bill and customer
research into developing our next five year plan to ensure we
lead at supperting customersin vulnerable circumstances,
both in terms of accessibility and service

» Qur approach to catchment management and taking a
catchrment based approach Reviewing cur performance
against our AMPé catchment ambitions and demonstrating
the benefits of developing a vision for catchments across the
Severn Trent region in collaboration with farmers

Our zero tolerance approach to modern slavery and our plans
to take all reasonable efforts to eradicate modern slavery
within both our business and cur supply chain

Our approach to whistleblowing Reviewing the effectiveness of
aur whistleblowing procedures to ensure we provide adequate
support for both the whistleblower and training for the
nvestigating managers

Ambition One
We will make our region the most
water efficient in the UK

Corporate Responsibility Committee activities
A summary of some of the matters considered at each meeting
Is set out below

July 2017

¢ Quarterly Corporate Responsibility performance report

* The identification and management of political nisk

¢ Demonstrating environmental leadership - a Deep Dive on
Pollution Performance’

e Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 2017 Update
+ Whistleblowing Report

November 2017

« Quarterly Corporate Responsibility performance report

+ Deep Dive Water Efficiency

s Deep Cive Helpif you struggle

« Whistleblowing Report

January 2018

e Corporate Responsibility Update 7018

* Deep Dive Catchment Managernent and the Catchment
Based Approach

* Deep Dive Supporting our Colleagues” Mental Wellbeing

* Review of Whistleblowing policy and procedures

» Whistleblowing Report

April 2018

» Quarterly Corporate Responsibility performance report

» Deep Bive Community Champions — employee volunteering
* Internal Audit aligned with CR Framework

* Whistleblowing Report

» Anti-Slavery and Human Trathicking Staternent 2018 - Update

Ambition Two
We will play a leading role to help make
our region’s rivers even healthier

Values

1
We put our customers first

We are passicnate

3
We act with integrity

about what we do

4
We protect our envirenment
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We are inspired to create
an awesome company



Human rights

We are commitied to protecting the human nights of eur
employees and contractors as we have clearly set out in cur Code
of Canduct, ‘Doing the Right Thing” We have a respensibility to
understand our potental impact an human nghts and ta mitigate
or eliminate any potentially negative impacts. Whilst not having a
specific human rights policy, we have Group policias on Human
Resources, Anti Bribery and Anti-Fraud, Whistleblowing ['Speak
Up'l and Procurement These policigs are, in turn, supperted by

a broader range of policies to support key hurnan rights.

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

We will not condone the use of child labour and forced labour
under any cireumstances Our highest risk 1s through our
supply chain Therefore we work with our suppliers to ensure
they operate to the same standards we set ourselves, and we
have also been working closely with our suppliers to ensure
they understand the risks invelved in their own supply chains
All suppliers are required to sign up and operate in line with our
Code of Conduct, which clearly states cur zero tolerance, and 15
built into cur procurement tender process as part of the pre-
qualification guesticnnaire template, We encourage all suppliers,
irrespective of turnover, to make a modern slavery and human
trafficking staternent that they do not tolerate modern slavery
and human trafficking in their businesses.

Freedom of association and collective
bargaining

We recognise the right of all employees to Freedom of
Asscciation and Collective Bargaining We seek to promote
co-operation between employees, our management team and
recognised trade umicns We meet with our trade urions on a
quarterly basis at the Company forum and see mutual benelit
in sharing information with cur collaagues and seeking their
feedback and suggestions We believe this fosters a common
understanding of business needs and helps to deliver joint
solutions aimed at making cur business successful We also
believe that the Cormpany forum provides a surtable opporturty
for engagement with the whote workforce to ensure warkforce
views are taken into account

Whistleblowing

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to raise concerns at
wark in the first Instance through their ine manager, or senor
managernent, however, we recognise that employees may find
this difficult under certain circumstances 1l this might be the
case, employees are encoursged to yse our confidential and
independent whistleblowing helpline or email service, operated
by Safecall, an independant company that specialises in handling
concerns at work The service s avarlable internatienally and
Safecall provides a translation service, allowing any employee
lo access it, wherever they are 1n the world All nvestigations
are carried out independently of direct line management and
the findings are reported directly through to the Audit and CR
Committees This year we reviewed the effectiveness of our
whistleblowing pracedures to ensure we offer suitable support
to both the whistleblowers and also the investigating managers

‘Doing The Right Thing - The Severn Trent Way’

Every day cur employees have to make choices about what they
do and how they do it Mast of the time it 1s clear what the right
thing to do 1s, whether 1t 1s about doing what 1s safe, doing the
right thing for our customers, doing what 1s night ethically and
what 1s right legally But there are always going to be times when
the situation 1sn't cornpletely clear, and that’s where our Code of
Conduct 'Doing the Right Thing” comes in It details the values
we work by and explains who we are, what we stand for and how
we work It also tells our customers, investors and business
partners that they can trust and rely on us These principles apply
to everyone in the Group, no matter where in the world they are
based orwhat they do It clearly sets out the standards we need
to follow in our day-to-day activities This rernains an essential
part of our employee induction and last year we introduced an
e-learning module for all employees to ensure they understand
their personal responsibilities

Prevention and detection of bribery
and corruption

Qur Group hnancial crime policy prohibits bribery, corruphion
and fraud in all our business dealings, regardiess of the country
or culture within which we work This year we have also updated
our policy to take into account the new tax evasion offences
Employees identified as high risk, thraugh a risk review for all
Group employees, are required to undertake an enline training
maodule and test to ensure awareness of and compliance with
anti-bribery and corruption The Audit Committes carries out an
annual review of our systems and controls to detect and prevent
bribery and corruption

Responsible business practices are an integral part of our
business strategy and so this year, rather than having a
separate CR Report within our Annual Report and Accounts,
we have integrated our performance throughout the report
to reflect the importance of its embedded nature.
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Governance

Investor relations
Stakeholder Engagement

Primary investor events

May 2017 ___ Londan Readshaw

May 2017 Edinburgh Roadshow

May 2017 US Roadshow

June 2017 Geneva & Zurich Roadshow

June 2017 BAML Utiities & Renewables Conference
June 2017 Exane Eurcpean CEC Conference

June 2017 RBC Reverse Roadshow

July 2017 Scott Harris Roadshow

September 2017 Investor Site Visit

September 2017 Citi Reverse Roadshow

September 2017 Margan Stanley Power and Utility Sumimit
September 2017 Bernstein Strategic Decisions Conference

Novermnber 2017 London Roadshow

November 2017 US/Canada Roadshow

November 2017 Edinburgh Roadshow

Novernber 2017 Geneva Roadshow

January 2018 Citt European Ublities Conference
February 2018 London Roadshow

March 2018 US Roadshow

Institutional shareholders and analysts

The Board recognises the importance of representing and
promoting the interests of its shareholders and that itis
accountable to sharehaolders for the performance and activities
of the Company Various rmechanisms have been put in place to
ensure It remains in touch with key activities and developments,
including
» monthly update reports on the key shareholder engagement
actvities carried out by the Executive Committee and the
investor Relations team,

+ amonthly report of our shareholder register, outlining the
significant buyers and sellers of Severn Trent Plc shares, and

* regular summaries of sector resezrch notes, allowing the
Board to understand the key opinions being communicated
to investors by sell-side analysts

Retail shareholder engagement strategy

The Board has an active shareholder engagement strategy,
the main elements of which are set out below.

The Annual Report and Accounts 1 the principal means of
communicating with sharehotders The Group has adopted
e-comrnunications as an alternative method of sending company
information. Following a consultation with shareholders in March
2017, a significant majority of shareholders, 85% elect to view
and download the Annual Report online, whilst 15% continue to
receive a hard copy. The next consultation will take place in 2019

Our website contains an archive of Annual Reports together with
other information relevant to investors, Including comprehensive
share price information, financial results, Company news and a
financial calendar. The Company offers a Dividend Renvestment
Plan [DRIP ), details of which are available on our website and
the website of Equiniti, cur registrar

Q4 severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Additional investor engagement

Fresentations are made to shareholders and aity analysts
following the release of the half-year and futl-year results
Furthermore, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
regularly meet shareholders during the year

The Chairrnan and Senior Independent Director also offer to meet
with our largest shareholders without the Executive Directors
once every year and are avallable to meet with investors at any
other time upon request

In line with the Code, we recognise that the Board has overall
respansibility for ensuring that a satisfactory cialogue with
shareholders takes place. The Chairman, Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer report shareholder views on Severn Trent
to the Board at teast quarterly

A clear Investor Retations strategy has been documented

and agreed by the Board This sets out the Investor Relations
team’s approach to identification of, and engagement with, the
Company s shareholders, sell-side analysts and debt investors

2017/18 engagement

During 2017/18, the key tapics for our investors have been a
combination of company speofic, performance-enentated
factors and broader regulatery and political factors

Ata company level, conversations with our investors have largely
focused on our performance against the three key regulatory
outperformance levers of customer Outcorme Delivery Incentives
(ODIs), Totex and financing In parucular, questions have been
targeted on how the outperfarmance to date has been achieved,
whal areas have received specific atlention and what scope there
is for further improvement Investors have alse been interested

in opportunities for further growth in our regulatory capital

value [ RCV, the performance of our non-regulated business,

in particular our renewable energy activities, and the potential tor
further merger and acguisition activity In the sector We are also
seeing an increased level of interest in our approach to Corporate
Social Responsibility

Broader factors impacting Severn Trent and the water sector
have played a more significant part in investor conversations this
year. In particular, the increased regulatory news flow relating

to PR19 [the price review process which will set prices for AMP7,
the regulatory penod for 2020-25] and the inclusion in the
Labour Party's 2017 election manifesto of a policy to renationalise
certain sectors, including the water sector. have dorminated
recent conversations

Regarding PR19, there were two key announcements fram Ofwat,
inJuly and Decernber 2017, in which 1t set cutits methodology
that helped shape the regulatory framework for AMP7 and gave
clear guidance on how companies can outperform The focus
from investors has been on how these changes will impact
Severn Trent and how well the Company 1s positioned to benefit
from the sharpened incentive regime

The renationalisation debate has been at the forefront of
mnvestors’ minds since the general etection in June 2017.

In particular, they have sought to understand the likelihood of
it happening, should the Lakour Party win the next general
election, and what the success story of the Industry has been
since privatisatron.



Looking ahead to 2018/19

We have already established a structured programme of investor
engagement for 2018/19 incorporating roadshows to many of the
key locations where our shareholder base are located, including
Lenden, Edinburgh and North America We have alsc confirmed
attendance at a number of industry conferences

We expect the PR1? process to he the key theme for investors
throughout 2018/19, with several key milestones in the process

Tax Strategy

We are commutted to managing our tax affairs in a respansible
ranner This means paying the right amount of tax at the night
time in compliance with UK tax rules and acting in accerdance
with the values set out in our Corporate Responsibility
Framework References to 'tax include taxes that we incur
(corporation tax, business rates, employer s NIC, VAT and
various environmental taxes] as well as taxes that we admiruster
and collect on HMRC's behalf (PAYE and employee's NIC)

Our approach to tax

Our approach to tax s overseen by the Severn Trent Ple Board

and 15 governed by the following key principles

* We will manage our tax at*airs responsibly, in a manner
consistent with gur vision to be the most trusted water
company by 2620,

* We will not undertake aggressive tax planning
or any planning not otherwise in support of
business requirements,

* We will make use of widely claimed incentives that
Government has chosen to make available to encourage
investment, and

* Wewill maintain an open, transparent and collaborative
relationship with HMRC consistent with mantaining our
good working relationship

The effective management of our tax a*fairs 1s in the best
interests of customers as it helps to keep our bills as low
as possible

Tax Governance

Responstbility for tax governance sits with the Chief Financial
Officer, with oversight from the Beard and Audit Committee
and day-to-day support frorm a team of qualified in-house

tax professionals

In accordance with Group risk management procedures,
tax risks are recorded and marstored throughout the year
If a material uncertamty i1s identified, external advice may
be sought ta ensure that cur interpretation of the retevant
UK tax rules is appropriate We may also seek to resolve
an uncertam tax position directly with HMRC before a tax
return s filed, i accordance with HMRC s framework for
co-operative compliance

Any significant tax risk is reported to. and overseen by,
the Group's Audit Committee, who also receive tax status
updates as part of the intenim and year end financial
reporting programmes

of baing reached, including the subrnissian of company business
plans to Ofwat in September 2018 and the initial assessment of
business plans by Ofwat in January 2019 The dialegue with our
shareholders on the risk of renationalisattion will he mamtained
At a company level, the focus will Likely remain on our ability to
outperform the regulatory incentive mechanisms of customer
Olls, Totex and financing.

Relationship with HMRC

In maintaining a good working relationship with HMRC, we
seek to ensure that HMRC are kept up to date with business
developments, including any commercial transactions with
patentially significant tax implications Where queries arise,
these are managed on the basis of full disclosure We will
make representations to, and consult with, HMRC on 1ssues
that could adversely affect investment in UK infrastructure
or our customer s bills,

Non-UK operations

Substantally all of the Group s revenues and profits are
generated in the UK and are subject to UK tax Details of
the Group's overseas subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are set
out below

¢ Severn Trent Response Limited s a 60% owned subsidiary
company operating in Ireland It designs, builds, operates
and maintamns water infrastructure assets in lreland and 15
subject to Irish tax

* Lyralnsurance Guernsey Lirmited and Derwent Insurance
Lirmited are wholly owned subsidiary companies
incorporated in Guernsey and Gibraltar respectively
They were established to provide insurance services to the
Group Both companies are subject to the UK Controlied
Foreign Corpany [CFC ] rules and therefore the Group
incurs tax at the UK Corporation Tax rate on their profits.

* Severn Trent Holdings SA 15 a wholly owned subsidiary
company incorporated in Belgium It was the holding
cempany for businesses that the Group previcusly owned
in Belgium Following the disposal of those businesses the
holding cornpany was retained to deal with a number of
legacy legalissues Thesessues have now been resolved
and the Group is considering options for liguidating the
company This company Is subject to Belgian tax

« Severn Trent Africa [Pty) Ltd 15 a dormant company
incorporated in South Africa It has noimpact on the
Group s tax

Scope

This Tax Strategy covers the period ended 31 March 2018
and applies to Severn Trent Plc and its UK subsidiary
undertakings Itis published in compliance with the Finance
Act 2016 requirement for large businesses to publish their
tax strategy
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report
Remuneration

Image removed

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The Cemmittee determines, on behalf of the Board, the
Company’s policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors,
other members of the Executive Commuttee and the Chairman
of the Board The Committee determines the total remuneration
packages and contractual terms and conditions for these
individuals The policy framework for remunerating all sentor
executive managers 1S consistent with the approach taken for
Executive Directors The Committee also provides aversight of
all-employee reward, for example the annual bonus scheme,
and reviews the cascade and alignment of reward throughout
the Group

The Remuneration Comrnittee Terms of Reference were updated
in March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com

Contents Page
Chairman’s Staterment 94
At a Glance 101
Employment at Severn Trent 108
Annual Report on Remuneration 116
Remuneration Policy 120
Term Definition

AMP Five year Asset Management Plan

Custorner ODIs  Outcome Delivery Incentives which are

important to customers

FD Final Determination of price controls set by
Ofwat for every five year AMP period

LTIP Long Term Incentive Plan

PBIT Profit Before Interest and Taxation

RoRCV Return on Regulatory Capital Value

RoRE Return on Regulated Equity

SiM Service Incentive Mechanism

Totex Total Expenditure (Capital Expendture +
Operational Expenditure}

g Ypper Quartle performance compared
with peers

Wa5Cs Water and Sewerage Companies
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholder,

Our performance

As a Remuneration Commuttee we are focused on ensuring
that the reward our Executive Directors receive reflects the
performance of the Company and remains proportionate

to the overall employee base and to the returns receved by
shareholders We are mindful of the external focus on executive
pay and the need to ensure both fairness and transparency,
challenging ourselves to make sure that we only reward for
delivering for our customers and communities The Committee
scrutinises performance targets to ensure that there 1s always
an appropriate link between performance and reward.

This i1s why we are particularly proud to be UQ for our customer
satisfaction performance commitments, achieving fourth
position in the utilities sector on the Institute of Customer
Service’s UK Customer Service Index and, whilst our SIM
performance remains below our end of AMP target, we continue
to focus time and energy on driving further improverment

Through mvesting responsibly for sustainable growth, we have
locked in a fur ther £100 mullion of Totex efficiencies, taking our
gross efficiencies for AMP6 to £870 million Taking account

of our £220 million total reinvestment plans, our net total
outperformance versus our FD s £240 mitlisn, of which half
will be shared with our customers through lower bills in AMP7
We are proud that we continue to have the lowest combined
bills in Britain and moreover we exceeded cur commitment to
help 50,000 of our most vulnerable customers with their bills
In addition, strong financial performance continues, delivering
RoRE of 11 5% calculated in ine with the Ofwat measure
{10.6% on the Severn Trent RoRE measurel.

Across alarge number of our customer ODI measures we have
performed well and we are particularly proud of eur continuing
performance in waste water measures. We also know that

we can do more in areas such as supply interruptions and in
the last year management has reorganised the business to
deliver greater focus on areas which we want to improve for
our customers We have achieved a customer ODI reward of
£80.7 milhion, up from £47.4 rmillion on the previcus year

As alarge regional business and employer we are always
conscious of the positive iImpact our perfermance can play in
the communities that we serve Our environmental leadership
has led us to improve 986 hectares as we progress towards our
2020 target We have supported over 40% of our employeesto
volunteer in their local area and, when it comes to employment,
we are proud to have had our work to imprave social mobility
recognised in the first social mobility mdex.




Remuneration for the year under review

Overall, the business has continued to perform strongly in
2017/18 against a set of stretching annual bonus targets, which
required the delivery of improvements across all areas, whilst
navigating a number of challenging headwinds Respective bonus
outturnswere 77 54% of salary for each of the CEO and CFO,

out of a maximum annual bonus oppertunity of 120% of salary.

LTIP awards based on RoRE over the three years to

31 March 2018 will vest in full for the CEOQ and the CFO This s
representative of outstanding performance in custormer O0Is,
financing and Totex

There 1s a detalled breakdown on pages 111 to 114 of the targets
set and the payments under the annual bonus and LTIP

The new Remuneration Policy

The Company's current Remuneration Policy was approved by
9799% of shareholders at the 2015 AGM The votes in favour

for the iImplernentation of the Policy demonstrated through

the annual votes on the Directors remuneration report were

98 26% 1in 2016 and 97 30% 1in 2017 Grven this level of shareholder
support and the Commuttee’s view that the current Remuneration
Policy remains largely appropniate, the new Remuneration Palicy
1s evolutionary rather than revolutionary

The Company s proposing to put the new Remuneration Policy
to shareholders for a binding vote at the AGM on 18 July 2018
Once approved, this Policy will operate for up to three years

Aim of the new Remuneration Policy and link
to our strategy

The Company's new Remuneration Palicy focuses on delivering
business priorities through a framework designed to promote
the long-term success of Severn Trent and remains atigned with
the interests of customers, shareholders and the commurities
whichwe serve The Comrmittee has endeavoured to construct a
policy which has a fair and competitive approach te pay and which
ensures that as a company we can attract and retain the best
people with Lhe skills lo run this essential service efficiently and
effectively for our customers

Atthe heart of our business is ensuring the service and
experience we provide meets the needs of our customers

We believe that the long-term success of our business should be
aligned with this goal As such, we positively welcome Ofwat's
message thal custormers must be at the heart of AMP7 business
plans To reflect this, at least 28% of annual bonus will continue
to relate to custamer ODIs and customer experience, which

we know are the measures that matter most to them, and to
customer experience

Within the LTIF, we have selected RoRE as our measure for 2018
LTIP awards RoRE measures our success over three years in

a range of areas, one being the all-important customer 00!s,
and we believe that RoRE continues te be the most appropriate
measure In terms of cur long-term success

Shareholder consultation

During the year, we embarked on an extensive shareholder
consultation exercise with our largest sharehaolders and
representative bodies on our new Remuneration Policy

We comtacted our 30 largest shareholders representing
over 50% of our 1ssued share capital, as well as Glass Lews,
The Investment Association and 1SS, to consult on proposed
changes to our policy The proposed changes discussed with
shareholders were

+ Changing the annual bonus opporturity frorm 120% to 150% of
salary for both the CEO and CFO,

Changing the LTIP opportunity from 150% to 200% of salary for
the CEOQ and 100% to 150% of salary for the CFO,

Recalibrating the current stretch target as target and
introducing a new stretch target of UQ performance,

introducing a two year post-vesting holding period for new
awards under the LTIP which will continue to operate post
cessation of employment,

increasing the minimum shareholding requirement from

200% to 300% of salary for the CED and 150% to 200% of salary
for the CFO, and

Reducing the maximum pension contribution to 15% of salary,
in bne with the general workforce, for new Executive Directors

The feedback and responses received on the proposed changes
were positive and supportive overall of the Commuttee’s
approach Having Listened carefully to that feedback, we decided
net to progress with the Increase 1In the bonus opportunity

This recognised a preference fram a number of shareholders
that any quanturmn increase be pravided through the LTIP

The table following this letter sets out full details of the
Committee’s rationale for the proposed changes to the current
policy, shareholder feedback during the censultation and the
final position reached
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Wider workforce considerations and our
approach to fairness

Through being a successful business we can create good

Jobs in our community and value for colleagues by offering a
competitive total reward package This includes a bonus for
all, flexible benefits and a market-leading defined contnibution
pension scheme as well as a competitive salary We are in the
unusual position in our sector that social mobility 1s weak in
many of the areas in which we operate, so we believe we have
a role toinvest well to build secure employment appertunities
and create fulfilling careers for our colleagues Over helf of our
employees have joined from areas of lower social mobibity and
benefit not jusl financially, but from eur traning, development
and career opportunities

We recognise the central impartance of all of our teams in
delivering success which 1s why one of our five key strategic goats
Is lo create an awesome place to work for them We understand
that this will mean different things to different pecple and seek

to create a working environment which enables everyone to
contribute fully and be the best they can be Our annual employee
engagement survey shows a significant Increase in overatl
engagement of six percentage paints

The Committee and managernent are commutted to fair pay
across the orgarrsation We continue to see diversity and
inclusion as central to everything we do and we are pleased
to report a relatively low mean gender pay gap of 2 4%.

To ensure the vaice of our employees is heard, we have an active
Company employee forum which meets every quarter to discuss
business challenges and opportunities The forums chaired
jointly by a member of the Executive Cornmittee and the Trade
Unions Members include representatives from HR, jaint Trade
Unions and employees from our other business area employee
ferums The objectives of the Company employee forum are to

* Involve employees by sharing information an the future of our
business and the water industry,

» Work together on 1ssues that affect our employees, and

¢ Work in partnership to deliver better solutions to improve the
way we work

During 2017/18, the CEQ discussed with the Company emplayee
forum the performance of the business, key financial information
and ideas for efficiencies, We have already taken steps to uhilise
further this ferum in ine with the draft FRC UK Corporate
Governance Code. The Chairman has attended his first meeting
and will be attending on an annual basis to share views and seek
feedback to ensure the Board 1s able to consider the views of
employees inits decisicn making

More information relating to the wider workforce can be found
on page 108,
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Board changes

Emma FitzGerald was appainted to the Board on 1 April 2016
and stepped down on 31 December 2017 following the successtul
completion of the restructuring of the wholesale operating
moadel Details of Emma s remuneration relating to her time on
the Board, duning 2017, are contained within this report

Structure of the report

This year, we include a comprehensive explanation of our
proposed Remuneration Policy which will be put to shareholders
for approval at the 2018 AGM This can be found after the Annual
Report on Remuneration section starting on page 120

| am grateful for the time and input shareholders and their
representative bodies have given us throughout the engagement
process | trust that we canrely on your vote in support of our
appreach to remuneration and the proposed Remuneration
Policy If you would like to discuss any aspect of this report,
I'would be happy to hear fromyou You can contact me

through Bronagh Kennedy, Company Secretary and Group
General Counsel

Philip Remnant
Chatrman of the Remuneration Committee



The table below sets out full details of the Cornmittee s rationale for the proposed changes to the current Policy, shareholder feedback
during the consultation and the final position reached

Majority view of

Key points Committeze s ratienale shareholders consulted Final proposals
Increase in The Committee s ratianale was as follows Shareholders were Bascd on this feedback, the
quantum « The Executive Directors were inexperienced at the tirne the current Policy  supportive of the increase Committee determined to
was Introduced and incentive levels eflected this The Committee believes M guantum for longer rmake increases to the LTIP
that the Executive Directors are now fully embedded inthe business term performance guantum only
and over the past three years they have performed successfully in their measured through the The proposed policy sets
roles, demonstrating an exceptional level of commitment in exccuting the LTIP Wnilz in generat cut the foliowing maximum
business strategy for the bepefit of our sharehoider s, customars a~d the shareholders were also annual LTIP grants [current
wider community, supportive of a pruposed policy in brackets]
s The Committee wants to provide an appropriate level of mcentive Increase to the annual « CEQ 200% of salary (150%),
opportunity to deliver a competitive total remuneration package that bonus maximums, there « CFQ 150% of salary [100%]
retains and motivates a truly exceptional management Learn for the was a Eomctehm sbou{ It should be noted that
rest of this AM= and inlo Lhe next, Increasing the bonus the increase in the LTIP
s The Committee «skeento ensure that there 1s an appropr ate level of opportunity :nthe current opoortunity has been
iI~centive opportun ty in the remuneration o reflect the greater focus of environment In a?d\t»cn, accomoanl‘cd by an ncrease
Ofwat on the relative performance of WaSCs and the tougher regulatory mgencrat‘the;{re.efence In the stretch of the
context during AMPY, and of sharehoiders was for performance conditons
3ny INcrease in guantum
* tshould be roted that cven with the propesed increase ingquanturn the 1o be focused on the LTIP [see below]
total remuneration available to the Company's Executve Directors s
arcand the median for the FTSE 57-150, the Commttee s man external
reference pont See page 106 for further detans
Type of LTIP The Commuttee praposed ReRE as the sole porfarmance conainion for the During the consultation Given the strang level of
performance  LTIF [as s the case ‘ortae current policyl The Committee s rationale was anumper of different sharchelder support the
condition as follows performance measures Comrrittee deterruned 1o
« RoRE 15 a holistic measuremaont of performance requering managerrent were discussed wath praceed with ts proposal
wa focus on perfarmance across a rarge of areas suck as Totex, customer shareholders However, to retain RoRE as the
0DIs andg tinancimg which help measure long-ter m suzcessw thin the on engagernent with the performance conditor
business Therefore, whilst1t1s a single measure, delivering the RoRE Carnmittee the general fomthe LTIF
performance requires the Execu® ve Directors to deliver an a number view of shareholders was
of Company KPls, and that RoRE was the key
» RORE 15 the primary measure used by Ofwat to measure the performance  (0ng termmetric for the
of the Cornpany and other WaSCs In addition, Ofwat calculates and ranks Company and appropria‘e
Ra=E “or the Wa3Cs giv ng an indepandently verified and comparable as the sole performance
value for the Comgany condtion for the LTIP
Catibration The Committee praposed a new calibration of the RoRE targets for 2018 Shareholders supported Given the strong level of
of LTIP LTIP grants « The introduction of a sharghalder support the
performance camparative element to Corrrruttee deterrmined to
P UG RAFECamipared p
condition hrestold i D “39,00 ARORTHIEE RoRE. and proceed witn its propesed
Y tabary _Salarys - Eelary « The increased calibratior of the RoRE
Nocterge No Jrarge New miaximam performance perfarmance condition
CEO 375% 150% 200%  stretch required to for the 2B LTIP awards,
Cro 259, 100%. 150%, earn the adaitional accormpanied by an

The Committee 15 setting these targets for the 2018 LTIP grant The

Commuttec will review the targets in 2019 as two years of the performance

period will be inthe now AMPT

Current maximurm vesting [2016 and 2017 awards) occurs for 1 39x FD

(778% return}

The Committee wants ta ensure that any additional incentive opportunity

can only be earned through even mare stretching perfarmance The

rationale for the use of the UQ comparison against other WaSCs s that

» |t ensurces full vesting s only achieved for UQ comparative performance
At the paint of AMP change overitis difficult to set an abseol.te target for
U0 perforrmance, and

# |t alignswith tne Cornpary s aspirations to remain an UQ performer

ncentive opporturity

increase In the stretch
of the perfarmance
conditions
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Majority view of

Key points Caommuttee’s rationale shareholders consulted Final proposals
Addition ot The Committee s rationale was to provide further alignment with This change was Introduction of a two
holding period shareholders mterests and to bring the LTIP into line with best practice universally supported year holding period post
to the LTIP by sha-enolde s vesting for Executive
Directors which wall
continuc to operate post
cessation of ernployment
Increase in The Committee s rationale was to provide furtner alignrment with This change was Increase N reguirement
the minimum  sharcholders’ intercsts universally supported = CEO 300% of salary
shareholding by shareholders, 1200% current), and

Requirement

Reductionin
maxumum
pension
contribution

The Committee’s ratienale was to align pension contribution quantum tor
new Dxecutve Directors with pension contribubion for the wder workforce

This change was
untversatly supparted
by shareholders

» CFQ 200% of salary
1150% current]

No change for current
Executive Oirectors

New appointments wil
have a maximum pension
contribution of 15%, of
salary [25% current]
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At a Glance

Sharehalders approved Severn Trent s Remuneration Policy at the 2015 AGM [set out in full in the 2015 Annual Report) As highlighted
last year, and In line with regulations, Severn Trent 1s now seeking sharehelder approval for a new Rermuneration Policy at the 2018
AGM, after which the new Remuneration Policy will come into effect and govern pay arrangements for cur Executive Directors for the
next three years

The following section sets cut our remuneration frarnewark, how our pravious Remuneration Policy was applied in 2017/18 and how
the Commuittes intends to implement the proposed Remuneration Policy in 2018/19

2017/18 Remuneration outcomes

Single figure remuneration 2017/18

This tabie shows how the successful delivery of our strategy has flowed through to the rewards provided to our Executive Directors.
The table and chart below provide a summary total single figure of remuneration for 2017/18 We note that Emma FitzGerald
{Managing Director, Wholesale Operations| stepped down from the Board in December 2017 The ‘At a Glance’ section contains
remureration for the CEQ and CFO only The full explanatary notes for each element of remuneration are detailed on page 110 in the
Annual Report on Rermuneration

Graph removed

Annual Totat
Executive Salary Benefits bonus LTIP Pensien Gther 201718
Directors Year (€ oOO)" (E°000} {£ 000) (£ 000) [£'000] (£ 000) |£°000}
CEO 2017418 68772 177 5010 706 6 1718 - 20843
CFO 2017/18 414 2 187 3019 2783 1035 - ALY

It| Salaries a=e shoewn befure t~e deduction of bene its purchased throuygh the Company s salaty cacrifice suheme
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Annual bonus scheme 2017/18

An anpual bonus of 72 54% of salary for each of the CEQ and CFO was awarded Further details are set out on page 11110 the Annual

Report on Remuneration

Threshold Target Maximurm Dutcome
{0% payable) 130% payable| [160% payable] Weighting achieved
STWPBIT 515 8m £5292m £547 6m A% 21%,
Actual £527ém
Customer ODls L13m €23m £33m 20% 20%
Actual £80 2m
Business Services PBIT £35 6m £36 6m E376m 0% 10%:
Actual £381m
Health and safety 020 014 g1z 8% 2%,
Actual 017
Custorner experience © 15% 20% 25% 8% 2%
Actual 17 20%
Personal performance Details on pages 112 and 113 7% &% - CEQ
% - CFO

[l Meanured as number of last time in~idents divided by nurmibier of heurs warked multiphed by 100,000

[} Measured as the peroentage reducticnin romplaints

LTIP 2015/18

The 2015 LTIP vested at 100% of maximum Further informationis provided on page 114 in the Annual Report on Remuneration

eting b Jme
Threstald Mz 2. ) award
{777 payahlz) ("3t payakls) CEQ Cio
RoRF - measured FD 129x 100% 108%
as m.luple of
Ofwal FD Actual 179
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Link between long-term performance and the remuneration outcomes
The charts below show our customer 00| and RoRE performance since the beginming of the current AMP This strong sustained level
of performance has informed the level of reward received by our Executive Oirectors and our employees through the cormnpany-wide

bonus scheme, which 15 linked to the same performance measures

Graph removed

vl GOl gross ot tax

inl Zalzulated in acczr2ance mibh Ofy,at misthedstogy UQ data not yet available for the current year

Remuneration principles

The remuneration principles which underpin cur policy support cur strategic priorities, align our interests with those of customers
and inform the decisions made by the Committee in relation to executive pay Qur core remuneration principles are as follows

Simphzity

Relzyar e

OLjec v 4

Corepen ve

The Remuneration Policy should
supporftransparercy interms

of design and communication to
internal and external stakehaolders

Reward will be relevant to our
business goals and objectives,

and be atfordable

Reruneration outcemes

shoutd mrror the customer,
shareholder, employee and wider
stakeholder experience

The Remuneration Policy shoutd
clearly link individual pay outcomes
to corporate resulls

Performance measdres and

targets for incentve plans wilt

be olectively determined.

The Remuneration Policy should

support patential changes n
business priorit s aver time

Remuneration will be aligned

to support the interests of

our sharenclders

The Remuneration Policy should
prov.de opportunity which is
compelitive against companies
of a similar zize and complexity
with a strong ermphas s on
variable elements
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Strategic alignment of remuneration

The Commuttee believes 1tis important that for Executive Directors, and sericr management, a significant proportion of the
remuneration package s performance-related and that performance conditions applying to incentive arrangements support the
delivery of the Company s strategy through our five strategic priorities The following table sets out how each of these are reflected
in the annual bonus and LTIP

Drive operational

Embed customers excellence and Investing
atthe heart of continuous responsibly for Change the market  Create anawesome
Strategic pricrities wehat we do nnovation sustainable growth  for the better place towork

Annuat bonus PBIT

Customer CDlIs

Health and safety

Customer experience

Personal objectives

LTIP RoRE

Summary of Remuneration Pelicy, proposed amendments and implementation in 2018/19

Sharehelders approved the Rernuneration Policy at the AGM in 2015 (97 99% voted in favour} As such, the Cempany 1s required to seek
approval for the new policy at the 2018 AGM The table below sets cut an overview of the key areas of the policy and summarises how
the Commuttee 1s proposing te implerment the policy in 2018/19 Full details of the proposed policy can be found on pages 120tc 128

The Committee believes thal the fundamental architecture of the Executive Directors remuneration package Is appropriate but we
have made a number of evolutionary changes to the previous Remuneration Policy to reflect the development of the Company. our
Executive Directors and the latest corporate gavernance best practice

* Pension contributions for any new Executive Directors will be capped at 15% of salary in ine with other employees,
¢ The maximum LTIP award cpportunity will be increased to 200% of salary for an additonal stretch parformance of UQ,

« Atwo year holding period will apply following the vesting of LTIP awards for the Executive Directors (this holding period will continue
post cessation of employment], and

* The mirimum shareholding reguirement wall be increased to 300% of salary for the CEOQ and 200% of salary for other
Executive Directors

The diagram below illustrates the balance of pay and time period of each element of the propesed Remuneration Folicy
for Fxecutive Directors

Total pay Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5
Fixed pay Salary

. Benefits,
Fixed pay Pension
Annual Bonus 50% in shares
[Malus and clawback 50% in cash 3-year deferral period
provisions apptyl No feirther performance condition)s
LTI Up to 200% sal. 2 hold d

pto a salary -year holding perio

(Malus and clawback B-year performance period No further performance conditions.

provisions apply

The Company’s Remuneration Policy remains to attract, retain and motivate its leaders and te ensure they are focused on delivering
business priorities within a framework designed to promote the long term success of Severn Trent, aligned with shareholder
interasts The table below sets cut the key components of the Executive Cirectors’ remuneration package. including the proposed
changes from the current Remuneration Policy aloeng with rationale Furtherinformation regarding the proposed Remuneration
Policy 1s set out on pages 120 to 128 of this report.

1 Oll Severn Trent Plc Anmual Report and Accounts 2018




Element and link
ta strategy

Key features
of current Policy

Policy change

How we will
implement the propased
Policy in 2018/1%

Salary » Salaries forindividuat Executive No change A salary increase of 2 5% wall be applied at
To recrut and reward Directors are reviewed annuatly the salary reviewdate From 1 July 2018,
Executive Directars of a oy the Commuttee and normally take Executive Director salaries will be
suitable calibre for the role effect trom 1 July » CEO- £708.000
and duties reguired » To the extent that increases are » CF0 - £426.400
proposed, these will not ne hugher than These nises are tower than the general
the average increase for employees employee salary increase
Benefits * Travalue of bonefits 1s based on the No change Normal cormnpany benefil prevision

To provide competitive
benefits in the market to
enable the recruitment
and retention of
Executve Directors

costto the Company and there s
no pre-determined max:mum limit
Trerange and va.ue o the benefits
offered is rev.ewed pericdically

Pension

To provide pension
arrangements comparable
with similar compancs in
the rmarket to enab.e the
recruitment and retention
or Executive Direcrors

* A dzfi~ed contribution scheme and//or
cash supplerment in ligu of pension

* Maximum persion contribution of 25%
of salary

* For current Executive

Directors, the maximum
pens-on contribution vall
rermain at 25% of satary

s For future appointrents

the maxinum pension
ceniribution will be capped at
15% of salary Thisis:n line
with the level prowden to the
wider workforce

Execative Directer pension arrangements for
201819 are as follows

» CEOQ - 25%; of salary
» CF0 - 25% of satary

Annual bonus

To encourage improvea
financialand operalia-a
pe-formance and align

the nterests of Executive
Directors wath shareholders
through the partal deferral
of payment in shares

* Maximum award of 120% of salary

 There will be no payment made for
threshao'd perfermance

* 50% ot total bonus deferred into snares
for three years [with the value of any
dridends to be rotlec up and pad
cn veshngl

¢ 50% of maximum will be pard for target
performance and 10C% of maximum
will be paid for stretch performance

» Ma‘us and clawback provisions apoly

No change

The fo'lowing maxirnum oppertunmtics wil,
apply in 2018/19

*« CEO - 120%: of salary

¢ CFQ - 120% of salary

The weightings of performarce measares
in the annual bonus will be as -ollows

* Reguiated Water and Waste Water PBIT - 47%
* Business Servicas PBIT - 10%

» Customer ODis - 209

» Health & safcty - 8%

+ Customer experience - 8%

* Personal objectives - 7%

The Cemmmittee consders the ferward-
looking targets to be commercially sensitive
but full disclosure of the targets and
performance outcarne will be set outin the
year s remuneration report setting out the
bonus outcomes

LTIP

To encourage strong and
sustained improvements
in{inarcial pertormance
inline with the Company s
strategy and tong term
shareholder returns

o Maximurm award of 150% of salary

* Awards are granted annually and are
subject to a three year performanrce
conditicn being RoRE

» Malus and clawback provisions apply

Incregse in maximum award
opportunity ta 200% of salary
The Committee wall

ensure that the increased
oppartunity s reflected in the
level of challenge in the LTIR
targets and hasntroduced

a stretch target based on

UQ parformance
Introducticn ot a two year
haolding period pust-vesting
whichwill continuc to

oper ate post-cessabion

of ernp’oyrnent

The following grant tevels will apply in 2018/19
s CEQ - 200% of salary

« CFQ - 150%. of salary

RoRFE vall remain the sole LTIF perfarmance
condition, with the addition of a stretch target
RoRE is caleulated as profitalte- tax [plus
incentves carned in the year] divided by the
average equity proportion of our regu atary
capital value, as grescribed by Gfwat

Ser page 79 for details of the RoRE target

for 1he 2018 L TIF awards

Shareholding reguirement
To encour age strong
sharchelder alignment

and interests of Executive
Directors with the rest of
the workloree

¢ The CEQ1s expected to bu Ld and
maintain a holding of shares to the value
of 2004 of salary, and other Exacutive
Directors 15C% of salar v

Executive Directors are oxpected to
retain all of the net of tax number of
shares they recoive through the LTIP
and detorred share bonus unnl *re
shareholding requircrment has been met

Increase in mimmum
sharcholaing requirernent to
300% of salary for the CEG
ang 200% of salary for other
Executive Directors

Other terms of

the shareholding
reguirerront remain

Application o?thé e
shareholding requi-e~ent
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Our policy quantum compared with peers
The following table shows the relative position of target total compensation under the proposed policy for our Executive Directors
compared with the FTSE 51-150

Graph removed

When we set the remuneration for the Executive Directors, one of the factors the Cornmittee considers s the relevant market for
Executive Directors, which we believe 1s the FTSE 51-150, and the size of the Company compared with these peers The Company 15
around the median by market capitatisation and the proposed target total campensaticn has been set broadly in tine with this position

Shareholding requirement

The minimum shareholding requirement for Cxecutive Direciors 1s set cut below It must be built up over a five year period and then
subsequently held The table below sets out the current share interests of the Executive Directors taking inte account shares which
are owned outright or vested, shares which are unvested and shares which are subject to performance

Graph removed

{il Rep~esents benehaially owned shares as wel as shares held in trust as partof the an~ual honus deferred s~are awards (of which 50+ deducted lo cover
stalutory deduction)

Il Represents the 2016 and 2017 LTIP qw ards which are subject to performance
Calculated using the closing share price on 31 March 2018 of £18.44

The CEQ has exceeded the shareholding regquirement applicable in 2017/18 of 200% of salary and the CFQ 15 close to exceeding
the sharehelding requirement applicable in 2017/18 of 150% of salary

1 06 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018




Overalllink to remuneration and equity of the Executive Directors

As a Committee we want to Incentivise Executive Direclors to take a long term, sustainable view of the performance of the Caompany
That 1s why when we lock at the remuneration paid in the year we also look at the total equity they hold in relation to the performance
of the Company The ability of Executive Cirectors to lose and gain, dependent on share price performance, can have a material impact
on ther total remuneration and s a centrat focus of our Remuneration Policy

The following table sets out the single figure for 2017/18, the number of shares beneficially owned by the Executive Director at the
beginning and end of the financial year and the impact on the value of these shares taking the opening price and closing price for

the year

Value of shares Value of shares
201718 Shares held Shares held at start of year at end of year Difference
Single Figure at start of year atend of year (£'000s]" (€ 000s)" (£'000s]
CEQ 20843 75127 103,274 £1,78%95 £1,904 4 +{1149
CFO 1116 4 15,263 23464 £363 6 (4327 +£69 1

(1) Bazed on a clo=ing shareprice on 31 March 2017 5F £23 82

Wl Basedon a closing share prics an 31 March 2008 0f £18 44

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees [audited)
From 1 April 2018, Non-Executive Director fees were increased by 3% from £53,450 to £55,100 and the Chairman’s fee was increased
by 2 5% from £280,500 te £287.600 These increases are in ine with the general employee salary increase

The current fee lovels and those for the Tuture financial year are set out in the Lable below

Fees Fees Increase

2018/19 2017/18 %

Chairman s ‘ce _E287.600 £280,5C0 2 5%

Fee pad tc all Non-Executive Directors B £551C0 £53,450 30%
Supplementary fees o

- Sanvor Independont Director ____t1g0co £10.060 00%

- Audit Commuttee Chairman £15,000 £15,000 00%

- Remuneratian Committee Chairman £15.0C0 £15,000 00%

- Corporate Responsibi ity Comrtree Chairran ) £13 000 £13.000 0%

- Treasary Committee Charmar £15,000 £15,000 00%

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors normally serve for terms of three years The current expiry dates of their letters
of appointment are Kevin Beeston (1 June 2019}, Dorminigue Reiniche (20 July 2019) John Coghlan (23 May 2020), Andrew Duff
(9 May 2019), Philip Remnant (31 March 2020 and Dame Angela Strank [24 January 2020). However, all of the Directors are
subject to annual appointment or reappointment at the AGM.
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Employment at Severn Trent

We recognise the central importance of all of cur teams in detivering success and as such we seek to create an inclusive working
envirenment, reward our employeas in a fair and equitable manner and provide fulfilling careers We do this by providing all our

employees with

Item

Oetais

Market competitive pay

Our approach 1s to pasition oursclves as amarket median payer, balancing cornpetitive pay for emplayees with responsible
use of our customers money Employees who are not ona traning rate of pay (such a5 apprentices] receive at least the
voluntary Living Wage We also closely monitor the rates of pay of people who are training with us to make sure they
remarn fair and competitwe Qur 2018 Apprentice starting rate is £14,926 and 2018 Graduate starting rate s £24.500

Sharing in success

We want our employees to share in our success and our all-employee bonus plan 15 based an Company performance,
ensuring all employees are aligned with the same measures and rewarded for achieving our key objectives For this year
the bonus paid out £964 to 88 5% of our trantline employess in Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Vatley Water Limited
Thase who were not eligible were new starters after the beginning of January 2018

71% of our people are active partcipants in gur Sharesave scheme which gives employees a chance to save up to €500 per
manth over three or [ive year s, with the option to buy Severn Trent Fu shiares at a discounted 1ale at the end of the per od

Flexibility

We provide a flexible benefils scheme for all, which we believe 15 amongst the best in the industry Including insurance
and nealth cover with retail and childcare vouchers, it 1s designed te supporl a positive wark-Lfe balance

45, of our peaple choose to tallor thet benefits via our llexiole benefits scheme, saving a combined :otal of £40,000
on everything from everyday essentials lo holidays and luxuries thi ough our emoloyee discount partnerships

An opportunity to save
for the future

We know many of our colleagues wanl 10 be able Lo save for Lheir [ulure security We affer armarkel leading delined
contribution pension scheme and double any cantributions that employees make (up to a maximum of 15%, of salaryl
regardless of level or seniority When colleagues get closer to retirement. we prowvide education and support to help plan
farthe next stage of thetr Lves

We are proud that 98% of our people are members of the pension scheme and 57% pay contributions above the statutory
mirmmuam 3%

Building a career

As a major regional employer, we recogruse the importance of eguipping our colleagues with the skills for now and the
future Our focusis on both leadersh:p and technical development across the whole arganisation

We cupport the development of colleagues at all stages of their career trom foundation apprenticeships and graduate
entrants through to higher level apprenticesheps and Masters degrees Our aum s to ensure that evary employee feels
competent and confident in their everyday waork

Diversity and inclusion

Our employees tell us we are doing well on diversity and inclusien through great sceres in our employee engagement
survey, but we know there are opportunilies Lo reflect better the demographics of our region

We are recognised for leading performance in the FTSE 100 for women's represcntation at Board and Exccutive
Committee level and our mean gender pay gap for the year was just 2 4%

This year we have alsa launched our menopause awareness programme, supported by our Trades Unions

Our apprenticeship scheme has a Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic [ BAME | representation of § 6% and this 15 15 3%
for our graduate scherme

tnvesting in the community

Our education and work experience programmes now actively focus on the areas of lowest social mobility in our region
We already have a strong track record of creating jobs i these areas, with over half of our employees from areas outlined
by the Social Mebility Commission, but we want to do more

Our employee volunteering programme gives all employees two paid days per year to participate in voluntary work

In our community, This year saw participabion numbers increase to 40%

Diversity and inclusicn policies
We continue to focus on leng term improvement threugh cur diversity and inclusion polices

Developing role models

We believe that strong role models inspire more junior employces and demonstrate an inclusive culture to
potential candidates We are leading the way on senior leader gender diversity, placing us ahead of many of
our industry peers

Reflecting the communities we serve We have increased our programme of school carcer cvents over the tast two years, hetping to broaden the

range of students who are aware of Severn Trent and the career opportunities we olfer

Changing the way we recruit

During 2016, we maved to a strengths-based interview process for our graduate and apprentice positions
This 15 helping us to understand the pelential of each candidale and remove bias thraughout the process
We want 1o attract candidates who share the same passton about the water Industry and undersland the
needs of the communities we serve

Breaking down stereotypes

We are making progress in attracting more diverse candidates into roles that require science technology,
engineering and mathematics ['STEM ) backgrounds By taking parttn engineering initratives aimed atwomen,
including Nationat Wormen in Engineering Day, we are raising our profile among prospective applicants

The challenge to increase dversity in these areas s tenger term and we wilt continue to face a challenge

to recruit female employees il we do not recewve a sufficient (evel of applicatiors to these roles
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Gender Pay Gap Reporting

We reported our Gender Pay Gap in November 2017 in line with statutory requirements. The data was based on 5 April 2017 and
showed a mean gap of 2 4% and a median gap of 14.6% The relatively low mean gap 1s predorninately due to our servor gender
diversity The higher median gap Is representative of cccupational segregation. We have a large number of operational roles which
attract shift, on-call and stand-by allowances, and these rales are principally held by men.

By way of cormnparison, the average mean and median gaps for those WoCs and WaSCs that have reported data 1s 11 %%
and 15.3% respectively.

Qur full Gender Pay Gap report can be found on www severntrent com
Alignment of pay throughout Severn Trent

The Committee 1s keen thal reruneration decisions are made in the context of the cascade of reward structures throughout
the business, shownin the diagr arn below

Executive Senier
Etement of pay CEO Board Committee Management Management  Wider workforce

Satary

Annual bonus [sll employees aligned
to the same measures)

LTIP

Pension

Be~e'ls

[il & proparticn cf itk pepulaticn participal * i the LTIP by annual inataticr

Percentage change in the remuneration of the CEC

The table below shows the mavement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the CEO between the current and previous financial
year compared with that of the average employee The Committee lacks to ensure that the approach te fair pay 1s implemented in
practice throughout the Company

CEO (£ 000) Average per employee [€'000]

201718 PR _Change 2017/18 23 it -.Crarge

- Salary 690.6 6770 2% 30.5 299 2%,
- Benefils 17.7 180 -17% 04 04 0%
- Bonus 501.0 4158 -18 6" 1.8 20 -1%

i) The salary t yures shown are based on full time equivalent compar sons
(nl The benefits figures include car allowance and tamly leve! pr vate medical nsorance for senior and middle managers
linl The higures snown are reflective of any bomus earned during tne respective financial year Sonuses are paid 17 the Icllowing June

livl The deera o payin rease for the wider workforee durmg the yoas was 29+

The Commuttes has elected 1o use the average earnings per employee as this avoids the distortions that can occur to the Company's
total wage bill as a result of movernents in the number of employees The comparatar group used 1s Severn Trent employees
in the UK as this is whore the vast majority of employees are based
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Annual Report on Remuneration

The Annual Report on Remuneration and the Annual Statement will be put to an adwvisory shareholder vote at the Annual General
Meeting on 18 July 2018 The information on pages 110to 119 15 audited

Total single figure of remuneration (audited)
The total single figure of remuneration table below sets out the remuneration received by the Directors for 2017/18 [er for
performance periods ending in 2017/18 in respect of the long term incentives] and, for the purposes of comparison, for 2016/17
Where necessary, further explanations of the values provided are included below This table and the explanatory notes below this

table have been audited

Year ending 31 March 2018

Year endirg 3 March 2017

Salary Annual Salary Arr gl
Executive and fees  Benefits bonus LTIP  Pension Other Total and fees  Henehits trnus LTIP Pensian Qler Tatat
Directors {€000) (€000l 000l [£00Qit  [£000M (£:0001 (£ 000) 1€ 0701 €00+ i 300l 1€ 00J) IC10) {£307) It 0201
Liv Ga-neld 687.2 17.7 501.0 706.6 171.8 - 2,084.3 &737 180 6158 8481 168 4 - 242410
James Bowling 414.2 18.7 3019 278.3 103.5 - 1,116.6 4060 198 3687 3158 1015 - 1218
Ermma
FitzGerald 302.4 13.1 20%.8 271.3 75.4 - 872.2 3959 17 6 340 2 3243 790 - 11970
Salary Annuat Salary At aal
Non-Executive andfees Benefits honus LTIP  Pension Other Total arees  Beoehrs buras, LTiP Perwimr Oth er wlal
Directors I£ 0p0) {£ 000 (€°000) (£°000] (E000)  [£'000) I£ 000) €000 1€ Ju7l I JJ1) I D80 1€.2301 1C 101 It U
Andrew Duff
[Chairman) 280.5 - - - - - 280.5 2750 - -~ - - - 27510
John Coghtan 835 - - - - - 83.5 674 - - - - b7 4
Phip Rernnant £8.5 - - - - - 68.5 674 - - - - - &7 4
Kevin Beeston 63.5 - - - - - 63.5 507 - ~ - - - 507
Dominique
Rewniche 535 53.5 366 N 366
Dame Angela
Strank 66.5 - - - - - 66.5 615 ~ - - - 415

1] Salaries are shown hefore the deductions ol benefits purchased hrough the Company % salaty sacnifice scheme, such as pension contributions via salary saciihee
- lhis 15 conmistent with the approach taken last year

hil - Benefizsinclude a car allowance of £15,000 p g, tarmily level private medical insurance lle assurance worth six Wir ey Salary and participation .nan incapacity

m]

()

v

[vi)

[wnl

il

benetits vthere

The annual banus 15 paid 50% 10 cash and 50% 1y shares with the partion deferred into shares subject to an additicnal holding period of three years with no rurther
performance conditions attached

This relates to the vesting af the 2015 LTIF which 15 based on RoRE perfermance over the three year period to 31 March 2018 The value of the shares has been
estirnated using the average share price for the penicd frem 1 January 201815 31 March 2013 of £18 49

The Cxecutive Directo~s pension provision s equal to 257 of salary No Executive Direclors acerued benciits under any delined contribution pension plans during
the year or have participated in a delined bane its scheme whilz an Executive Director

This relates to the vesting of the third tranche of Jame s Bowling s and the secend tranche of Emma FitzGerald s Recruitment Award The performance conditicn
for these awards was the same as for the 2015 LTIP grant, which was bascd on RoRE pertormance over the three year pericd to 31 March 2018 The awards vested
al 100¥ and the figures shown have heen updaled 1o reflecl then actual share price on vesling 127 37)

Trus figure re'afes (o taxable expenses rela ing to lravel

Stepped dowm from the Board on 31 December 2017 Amounts tor Emma FitzGerald are pre-rated for the pericd in which she was an Executive Director, with one
exceptian of the vesting af the 2015 LTI award
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Salary for 2017/18 (audited)

Salares for indvidual Executive Directors are reviewed annually by the Committee and normally take effect from 1 July

The Committee considered the Executive Directors’ pay review in July 2017 in ight of pay review budgets across the Group

As aresult, the Committee determined that the salaries for the Executive Directors would increase by 2% in 2017/18, in line wath
the average increase that applied to the general UK workforce For 2018/19, a 2 5% increase to salaries for Executive Directors
has been agreed, lower than the average increase that will apply to the general UK workfarce.

Salary Salary Percentage

01/07/2017 #1/07/2018 Increase

CEO £670,600 £708,000 2 5%
CFO £416,200 £426.600 2 5%

Benefits for 2017/18 (audited)

The value of benefits 1s based on the cost ta the Company and there 1s no pre-determined maximum lirmit. The range and valuce of
the benefits offered 1s reviewed periadically. In line with our Remuneration Policy outlined on page 121, we show below the benefits
receved by the indimidual Executive Directors in the year, and their typical annual value where possible

Typical annual value 2017/18 Typical annual value 2016/17 Percentage increase
Car aliowance (15,000 £15.000 0%
Private medical insurance £1500 £1.50C 0%
Life assarance _ Upto dx salary Upto & x salary 0%
Persenal acaident cover o Ag per the group-wide policy As per the group-wide policy 0%,
Biennial health screening £620 per health screen £620 per health screen 0%
Incanacity cerefils Wareth 50% of salary for a per.od of Worth 50% cf salary for a period of 0%

five years [sdbjec  to gua ifvingcriteria fiveyears (subject Lo qualifying cri eria)

Annual bonus outturn for 2017/18 (audited)

Annual bonus performance 1s measured over a single financial year against a range of financial and non-financal targets and against
perscnal objectives The maximum bonus opportunity was 120% of salary An annual bonus was awarded of 72 54% of salary for each
of the CEQ and CFO, and 48 94% of salary for the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations The table below shows a summary of the

rnetrics and targets which were used to deterrmine the annual bonus awards

Threshold Target Maximum Outcome
(D% payable) [50% payable} [100% payable) Weighting achieved
STWPBIT (515 8m £529 2m 542 6m 7%, 21%;

Actual £527 &m

Customer GDIs £13m £23m £33m 20% 207
30% - MO WD 30%

Actual £802m
Business Services PBIT £35 &m £34 6m £376m 10% 0%

Actual £381m
Health and safety 020 0716 012 8% 2%

Actual 0717

Custamer experience 15% 20% 25% 8% 2%

Actual 1720%

Personal performance Details on pages 112 and 113 7% &% - CEO
&% - CFO
% - MO, WO

] Meazured o number of lost ime incidents draided by nume: rof hours worked multipbed by 100,000

Wil My ured a= th. percentage reduction incemplamts
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Despite a period with sorne significant operational challenges and a difficult year on bad debt, we have continued to make good
progress in managing our underlying cost base to absorb these and other cost pressures o end the year delivering PBIT of

£527 & mitlion in STW [before property profits) Our customer 0Dl rewards of £80.2 mithon were underpinned by significant
improvernents in internal and external sewer flooding, and sustained performance on Category 3 pollutions with a gross performance
onwaste of £109 millon However, this was offset by the impact of operational incidents on water measures such as supply
interruptions, which resulted in a net penalty of £29 mitlon This year the Committee agreed to include an additional measure

to drive iImprovernent in custemer experience, targeting a 20% raduction in written complaints

I the last few months we have seen a sigmficant improvement in performance driven by a significant improvement in billings related
complaints, with these learnings being rolled out across our other teams The result of these impravements 1s represented by a 17 2%
reduction for the year We set ourselves bold targets to improve the safety of cur employees this year and, although we stillincurred
18 LTy, this represents a /3% year on year impravernent, resulting in our best ever year and the lowest LTl rate in the sectorin
England. Business Services has had a particularly strong year, benefiting from a new contract with plumbing and drainage insurers
that contributed significantly to both revenue and PBIT

Personal objectives for the Exacutive Directors are inked to our strategic framework which will move us towards our ambiton to be
the most trusted water cornpany Objectives were shared across the team with each Executive Director leading on the areas which
best align with their accountabilities and expertise

As noted on page 111, the acheverment of the personal objectives for ach of the Executive Directors was as follows 6%, 6% and 3%
for the CEO, CFO and Managing Director, Wholesale Operations, respechively

The table below sets out performance outcomes for each Executive Director in relation to thewr speofic personal objectives

CEO

Perfarmance
Objective Achvity Key achievernentsn 2017/18 cutcome
Embed customers at = Delwer a step change in customer experience » Conducted detalled customer research study Partly met
the heart of all we do « Support financia ly vulnerable customners Focused efforts onresolving 1ssues more rapidly
+ Berecognised as a UQ Wholesaler Custamer cemplaints down 6%
+ Provide an industry teading New « 38 000 cuslomer s have received financial
Connectians experience help with their bitls through relaunched Big
Ditference scheme 50,000 yvulnerable customers
supported overall
» Achieved 1st and 2nd placein Ofwat s water and
waste rankings respectively for new connections
« UQ for UK Custorner Service Index for 2017/18
Drive operational ¢ Be UQ in water and waste * UK Business Services profitincreased ana US Fully et
EXCEIUE"‘IE and « Develop the profiabiuty and growth of the Business bustness sold
continuous Services operatians * Held a staff roadshow to capture and share deas
innovation « Detwver a sustainable pipeline and process around innovation and improvement
for innovation » Exceptional waste customer ODI performance
Invest responsiblyfor  « On track delivery of AMPS plans to deliver growth * Debvery of addinonal C100milbon Tetex savings Partly met
sustainable growth) and reduce risk = Comnpleted inteqration of Dee Valley into
s Integrate and delwer Denefits fror the acqu sihon the business
of Dee Valley « Advanced in realigning boundarics along
» Set up Severn Trent and Water Plus for successin national borders
new business retal market » Water Plus maintaining its share of a
growing market
Change the market « Clear PR1Y plan in place that evidences our * Strong position to submit by September 2018 Fully met
for the better leading status ¢ Created a standalone Broresources team
» Produce compelting ¢ase for nvestment at PR19 identifying apoortuntties lor operating efficiencies
» Design and implement the Biorgsources change * Collaborated with Thames Water and United
programmc and business rmodel Utilities to publish thought leadership document
« Be seen as the water sector’s thought leaders
Create an awesome « \mprove safety programme * | ost Time injury frequency rate decreased by 23% Fully met

place to work

» Delver 5% uplift in employee engagermnent scores
* Strive Lo conbinue to improve diversity and inclusion

¢ Empioyee engagement increased by 6%

s increase Inthe number of BAME employees
on graduate programme

& | gunched key inclusion imtiatives such as Dying o
work’ charter and menopause education
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CFO

Performance

DObjective Activity Key achievements in 2017/18 cutcome
Embed customersat Imprave insurance approach te third party damage e Completed the review and implermented Fully rret
the heart of allwe do de~tfied improvements
Drive operational * Support the business te identify and achicve s [dentified 100 mi..on of efficencies to be Fulty met
excellence and cost efficiencies remnvested into the business
continuous + Conlinue the evolulion of finance, nternal audit and ~ « ERM Champions and coordinators operafe
innovation enterprise risk functions throughout the business

* Reduce the downside risk to pension » Signihcantly reduced penson risk through

scherme lability implemented hedging strategy and

* Finance plan in place for key remaining maturities financing acuens
Invest responsibly for = Build and deploy new risk based interest « Generated 38% of encrgy needs from Parily met
sustainable growth management policy renewable sources

* Support the Energy and Renewables

growth strategy

* Deliver target M&A strategy
Change the markst * Suppor! requlatory finance in PR19 and e Created a standalone Bioresources team Fully met
for the better B oresgurces plan identifying opoortunities for cperating etficiencies
Create an awesome *» Delver change in wisible Health and Safety * LTI rate improvement Fully met
place towork leatership, with a focus on mental wellbeing = Improvernent of 5% in Finance Emplayee

* Dzl ver bet:er engagemenl and diversily in [inance Engagement performance
MD, WO

Performance

Qbjective Activity Key achievements in 2017/18 outcome
Embed customers at * Impravement 11 customer exper-ence and delivery » Except onal waste custormeor 0Dl performance Partly met
the heart of all we do of custamer strategy

*» Berecognised as a UQ Whotesaler
Drive operational * Be UQ inwater and waste * Gained prov sional EA 47 status Partly met
exce_llence and * Provide environmental leadership * Strong pregress rmade on mnovation
.CDI‘\[InLI'OUS » Oeliver 10 innovation projects
innovation
Invest responsibly for  * Ontrack delivery of the AMP4 plan to deliver growth e Delwery of Totex savings Partly met

sustainable growth

and reduce rick
* In.egr ate and deliver benehits fro n the acqu sitien
of Dee Valley

« Delivery of Water Resources Management Plan
» Completed integratior of Dee Valley into
the business

Change the market
for the better

+ Clear PR19 plan in place that evidences our leading
status and investment case

= Design and implement the Bloresources change
programene and business model

* Be seen as the water sectar s thought leaders

« Strong pos tion to submié by September 2018
¢ Created a standalore Bioresources team
identifying opoortuntties for operating efficiencies

Partly met

Create an awesome
place towork

* Deliver change in visible Health and Safety
leadership, with a focus an mental wetlbeing

« Deliver 5%, upl:ft in employee engagement scores

« Progress our talent agends, including BAME
talent agenda

» Cantribute to resolve the top 10 company irritants

= LTl rate improvermnent of 23% and strong
supply chain per armance s.slainad

* Wholesale employee engagement increased by 8%

e External recognition of graduate and apprentice
programme and increase of 13% i number of
BAME employees on graduate programme

Partly rmet

Severn Trent Pic Annual Report and Accounts 2018 “ 1 3

1oda s b

QIUBLISADD

e g Ie I

137

1L A, ‘ U

1

Sl By PR

IR

2



Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

LTIP awards vesting in relation to performance in 2017/18 [audited)

The table below shows the outcome of LTIP awards which had performance periods ended 31 March 2018 The LTIP based on RoRE
over the three years to 31 March 2018 will vest in full. This 1s representative of autstanding perfarmance in custormer G0ls, financing
and Totex

MD, wa
CECQ outcome CFO outcome outcome
Threshold FD Mawmum  [vestingas% [vestingas% Ivestingas %
[25% payable] (100% payable} of award) of award) of award)
RoRE - measured against % 129x 100% 100% 100%
rmultipte of Ofwat FD
Actual 17%x

Value of

End of resultant

Number of performance % award Number of award
Executive Award type Grantdate sharesgranted period vesting  sharesvesting f£0oo0ast! Vesting date
CEQ 2015LTIR 15/07/15 37808 31/03/18 160% 37808 C706 & 15/07/18
CFO 2015 LTIP 15/07/15 14,890 31/03/18 100%: 14,890 L2783 15/07/18
MD. Wholesale Operatans 2015 LTIP 15/07/15 14,518 31/03/18 100% 14,518 (2713 15/07/18

{1l The RaRF calculation usead for | TIPs difters sbqhtly trom that used 1~ the annual performarce reparl, which uses the Ofwat delinition The | TIF measure seehs to
agn better our [ TIP tarqets to actyal cash flows and agaimst a clearly defined 1argel In this measyre, financing outperformance 1< based on actual gearing ~ather
than the rotional capral struc ure ana comeares aur cosl of debt againal the aliowance nthe Ofwat Financial Made! Itincludes prefits/iosses asseciated with land
sales, rmug_ellanecus activities and the impact of the whelesale revenue furecasting incentive inechamsm

[] Bawed on the averaga share price gver tne fina! three months of the performance period [£18 o9 as Ihe awards will not be releases until alte-the end ol tre
close period

LTIP vesting
The charl below sels oul a breakdown of Lhe LTIP awards lor the Execulive Directors in 2017 and 2018 and shows the face value of the
awards and share price growth, if applicable

Graph removed
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Outstanding scheme interests, including share awards granted during the year {audited)

sodaroib ey

&
The table below sets out details of the Executive Directors cutstanding share awards as at 31 March 2018 f_%
=
Percentage %
Maximum vesting at Exercise End of Vesting/ Awards granted during the year
number of threshold price performance aexercise
Executive Award type shares"”  performance ipence) period date Basis of award Face value £000 Notes
Liv Garfield 2015 LTIP 37808 25% - 31/03/18 15/07/18 B - lal
2015485 9,648 - - 31/03/15 29/08/18 - - (g
2015 SAYE 1136 - 1584 - May-18 - - el
2016 LTIP 46,115 25% - 31/03/19 21/06119 (b) e
2016 ABS 16,260 - - 310316 28/06/19 I
207L71P 42,383 25%) - 310320 20/04/20  150% of salary €055 ¢
2017485 12,850 - - 31/03/17 28/06/20  Deferred bonus £3079 =
2018 SAYE 1,089 - 1,652 - May-21 - -l z
Total 167,309 i =
James Bowling 2015 TP 14,890 25% - 31/02/18 15/07/18 - - & F
2016 LTIP 18529 25% - 310319 21/06/19 I —
2016 ABS 5,634 - - 31/03/16 28/06/19 (d] g
2016 SAYE 1.044 - 1724 - May-19 - - el %
2007 LTIP 17028 22% - 31/03/20 20/06/20 100% of savary E408C [c] =
2017 ABS 7493 - - 31/03/17  28/06/20  Joferredbomus (1843 (] 2
Total 48818 i
Emma FitzGerald™ 2015 71P 14,518 5% - 310318 15/07/18 - -
2005 LTIP 14,653 25% - 31/03/19 21/04/19 [b] i
2016 ABS 7112 - T 31/03/16 28/06119 [d]i S
20071TiP 13,282 25 - 31/03/20 20/06/20 80% of salary £3182 Il z
2017 ABS 7514 - - 31/03/17 28/06/20 Deferred bon.s £180 1 [d] =
Total 55 831 3
I Addtonal divden d 2=quivalent shares may be relea-od whers prow ded inthe rules f
il Awards that are due to vestin a close period will be releassd ag coon as practizable a’ter the ond ot the close periog

[l See page 17 for detals on Emma FitzGeral? s 2914 3nd 2017 Annual Benos Scheme and LTiP awards ances=ation o erepleyment

al 2015 LTIP award

The 2015 awards are sybject te a RoRE performance condition measured over three financial years Average RoRE performance
1s compared wilh the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat in our FD. 25% of the award will vest il average RoRE matches Lhe baseline
figure of 5.65%, Increasing on a straight-line basis to full vesting for cutperforming the baseline by 127 times (equivalent to 729%).

The 2015 LTIP awards were granted on 15 July 2015 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £21 49
(being the average price over the preceding three days|

b] 2016 LTIP award

The 2016 awards are subject te a RoRE pertormanice condition measured over three hinancial years Average RoRE performance
is compared with the baseline RoRE figure set by Ghwat in our FD, 25% of the award will vest it average RoRE matches the baseline
figure of 5.65%. Increasing an a straight-line basis to full vesting for cutper forming the baseline by 1 3% times lequivalent to 7 84%).

The 2016 LTIP awards were granted on 21 June 2016 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £21 59
[being the average price over the preceding three days!

€) 2017 LTIP award (awards granted during the year)

The 2017 awards are subject to a ReRE performance condition measured over three financial years Average RoRE perfermance

1s compared with the bgseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat in our FD. 25% of the award will vest if average RoRE matches the baseline
figure of b 65%, Increasing an a straight-tine basis to full vesting for outpet forming the baseline by 1,39 times lequivalent to 7 86%]

The 2017 LTIP awards were granted on 20 June 2017 The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £23 96
[bemng the average price over the preceding three days)

d) Deferred shares under the annual bonus scheme (awards granted during the year)

Each year, 50% of an Executive Director’s annual bonus 15 deferred in shares for three years The awards are granted in the form of
deferred shares The 2017 award relates to the deferral of the annual bonus for 2016/17 The awards were granted on 28 June 2017,
The share price used to calculate the number of shares granted was £23 94 [heing the average price over the preceding three days|
The deferred shares relating to the annual bonus for 2017/18 will be granted 1n Jure 2018
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

e) Save As You Earn [SAYE)
The Executive Directors, in common with all eligible UK employees, are entitled to participate in the Company’s HMRC tax-advantaged
SAYE Scheme

External directorships

Emma FitzGerald was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of DCC Plc in December 2016 and, in respect of her appaintment for the
yaar ended 31 March 2018, she was paid fees of £49,601 [converted from EUR using the exchange rate of 1 EUR = £0 88), which she
retained (this covers the period to December 2017

L v Garfield was appointed a member of the Takeover Panelin November 2017 in respect of her appointment for the year ended
31 March 20718 she was paid fees at £5,000 which she retained

Directors’ shareholdings and summary of outstanding share interests laudited)

The Company operates shareholding requirements under which Executive Directors are expected to bulld and raintain a
sharehalding in the Company of 200% of salary for the CEQ and 150% of salary for the CFO Details of the current shareholdings of the
Directors and whether Executive Directors have met the shareheolding requirements are sét aut below

The Commttee bebieves that it 1s an essential part of the Company’s Remuneration Policy that Executive Directors become materal
shareholders The retention and buld-up of equity 1s important in a long term business such as Severn Trent as it encourages
decisions to be made on a long term sustainable basis for the benefit of custorners and sharehclders.

The CEQ has exceeded the shareholding requirement applicable in 2017/18 of 200% of salary and the CFO11s close to exceeding the
shareholding requirement applicable in 2017/18 of 150% of salary

Graph removed

Interests in shares as at 31 March 2018

Outstanding scheme interests

LTIPand Deferredshares % Shareholding
Recruitment  under the annual SAYE gudeline
Director Beneficially ownad Awards bonus options Total achieved”
Kevin Beaston 2,244 - - - 2,244 -
Dorninique Rewniche 400 - - - 400 -
John Coghlan 2,670 - - - 2.670 -
Andrew Duff B84 - - - 8184 B
Philip Remnant 1967 - - - 1969 -
Dame Angela Strank 459 - - - 459 -
LivGa-held } 103,274 126,306 38778 2225 270 583 163%
James Bowhing 23,444 50,447 17.327 1044 92.282 5%
Emma FitzGerald ' 25941 42,253 14,628 - 82,822 120%

Iil The share price used to calculate the perceniage of the shareholding guide 1ne achieved was £18 44 [as al 3! March 2018) The guideling higures 1~clude unvested ABS
shares (50% deducted to cover statutory deductions]

A5 at 31 December 2007

Shares counting towards achieverment of the guideline include beneficially owned shares lincluding shares held by connected
persaons] and the net of tax value of deferred shares under the annual bonus since they are not subject to performance conditions.
The Executive Directors are expected to retain all shares received through the vesting of any incentive schemas [after the setttement
of any tax Lability] untit the shareholding requirements are met

Therea has been no change in the Directors’ mterests in the ardinary share caprtal of the Company between thase set out above

and 27 May 2018
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Payments for loss of office and to past Directors [audited}

Emma FitzGerald

Background

In advance of PR19 the Company has reshaped the wholesale business to create three teams Customer Delivery, Capital Delivery
and Commeraial, and Production,

The recrganisation has resulted In changes to the role of the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations, held by Emma FiizGerald

As a conseguence, fellowing the transttion of her responsibilities, Emma stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2017 and will
{eave the Company on 31 July 2018 During the pericd between her stepping down as Managing Director, Wholesale Operations and
leaving the Company, she is focusing on developing the Cornpany’s management and integration of disruptive innavation

Emma was appointed to the Board on 1 Aprit 2016 During this irne, she led the wholesale business and played a key role in helping
the Company achieve its success during the hrst half of the AME.

On the basis that Emma’s role as Managing Director, Whotesale Operations will no longer exist in its current form, the Committee has
determined under the loss of office policy under the approved Remuneration Policy ta treat her as a good leaver,

Remuneration

As Ermma remains an employee of the Company, she will be paid her salary. benefits and pension for the period to 31 July 2078,

on a menthly basis, For clanity, no pay in lew of notice will be paid after she ceases employment with the Company.

Frnma was employed for the full financial year and, therefore, will receive an annual bonus of 68 94% of salary in relation to 2017/18,
based on performance aganst the relevant targets [set out on page 113) The Commuttee has determined to pay the bonus in

cash because under the Rermuneration Policy and the rules of the deferred annual banus plan deferred share awards would vest
on cessation of employment and, given the short periad between the delermination of the bonus for the year and her departure,

it1s administratively simpler No bonus will be paid to Emma for 2018/19 and Ernma waill nat receive an LTIP award for 2018/19.

All urnvested and unexercised awards will be treated in accordance with the applicable plan rules and cur loss of office policy.

Urvested shares held under the deferred annual bonus plan will be released on cessation of employment, and rernain subject
to malus and clawback prowisions. The table helow sets out details of Frnma's unvested deferred annual bonus plan shares

Award Date of grant Vesting date Number of shares
2016 ABS i 28 June 2016 31 July 2018 7112
2017 ABS 28 June 2017 31 july 2018 7514

Emma s unvested LTIP awards wili vest in line with the ordinary vesting dates, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance
conditions Erma s awards will be pro-rated up to the end of her employment on 31 July 2018 These awards will continue to be
subject to malus and clawback prowisions The table below sets out details of Erma s unvested LTIP awards

Maxirmum number of shares

Award Date of grant Vesting date capable of vesting

2015LTIP 21 Junc 2014 271 June 2019 11,243

2017 LTIP B 21 Juns 2017 20 June 2020 5895

] Time pre-rating applied inaceardance with the LTIP riles from the start of the relevart performan. e perind up to the date of cossation of pployment [31 Tuly 2018)
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Total shareholder return chart and total remuneration of the CED
This graph shows the value at 31 March 2018 of £100 invested in Severn Trent Plc on 1 Aprit 2009 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 100 index. The FTSE 100 was chosen as the comparator index because the Company is a constituant of that

index. The ntermechate peints show the value at the intervening financial year ends,
The figure of remuneration for the CLO over the last nine financial years 1s shown in the table below. The annual bonus payout and
LTiP vesting level as a percentage of the maximum cpportunity1s alsa shown.

Graph removed

Remuneration of the CEQ

Year ending 31 March

200 2 207 el 3 EIthe Jio 20 b i 2018
Taly Tory “uny fary oy Liv Ler b Liv
CED W, Wray Wi sy Wray Wray Garheld Garfr2'u Gan 't eld Garfield
Total remuncration
(£ 000) 10270 9498 1,264 16352 1818 4 219746 24936 24507 20843
Annual bonus
1% of maximum] 51 5% 43 2% 48 1% 82 4% 78 7% 52 0% 88 2% 75 8% 72 54%
LTIPvesting
[% of inaxinum) 60 3% 00% 28 4% 57 5% 1G0 0% 100 0% 100 0% 100 0% 100 0%
SMP vesting
1% of maximum| N/A N/A N/A 78 0% &4 3% N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Relative importance of the spend on pay
The tabte below shows the expenditure of the Company on staff costs against dwdends paid to shareholders for both the current and
prior financial periods, and the percentage change between the two periads

2018 207 1 Charye
Staff costs {Em) 288.1 2671 79%
Dividends {Cm} 197.0 190 4 35%

[} Staft costs frgm continuing uperation:,

Statement of implementation of the Policy in 2018/19
See pages 120to 124

Membership of the Remuneration Committee and its advisers

The Committee determines, on hehalf of the Board, the Company’s policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors, other
members of the Executive Committee and the Chairman of the Board The Committee determines the total remuneration packages
and contractual terms and conditions for these individuals The Policy framewaork for remunerating all senior exacutive managers
IS consistent with the approach taken for Executive Directors The Cammittee also provides oversight of all-employee reward,

for examiple the annual bonus scheme, and reviews cascade and alignment of reward throughout the organisation,

The Remuneratian Commuttee Terms of Reference were updated in March 2018 and can be found at www severntrent com

The members of the Committee are lUsted in the table below, All are independent Non-Executive Directors, as defined under the Cade,
with the exception of the Company Chairman who was independent on hus appontment During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Committee met seven times to discuss key remuneration 1ssues arssing. the review and operation of the Company s Remuneration
Policy and market updates by its advisers

sedarobae g
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Remuneration Committee member Attendance m 20M7/18
Philip Reminant [Cnairman) N ) 7
Andrew Duft . 7T =)
Kowin Beeston 77 z
Dame Angela Strank W7 ;‘

The Commuillee members have ng personal inancial interest, other than as shareholders, in the mallers to be decided. The CEQ,
Director of Human Resources and by invitation the Head of Econcrnic Regulation and Reward & Pensions Manager also attended
the Commuttee meetings to provide advice and respond to specific guestions Such atlendances specifically excluded any matler
concerning their own remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee

To ensure that the Campany s remuneration practices are in line with best practice, the Committee has access to advice from
advisers PricewaterhouseCoopers [[PwC'| are independent advisers to the Committee Fees for advice provided to the Committee
during the year were £170,500 excluding VAT to PwC [2016/17 £68,000 paid to PwC and £24,674 paid to NES| Separate teams within
PwC also provided unrelated tax cansulting, pensions, and other assurance and advisory services during the year PwC s one of
the founding members of the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct and adheres to this Code in its dealings with the
Committee. The Committee reviews the appointment of 1ts advisers annually and 15 satisfied that the advice itreceives 1s objective
and independent

Statement of shareholder voting at the 2017 AGM
At last year's AGM, the Directors’ remuneration report received the foltowing votes from shareholders

Resolution Votesfor Votes against Votes withheld
Approve Directors remuneration report R 142,422,030 3948.356 1351934
[97 30%l 12 70%]

The Committee has taken into account the streng support from shareholders for the current Remuneration Policy and its
implermentation in proposing the new Remuneraticn Policy, which 1s an evolution of the current policy
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Remuneration Policy

Development of Policy report

The Commuittee sets the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors and other senior executives, taking inta account the Company’s
strategic objectives over both the short and the tong term and the external market The Committee addrasses the need to balance
risk and reward The Committee monitors the variable pay arrangements to take account of risk levels, ensuring an ernphasis on long
term and sustainable performance The Commuittee believes that the incentive plans are appropriately managed and that the choice of
performance measures and targets does nat encourage undue risk taking by the Executives so that the long term performance of the
bustness is not cornpromised by the pursuit of short term value The plans incorporate a range of internal and external performance
rmetrics, measur ing both oper ational and financial pertermance over differing and overlapping perfor mance periods, providing a
rounded assessment of overall Company performance

Linkage to all-employee pay

The Committee reviews changes in remuneration arrangements in the workferce generally as we recognise that all our people
play an important rele in the success of the Company Severn Trent is committed to creating an inclusive working environment and
to rewarding our employees throughout the organisation in a fair manner In making decisions on executive pay, the Commuttee
considers wider workforce remuneration and conditions to ensure that they are aligned on an ongoing basis We believe that
employees throughout the Company should be able to share in the success of the Company The annual bonus scheme is cascaded
throughout the orgarisation and ali employees may participate in the HMRC tax-advantaged Save As You Earn {'SAYE | scheme

As part of our commitment to fairness, we have a section in this report [see page 108) which sets cut more information on our wider
workforce pay conditions, our Gender Pay statistics and our diversity initiatives Whilst we recegnise there 1s always an opportunity
to improve in relation to these 1ssues, we believe that tl ansparency I1s an important first step

Shareholder views

The Comrmittee engages proactively with the Company’s major shareholders and (s comrmutted to maintaining an open dalogue

The Comrmittee reviews any feedback received from shareholders as a result of the AGM process Comimittee members are avalable
o answer questions at the AGM and throughout the rest of the year The Committee takes into consideration the latest views of
investor bodies and their representatives, Including the Investment Association, the Pension and Lifetirme Savings Association and
proxy advice agencies such as Institutional Shareholder Services

Salary
Purpose and link to strategy: To recruit and reward Executive Directors of a suitable calibre for the role and duties required
Siuburar wve ol argay sram Polisy agreed

O ere 1on hnctuding performaree me rics) Maxiearm oprae arry a 27 g ABMardr. weale
« Salaries for mdwvidua! Executive Directors » Details of the current salary levels for the No changes

are reviewed annually by the Committee and Exccutve Directors are set out in the Annual

normally take effect from t July Report on Remuneration on page 110
» Salancs are setwith reference to individual * Any Increase to Executive Directors salaries

performance, experience and contribution, will generally be no igher than the average

together with developrents in the relevant increase for the UK workforce However,

employment market [having regard to simitar ahigrer increase may be propesed in

roles in publicly quoted companies of a the event of a role change or promotion,

comparable sizel. Company performance, or nother exceptionat circumstances,

affordability, the wader econormnic environment « The Company, where appropriate, may set

andinternal relatties salary levels below the market reference
* In addition, when the Committee determines salary at the time of appointment, with the

a benchmarking exercise 1s appropriate it will intention of bringing the salary levels n

also censider salaries wathin the ranges paid Line with the market as the individual gains

by the companies in the comparatoer groups the relevant experience In such cases,

used for remuneration benchmarking subsequent increases in salary may be
s The Committec intends to review the higher than the general rises for emgloyees

comparators periodically and may add until the target positioning 1s achieved

or rernaove cornpanies from the Group as
it considers appropriate Any changes

to the comparator groups will be set gut
i the section headed lmplementation

of Remuneration Palicy, in the following
financial year
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Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy: |o provide competitive benefits in the mar ket to enabte the recrutment and retenticn of

Executive Directors,

Gpe auer in~luding pecfarriance re 110y

Maximar eppuriurty

Saby o1 e charges rom Prlcy agreed
ar 22" 0 AGM erdra oreie

» A car allowance, family level private medical
nsurance, lffe assurance, personal accident
mnsurance health screening, anincapacity
bene’its scheme and cther nc dental benelits
and expenses

The Comruttee recogn-ses the need to
mamtain suitable Hexitility 1 the benefits
provided to cnsure it s able to support

the objective of attracting and retaming
personnel m order to dalver the Group
strateqy, Therefore additicnal cenefits sucn
as relocation, disturbance and expatriate
allowances and tax equalisatian may be paid
as appropriate

Directors will oo ~eimbu-sed for any
reasonable business expenses incurred in
the course of their duties, including the tax
payable therear

Pension

*» The value of benefits 15 based an the cost to
the Company and there 15 na pre-determined
maximum Limit The range and value of the
benelits offered 1s “eviewed periodically

No changes

Purpese and link to strategy: To provide pension arrangements comparable with similar companies in the market to enable the

recrutment and retention of Executive Directors

Jparatior (i cladiry por wrivat ce Mz n12sl

Moz v Zppor ary

Suta o barges roriPolice oy ged

21 AGMard e waralbs

» The Compary 7aintains a oefined contribution
scheme and/ar cash supolement in Liey
of pension

* For current Executive Directors, the
cormpany contribution to a pensicn scherme
and/or cash allowance willbe uptoa
maximum of 25% of salary

* For any new recrut, the contribution wall be
up to a maximum of 15% of salary

» No change for current Executive Directors
New appointments wil' have a maxsmum
pension contribution of 154% of salary
(25 _ of salary currentiyd

¢ Trus change aligns pension contribution
quantum for new Exccutive Directors with
pensian contribution for the wider workforce
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Annual bonus

Purpose and link to strategy: lo encoutage improved financial and operational performance and align the interests of Executive
Directors with shareholders through the partial deferral of payment in shares

Gperatien Iincladirg perforrmiante mericsl

Maximum cppor-uery

Substor we chanues o Policy agrend
at 21" 3 AGM and ramanale

s Bonuses are hased on financial, operational,
customer and personal perfermance over
a performance peniod of ore financial
year Normore than 20% of the bonus will
relate to personal contnbution for any
Executive Director
* 50% of the bonus 1s paid in cash and 50% in
shares which vest after three years {with the
value of any dividends to be rolled up and paid
onvestingl There are no further performance
targets on the deferred amount
* The performance measures and targets
for the annual bonus are selected annually
to align wath the business strategy and the
key drivers of performance set under the
reqgulatory frarmework The annual weighting
of the bonus between the vanous metrics and
personal contribution may vary depending on
the key priorities of the business for the year
ahead Robust and dermanding targets are set
taking into account the operating environment
and priorities, market expectations and the
business plan for the year ahead
The Commuttee 1s of the opinion that given
the commercial sensibivity arising in relation
to lhe detaled hnancial largets used tor the
bonus, disclosing precise targets for the
Plan in advance would not be in shareholder
interests Therefore, performance targets
and performance achieved will be published
at the end of the perfermance perod so
sharcholders can fully assess the basis far any
pay-outs under the Plan
Malus and clawback mechanisms also apply
to allow the recoupment within three years of
the payment of the cash bonus or the grant
of deter red shares in the event of financial
misstaternent, errorin the calculation or
gross miscanduct

* Any exercise of discretion by the Committee
will be communicated to shareholders
in fullin the foliowing year’s Directors
Remuneration Report

Cessation of employment and change of
control prowisions apply as sct out in the notes
to the Policy table
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The maximum annual bonus payment

will equal 120% of salary for maximum

performance For threshold performance,

0 ~of maximum opportunity will be paid

On target performance 50% of maxirmum

opportunity will be paid

The Committee will operate all incentive

plans according to the rules of each

respective plan and the discretions contained

therein The discretions cover aspects

such as the iming of grant and vesting of

awards, delerrmining the size of the award

[subject to the policy Lrmits], the treatment

of leavers, retrospective adiustment of

awardsie g for anghtsissuc, a corporate

restructuring or for special divedends) and in

exceptional circumstances, the discretion ta

adjust previously set targets tor anincentive

award if cvents happen which cause the

Commuttee to deterrmine that 1t would be

appropriate to do 5o Inexercising such

discretiens, the Committee will take into

accaunt generally accepted market practice

best practice guidelines the provisions of the

Lisung Rules and the Company s approved

Remuneration Policy

In exceptional circumstances the Cammittee

retains the discretien to

al Change the performance measures and
targets and the weighting attached to the
performance measures and targets part
way through a performance year if there
15 a significant and malerial event which
causes the Cornmittee to believe the
original measures weightings and targets
are no longer appropriate, and

b) Make downward or upward adyustments
to the amount of bonus earned resulting
fram the apptication of the performance
measures, if the Commuittee helieve
that the bonus outcomes are not a fair
and accurate rellection of business
performance

Nochanges




LTIP

Purpose and link to strategy: lo encourage strong and sustained improvernents i financial performance, i line with the
Cornpany’s strategy and long term shareholder returns

Opziznicr breludirg performarce me 1)

Maxirmar opperianiy

Sabs arnwe charges 1 im Policy agreed
a 1" AGM ardratinrale

® Awards are granted annudally and will be
subject to one or more performance conditions
which will be assessed over three years

* Atwo year holding period will apply foltowing
the three year vesting perod for LTIP Awards
granted to the Executive Directors

e Currently, LTIP awards require the Company s

RoRE to autperform the target set cut in

Ofwat s Final Deterrmination A sliding scale

of targets 1s set Different targets and/or

pertormance measures may be set for future

LTIP awards to reflect e business strategy

and regulatory frarmework operating at

trat fime

Using RoRE to assess long term performance

reflects the locus of Ofwatin AM=6 a~dis

consistentwath eur aimn (o deliver efficient
returns to snareholders RoRE measures the
returns (after tax and mterest] that compan.aes
have earned by refcrence to the notional

regulated equity, where reguiatee cquity s

calculated from the RCY and notioral net debt

The Cammuttee be ieves tnat the use of RoRE

provides a strong alignment betwecn the long

ter 7 fmacial and oper ghonal per-ormance
of the Group and the reward delivered

to managernent

* Na material change witl be made to the type
of performance conditions without prio”
shareholder consultat.on

+ The vatue of dividends pa:id on the shares
comprising the award will be rolled up and
paid anvesting The award may be structured
as a conditional share award [awards may also
be settled in cash in certain aircumstances]

* Malus and clawback mechanisms apply to
allow the recoupment of Incentive awards
within three years of vesting in the event of
financ:al misstatement, anerror i~ caleulating
the tevel of vesting or gross negligence, fraud
or gross miscanduct

= Cessation of employment and change of
control provisions apply as set outin the notes
ta the Policy table

All-employee share plans

e Maxirmurr Limit 1s 200% of salary Up to 25% of
an award may vest for threshold performance
¢ The Committee will review the targets before
each grant to ensure they remain appropriate
The Commuttee may change the balance of
the measure, or use different measures tor
subsequent awards, as appropriate
The Commuttec will operate all incentive plans
according to the rules of each respective
plan and the discretions contained therein
The discret ons cover aspects such as
the tirming of grant ard vesting of awards,
determining the size of the award [subject to
the policy imits], the treatment of leavers,
retrospective adjustment of awards (¢ g
for a rghts issue, a corporate restructus ng
or for special dwvidends] ang, in exceptional
¢ rcumstances, the discretion (o adjust
previously set targets for anincentive award f
events happen which cause the Committee o
determire that it would be appropriate to do so
In exercising such discretions the Committer
will take into account generally accepted
market practice, best practice guidelines,
the provisions of the Listing Rules and the
Company's approved Remuneratior Policy

In exceptional circumstances the Committee

retains the discretion to

a) Change the performance measu-es and
targets and the weighting attached to the
performance measures and targets part
way through a performance year if there
1s a signilicant and material event which

causes tne Committee to betieve the ariginal

measures, weightings and targels are no
langer appropriate, and

b) Make downward or upward adjustments
to the amount earned resulting from the
application of the performance measures,
it the Committee believes that t-e i TIP
outcernes are not afair and accurate
relleclion ol business per ormance

inaddition, for any awards to vest, the

Comnutles must be satistied that Lthere has bheen

na compromise tothe commercial practiccs
or operational standards of the Group If the
Comrmities s not 5o safisf ed trer the vesting
percentage may be scaled back as appropriate
(including to 0%)

Increase in maximum LTIP opportunity

* CEO - 200% of salary [currently 150%)]

+ CFO - 150% of salary [currently 100%)

The Committee wilt ensure that the increased
opportunity 1s refllectea in the tevel of challenge
inthe LTIP targets and has introduced a stretch
target based on UQ performance

The Commuittee s rationale for increasing the
maximum LTIP opportunity 1s as follows

» The Executive Directors were inexpernenced at
tha time the current Policy was introduced and
incent ve levels reflected this The Commettee
believes that the Executive Dircctors are now
fully ernbedded in the business and over the past
three years they have performed successfully in
their roles dermenst-ating an excepticnal level of
cammitnent in execut ng the business strategy
for .he penetit o” our w13 eholders, custormier s
ana the wader community The Coramittee
wants tg provide an appropriate level of
incentive opportunity to detiver a competitive
tota remungration package that retains and
motivates a travy exceptional managemen® team
lor herestof rs AMP andinlo ime rexl,

The Comm ttog is keen to ensure that there s
arn appropriate level of incentrve cppartunity in
the remuneration Lo reflect the greater tocus

of Ofwat an the relative perfor mance of water
comparies and the tougher regulatery conteat
during AMP7

Intreduction of a twe year holding period

which will continue to operate post cessation

of employment e enhance leng lerm al gnmen®
betwoen sharcholders, customers ang
executive’s nterests

Purpose and link to strategy: To encourage widespread employee share ownership to enable employees to share m the success
of the business, and to align their interests wath those of sharehelders.

Apcraqier lesladieg per-orarce rMen=s|

Max-Prarmi ~Eper ny

Satn oor e cboeges e Prlicy sgreed
a ) JAGN ardiznorele

* The Executive Directors are able to participate
‘n HMRC tax advantaged a.l-employee
share plans on the same terms as other
eligible employees

o Tht maxirmur brits uneer the plans are as

set by HMRC

Neo changes

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 1 23

wdarabaeng

BIUEUIBADG)

SRS AP S PITPY) Gn

WP W IO | QU P OE e AU, 00



Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Shareholding requirements
Purpose and link ta strategy: To encourage strong shareholder alignment

Substannve charges from Paolicy agreed

Op=reton [ncluding perfarmance me'nizs) Maximunry Sppor unty at 2015 AGM and resignele

* The Company operates shareholding n/a
requirements under which Executive
Directers are expected to buitd and maintain
a shareholding in the Company

+ The CECQ 15 expected to build and maintain
a holding of shares to the value of 300% of
salary, and other Executive Directors 200%
of salary

« Executive Directors are expected to retain all
of the net of tax number of shares they recove
through the LTIP and deferred share bonus
until the sharehelding requirerments have
been met

» The Committec retains the discretion to
ncreas=e the shareholdings requirements
as appropriate

Increase inmimmum shareholding requirement

= CEO - 300% of salary [currently 200%]

* CFO - 200% of salary tcurrently 150%)

The Committee considers that higher sharehalder
requirements witl ensure greater long term
alignment between the shareholders and
Executive Directors in the light of the higher
quantum of LTIF awards

External directorships

Executive Directors are perrmiited to take on external non-executive directorships, though normatly anly one other appointment,

to bring a further external perspective to the Group and help 1n the development of key indwiduals’ experience. In order to avoid any
conflicts of interest, alt appaintments are subject to the appr oval of the Nominations Committee Executive Directors are permitted
to retain the fees arising frorm appointments

Approach to recruitment and promoticn

The Cormnpany s appreach is for the remuneration of any new Director to be assessed in Une with the principles applied to the Executive
Directors The Cornrmitize is rrindiul that it wishes to avoid paying rmore than it considers necessary to secure a preferred candidate
with the appropriate calibre and experience needed for the role In setting the remuneration for new recruits, the Committee will have
regard to guidelines and shareholder sentiment regarding one-off ar enhanced shert term or long term incentive payments as well as
giving consideration to the appropriateness of any performance measures associated with an award

item

Policy

Salary. Benehits
and Pension

¢ These will be setin Ling with the Policy for existing Executive Directors

Annual Bonus

* Maximum annual participation will be setin line with the Company s Policy for existing Executive Directors and wall not excecd
120% of salary

LTiIP

* Maximum annual participation will be setin Uine with the Company's Palicy for existing Executive Directors and will not exceed
200% of salary

Maximum Yariable
Rermuneration

* The maximum variable remuneration which may be granted 1s 320% of salary

‘Buyout” of Incentives
forfeited on cessation
of employment

» Where the Commuttee determmes that the individual circurslances of recruitment justifies the provision of a buyout, the
equivalent value of any incentives that will be forfeited on cessation of an Executive Director s previous employment wall be
calcuigted taking into account the following the preportion of the performance periad completed on the date of the Executive
Director scessation of ernployment, the perforrnance conditions attached to the vesting of these incentives and the likelihood
of them being satisfied, and any other terms and condition having a material effect on their value |'lapsed value )

* The Committee may then grant up to the same value as the lapsed value, where possible, under the Cornpany s incentve plans
To the extent that tt was not possible or practical to provide the buyout within the terms of the Company s existing incentive plans,
a bespoke arrangement would be used

Relocation Policies

* Ininstances where the new Exec. tive Direclor is required to relocate or spend significant time away from his/her normal
residence, the Company may provide one-off compensation to reflect the cosl of relocalion for the Executive Director. The level
of the relocation package will be assessed on a case-by-case basis but will take into consideration any eost of Lving differences/
housing allowance, disturbance allowances and schoaling

Internal promotions

« In the case of an internal appointment, any vanable pay element awarded sn respect of the prior role would be allowed to pay out
according to the terms onwhich it was oniginally granted These would be disclosed to shareholders in the remuneration report
for the relevant financial year

The Cornpany s Policy when setting fees for the appointment of new Non-Executive Directors 1s to apply the policy which applies
to current Non-Fxecutive Directors, which is set aut on page 127
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Service contracts for Executive Directors

Name Date of service contract Nature of contract Notice period Termmnation payments
LivGarfeld 100414 Ralling 12 months Payrnents for loss ¢f o-fice comprise 2
James Bowling 010415 maximum of 12 manths satary and perefits only

Copres of the service contracts of the Executive Directors and the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are avaitable
for mspection at the Company s registerad oftice during normal business hours.

Policy on Payments for Loss of Office
The remuneraticn related elements of the current contracts for Executive Directors are shown in the table below, together with
details of the treatment on cessalion of employment. No changes lrom the 2015 Pelicy are proposed.

Element Trealment on Cessation of Employment

General The Cornmuttee will honour Executive Directors contractuat entitlernents Service contracts do not contain Liguidated
damages clauses If a contract s to be terminated, the Comrmittec will deterrmine such mitigat.on as it considers fair
and reasonable in each case There are no contractua! arrangements that would guarantee a pension vath lmited or no
abatement an severance or early retirernent There s no agreement between the Company and its Directars or emplayeces,
providing fo- compensation for loss of office ar emplayment that occurs because of a tekeover pia The Commitles
reserves the right to make additional payments where such payments are made in good faith in discharge of ar existing
legar obligation or by way of damages for breach of such ar cbligationi, or by way of settlerent or comprom se of any
claim arising in connectian with the terminauon of an Executive Direclor s office ar employment

Salary. Benefits and Pension These will be paid ove~ the not ce perod The Company has discretion to rrake a lurmp su payment in lica

Annual Bonus Good Leaver Reazon Other Reason

Cask Awards Performance conditans wilt e measured at the No bonus w'l be payable foryear of cessation
bonus measu-ement date Bonas witt normally
he pro-rated for the period warked duning the
fimanc al year

Discretion

The Commuttee has the following elemenrs of discretion

» To deterrming that an Executive Director s a good leaver s the Comm ttee’s mtention to use this discretion onlyin
arcumstances where there is an appropriate business casc whnich wili be explained in full to sharcholders,

» To determ ne whether to pro-rate the bonus to ime Tre Remuneration Committee s normal palicy 1s to pro-rate for
time it1s the Commuttee s ntention only to use discretion not to pro-rate in circumstances where there 1s an appropciate
business case, based on the corcumstances of the Executive Director s departure Use of discretion will be explaines in
full to sharehglders, and

» The bonus would be paid at the same tirne as for the othe- Executive Directors and, if the Executive has left employment
by that date, it may be paid solely in cagh

Annual Bonus Good Leaver Reason Other Reasen
Deferred Share Awards All subsistryg deferred share awards wifl vest All subsisting deferred share awards will vest on the dealing day
an the dealing day after such term.nation after such termination with the exception of surnmary dismissal of

the participant, when any deferred share award held by the individual
shall lapse immediately on such termination

Discretion

The Committee has the following elements of discretion

* Tadetermine that an Executive Director 1s a gnod leaver [t 15 the Commetiee s infention to use this discretior only in
circumstances where there 1s an appropriate business case which will be explained in tull to sharchelders,

» Tovest deforred shares at the end of the original deferral period or at the date of cessation The Commuttec wilt make
thes detesrmination dependi~g on the type of geod leaver reason ~esultingin the cessalion, and

s Tadetermene whether to pro-rate the maximurn numbcr of shares to the time from the gate of grant to the date of
cessation The Committee s nermat pobey 15 not to pro-rate awards tor time  The Committee wiil determine whether
ornot to pro-rate where there 1s an apprapriate business case, based on the crrcumnstances of the Executive Director s
departure Use of discretion will be explained in tull to shareholders

Il Good leaver s ara define 2 under re Annal Borus Soherme Rules and tne LTI RU 25 g an i~diadual whuse employrmoent s terminated by the Company as a1 2su.t of
npury L nealth or disabihity, redundancy or retirement {in earh «ase ae determined by the Comrartteel or whose employmient terminates autcmialicily by reascn of
tneir death  As stated above the Committee al=s et wng an averatl discretion te determine that snindeadualis a gecd leaver
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration

Elernent Treatment an Cessation of Employrnent
I LTiP Good Leaver Keason . Other Reason o
Pro-rated to ime and performance in respect Lapse of any unwvested LTIP awards
of each subsisting LTIP award
. Discretion

The Cornrmittee has the following elements of discretian

s Todetermineg that an Executive Directorss a good leaver 1trs the Comnuttee s intention to use this discretion only in
crcumstances where there s an appropriate business case which will be explained in full to shareholders,

s Todetermine to pay cash in Licu of shares,

= To measure performance over the oniginal performance period or at the date of cessation The Committee will make this
determination depending on the type of good leaver reason resulting in the cessation,

» To deterrminc whether to vest shares at the end of the orginal performance period or at the datc of cessation
The Committee will make this deter mination depending on the type of good leaver reason resulting in the cessation, and

* To determing whether to pro-rate the maximum namber of shares to the time trom the start of the performance period
to the date of cessation The Commuttee s normal policy 1s to pro-rate awards for e In circumstances where there
15 an appropriale business case based on the circumstances cf the Executive Director ¢ departure, the Com ritlee may
use discretion and not pro-rate Use of discretion will be explained in full to sharehalders

Holding periods

Where cossation of employment occurs during any holding period the LTIP award will comtinue as normal However, the

Comruttee retains discretron to allow the award to vest when cessatior of emiployment occurs in certain circumstances,

such as

o Where the reason for departure 1s death, disability or ill-bealth,

» Where there are extenaating facters which impact at the time of departure [such as unforeseen changes to porsonal
circumstances), or ’

* Any other reason, permitted by Comrmuttee in its absolute discretion in any particular case, except where terrmination
15 for dishonesty, [-aud, m sconducl or other circumstanzes [ushifying summary d-s™ussal (inwhich cases il is very
likely any outslanaing LTIP awar as would lapse on cessalion regardless)

Other There are no other historical contractual provisions other than those set out above
r‘ i} Goou leave v are defined under the Ar pugl Bows Scherme Rules gnd the LIIP Ru 25 as an imdiadual whose employment ss ternuraed by the Lo parvas aiecu't of
injury, il-health or disabilidy, redund incy or retirement ineach case, as determine d by the Commuttec] or whose employment Lomunates gutoimatic ally by reason of
their death As stated above, the Comnutiee alss retans an everall discretion to dateraune that an imdividual 15 a good leaver

Outplacement services and reimbursement of legal costs may be provided where appropriate Any statutory entitlernents or sums
to settle or compromise claims In connection with a termination weuld be paid as necessary Outstanding savings/awards under the
‘ SAYE and the legacy Share Incentive Plan would be transferred in accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by HMRC
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Change of control

The change of control policy for the new Remuneration Policy 1s set out below. No changes to 2015 Policy are proposed

Element Purpose and ink to strategy Cperation
Annual Bonus Pro-rated to time and performance ta the date of the
Cash Awards the change of contro| [farmula included in rules)

Year of the Change

The Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the
bonus ta tme The Comrmttee s nermal policy ss that wwall pro rate

the bonus for time In circumstances where there 1s an appropriate

of Control business case, the Comrnittee may use discretion and not pro-rate
Use of discretion will be explained to shareholders
Annual Bonus Subsisting deferred share awards will vest on a change The Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the

Deferred Share Awards  of control

awards to tme The Committee’s nermal policy ts that it wall not pro-
rate awards for ime The Comrmittee will make this deterrmination
depending on the circumstances of the change of control

LTIP The number of shares subject to subsisting LTIP awards
wili vest on a change of cortrol, pro-rated to time
and performance The holding period will not appiy on
change of control

The Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the
LTIP awards to ime Tne Committee’s normal policy is that itwall
pro-rate the LTIP awards for time In circumstances where theres
an appropriate business case, the Committec may use discretion and

not pro-rate Use of discretionwll be explained in full to sharenolders
Shares subject te a holding penod will vest on change of contral

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors, other than the Chairman, 1s determined by the Chairman and Executive
Directars The fee for the Chairman is determined by the Remuneration Comrmuttee [wathout the Chairman present] No changss

to the 2015 Policy are proposed.

Purpase and link
Element to strategy

QOperatien

Maxsmum Opportunity

Fee Tzorecrutard retan
MNen-Executive
Directers of a suitable
cahbre torthe role
and datics required

Board fee with additional fees paid for the Sen or Independent Director anc
chairmanship of the Boara Committees The Chairman rece ves a total
fee in respect of his Board duties Fees are pad manthly Directors will be
rermbursed for any reasonable bas ness expenses incurres in the course
of thesr duties including the tax payable thereo~

The fees for the Non Executive Dircctars and Cnairman are set taking into
accodnt the time commitment of tne role and market rates in comparable
companics The fees are normally reviewed annually (but nor recessarily
increased] e*fective from 1 Apnil

The Compary ' etams the [lexibilily to pay fees or the membership

of commiltees

Imexceptional circumstances, fees may also be paid for additional time
spent on the Company s business outside normat duties

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any variable rernuneration
or recelve any other benelits

Dcta ls of the current foe lovels
ferthe Directors are set out in tho
Annual Report on Remuareration
on page 110

The fee levels are set subject to
the maximum Limits set out n the
Articlas of Assgaiation

Nen-Executive Directors normally serve terms of three years They do not have service contracts Instead, Non-Executive Directors
are engaged by letters of appointment which are teriminable by either party with no netice period and no compensation in the event
of such termination, other than accrued fees and expenses All Directors are subject to annual appointment or reappointment

at the AGM,
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration

Application of the Remuneration Policy

The charts below provide an illustration of what could be received by each of the Executive Directors under the new Remuneration

Policy for 2018/19 These charts are Illustrative as the actual value wall depend on business performance in the year 2018/1¢ {for the
annual bonusl and 1 the three vear period to 2020/2021 [for the LTIF], as well as share price perforrance to the date of the vasting
of the share element of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP awards in 2021

The on-target and maximum scenarios include an additional bar which shows the impact of share price growth over the relevant
performance period to show how the package value 1s aligned to shareholders We have used share price growth of 5% p a foron
target performance and 10% p a for maximum performance Itis a key part of our Remuneration Policy to align interests of the
Executive Directors and shareholders through the prowision of a substantial element of remuneration in shares Increases inthe
value of remunerahon through an increase in share price are evidence of the direct ink between the interests of the two.

Graph removed

Note Minimum pay s hined pay o-ly b e salary - benehts + pension] On-tar get pay includes bhxed pay, 50% of the maximum bonas lequa Lo 0% of salary lor buth t-e
CkO and the CFU) and 50 % vesting of the _TIP awards lwith grant levels of 207 & of salary for the CEQ and 150+ of salary for the CFOJ Mawmum payircludes lixed pay
and assumes 100+ vesting «f both the annual bonus and the LTIP awards Al ameunts have been rounded o the nearest €1.000 Salary tewvels fwhich are the base an
which olher elements o° the package are calculated| are based on those applying st 1 Juty 2018 The value of taxable benetits 15 Ihe cost of providing Lthose benefiisin
the year ended 31 March 2018 The Cxecutive Dirertars are also permutted te participate 1n MMRC tax advantaged all-empleyer share plans on the same terms as other
eligible employees, but they have been excluded frum the above graph for simplicity

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

22 May 2018
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited Group
financial staterments, for the year ended 31 March 2118.

The performance review of the Company can be found within the
Strategic report from the inside cover to page 65 This provides
detailed information relating to the Groug, 1ts business model and
strategy. the operation of its businesses, future developments
and the results and financial position for the year ended 31 March
2018. The Governance Report set out on pages 66 to 12815
incorporated by reference into this report and, accordingly.
should be read as part of this report

Details of the Group s policy on addressing the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out In the risk
management section on pages 27 to 65

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Group 1s to treat and provide water
and remove waste water in the UK and Ireland

Details of the principal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are shown In
note 19 and 47 lo the [inancial statements on pages 168 and

193 respectively

Areas of operation

During the course of 2017/18, the Group had activities and
operations in the UK and ireland On 3 July 2017, the Group
announced the sale of its operations in the United States

Directors and their interests

Biographies of the Directors currently serving on the Board are
set out on pages 68 and 69

All of the Directors, with the exception of Emma FitzGerald, will
be offering themselves for appoaintment or reappointrment at the
Annual General Meeting [AGM), as set out in the Governance
Report on page 78

Details of Directors’ service contracts are set out in the Directors’
remuneration repoert on page 125 The interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company are shown on page 116 of that
report The Board has a documented process in place in respect
of conflicts.

Insurance and indemnities

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ habtlity
insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought aganst
its Directors and Officers As permitied by the Company’s
Articles of Assccation [the ‘Articles |, and to the extent perrmitted
by law, the Company indemnifies each of its Directors and

ather Officers of the Group against certain Liabilities that

may be incurred as a result of their positions with the Group

The indemnity was in force throughout the tenure of each
Director during the last financial year, and 1s currently in force.

Severn Trent Plc does not have in place any indemnities for the
benefit of the Externat Auditar,

Employees
The average number of employees within the Group 1s shown
in note 9 to the financial statements on page 157,

Severn Trent Plc believes a diverse and inclusive workforce s a
key factor in being a successful business Through our Diversity
and Equal Opportunities Policy, the Company seeks to ensure
that every employee, without exception, 15 treated equally and
fairly and that all employees are aware of their responsitilities
This means more than ensuring we don't discriminate in any
way - we want to create and maintain a culture opento a
diverse population

We are an equal opportunities employer and welcome
applications fraom allindividuals, inctuding those with a disability
We are fully committed to supporting applications made by
disabled persons, and make reascnable adjustments to their
envircnment where possible (having regard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities] We are also respansive to the needs of
our employees As such, should any employee become disabled
duning theirr ime with us, we will actively re-train that employee
and make reasonable adjustments to their environment where
possible, in order to keep therm in employment with us

Allour training, promotion and career development processes
are in place for all our employees to access, regardless of their
gender, race, age or disability The provision of occupaticnal
health programmes is of crucial importance to Severn Trent with
the airn of keeping our employees fit, healthy and well, including
an employee assistance programmse

Employee engagement

We continuously engags with cur employees in a number of ways
to accommaodate different working patterns This includes

* all people briefings, Team Talk’,

* corporate communications events and roadshows held by
functions across the Cormpany.,

* 3 dedicated intranet, ‘Streamline ,

= online news portal and weekly roundup, ‘Pipeline News',

« an achive employee social media presence, Yammer',

» conference catls and emall,

s leadership engagement channels - Chief Executive's weekly
biog, senior management monthly visibility programme and
quarterly events,

» Company forum, and

* regular meetings with Unions

Detasls of the financial and economic factors affecting the

performance of the Company are shared with all employees
at the appr opriate ime using the methods listed abave

We provide opportunities for employees to give their feedback to
the Company in a number of ways, from team or shift meetings
and annual employee satisfaction surveys
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

The Company 1s keen to encourage greater employee involvement
in the Group’s performance through share ownership To help
align employees’ interests with the success of the Company’s
performance, we operate an HMRC approved all-employee

plan, the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme [Sharesave |, whichis
offered to UK employees on an annual basis

Over 70% of Severn Trent's UK employees participate in the
Sharesave scheme, with the average participant contributing
£142 each month.

During the year, the Company has remamned within its headroom
limits for the 1ssue of new shares for share plans as set out in the
rules of the above plan

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging technologies will
continue to be crucial to the successful development of new
products and processes for the Group and our products must
continue to deliver value for custorners

Expenditure on research and develcpment 1s set out In note 7
to the hinanciat staternents on page 156

Internal controls

Further details of our internal control frarmewaork can be found
i the Audit Committee repart on page 86.

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the European Urien [ EU | Fair
Value Directive in relation to the use of financial instruments by
the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial statements

or pages 176 to 177 Further details on our Treasury Policy and
management are set out in the Chief Financial Officer’s review
on page 55

Post balance sheet events

Detaits of post balance sheet events are set out in note 44 to the
Group financiat statements on page 191.

Dividends

Annterim dividend of 34 63 pence per Ordinary Share was paid
on 5 January 2018 The Directors recommend a final dividend
of 5192 pence per Ordinary Share te be paid on 20 July 2018 to
shareholders on the register on 15 June 2018. This would bring
the total dividend for 2017/18 to 84 55 pence per Ordinary Share
[2016/17 8150 pence] The payment of the final dividend 1s
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM

Dividend Policy

We have enhanced our Dividend Policy for the period 2015-2020,
with effect from 2017/18, and will now increase the dwidend by
growth of at least RP{ +4% each year. This replaced the previous

Dividend Policy of annuat growth of the dividend at no tess than
RPluntil March 2020
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The Dividend Policy reflects cur strong operational detivery
and finarcizl performance, while ensuring that our bills are
affordable for alt our customers When determining the policy
the Board considered various scenarios and sensitivities, and
reviewed the impact of agverse changes in inflation and interest
rates on key metrics The Board believes that the Dividend
Policy 1s commensurate with a sustainable investment grade
credit rating

Capital structure

Details of the Company s 1ssued share capital and of the
mavements during the year are shown in note 10 to the Company
financial statements on page 202 The Company has one class

of Ordinary Shares which carries no night to fixed income,

Each share carries the right to one vote at General Meetings of
the Company The issued norminal value of the Ordinary Shares
15 100% of the totalissued nominal value of all share capitat.

There are no specitic restrictions on the size of a holding nor an
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisians of the Articles and prevailing legislation The Directors
are not aware of any agreements between holders of the
Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer
of securittes or on voting rights

Details of ernployee share schemes are set outin note 37 to the
financial statements on pages 184 to 186, For shares held by
the Severn Trent Empioyee Share Ownership Trust, the Trustee
abstains from voting

No person has any special rights of control over the Company s
share capital and all1ssued shares are fully pad

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors,
the Company 1s governed by its Articles, the Code, the
Companies Act 2006 and related legislation. The Articles

may be amended by Speciat Resolution of the shareholders.

The powers of Directors are described in the Severn Trent Pl
Board Governance document which can be found on our website,
the Articles and the Governance report on page 73

Under the Articles, the Directors have authority to allot Ordinary
Shares, subject to the aggregate norninal amount Umit set at the
2017 AGM

Change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or
terminate upon, a change of control of the Company, such as
commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
arrangements and employee share plans. None of these are
considered to be significant in terms of their Likely impact on
the business of the Group as a whole There are no agreements
between the Company and Its Directors or employees that
provide for compensatian for loss of office or employment
because of a takeover bid




Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2018, the Company had been notified in
accordance with Chapter 5 of the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules of the following major shareholdings

Percentage of

No of Ordinary Shares voting rights and

Name of halder of 97"/ peach issued share capital
BlackRock, Inc 18,425,671 7.8%
Rreef Real Estate 10,248,946 4 34%
Aberdeen Standard

Investments G 308,469 394%
Legal & General

Investment

Management 8.226,287 348%
Maple-Brown Abbott 7835714 332%
Lazard Asset

Management 7,335,575 310%

As at 272 May 2018, the Company had heen notified of the
following holdings of voting rnghts in the Ordinary Share capital

of the Campany BlackRock, Inc 18,297,775 shares (7 74%},

Rreef Real Estate 9,988,240 shares (4 23%), Aberdeen Standard
Investments 8,964 476 shares [3 79%), Legal & General
Investrment Managerment 8,533,601 shares (3 41%]). Maple-Brown
Abbott 8,054,760 shares (3 41]%, Lazard Asset Managernent
10,424,261 shares [4 41%I

The percentage of voting rights detailed above was calculated
at the time of the relevant disclosures were made in accordance
with Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules

Authority to purchase shares

The Company was given authority at its AGM in 2017 to make
market purchases of Ordinary Shares up to a rmaxmaum number
of 23,603,888 Ordinary Shares During the year, no Ordinary
Shares have been repurchased

Authority will again be sought from shareholders at this year’s
AGM to purchase up to a maximurm of 23,677.393 Ordinary Shares

The Directors believe that it is desirable to have the general
authority to buy back the Company’s Ordinary Shares in order 1o
provide maximum flexibility in the management of the Group's
capital resources However, the authority would only be used if
the Board was satisfied at the tirme that to do so would be in the
best interests of shareholders

Contributions for political and charitable
purposes

Donations to charitable organisations during the year amounted
1o £81,947 {2017 £312,588] Donations are given to charities
whose projects align closely with our aim to promote the
responsible use of water rescurces and waste water services
which provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships

In addition, we provide donations to empleyee nominatad
charities threugh a matched funding scheme and health and
safety reward schemes We are also commutted to supporting
WaterAid, the UK's only major charity dedicated to improving
access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation in the world's
poorest countries

Severn Trent's policy 1s nat ta make any donations for political
purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU political parties or incur
EU political expenditure Accordingly. neither Severn Trent Ple
norits subsidiaries made any political donations or incurred
political expenditure in the financial year under review,

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 [the relevant provisions of which

are now contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2004),
shareholder authonity s required for political donations to be
made or political expenditure to be incurred by the Company
ar any of its subsidiaries in the EU and disclosure of any such
payrment must be made in the Annual Report and Accounts
The legislation gives a wide definition of what constitutes political
donations and political expenditure including sponsorship,
subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees
futfillng public duties and support for bodies representing the
business community In policy review or reform The Company
has therefore obtained Uimuted authonity from shareholders
as a precautionary measure to allow the Company to continue
supporting the community and such organsations without
inadvertently breaching the legislation

At the 2017 AGM, shareholders gave the Company authority to
make political donations ar to incur political expenditure in the
EU bwhich would not ordinarily be regarded as polttical donations)
up to an aggregate annual lmit of £150,000 for the Company and
its subsidianies Pursuant to those authorities, during the year
ended 31 March 2018 the Group incurred costs of £nil [2017 £nill
Those authorities will expire at the 2018 AGM and, in ine with
market practice to renew the authorities on an annual basis,

the Board has decided to put forward a resotution to this year's
AGM to renew the authorities to make donations to political
organisations and teincur political expenditure up to a maximum
aggregate of £160,000 p a As permitted under the Companies
Act 2006, thus resolution also covers any political donations
made or political expenditure incurred by any subsidiaries of

the Cocmpany
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

We reduce our carbon footprint

The UK s playing a leading part in reducing carbon emmissions We want to play our part in reducing our impact by reducing our
carbon emissicns As the majority of our carbon emissions are driven by our use of energy, managing carbon means managing costs.
We therefore aim to reduce carbon emissions and increase our generation of renewable energy

We are achieving both of these aimns, and this year we have seen ancther reduction in overall carbon ermissions We've seen a
consistent reduction since 2002 when we began publicly reporting on our greenhouse gas emissions We have held the Carbon Trust
Standard since 2009 in recogrmition of this achievernent and we've been recertificd te 2019,

Graph remaved

The Carbon Trust Standard recogrises our consistent emissions reductians and effective carban management processes and we
scored In the top quartile of companies We continue to repart to the Carbon Disclosure Project [ COP § each year which means
our cimate change information 1s publicly accessible CDP request information about cimate change from companies on behalf
of Investors and score each company on the quality and completeness of therr responses

During this year, we again increased renewable energy generation and across Severn Trent we now generate an equivalent of 38%

of Severn Trent Water Limited s electricity needs. We continue to lead the UK water industry, with an aim of building on this pasition
by generating the equivalent of 50% of aur electricity needs by 2020

We plan to continue to reduce our operational emissions by reducing our energy use and iIncrease our renewable energy generation,
mainly within Business Services Pursuing these measures will continue to reduce our key sources of emissions, reduce our reliance
on the electrnicity grid and bring financial benefits for our custorners and investors

Report on greenhouse gas emissions

Thrs s the fifth year Severn Trent has been reguired to report greenhouse gas ( GHG'l emissions in the Directors’ report.

Severn Trent 1s committed to reducing its GHG ermissians For Severn Trent Water Limited, which accounts for 99% of our total Group
ermissions, we have been publicly reporting on our emissions since 2002 In that time we have reduced our emissions by being more
energy efficient and generating more renewable energy

Our GHG emissions are reported in tonnes of carben dioxide equivalent (1C0,¢'], for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Our total net emussions have fallen again this year, due to cur increased generation of renewable energy, a reduction in the emissions-
intensity of UK grid electricity and reduced fuel and process emissions The sale of our US business has reduced our emissions
outside the UK

The GHG data we report i reported internatly during the year to the Corperate Responsibility Committee and to the Board We have
subjected our GHG data and processes to external assurance by Jacobs
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Severn Trent Plc Direct Dperational Greenhouse Gas Emissions [tCO:e) 2013/14 2014/15 2015/156 2016/17 2017/149
Emissions from combustion of fuel and operation of facilities [Scope 1) 132,535 132,406 134,584 138131 134,307
Emissions from electricity purchased for own use (Scope 2) 330 479 357754 337028 294,424 279393
Total Annual Gross Operational Emissions 463,214 490,163 471,612 432 557 413,700
Emissions benefit of tre renewable energy we export (includ ng

biometha~e expor ted for which we hold gree~ gas cerliflica.es) 21672 38,878 45,085 42,069 45333
Total Annual Net Operational Emissions 441542 451,285 426,527 390,488 368,367
Annual GHG intensity ratio (tC02/umit) 2013114 2014/15 2015116 2016/17 2017/18
Operational GHG emissions of Severn Trent per £m turnover 2486 2552 2347 2140 2174

QOur approach to reporting 1s based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard and we have included only
emissions from the assets which we own and operate and which we can directly influence and reduce, known as the financial control
boundary. In accardance wath the reporting regulations, we have not reperted on emissions we can influence, but which we are not
responstble for, referred to as indirect emissions We have used the location based” methodology rather than the more recently-
introduced ‘market-based method to account for use of grid electricity in order to ensure consistency with previous years

For the appointed UK Water businesses Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited, we have calculated our emissions
using the ‘Carbon accounting in the UK Water Industry methodolegy for estimating eperational ermissions, Version 12" [released April
2018] Thus s a peer-reviewed calculation tool developed and used by all the major water companias in the UK |t 1s updated each year
to include the latest available emissions factors For Severn Trent Services, we have used the latest Defra ermissions factors which
include the relevant conversion facters for averseas electricity

zibaensg
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SEVERN TRENT WATER ONLY -

Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tC0ze) 20M3/14 2014/15 2015/14 201617 2017118
Scope 1 Emissions [Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities) 123948 122,282 126,009 128584 130,662
Scope 2 Emissians |Electricity purchased for own use) 333721 35770° 340,484 298.872 264,290
Total Annual Gross Operational Emissions 4576561 479983 446493 427456 394,991
Emssicns benelil of the renewable e~e-gv we expert includ ng bicgas

for which we hold areen gas cer’ f.cates] 18,638 24 247 24,887 22790 274876
Total Annual Net Operational Emissions o 439023 455735 441 606 404 b6 367,475

Supplier payment policy

Individuat operating companies within the Group are responsible for establishing appropnate policies with regard to the payment
of their suppliers, In accordance with the Prompt Payment Code (PPC | The companies agree terms and conditions under which
business transactions with suppliers are conducted Itis Group policy that provided a supplier s complying with the relevant terms
and conditions, including the prompt and complete submission of all specified decumenlation, payment will be made in accordance
with agreed terms |t s also Group policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms on which payment wilt take place when business
15 agreed

Relevant audit information
The Directors confirm that
» sofaras each of thern s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s Auditor 1s unaware, and

« each of themn has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit informat:on and to establish that the Company's Auditor 1s aware of that infarmation

[his confirmation 1s given and should be inter preted in accordance with the provisions of sectian 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

External Auditor

Having carried out a review of their effectiveness during the year, details of which can be found in the Audit Cornrmittee report on
page 87, the Audit Comnittee has recommended to the Board the reappointment of Deloitte LLLP The reappointment and a resclution
to that effect will be on the agenda at the AGM Deloitte LLP indicated their willingness to cantinue as Auditor The Audit Committee
will also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of the Board
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Governance

Directors’ report continued
Other disclosures

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The information required to be disclosed by Listing Rule 78 4R
can be located In the following pages of this Annual Report
and Accounts.

Section Information to be included Location

(1) Astaterment of the amount  Page 158
of interest capitalised

(4) Details of long term Page 123
incentive schemes

(8 Section 7 1n relation to Pages 195 to 194
subsidiary undertakings

(2], 51, (8], Not applicable

(7). [91-114)

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosures required by taw relating to the Group's
greenhouse gas emissions are included in the Directors’ report
onpages 132 and 133

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

and Dee Valley Water Limited

Separate Annual Performance Reports fer each of Severn Trent
Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited are prepared and
provided to Ofwat Copies will be available on our wehsite or

on request to the Company Secretary There is no charge for
these publications

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be hetd at the Riceh Arena,
Phoenix Way, Coventry, CV4 6GE at 11arm on Wednesday 18 July
2018 The notice convening the meeting, together with detalls of
the business to be considered and explanatory notes for each
resalution, 1s distributed separately to shareholders Itis also
available on our website

By order of the Board

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

22 May 2018
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

Other disclosures

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors Le prepare financial
staternents for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
are required to prepare the Group financial staterments In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
[IFRSs | as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of

the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdorn
Generally Accepted Practice [United Kingdern Accounting
Standards and applicable law) including FRS101 ‘Reduced

Disclosure Framework™ Under cornpany law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Cempany and of the

profit or loss of the Company for that period.
In preparing the parent company financial statements,
the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

make judgernents and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explamed in the financial statements, and

L

prepare the financial statements on the Geing Concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In busmess

In preparing the Group hinancial staterents, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

» properly setect and apply accounting policies,

» present information, including accounting policies, n a

manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirernents in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity's financial position
and financial performance, and

* make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue
as a Gong Concern

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and

mtegrity of the corporate and financial mformation included

on the Cormnpany s website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissernimation of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility Statement
Each of the Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framewaork, give a true and far
view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,

the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Cornpany and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a desecription of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they {ace, and

the Annual Report and linancial statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the iInformation necessary for sharehelders to assess the
Cornpany’s position and performance, business model
and strategy.

This Responsibility Statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 22 May 2018 and1s signed on its behalf by

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
22 May 2018
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
in our opimion

* the financiat statements give a true and fair view of the state of '~e group s and of the parent campany s alfairs as at 31 Marck 2018 and of the group s profil
for the year then ended,

the group financia statements have been propery prepared in accordance with Inzernat onal Fiancial Repart ng Standards [IFRSs| as adopted by the
European Urion,

+ the pareni company lnancial slatements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdorm Generatly Accepled Accounling Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewaork , and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance witn ke requirements of the Caorpanies Ac: 2006 and, as regards the group financial
staterments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial staterments of Severn Trent Ple [the parent company ] and its subs diaries lthe group | which comprise

* the consolidated income statement,

= the consolidated and parent company statements of comprehensive income,

* the consolidated and parent company statemnents of changes in equity,

+ the consolidated and parent company balance sheets,

s the consolidated cask flow staternent, and

* Ihe related noles lo the consolidated financial stalemen s 1 to 47 a~d the retaled notes Lo 1ne parent company financial stalements 110 18

The financial reporung framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group linancial slatements is applicable law ard IFRSs as adepted by the
European Union The financial reporting framework thal has been applied n lhe preparalion of the parent company financia. statements 1s applicable law
and Urited Kingdorn Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accaunting Practice)

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [UK] (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law Qur responsibilities under those
standards are ‘urther described in the audnter s responsitilities for the audit of the “inancial stalements section of o repart

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are retevant to our audit of the financral
stalements in the UK, including the FRC s Ethical Standard as apolied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled ou~ ot~er ethical resconsibibities
in accordance with these reauirements We confirm that the non-audit se: vices prohitited by the FRC s Ethical Standard were not provided Lo the group or
the parent company

We believe that the audit evidene e we have obla ned s suffioent ana appropriate o provide a basis for our opinmon

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit marters that we identified in the currenl year were
s Accuracy of wholesale revenue for non-heusehold customers in the new water market,
* Valuation of the provision for trade receivables in Severn Trent Water Limited,
+ Valuation of the group s retirement benef t obligations, and
» Classification and valuation of capital expend ture in Severn Trent Water | imited

Within this reporl, any new key audit matters are idertifled with  and any key audit matters which are the same as the
prior year are identified with

Materiality The materality that we used tor the group financial statermnents was £18 million (2017 £18 imullion] which was dete nined
on the bawis of prohit belore lax, ga ns/losses on financial irstruments and exceplionslitems

Scoping Qur audit scoping has resulted in over 0% of the group's ret aper ating assets and profit belore lax peing subject to
audit tesling.

Significant changes The group disposed of its Operating Services (US] business on 30 June 2017 and therefore it has not been subject to a

in our approach compenent auditforthe year ended 31 March 2018 There have beer no other significant changes to out scoping approach

Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

Going concern

We have reviewed the direciors statement in note 2a to the financial statements and page 59 of the Strategic report aboul whether they considered il
approoriate to adopt the geing co~cern basis of accounting In preparing them and theirdentification of any materia. uncertainties Lo the group s and
company s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve monlhs frorm the date of approval of the financial staternents

We are required to state whether we have anything matenial to add or draw attention to i relation to that staterment required by Listing Rule 9 8 4R(3)
and report if the statemert 1s materially mconsistent with our knowledge ebtained in the audit.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters,
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Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ statemncnts and considering whother they were consistent with the knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit,
including the knowledge abtained in the evaluation of the directors assessment of the group’s and the company s ability to continue as a going concern,

we are required to sta e whet~erwe have anything material to add or draw atlent on to in relalion to

* the disclosures an pages 60 to 65 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are baing managed or mitigated,

* the directors confirmation or page 60 thal thay have car- ed aut a robust assevsment ¢f Ihe principal risks facing the gracp including those tha: would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency ar iquidity, or

« the directors explanation on pages 58 and 59 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what period they have done so and why they
consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment. including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
gualifizations or assumptiors

We are also required to report whether the directors statement relating to the prospects of the group required by Listing Rule 9 8 6R[3) 15 materially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the sudit

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention te in respect of these matters,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are these matiers t~at nour professional judgement, were of most significance 1 cur audit of the “ nancial starements o the current

period ana include the mosl signilicant assessad risks of material misstatement [whelher or not due to fra.dl that we 1zentifies These matlers included

those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the aflocation of rescurces in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed nthe context of our zudit of the fimanciat statements as a whole, a~d o formi~g eur opimon thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters

The following key audit ratters from the prior year have not beenincludec in the current year

* rovenue recogn tion i relation to the estimation of unkilled metered revenae in Severa T-ent Water Limited on tne basis that the ditterence between the
amcunt accrued and sabsequently billed has consistently represented approximately 196 of the acerund imcome over a number of consecutive year s, and

¢ theva uat-on of current and deferred tax batances following the settlernont of open engu res with HMRC in the prior year

Accuracy of wholesale revenue for non-household customers in the new water market

Key audit matter description On 1 Apel 2017 the new watcr retail market spened in England allovang chigible non-household custemers the
oppor unity 1o choose ther- water retaile~ lor the hirs* <ime. Mar et Operater Services Lirmted | MOSL Jwas esrabil o ed
to fac.litate tne swatcring of customers, and also to provide a service to settic accounts between water wholesalers and
retallers Severn Trent Water 15 a whalesaler Management have recorded manual adjustments to reverue cormpared
to the inforr~at:on pravided by MOSL « Ceore Mar«et Oparating System | CMOS

Non-househald revenue for tae year ended 31 March 201815 £371 4 million as disclosed onpage 85

The key audit matter kas been focussed on whether manual adjustments made to revenue are sccurate Cue to the high
level of judgerrentirvolved we have detcrmined that there was a potential for fraud througn poss.bie manipulation of
this balance

The Aud L Commi.lee also considered this as a signifizant 1ssue as discussed in the Auait Com~illze Recort on page 85

How the scope of our We have challenged the assumptions applicd and the integrity of management s calculation of the adjustments by
audit responded to the performing the fol.owing
key audit matter .

evaluated the design and implementation of key controls over the adjustments to revenue,

¢ understood and audited reconciang items betweeon volume and revenue recao-ded by Severn Trent Water Limited and
the infor mation provided by CMOS, specifically recalculaling tre extrapolatisn based on settlement reports rece ved,

» inguired as to whether any Market Operatar disputes ar Market Arrangement Code disputes are open at the year end
date which could indicate that revenue has been incorrectly recorded.

s reviewed and challenged the information used to build up the medel by considering the accuracy ang completeness of
the source data used for calculating the adjustments,

* tested the completeness of adjustments by refererce to operational data, and

* benchmarked the direction of the adjustment across the industry and made direct enquiries of management of the
Group's Joint venture, WaterPlus, of adjustrments being recorded by thern

Key observations We are salisfied lhat management s man.a' adjustments (o revenue are appropriate
Valuation of the provisian for trade receivables in Severn Trent Water Limited

Key audit matter description A proportion of Scvern Trent Water Limited's custormers do not or cannot pay thair bills which results in the need far
praviziens to be made for non-payment of the customer balance Management makes estimates regarding future cash
collection when calculating the bad debt provisian

The value of the provisior for trade recervables in Severn Trent Water at 31 March 2018 .5 £124 5 mitlicn of the total
provisien of £129 0 mitlion 131 March 2017 £125 4 million of the total provision of 0130 8 million}in note 21

Prossions are rrade aga nst Severn Trent Water timited s trade rece vables based on historical experierce of levels of
rocovery from accounts in partcular ageing categonies The key audit matter has been focused on the determination of
the ageing of trade receivables balances as this deteermines the level of provissoning to be recerded and tee historicat
cash col cction rates appued ta the aged debt Due to the hugh .evel of judgement involved, we have determined tha* there
was a patential for fraud through possible manipu'ation of this balance

The Audt Committee alsa constde “ed this s a significanlissue as discussed in the Audit Commrittes Repor L on page 85
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc continued

How the scope of our We challenged and tested the information used to determine the bad debt provision by considening cash collection
audit responded to performance against histoiical trends and the level of bad debt charges over time Spec fically, we analysed the aclual
the key audit matter experience of slow paying custormers in the period using data analytics to constder the cotlection of debters that were

previously in eacn aged category We have also

evaluated the design and implementation of key management review controts over the bad debt model and
management s bad debt paper,

reconciled the debtor ageing for cach debt category used in the bad debt provision model using source data trom
Severn Trent s customer billing system,

aydited the information used in calculating the bad debt provision to assess whether it was updated for current cash
collection performance

-

assessed and audited the rationale for changes to the basts of estimation where changes were made to the bad debt
calculation in the current year to reflect tusta~cal cash collection petlerns fof debts with certain characteristics,

» compared and assessed the paymen: profile and level of bad deb” provision with those established in

previous periods,

¢ considered whether the provision appropriately covered any exposure nherent in the accrued income element of the
debtor batance,

-

deptoyed our spreadsheet analyser tool to dentity anomalies in the bad debt model for further consideratian, and

« considered whether any of the changes to the estimation in the yoar represented changes in accounting policy or
material ecror, which required reassessment of the hustorical posttion

Key observations We are satisfied that the assumptions applied ir assessing the impairment of trade recewables and the ca culation of
the agerg of trade recevab e are appropriale ard no additional provision wasdentfl ed fram the audit work pe-formed

Valuation of the group’s retirement benefit obligations

Key audit matter description Thisis an area invoiving significant estimation because the srocess 1s complex and regures management after taking
advice from their actuanial advisers 1o make a number of assumptios conce~ming Lhe discount rate, inflation and
pension increases, and the longevity of current pensioners in order to determine the value of the scheme s babilites
The key audil matter 15 ‘ocused on the valuation of the pension scheme Liabililes and the aspropriateness of the
acluarial assumplions that are used Lo calculate it, specifically w th reference 'o the discount rate

The group s retrement benelil obligation at 31 March 201815 £519 8 mull'an [31 Varch 2017 £574 & million] as per nole 28
Retred Benefit Schemes

The Audt Commi‘tee also considered this as a significantissue as discussed in the Audit Com=iltee Reporton page 86
Ma~agement has included this as a key source of estimation L~certainty in note 4 {o the financia statements

How the scope of gur We have challenged the assumptions applied by performing the following procedures
audit re;ponded tothe » evaluated the design and implementation of key controls and with support from the pension specialists within gur
key audit matter audit team we challenged the assumptions used in the calculation of the pension scherme defli2it as detailed in note 28,

speahicatly challenging the discount rate with reference to comparable markel and other thiro party oala, and

assessed whether there had been any changes in the methodology to determine the assumptions since the priar year

Key observations We are sauished that managernent s assumotiors in ine va uation of the retirement benefil obligation including discount
rates, are appropriate and within a reasonable range

Classification and valuation of capital expenditure in Severn Trent Water Limited

Key audit matter descrintion Severn Trent Water Limited has a substanbal capital programme which has been agreed with the regulator [ Ofwat |
and therefore incu~s significant expenditure in relation to the deve opmen- and maintenance of both infrastructure and
non-infrastructure assets

Property, plant and eguipment ['PPE ) additions in Severn Trent Water Lirmited were £663 2 million of the total additions
of £621 2 million drsclosed in note 181£541 5 million of £583 ¢ millien at 31 March 2017)

Expenditure in relation to Increasing the capacity or enhancing the network is treated as capital expenditure Capital
projects may contain a combination of enhancement and maintenance activity which are not dishnct and therefare there
15 a key audit matter that PPE s valued incorrectly as a resull of items of operating expendilure being im sclassifred

Due to the level of judgement involved, we have determined that there was a potential for fraud through possible
manipuiation of this balance

The fud i Comrmiiee alse considered Wnis a significant issue as d scussed in the Audit Commitiee Report on page 85
Managerent has included this as a critical Judgement in note £ lo the linanciat staterents

How the scope of our We performed the following procedures to respond to the key audit matter
le:udnt rdels;pﬁﬂtthﬂ tothe + we assessed the group’s capitalisation policy to determine compliance with relevant accounting standards,
ey audit matter
y + we cvaluated the design and implementation and tested the operating effectiveness of cantrols over the apptication of
the policy to expenditure incurred on projects within the group s capital programme during the year,

+ for a sample of capital projects. we assessed the application of the capitalisation policy to the costsincurred by
understanding the initial business case for the project and ensuring that it had been approved by the relevant caprtal
programme board, and

« weagreed a sample of costs to third party invoices and assessed whether the splt between capital and eperating
expenditure was abigned to the original approved business plan

Key observations We are salished that the valuation and classification of assets capitalised in the year 15 appropriate
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Our application of materiality

We define materiality as ' ~e magnit. de of misstatementin the financial staterments that makes 1t probacle that the economic decisions af a reasonably
krowtedgeable personwould be changed or influenced, We use materiaaly botk in planning the scope of our auait work and in evaluating the resulls of
ourwark

Based anocur pro’essional juogement, we determined materialily for the financial statements as a whele as [ollows

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Matenality £18 rullion (2017 £18 millian) €16 2 mitlion 2017 £16 2 mullion]
Basis for determining materiality Approximately 5 6% (2017 approximately 5 7%} of 3 0% of net assets (2017 3 0% capped to 9G%
profit before tax, gains/lzsses on finanzial instruments of group materislity
and exceplional items
Rationale for the Asin 2017, profit before lax, yansflosses onthancal The parent cormpany does rof reade or exist for prohit
benchmark applied instruments and cxceptional items has been used insrder  generating purposes so materiality has been determined
to focus on the group s underlying trading performance using net assets

consistentwith the group s internal and external reporting

We agreed witn the Audit Comemittee that we would report
to the Comanittee all audit differences inexcess of £750,000
(2017 £7500C0) ‘or the group, as well as differences below
that threshold that, in ourview, warranted reporting on
gualitative grounds We alsa report to the Audit Committen
ondisc as.re Matters that we identined when assessing
the aver all presentat on of the financia stalernents

Graph removed

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the groap andits environment, inctud rg group-wide contrels, ard assessing the 1 5ks of
materiat risstateraen® a* the group level

Regulated Water and Waste Water 1s primarily comprsed of Severr Trent Water Lirited and Dee Valley Water Limited which were subject to a full scope
audit using a matenality of £15m and £0 4m respectvely We have audited a further 10 components using individusl statutary materal-tieswhizh range
frorm C44,000 tc £9,000,000 Uperating Services USwas disgosed on 30 June 201/ contributing £42 1 mullion of revenue and profit befor e .rterest and tax of
L1 4 rmillion ard was subject L2 analylical review,

This represents over $3% (2017 over 90%!k of the g-oup s ne operati~g assets and pro’ t befare tax, gains/ osses or " nancial instruments

and exceptional iterns

We alsa lested the consolidatior orocess and carrieo out analytica procedures to confirm our canclusior that there were ~o sigmfica~t risks of maersal
rmisstarement of the aggregated financial infarmation of the remainng corpenents not subject to full scope a.dil procedures

Our scoping 15 censistent with the prior year except that Water Plus Limited, Derwent Insurance Limited and Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited have not been
audited by separate component teams in 2018 They are subject to audit procedures performed by the Group audit team

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information The other infarmation cemprises the information included in the annual report, other than the

financial statements and our auditor s repart thereen

Our opimion on the firancis statements dovs nat cover the other intormation and, except "o the extent other mse explicitly stated m our repart we do not

oxpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In comnectionwith our audit of the financia statements, our responsibilily 18 "o read the other information and, in deing so, considar whether the other

infermation is materially inconsistent wits tne iinancial statements or out knewledge obtained n the audr or 0.herwise appears Lo be materially misstated

If we idertify such matenial incansistencies or apparent matena. rmisstatements, we arc requered to deterrmine whether there 1s a material misstatement in

the financia. stalements o~ a material misstatement of the other information, If based or .he work we have performed we conclude that there sa malterial

misstatemen: of th 5 cther rfermation, we are reguired to repor that fact

In 'his conlex|, matters lhat we are specilically required Lo report Lo you as uncorrecled matertal m sstaternents of the otherinformation include where we

cenclude that

¢ tair, balanced and urderstandable - the staternent give~ by the directo~s t~at thev consider Lhe annual ~eport and financ al slaternents taken as awho e
1= fair, balanced and understandakle and provides the information necessary for sharcholders Lo assess the group s pesition and performance, bus.ness
rodel and strategy, 1s materiatly inconsistant wirh our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

» Audit committee repor ting - the section describing the work of the Audit Comrrittee does not apprapriately address maiters commnunicated by us to the
Audit Committee, or

+ Orectars statement of cormpliance with the LUK Cor porate Governance Code - the parts of the directors staternent required under the Listing Rultes
relaung ic the company s campliance with =2 UK Cor porate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review by the a.dito-in accar dance with
Listing Rule 9 8 10RI2) do not propery disclose a departure trorm a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Cede

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters
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Group financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Severn Trent Plc continued

Responsibilities of directors

As explained mare fully n the Nier tors’ respansimilitbies stater-ent, the d rectors are responsible for tre preparation of tre financial staternents and for
being satisfied that they qive a t~ue and fair view, and for sucn internal sortrol as the direclors determine 15 necessary ta enable the preparalion of financ at
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In oreparing the financia statemenits, the directors are responsible for assessimg the group s and “he parent company s abilily to continue as a gomg concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going cencern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors cither intend ta liguidate the
group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obta nreasonable assurance about whether the financial stater—ents as ¢ whole are free sror matenial misstaternent, wrether due to
fraud er crror, and to issuc an auditor's report that includes our opinion Reasaonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 1s not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK will always detect a material misstatoment when it oxists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered matenab i, indmduatly or 17 ire aggregate, they could reasonanty be expecied to miluence the economit decsons of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

Afurther description of ou~responsibilibes for the aud L of the linancial staterment s 1s located on the Financia Reporung Counctl s websie at
www frc org uk/auditorsrespensibilitics This description forms part of our audrtor s report

Use of our report

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
under taken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are required to state to themin an auditor s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by Law, we do not accept er assume respansitbility to anyenc ether than the company and the cormpany s members as 2 body,
for aur audit work, for this repart or for the opinions we have formed

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the part of the Dircctors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared n accardance with the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

* the informaltion g ven in lhe Strategic report and the Oireclors ~eport for the firancia’ year [or which the firancial statemenls are prepared 16 consistent
with the [ nancial stalements, and

» the Strategic report and the Directors report have been prepared in accordance with appl.cable legal reguirements
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment abtaincd in the course of the audit, we have not
rdentified any matenal musslatements in the stralegic report or ine girectors repart

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired to report to you 1. 10 our opimian

* we have not recoived all the infarmation and explanations we require for our audit, or

» adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for gur audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

« the parent cempany financ al slaterments are not i~ sgreerent with the accounting records and returns
We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have not been made or the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited 15 not in agreement with the accounting recerds and returns

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters.
Other matters

Auditor tenure

We were appointed by lhe Company at 1ls annual general meeling on 26 July 2005 to audit the iInancial sialements of lhe Company for he year ending
31 March 2004 and subsequent [inancial periods Followirg a compebitive tender pracess, we wer e reappointen as audilor of the Company far Lhe year
ending 31 March 2016 and subsequenl [Inancial penods

Qur total uninterrupted period of engagement 1s 13 years, covering periods from our initial appointment through to the year ending 31 March 2018

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Our audit epinion 1s consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with 1SAs [UK]

Kari Hale, ACA [Senior statutory auditor}
Far and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

22 May 2018
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Irastated|
Mates £m Em
Turnover 5.6 1,694.1 1,6380
Operating costs before excephional items 7 (1,153.1) (1.1179)
Exceptional iterns 8 12.6) 16 6
Total operating costs 11,165.7) [1,701 3]
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 5 541.0 5201
Exceptionalitems 8 12.6) 166
Profit before interest and tax 528.4 0367
Finance income 10 677 727
Finance costs 1 287.2) [2773)
Net finance costs (219.5) (205 1)
Net losses on financial instruments 12 (6.7) 18)
Share of net protit/(loss) of joint ventures accounted for using the equity method 15 0.2 (18]
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 302.4 3280
Current tax 13 [32.9) 136 3]
Deferred tax ) 12 (29.0) (22 4]
Exceptional tax 13 - 52 7
Taxation on profil on ordinary achvities 13 61.9) [6 5]
Profit for the year from continuing operations 2405 3215
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 39 13.2 211
Profit for the year 253.7 342 4
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 253.7 3428
Non-cantrolling interests - i02)
253.7 342 6
Earnings per share
2018 217
irestated!
pence pence
From continuing operations
Basic 15 102.2 136 8
Dhiluted 15 1019 136 2
From continuing and discontinued operations .
Basic 15 107.8 1659
Diluted ) 15 107.5 1453
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Group financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2018 2017
£m £m
Profit for the year 253.7 3426
Other comprehensive income/iloss)
Jterms thal will not be reclassfied lo the income statemenl
Net actuarial gain/(loss) 29.1 (311 2]
Tax on net actuarial gain/loss (7.6 563
Deferred tax anising on change of rate - (31)
215 (258 0}
[terns that may be reclassified te the income statement
Gains/llosses) on cash flow hedges 5.8 80
Deferred tax on gains/losses on cash flow hedges 1.0 13
Armounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement 8.2 29
Deferred tax on transfer to the Income statement 1.4) 10 4]
Exchange movernent on translation of overseas results and net assets (1.6) 52
Cumulative exchange gains taken to the ncome statement (29.8) 28
(19.8) (18)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1.7 1259 8)
Total comprehensive income for the year 255.4 828
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 255.4 831
Non-controlling interests - 03
255.4 828
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Share Share Dther Retained controTl?:g— Total
capital premum reserves earnings Total interests equity
£m £m Em £m £€m £m £m

At 1 April 2016 2343 1062 1165 5598 10174 11 10185
P1ofit for the year - - - 342 8 3428 02 3426
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (80) - 80 - 80
Deferrad tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 13 - 13 - 13
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the W
income statement - - 29 - 29 - 29
Deferred tax on transfer to the income staterent - - (0 4) - [0 4) - [0 4]
Exchange movement on translation of overseas
results and net assets - - 53 - 53 01 52
Cumulative exchange gains transferred to
Incorne statement - - (2 8) - 12 8 - 12 8]
Net actuarial losses - - - (311 2] 3112 - (311 2]
Tax on net actuarial losses - - - 96 3 56 3 - 563
Deferred tax arising from rate change - - - [31] (31, - (31)
Transfer net of deferred tax - - 78 {701 - - -
Total camprehensive ncome/lloss] for the year - - 53 778 831 03 828
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 57 - - 61 - 41
- value of employees services - - - &2 62 - b7
Current tax on share based payments - - - 08 08 - 0s
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 01 01 - 01
Disposal of non-controlling interest - - - - - 108} 08
Dividends paid - - - (190 4] (190 4l - (150 4)
At 31 March 2017 2347 125 1218 4543 9233 - 9233
Profit for the year - - - 2537 2537 - 2537
Gains on cash flow hedges - - 58 - 58 - 58
Ceferrcd tax on gains on cash low hedges - - [10) - [10) - (10l
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the
Income statement - - 82 - g2 - 82
Deferred tax on transfer to the income statement - - (1 4) - {14 - (14}
Exchange movement on transtation of overseas
results and net assets - - (14 - (7 6] - (16
Cumulative exchange gams transferred to
income statement - - {298] - (298) - 298]
Net actuarial gains - - - 291 291 - 291
Tax onnet actuarial gains - - - 17 6] 176] - [7 6}
Transfer between reserves - - {90) 90 - - -
Total comprehensive [tossl/income for the year - - (28 8) 284 2 255 & - 255 4
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares issued 04 5?2 - - 56 - 56
- value of employees services - - - 69 69 - 59
Current tax on share based payments - - - 08 08 - 08
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 113 (13 - 113
Dwvidends paid - - - 1970) 11979 - 11970!
At 31 March 2018 235.1 H7.7 93.0 5479 993.7 - 993.7
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Group financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet
AL 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Nntes £m £m
Nan-current assets
Goodwall 16 62.2 810
Other intangible assets 17 88.4 80%
Property, plant and equipment 8 8,471.9 31146 4
Interests in joint ventures 19 37.6 374
DNervative financial instrumenls 20 36.0 470
Trade and other recewables 21 181.3 581
Retirement benefit surplus 28 18.2 28
8,895.6 8,450 6
Current assets
Inventory 188 162
Trade and other recevables 21 456.4 5178
Current tax recewable - 73
Dervative financial instruments 20 0.2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 22 511 44 6
526.2 5859
Current liabilities
Borrowings 23 (308.7) (559 4]
Derwvative tinancial instruments 25 - 0¢)
Trade and other payables 26 (462.6) (4519
Current tax payable (8.6) -
Provisions for liabilities 29 (45.6) (17 5)
(820.5} 11029 4]
Net current liabilities (294.3} (443 9)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23 (5,259.1) 14,719 6]
Dervative financial instruments 25 (116.8) (184 1]
Trade and other payables 26 1,009.4) (9557
Deferred tax 27 674.4) (6237
Retirement benefit obligations 28 (538.0) {584 4]
Provisions for liabilities 29 10.7) {16 3
(7,607.6) (70838
Net assets 993.7 9233
Equity
Called up share caprtal 30 235.1 2347
Share premium AN 1177 Nnz5
Other reserves 32 93.0 1218
Retained earnings 547.9 4543
Total equity 993.7 9233

Signed on behalf of the Board who approved the accounts on 22 May 2018,

Andrew Duff James Bowling

Chairman Chuef Financal Officer

Company Number 02366619
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2m7

Netes £m £in
Cash generated from operations 40 773.3 8510
Tax received 40 8.0 206
Tax pad 40 (14.5] 42 4]
Net cash generated from operating activities 766.8 8292
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of subsidiaries net of cash acquired (0.2) [777)
investments in associates and joint venlures - 1345
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (608.5) {519 2]
Purchases of ntangible assets and goodwill (27.3) (291)
Contributions and grants received 36.8 395
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries and other businesses net of cash disposed 251 51
Proceeds on disposal of business to joint venture net of cash disposed - 10 8}
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8.0 75
Net loans advanced to jont ventures (26.8) 109 0]
Proceeds on maturity of forward contract - 43
Interest receved 6.4 14
Net cash from investing activities (586.3) [7015!
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid [183.4) (172 6)
Interest element of finance lease paymenls 5.1 (58]
Dwidends paid te shareholders of the parent 1197.0) [190 4)
Repayments of borrowings (552.6) (276 2]
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (1.8) (15)
New loans raised 789.2 4980
Issues of shares 5.6 61
Swap termination payment 140.0) -
Net cash flow from financing activities {185.1) (142 4)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents [4.6) [14 7]
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 44.6 552
Effect of foreign exchange rates (1.5]) 41
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 385 44 b
Cash and cash equivalents 34.7 258
Bank overdrafts 112.6] -
Shorttermdeposits 16.4 188
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 385 4i b
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements

For the year endad 31 March 2018

1 General information

The Severn Trent group has a number of operations These are
described in the segmental analysis in note B

Severn Trent Plcis a company incerporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom, The address of its registered office 1s shown on
the back of the cover of the Annual Report and Accounts

Severn Trent Plc s listed on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial staterments for the group and the parent company
have been prepared on the going concern basis [see strategic
report on page 5%) under the tustorical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and
Liabilities at fair value

(i) Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
[IFRS |, International Accounting Standards [1AS] and IFRIC
mterpr etations issued and eftective and ratitied by the European
Union as at 31 March 2018

(i) Parent company financial statements

The parent company financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
comply with the Cormpanies Act 2006 The company meets the
dehmition of a qualifying entity as defined in FRS 100 Application
of Financial Reporting Requirements, accordingly the company
has elected to apply FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework

Therefore the recognition and reasurement requirements of
ElU-adopted IFRS have heen applied, with amendrments where
necessary In order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and
Reports] Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/410) as the parent cormpany
financial statements are Companies Act 2006 accounts.

As permitted by FRS 101, the parent company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under

that standard in relalion to statement of cash flows, share
based payment, financial instruments, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certam
assets, standards not yet effective, iImpatrment of assets

and related party transactions Where required, equivalent
disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no
profit or loss account or cash flow statement Is presented for
the parent company The profit for the year 1s disclosed in the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the balance sheet.

Severn Trent Plc 1s a partner in Severn Trent Limited Partnership
(‘the partnership ], which is registered in Scotland As the
partnership s included in the consolidated accounts, the parent
company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by
Regulation 7 of [he Partner ship [Accounts) Regutations 2068
from the requirements of Regulations 4 to 6,
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The key accounting policies for the group and the parent
cormpany are set out below and have been applied consistently
Differences in the accounting policies applied in the
consolidated and the parent company financial staternents are
described below.

(iiii) Prior year restatement

Prior year figures in the consolidated income statement,
related notes and alternative performance measures n note
46 have been restated to present separately amounts relating
to operations classitied as discontinued in the current year,
For details, see note 3%

b} Basis of consolidation ;
The consolidated financial statements include the results

of Severn Trent Plc and its subsidiartes and jornt ventures

Results are included from the date of acquisiion or incorporation

and excluded from the date of disposal

Subsidiaries are consolidated where the group has the power
to control a subsidiary.

Joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity
basis where the group exercised joint control under a
contractual arrangement

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are
identified separately from the group’s equity. Non-contralling
interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and the non-controlling
interests’ share of changes mn equity since that date
Transactions between the company and its subsidiares have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not included within
the group financial statements.

cJ Revenue recognition
Revenue includes turnover and interest income

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration recervable,
excluding value added tax, trade discounts and intercompany
sales, in the ordinary course of business for goods and
services provided

Turnover Is net recogrised until the service has been provided to
the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have either
been despatched to the customer or, where they are held on the
customer’s behalf, title has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the ameount of mains water
and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The accrualis
estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure
of unbilled water consumed by tariff, which is calculated from
fstonical oiting information

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

d) Exceptional items i
Exceptional items are income or expenditure, which indimdually

or, if of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the opinion of

the directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature of

the financial staternents are to give a true and fair view. In this

context, materrality s assessed at the segment level



2 Accounting policies continued

el Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year and 1s
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full on taxable temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities

and therr carrying amounts In the financial statements
Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non-discounted basis using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax assel is realised or the
deferred tax liability 15 settled

A deferred tax asset s only recognised to the extent 1t 1s probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to
utilise it

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there s a
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabllities

f] Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired
Goodwill arsing on acquisition of subsidiaries is included

in ntangible assets, whilst goodwill arising on acquisition
of associates or joint ventures s included ininterests in
assoclates or joint ventures respectively If an acquisition
gives rise to negative goodwilt this s credited directly to the
Income statement Fair value adjustments based on provisional
estimates are amended within one year of the acquisition,

if required, waith a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill arising on atl acquisitions prior to 1 April 1998 was
writien off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated
agamnst reserves Following the disposal of the US Operating
Services business on 30 June 2017, all acquisitians prior to

1 April 1998 that were included in goodwill have now been sold
Purchased goodwill anising on acquisitions of subsidiaries after
31 March 1998 1s treated as an intangible fixed asset

Goodwill s tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
set outin note 2 kl below and carried at cost less accurnulated
impairment losses Goodwitl 1s allocated to the cash-generating
unit that derives benefit fram the goadwill forimpairment
testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and all or
part of that unit1s disposed of, the associated goodwillis included
in the carrying amount of that operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation

g) Other intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost
Following mitial recagrition, finite Lfe intangible assets are
amortised on a strasght-Une basis over their estirated useful
econarmic Lives as follows

Year

Software 3-10

Other assets o 2-20

Arnortisation charged on intangible assets is taken to the income
staternent through operating costs

Finite Life Intangible assets are reviewad for impairment where
indicaters of Impairment exist [see 2 k] below]

Intangible assats with indefinite useful Lives are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Such assets are reviewed for
irmpairment at east annually and where indications of impairment
exist in accordance with the policy set out in note 2 k] below

Development expenditure 1s capitalised as an intangible asset
and written off over its expected useful economic life where the
following criteria are met

s it15technically feasible to create and make the assel avalable
for use or sale,

« there are adequate resources available to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset,

» there s the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,

* it1s probable that the assel created will generate future
economic benefits, and

» the development costs can be measured reliably
Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s incurred

h] Pre-contract costs

Costs incurred in bidding and preparing for contracts are
expensed as incurred except where it is probable that the
contract will be awarded, in which case they are recognised
as a prepayment which 1s written off to the income statement
over the life of the contract

The group assesses that it is probable that a contract will be
awarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no significant impediments to the award
of the contract

il Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s held at cost [or at deerned cost
for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS] less accumulated
depreciation and impairment Expenditure on property, plant
and equipment relating te research and development projects

is capitalised and depreciated over the expected usefut Ufe of
those assets

The costs of Uike-for-like replacernent of infrastructure
components are recognised in the income statement as they
arise Expenditure which results in enhancerments to the
operating capability of the infrastructure networks is capitalised

Where items of property, plant and equipment are transferred

ta the group from custormers or developers, the fairvalue of the
asset transferred s recognised in the balance sheet Fairvalue
15 determined based on estimated depreciated replacement

cost Where the transfer 1s in exchange for connection to the
network and there 1s no further obligation, the corresponding
credit s recognised immediately in turnover Where the transfer
15 considered to be Unked to the provision of ongoing services
the carresponding credit is recorded in deferred income and
released to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the
related assefs.

Where assets take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, the borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of these assets are added
to their cost
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Accounting policies continued

i) Property, plant and equipment continued

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated, using the
straight-line method, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful lfe, with the exception of freehold land which
1s not depreciated Assetsin the course of construction are not
depreciated until commissicnad

The estimated useful lives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80 - 150
Sewers 150 - 200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20 -40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15

jl Leased assets

Leases where the group obtains assets which transfer
substantially all the rnisks and rewards of ownership to the
group are treated as finance leases The lower of the fair value
of the leased asset or the present value of the minimurn lease
paymentsis capitalised as an asset with a cerresponding liability
representing the obligation to the lessor Lease payments are
treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge,
the capital element reduces the cbhligation to the lessor and
the finance charge 1s written off to the income slatement at a
constant rate over the period of the lease in proportion to the
capital amount cutstanding. Depreciation 1s charged over the
shorter of the estimated useful bfe and the lease period

l.eases where substantially all the rnisks and rewards of
ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating
leases Rental costs arising under operating leases are expensed
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land
are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownershipis
transferred to the group at the end of the lease

k) Impairment of non-current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an rtem of property, plant
and equipment, or any cther non-current asset is estimated to be
less thanits carrying amaunt, the carrying ameunt of the asset
1s reduced to its recoverable amount Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent trom other assets, the
group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs Recoverable amaount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell or estimated value in use

at the date the impairment review 1s undertaken Fair vaiue less
costs to sell represents the amaount cbtainable from the sate of
the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable
and willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value inuse
represents the present vatue of future cash flows expected to be
derived from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that reftects current market assessments of the
cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used 1s based on the group s cost of capitat
adjusted for the risk profiles of ndividual businesses.
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Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews
are also carried out If there 1s an indication that an iImpairment
rnay have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure
that non-current assets are not carried above their esttmated
recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised in the income staternent

1) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions received in respect of non-current
assets, including certain charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewearage networks, are treated
as deferred income and released to operating costs over the
useful economic life of those non-current assets

Grants and contriutions which are given in compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised
in operating costs In the period that they become receivable,

mf Parent company investments
The parent company recognises investments in subsidiary
undertakings at husternical cost

After initial recognition at cost (being the fair value of the
consideration paid]. investments which are classified as held
for trading or available for sale are measured at fair value, with
changes in fairvalue recognised in the incorne statement or
aquity respectively When an available for sale mvestment is
disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss previcusly recognised
nreserves s taken Lo the income statement

n] Loans receivable

Loans recevable are measured at fair value on initial recognition,
lessissue fee income receved After initial recogmition, loans
receivable are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method whereby interest and 1ssue fee
income are credited to the income statement and added to the
carrying value of loans recevable at a constant rate in proportion
ta the loan amount cutstanding

o] Trade receivables

Trade recevables are measured at fair value on initial
recognition if there is objective evidence that the assetis
impaired, It 1s written down to its recoverable amount and
the irrecoverable amount s recognised as an expense in
operating costs

Trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individuatly are assessed collectively for impairment by reference
to the group s coliection experience for recevables of similar age
or charactenstics.

pl Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional right to receive cash from
a government body in exchange for constructing or upgrading a
public sector asset, the amounts recevable are recegnised as a
financial asset in prepayments and accrued income

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recognised on a straight-line basis, before adjusting for expected
inflalion, over the Ufe of the contraclL.



2 Accounting policies continued

g) Retirement benefits

lil Defined benefit schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scheme assets and defined benefit pension schemne lLiabilities
is recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset
or cbligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
using bid price for assets with guoted prices For scheme assets
with no quoted price, the fair value 1s derived by using quotations
from independent third parties or by using applicable valuation
techrigues at the end of each reporting period Defmed benefit
pension scheme liabilitres are measured at the balance sheet date
by an independent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality cerporate
honds of equivalent term and currency to the hability,

Service cost, representing the cost of employee service in the
year, 15 included in operating costs Net finance cost s calculated
by applying the discount rate used for the scherme Lizbiliies to the
net obligation

Changes in the retirement benefit obligation that anse from

» differences between the return on scheme assets and interest
incorne included in the Incorne statement,

» actuarial gains and losses from experience adjustments, and

» changes in demogr aphic or financial assumptions,

are classified as remeasurements, charged or credited to

other comprehensive iIncome and recorded in the staterment of

comprehensive iIncome in the period in which they arse

There 1s no contractual agreement, or stated policy, for charging

the net defined benefit cost to participating group companies

Therefare, the parent recognises a charge inthe iIncome

statement which s equal to the contributions payable in the year

The net defined benefit cost for these schemes is recognised by

the spansoring employers, Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee

Valley Group Limited

(il Defined contribution schemes
Contributions to defined contribulion pension schernes are charged
to the iIncome statement inthe pertod in which they fall due

rl Provisions
Provisions are recognised where
*» there s a present obligation as a resutt of a past event,

« it s probable that ther e will be an outflow of economic benefits
to settle this obligation, and

* z reliable estimate of this amount can be made

Insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified and for

claims incurred bul which have not yet been notified, based on

advice from the group s independent insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the nisks specific to the hiability where

the effect 1s material.

s) Purchase of own shares

Where market purchases of Severn Trent ordinary shares are
made through an obligating contract, a hability for the present
value of the redernption amourt is recagnised and charged to

retained earnings Fayrnents for the purchase of shares are
charged to the labiity when made

Shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
which have not vested unconditionally by the balance sheet date are
deducted from shareholders’ funds untit such time as they vest

t) Borrowings
The accounting poticy for borrowings that are the hedged item
in a fair value hedge s set out In note 2 1),

All other borrowings are initially recogmised at fair value less
Issue costs After imtial recogniticn, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method whereby interest and issue costs are charged to the
income statement and added to the carrying value of borrowings
at a constant rate in propertion to the capital amount outstanding

Index-linked debt s adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation
index and changes in value are charged to finance costs

Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated
to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet date
Exchange gams or losses resulting from this are credited
or charged to gains/losses on financial instruments

u) Derivative financial instruments

Dervative financial instruments are stated at fair value, including
accrued interest Fair value 1s determined using the methodology
described in note 34 a2l The accounting policy for changes in fair
value depends on whether the dervative 15 designated as a hedging
instrument The various acceunting policies are described below

Interesl receivable or payable in respect of derivative financiat
nstruments 1s included i finance income or costs

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Gains or losses arising on ramaasurement of derivative financial
instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments
are recognised in gains/losses on financial instruments in the
income statement

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The group uses dervative financial instruments such as cross

currency swaps, forward currency contracts and imterest rate

swaps to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and

interest rate fluctuations.

At the inception of each hedge relationship, the group documents

« the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged itern,

 1ts risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
the hedge transaction, and

* the results of tests to determine whether the hedging
instrurnent 1s expected to be highly effective in effsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropriate) of the
hedged tem

The group continues to test and decument the effectiveness of

the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument

expires, 15 sold, ter minated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for

hedge accounting
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Accounting policies continued

u) Derivative financial instruments continued

Fair value hedges

Where aloan or borrowing is in a fair value hedging relationship
itis remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in
gains/losses on financial Instruments in the Income statement
The gain or loss on the carresponding hedging instrument 1s
also taken to gains/losses en financial Instrurnents in the iIncome
statement so that the effective portion of the hedge will offset the
gain or loss on the hedged item

If hedge accounting is discontinued, the fair value adjustment
arising from the hedged risk on the hedged item s amortised to
the income statement over the anticipated remaining life of the
hedged item

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging iInstrument that is
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equity and
the ineffective portian is charged to gains/losses on financial
nstruments in the income statement When the gain or loss from
the hedged underlying transaction is recegnised in the income
staternent, the gains or losses on the hedgmg instrument that
have previously been recognised in equity are recycled through
gainsflosses on financial instruments in the incorme statement.

If hedge accounting s discontinued, any cumulative gain ar lass
on the hedging Instrument previously recognised in equity is held
i eguity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to
gains/losses on financial Instruments in the income statement
if the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

From this point the derivative 1s accounted for in the same

way as derivatives not designated as hedging instruments.

If the hedging instrurnent s terminated, the gains and losses
previously recogrised in equity are held in equity until either
the forecast transaction accurs or the forecast transaction 1s
ne longer expected to occur.

Embedded derivatives

Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its

cash flows to vary in a simitar way to a derivative financial

instrument, that part of the contract is considerad to be an

embedded derwative

Ermnbedded derivatives are separated from the contract and

measured at fair value with gains and losses taken to the income

statementf.

* the risks and characteristics of the embedded derivative are
not closely related to those of the cantract, and

¢ the contract is not carried at fair value with gains and losses
reported in the nceme staterment

In all other cases embedded derivatives are accounted forin line
with the accounting policy for the contract as a whole

v) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grantis
recognised as an expense over the vesting peniod of the grant.
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The fair vatue of employee services 1s determined by reference
to the fair vatue of the awards granted, calcutated using

an approprate pricing model, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions The nurnber of awards that

are expected to vest takes into account non-market vesting
conditions including, where appropriate, continuing employment
by the group The charge 15 adjusted to reflect shares that do not
vest as a result of failling to rmeet a non-market condition.

Share based compensation plans are satisfied gy shares of

the parent company Where the fair value of the awards is

not recharged to participating group campanies, the parent
company records the fair value of the awards as an increase in its
nvestrnent in the subsidiary, The mvestmentiis adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as a result of failling to meet a non-market
based condition

w] Cash flow statement

For the purpase of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include highly biquid investrnents that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change invalue Such investments
are normally those with less than three months matunity from
the date of acquisition and include cash and bank balances and
investments in liquid funds

Net cash and cash equivalents include overdrafts repayable
on demand

Interest paid in the cash flow stalement includes amounts
charged to the income statement and amounts inciuded in the
cost of property, plant and equipment

x] Net debt

Net debt comprises barrowings including remeasurements
for changes in fair value of arnounts in fair value hedging
relationships, cross currency swaps that are used to fix the
sterling liability of foreign currency borrowings [whether hedge
accounted or not], net cash and cash equivalents, and loans to
Joint ventures

yl Foreign currency

The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings
are transtated into sterling, the presentational currency of the
group, using average rates of exchange ruling during the year

The net investrents in overseas subsidiary undertakings are
translated inta sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year
end. Exchange differences arising are treated as movements in
equity On disposal of a foreign currency denominated subsidiary,
the deferred curnulative amount recognised in equity since

1 April 2004 relating to that entity 1s recognised In the income
statement under the transitional rule of IFRS 1 'First-time
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’

Foreign currency denominated assets and labilities of the
company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated into the
relevant functicnal currency at the rates of exchange ruling at
the yearend Any exchange differences so arising are dealt with
through the income statement



2 Accounting policies continued

yl Foreign currency continued

Foreign currency transachons arsing during the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the
date of the transaction All gains and losses on exchange ansing
during the year are dealt vath through the income statement

z| Discontinued operations and assets held for sale
Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group] s available
for immediate sale and the sale 1s highly probable and expected
to occur within one year then the disposal group is classitied as
held fer sale The disposal group 1s measured at the lower of the
carrying amounrt and fair value less costs te sell Depreciation is
not charged on such assets

Where a group of assets which comprises operations that can
be clearty distinguished cperatienally and for financial reporting
purposes, from the rest of the group la component], has been
disposed of or classified as held for sale, and 1t

* represents a separate major Line of business or geographical
area of cperations, or

15 part of a single Coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or gecgraphical area of cperaficns, or

» 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,
ther the component is classified as a discontinued operation.

3 New accounting policies and future
requirements

The group has adopted all amendments to standards with an
effective date relevant ta this year end with no matenalimpact
on its results, assets or liabilities All other accounting policies
have been applied consistently

Al the balance sheet date, the following Standards and
Interpretations were in 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments affects the measurement and
disclosure of financial instruments with effect from 1 April
2018. The group does not anticipate that the classification of

its financial assets and Liabilities will change sigrificantly as a
result of the adoption of IFRS 9 The group does not propase to
retrospectively apply the hedge accounting criternia of IFRS 9

to hedging relationships established under 1AS 39 accounting
Existing hadges that qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39
are expected to continue to qualify for hedge accounting under
IFRS % For new hedges established following adoption of IFRS 9,
the group will determine on a case-by-case basis whether to
apply the hedge accounting provisions of IFRS ?

Provisions against trade recewables are calculated under the
current accounting policy using historical coltection infermatien
and losses expected ag a result of future events are not
recognised UnderIFRS 9 the group will recognise a provision
for the lifetime expected credit losses for trade recevables
However, the group does not expect the bad debt charge or
provision to be matenally different as a result

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from conlracts with custormers’ affects the
measurement and recognition of revenue with effect from 1 April
2018 The group has performed an impact analysis for each o its
business segments and the expected impact on the results and
financial position are set out helow,

Regulated Water and Waste Water

There will be no change to the tirming of recegnition of revenus
from charges for water or waste water services This s by far the
most significant source cf the group’'s revenue, making up 93%
of group turnaver in 2017/18

IFRS 15 requires that revenue 1s recognised if it 1s probable that
it will be receved The group is under a statutory obligation to
maintamn water services to domestic properties within the areas
defined inits water supply lcences. As a result, the group might
provide water and/or sewerage services to customers who are
unlikely to pay for these services Under IFRS 15, such revenue
15 not recagnised. However, there 1s no readily Identifiable group
of custorners where it 15 not likely, at the pomnt of billing, that the
revenue witl be collected

The group also receives income under the Water Industry Act
1991 as a result of providing new connections to 1ts existing
netwark The group’s current treatment for this income 1s to
treat it as a contribution to the related expenditure, recognise
it as deferred income an the balance sheet and credit it to the
incorne statement at the same time as the depreciation of

the cost. No change to this treatment is anticipated as a result
of the adoption of IFRS 15

Business Services

The Operating Services business operates under a series of
bespoke contracts with speaific performance obligations

The group has applied the methodology set out InIFRS 15 ta
each of these contracts in order to identify differences from the
current accounting policy The most significant differences arose
In relation to the group s contract te provide water and waste
water services to the Ministry of Defence {MQD ). The group
acts as the service provider under the MOD Project Aguatrine
Fackage C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,295 sites across
England cavering the eastern sea berder and from Lancashire
in the North West to West Sussex an the South coast,

Under the contract, the group maintains and upgrades the MoD
infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water
and waste water Both the operating services and maintenance
and upgrade services are charged under a volumetric tariff,
along with standing charges, which are adjusted with inflation
as agreed in Lhe contract,

The current accounting policy for this contractis to recognise
revenue billed under the volumetric tanff at the point of billing
The expected costs for the upgrade services are recogrised on
a straight-line basis, before adjusting for expected inflation, over
the life of the contract The resulting asset 1s recognised as a
financial asset in accardance with IFRIC 12

Under [FRS 15, the expected revenue over the life of the contract
will be allocated to the perfermance obligations under the
following headings

= gperating and maintaining the MOD infrastructure assets,
e upgrading the MOD infrastructure assets,

= adrministrabing the services received frem statutory water and
sewerage undertakers, and

* administrating biling services of the MOD's commercial and
Non Base Dependent [ NBL') custornars
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

3 New accounting policies and future
requirements continued

Business Services continued

Caosts of upgrade services recognised as a financial asset at

31 March 2017 amounting te approximately £30 million will be
written off to reserves on transition 1o IFRS 15 and revenue that
had not been recogrised under the existing accounting policy
amounting to approximately £35 rmillon will be credited to
reserves IfIFRS 15 had been applied in 2017/18 revenue would
have been approximately £1 mithon higher and operating costs
would have been approximately £3 million higher

IFRS 16 Leases’ sets out the principles for the recagnition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract, i e the custormer [lessee’] and the supplier
[ lessor’] and will be effective for the group from 1 April 2019
The impact on the results or net assets of the group or cormpany
of the changes to the standard has not yet been quantfied in
detail but this is not expected to be significant because the group
does not hold a significant value of operating leases

There are no other standards and interpretations in issue but not
yet adopted that the directors anticipate will have a material effect
on the reported mcorne ar net assets of the greup

4 Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group s accounting policies,

the group I1s required to make certain judgements, estimates
and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based cn the
information avallable Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual results may ulimately differ from those estimates

During the year, management reassessed the significant
estimates and critical judgements and resolved that the
following were no longer considered to be critical judgements
or significant estimates

i) Tax provisions

Following the excephional curreni tax credit in the prior year
ansing from agreement with HMRC of tax matters from several
priar years, and the group’s disposal of almost all of its overseas
operating subsidiaries, management ne longer considers there
to be sigrificant risk of a matenal adjustment to tax provisions n
the next year

ii) Goodwill arising on acquisition of Dee Valley Water

As set out in note 38, the fair values attributed o the assets
and lahilites acquired on the acquistion of Dee Valley Water
have been finalised in the year, and therefore there will nol
be a material adjustment to this balance in the next year.

iiil Unbilled revenue

The estimated consumption for custorners with water meters s
regularly compared to actual consumption data The difference
betwean estimated and actual consumption historically has not
been materal Hence unbilled revenue is no longer censidered
to be a key source of estimation uncertainty.
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w] Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provisions are made aganst Severn Trent Water's trade
recevables based on historical experience of levels of recovery
fram accounts in a particular ageing category As the provision
and the charge in the income staterment have not fluctuated
significantly over the past few years, it is unlbkely that there would
be a change 1in assumptions that would lead to a matenal change
in the carrying armaunt of trade receivables Management has
therefore concluded that provision for impairment of trade
recewvables 1s no longer considered to be a key source of
estimation uncertainty

v) Provisions for other liabilities and charges

in previous years. this area was disclosed as a significant
Judgement Management has taken note of the FRC's thematic
review of reportng jJudgements and estimates, which

sets out that this 1s an estimate rather than a judgement
Management has assessed the risk of material change to this
balance n the nextyear and concluded that it 1s not sigiificant,

al Critical accounting judgements

i) Classification of costs between operating expenditure

and capital expenditure

Severn Trent Water's business involves significant construchon
and engineering projects. Assessing the classification of

costs incurred on such projects between capital expenditure
and operating expenditure requires Judgaments to be made
The judgements are made based on cbjective criteria that that
group has developed to facilitate the consistent application of its
accounting policies

bl Sources of estimation uncertainty

i) Depreciation and carrying amounts of property,

plant and equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying
value for property, plant and equipment requires estimates to be
made of the useful Lives of the assets The estimates are based
on engneering data and the group’s experience of similar assets
Details are set out in note 21). A five year change 0 the average
rematning useful lives of property, plant and equipment would
result in a £35 milion change in the depreciation charge

ii) Retirement benefit obligations

Determiring the amount of the group’s retirement benefit
obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits reyuies
assumptions to be made concerning long term interest rates,
inflation and longevity of cuttent and future pensioners
Changes in these assumptions could sigrificantly impact the
amount of the abligations ar the cost of providing such benefits
The group makes assumptions concerning these matters with
the assistarice of advice from independent qualified actuaries,
Details of the assumptions made and associated sensitivities are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements.



5 Segmental analysis
The group s organised into two main business segments

Regulatad Water and Waste Water includes the wholesale water and waste water activities of Severn Trent Water Limited, its retail

services to domestic customers, and Dee Valley Water Limited

Business Services includes the group's Operating Services businesses in the UK & Ireland and the group's requlated and non-

regulated Renewable Energy business

On 15 February 2017, the group completed the acquisition of Dee Valley Water Group Limited This business has been included in the
Regulated Water and Waste Water segment with effect from that date Further details of the acquisition are set cut in note 38.

The disposals of the group’s Operating Services businesses in italy and the USA were completed on 23 February 2017 and 30 June
2017 respectively. These businesses have been classified as discontinued operations. The prior year segmental results have been
restated to present the ltalian and US Operating Services businesses as discentinued operations as set out in the stock market

announcement dated 19 July 2017

The disposal of the group's non-household retail business to the newly created Water Plus joint venture with United Utiliies was also
classified as a discontinued operation in the prior year This transaction was completed on 1 June 2016

The Severn Trent Executive Committee ([STEC | 1s considered to be the group's chief operating deciston maker The reports provided to
STEC include segmental nformation prepared on the basis descnbed above Details of Regulated Water and Waste Water s operations
are described on pages 34 to 41 of the Strategic Review and those of Business Services on pages 42 and 43

Results from interests in joint ventures are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC

The measure of profit or loss that is reported to STEC for the segments s underlying PBIT A segmental analysts of sales and

underlying PBIT 15 presentad below

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental results, assets and Llabilities in accordance with group

accounting policies These are eliminated on consolidation

a) Segmental results

2018 2007
Ireatated

Regulated Regulated
Waterand Business Vater anag Business
Waste Water Services Waste Water Servicas
£m £m £m £m
External turnover 15741 1199 1,527 6 1098
inter-segment turnover 0.5 18.8 12 186
Total turnover 1,574.6 138.7 1,528 8 128 4
Profit before interest, tax and exceptionalitems 514.9 36.0 4947 3272
Exceptional items [see note 8) f11.1) (1.8 26 L 04
Profit before interest and tax 503.8 34.2 5211 328

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items is stated after:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 300.7 7.7 2994 67
Amortisation of Intangtble assets 19.8 0.7 174 03
(Profitl/loss on disposal of fixed assets (5.0) - 08 -
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5 Segmental analysis continued

a) Segmental results continued
The repartable segments’ turnover is reconciled to group turnover as follows

2018 2017
[restated|
£m Em
Requlated Water and Waste Water 1,574.6 1528 8
Business Services 1387 128 4
Corporate and other 9.0 62
Consolidation adjustments (28.2] 125 4]
1,694.1 1.638 0
Included in revenues of Regulated Water and Waste Water of £1574 6 million [2017 £1,528 8 million) 15 £354 2 mullion
{2017 £317.5 mulbion) which arose from saltes to Watar Plus Select Limited No sther single customer contributed 10% or more
to the group's revenue for either 2018 or 2017
Segmental underiying PBIT 1s recenciled to the group's profit before tax as follows
2018 2017
[rustated]
£€m Em
Regulated Water and Waste Water 514.9 4947
Busingss Services 360 322
Corparate and ather (9.7) 60
Consolidation adjustments 0.2) (08l
Profit before interest, tax and exceplional items 541.0 520 1
Exceptional tems o
Regulated Water and Waste Water 11.1) 264
Business Services (1.8 06
Corporate and other 0.3 (10 4)
Net finance costs (219.5) (205 1]
Nel losses on finanaial nstruments (6.7 (18]
Share of profit/lloss) of joint ventures 0.2 18]
Profit on ordinary actmvities before taxation 302.4 3280

The group's treasury and tax atfairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax departments Finance costs are managed

on a group basis and hence interest income and costs are not reported at the segmental level Tax s not reported to STEC ena

segmental basis

b) Segmental capital employed

Separate segmental analyses of assets and iatwlities are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure reviewed by STEC

on a segmental basis s capital employed, as shown below

2018 2017

Regulated Regulated
Water and Business Water and Businuss
Waste Water Services Waste Water Services
£m £m £ m
Operating assets 8,900.8 196.6 8,4771 2131
Goodwill 63.5 - 673 149
interests in joint ventures - 37.6 - 374
Segment assets 8,964.3 234.2 8544 4 2654
Segment opecating liabilities (1957.6) (4191 (19709] 55 9]
Capital employed 7,006.7 192.3 6,573 5 2095

Operating assets comprise other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, retirement benefit surpluses, inventory and trade

and other recewvables

Operaning liabililies comprise trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions.
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5 Segmental analysis continued
b) Segmental capital employed continued

The Business Services capital employed at 31 March 2017 includes £31 3 millron in respect of Operating Services US, which was sold

on 30 June 2017
The reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to the group’s total assets as follows.

1~day abin J

JIUTUIOACE) )

2018 2017
£m £m
Segment assets o
Regulated Water and Waste Water _ 89643  Boh4L
Business Services 234.2 2604 3
__Corporate and other 50.5 406 2
Other hnancial assets 87.3 116 &
Loan recewable from joint venture 135.4 108 6 g
Current tax recevable h - 73 %
Consolidation adjustments (60.1) (41 4]
Total assets 9.421.8 90365 T
The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of Intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assels, ;
The reportable segments’ labilities are reconciled to the group s total Liabilities as follows :
2018 i =
£m Em =
Segment liabilities z
Requlated Water and Waste Water 1,957.6) 1,570 9] :
Business Services 16191 659 2
Corporate and other (74.6) 675] =
Other financial babilies {5.683.4] 546371 %
Current tax (8.6) - Z
Deferred tax (674.3) (6237 =
Consolidation adjustments, 12.3 685
Total liabilities (8,428.1] (8,13 2]
The consclidation adjustments cormprise elimination of intra-group creditors _
The following table shows the additions to other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
2018 2017
Regulated Regulated
Water and Business Water and Busmness
Waste Water Services Waste Water Services
£m £m [Ag] Em
Other intangible assets 256 2.8 251 47
Property. plant and equipment 680.4 10.1 5415 418
) Geographical areas
The group s sales from continuing operations were derived from the following countries
2018 2017
[restated!
Em Em
UK - 1,689.8 1,632 1
Other - 4.3 59
1,694.1 16380
The group’s non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets] were
located in the following countries
2018 27
Em Crm
UK §,841.4 83456
Us T o o - 87
B,841.4 83738

Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 155



Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Power

Rates

= other

6 Revenue
2018 m7
[restated]
£m £m
Water and waste water services 1,574 10276
Other services 288 305
Service concession arrangements _ 49.8 44 5
Energy sales and related incentive payments 41.4 354
Turnover 1,694.1 16380
Interest recevable 5.7 04
1,699.8 1,636 4
7 Net operating costs
2018 017
[restated
Before Betore
exceptional Exceptional excepticnal Ex eptional
costs costs Total cosla costs Total
£m £m £m £rm £m £m
Wages and salares 237.2 0.6 237.8 2185 - 2185
Social securily costs 232 - 23.2 216 - 218
Pension costs 20.8 {8.3] 12.5 209 16 4) 43
Share based payments 59 - 69 61 - 61
Total employee costs 288.1 (7.7) 280.4 2671 (16 4) 2505
~ 79.2 - 79.2 70 4 - 70 4
Carbon Reduction Commitment L 5.9 - 5.9 63 - 63
Raw materials and consurnables 55.1 - 55.1 511 - 2l
Rate 82.4 - 82.4 785 - 785
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 258 - 25.8 Ik - 211
Senvices charges 34.3 - 34.3 337 - 331
Depreciahion of tangible fixed assets 308.2 16.8 325.0 305% - 3059
Amaortisation of intangible fixed assets 20.5 20.5 178 - 178
Hired and contracted services 227.7 35 231.2 2249 - 2249
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 0.6 - 0.6 08 - 08
1.1 - 1.1 04 - 04
Hire of plant and machinery 5.5 - 5.5 39 - 39
Research and development expenditure 21 - 21 22 - 22
Profit on disposal of tangble fixed assels (7.3) - 17.3) (50 - (50)
Profit on dispesal of subsidiary undet taking - - - (0 &) - (06
Exchange losses/(gains) 1.1 - 1.1 (31 - 31
Infrastructure maintenance expendiure 135.2 - 135.2 1362 - 136 2
Ofwat licence fees 3.6 - 3.4 34 - 36
Other operating costs 44.5 - 44.5 403 - 403
Other operating income (3.0 - (3.0 [4 1] - (41
1,310.4 12.6 1,323.2 1.2506 8 (18 8! 1,234 2
Release from deferred credits 14.3} - 114.3) (139 - (139]
Own work capitalised 143.2) - 143.2) (1190) - (119 0)
1,153.1 12.6 1,165.7 11179 116 6] 1107 3

Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8
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7 Net operating costs continued
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors.

2018 207
£m Em
Fees payable to the company s auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts 0.2 02
- the audit of the company’s subsidiary accounts 0.4 05
Total audit fees 0.6 07
Fees payable to the company s auditors and their associates for other services to the group
- audit related assurance services 01 7
- ather services relating to taxation - 01
- other assurance services 0.1 03
Total non-audit fees 0.2 )

Details of directors remuneration are set out In the Directors’ remunaration report on pages 96 to 128

Other assurance services Include certain agreed upon procedures perforrned by Deloitte in connection with Severn Trent Water's

regulatory reporting requiremenits to Ofwat

Details of the group policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services and how auditor iIndependence and objectivity are
safeguarded are set out i the Audit Commuttee report on pages 87 and 88 No services were provided pursuant to contingent

fee arrangements

8 Exceptional items before tax

2018 a7
Irest ale il
£m £m
Regulated Water and Waste Water
Profit an disposal of fixed assets . - 10
Gain arising on penston exchange arramgément 7.7 154
Restructuring costs (18.8i -
1.1} 264
Business Services
Gain arising on pension exchange arrangement 0.3 0é
Restructunng costs (21] -
1.8] 06
Corporate and other ~
Etmination of mtra-group profit on dispasal of fixed assets - (110]
Gain anising on pension exchange arrangement 0.3 06
0.3 (10 4]
(12.6] 16 6
Exceptional tax s disclosed in nate 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees lincluding executive directors] during the year
B 2018 2007
Continwng  Discontinued
Continuing  Discontinued aperations cpuraliens Total
operatians operations Total Itestatod] Irestatod? fractated]
number number number namber nurriber number
By type of business
Regulated Water and Waste Water 5,660 - 5,660 5,273 2 ) 5,275
Business Services T 596 368 964 585 1564 2149
Corporate and other 9 - ? 11 - 1
6,265 368 6,633 5.869 1,566 7430
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

10 Finance income

2018 7
[restated)
£m £m
Interest income earned on bank deposits 0.5 02
Other financial iIncome 5.2 02
Total interest receivable 5.7 04
Interesl income an defined benefit scherne assets 62.0 718
67.7 722
11 Finance costs

2018 2017
£m £m

Interest expense charged on
Bank loans and overdrafts 19.2 227
Other loans 183.4 1674
Finance leases A L2
Total horrowing costs 207.0 194 3
Other financial expenses 2.7 03
Interest cost on defined benefil scheme Labilities 715 827
287.2 2773

Borrowing costs of £26 2 million (2017 £18 & million) incurred funding eligible capital projects have been capitalised at an interest
rate of 3 89% (2017 3 94%] Tax relief of £5 0 mullion (2017 £3 7 milben] was claimed on these costs which was credited to the income

statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £4 5 rullion (2017 £3 2 million]

12 Net losses on financial instruments

2018 2017
tm m

[Loss)/gain on swaps used as hedging nstrurnents in fair value hedges .l 176
Loss anising on debt in fair value hedges - 169
Exchange gain/lloss) on other loans 12.7 (111)
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity 8.2) (29}
Hedge ineffectiveness an rash flow hedges 1.4 on
[Loss)/gair ansing on swaps where hedge accounting is net appled 12,6} 111
Amortisation of far value adjustrnent on debt 1.1 05

{6.7) (18]

The group’s hedge accounting arrangaments are described in note 36
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13 Taxation
al Analysis of tax charge in the year
2018 207
lrestated)
Before
exceplicngl Exceptional
tax tax Tetal
£m £m £m Em
Current tax at 19% {2017: 20%)
Current year 368 473 - 473
Prior years (3.9 (110 (16 4} 127 4)
Total current tax 32.9 363 [16 4 199
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of termpaorary differences -
Current year 214 16 4 - 16 4
Prioryears 7.6 &0 40 100
Exceptiona! credit from rate change - - (398 139 8)
Total deferred tax 29.0 27 & (35 8] {13 4]
619 987 (52 2] 65

The total tax charge for the year was £619 million (2017 £6 5 million]

The current tax charge before exceptional tax was £32 & million (2017 £36 3 million} In 2017, the exceptional current tax credit of
£16 4 million arose primarnily from adjustments following agreement with HMRC of tax matters from several prior years

The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was £29 0 million (2017 £22 4 millian] In 2017, there was an exceptional deferred tax
crecit of £35.8 milticn arising from agreeing a number of prior vear tax tems with HMRC and a reduction in the corporaticn tax rate,

enacted in that year, to 17% with effect from 2020

b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The tax expense for the year 1s hugher (2017 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2017 20%)

The differences are explained below

2018 2m7

{revtated)

£m £m

Profit before taxation 302.4 3280
Tax at standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% [2017 20%)] 57.5 656
Tax effect of depreciation on non-qualifying assets 1.8 32
Other permanent differences 1.4 (14}
Current year impact of rate change (2.5} 127
Adjustments in respect of prior years a7 (17 4]
Exceptienal deferred tax credit arising from rate change - (39 8]
Total tax charge 61.9 65
2018 20107

[restated|

£m £m

Profit before taxation 302.4 3280
Tax at standard rate of corporation tax n the UK 19% [2017 20%] 57.5 858
Tax effect of depreciation en non-qualifying assets - 18 32
Other permanent differences o o 1.4 (14
Tax effect of accelerated capital allowances o 19.7) 13 2
Other tirming differences 14.2) (69
Adjustments in respect of prior years 13.9] (27 4]
Total current tax charge 329 199
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

13 Taxation continued
¢) Tax charged/(credited) directly to other comprehensive income or equity

tn addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/lcredited] to other

comprehensive Income or equity

2018 2017
£m £m

Current tax
Tax on share based payments (0.8 [0 8)
Tax on pension cantributions 1 excess of iIncome statement charge 19.3) 141}
Total current tax credited to other comprehensive income or equity (1011 [14 9]
Deferred tax
Tax on actuarial gain/loss 16.9 (42 2]
Tax on cash flow hedges 1.0 (13
Tax on share based payments 1.3 [01)
Tax on transfers to the incorme statement 1.4 04
Effect of change in tax rate - 31
Total deferred tax charged/lcredited) to other comprehensive income or equity 20.6 (401)
14 Dividends
Amaounts recognised as distributions to owners of the company in the period

2018 2017

pence per share £m pence per shary {m

Final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2017 [2014] 48.90 115.2 48 40 1140
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 [2017) 34.63 81.8 32 60 7% 4
Total dividends paid 83.53 197.0 8100 190 4
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 51.92 122.7

The proposed lnal dividend 1s subjecl lo approval by shareholder s al the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a

Liability in these financial staterments.

15 Earnings per share
al Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding treasury shares and those held in the Severn Trent Empleyee Share Ownership

Trust, which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in1ssue 15 adjusted to assume conversion of all

dilutive potential ordinary shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations are calculated on the basis of profit from conlinuing

and discontinued operations attributable to the equity holders of the company
The calculation of basic and diluted earmings per share is based on the following data

lil Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

2018 2017

Irestated]

£m £m

Profit for the period attributable to owners of the company 253.7 3428

Adusted for profit from discontinued operations attributable te owners of the company [see note 391 (13.2) (213)

Prafit for the period from continuing operations attributable to cwners of the company 240.5 3215

(ii) Number of shares

2018 2017

m m

Weighted average number of erdinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share 235.3 2350
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares-

- share options and LTIPs 0.8 10

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 236.1 23560
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15 Earnings per share continued
b] Underlying earnings per share

2018 2017

lrestatad)]

pence pence

Underlying basic earnings per share 121.0 1157
Underlying diluted earnings per share 120.6 1% 7

Underlying earnings par share igures are presenled for continuing operalions These exclude the effects of deferred tax, exceptional
tax, losses or financial Instruments, currenl tax relaled to losses an financial instruments, exceptional items and current tax

related to exceptional itemns. The directors consider that the adjusted figures provide a useful additional indicator of performance.
The denominators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as those used in the
unadjusted figures set out above,

The adjustments ta earnings that are made in calculating underlying earnings per share are as follows

2018 27
[restate ]
£m £
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share frorn continuing operations - 240.5 3215
Adjastments for
- exceptional terns before tax ) 12.4 (14 &)
- current tax related to exceptional stems i 0.7] 01
- net losses on financial instruments -~ 67 18
— current tax on net losses on financial instruments (3.3) 14 9]
-exceptionalcurrenttax o - (16 4]
~ deferred tax ] 29.0 13 4]
Earnings for the purpose of underlying basic and diluted earnings per share 284.8 2719
16 Goodwill
2018 2017
£m £m
Cost
At 1 April 81.0 182
Acquisition of subsidiary - 660
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ (14.4) (54]
Exchange adjustments (0.8] 22
Additional consideration in respect of acquisition 0.2 -
Adjustment to provisional fair values on acquisition [note 38) (4.0 -
At 31 March 62.2 810

Goodwitlis allocated to the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs] identified accerding to country of operation and business segment
A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGLU 15 presented betow

X8 2Mm7

£€m Em

Dee Valley Water 62.2 660
Operating Services US - 150
62.2 810

Dee Valley Waler alsc has an intangible asset with indef nite useful life amaunting to £4 3 millian (2017 nil]

The group has reviewad the carrying value of goodwill ‘or impairment in accordance with the policy stated in note 2 k] The carrying
value of the Dee Valley Water CGU was determined on the basis of value in use in the current and prior years The Operating Services
US CGU was sold on 30 June 2017

The value in use calculation for the Dee Valley Waler CGU s based on the mos! recent financial projections avalable for the business,
which cover the remainder of the current AMP period to 2020 and the following AMP period, which runs to 31 March 2025 As a
requlated water company. Dee Valley Water's revenues and costs are significantly influenced by the regulatory settlement for cach
AMP period so management considers it appropniate for the detailed projections to be coterminous with the AMP pericd
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

16 Goodwill continued

The net cash flows for the current AMP pericd are based on existing operations and Dee Valley Water's business plan, adjusted for
the synergies arising from the acquisition by Severn Trent, to the extent that they will be realised in Dee Valley Water The net cash

flows in the following AMP period have been reduced to refiect the lower weighted average cost of capital proposed by Gfwat in its
PR1? methodology

The key assumptions underlying these projections are

Key assumption %
Discount rate 63
RPl inflation 30
CPl inflation 20
Growth rate in the penod beyond the detailed projections 25

The discount rate was an estimate for the weighted average cost of capital at the year end date based on the market rate for the cost
of debt and the cost of equity included in the Dee Valley Water Finat Determination for AMPS adjusted to take account of risks already
retlected in the cash flows for AMPY and beyond. This past-tax rate was converted to the equivalent pre-tax rate discount rate above

Inflation has been included in the detailed projections at 3% and 2% for RPl and CPI respectively based on the Bank of England's
target rate for CPJ.

Cash flows beyond the ond of the seven year period are cxtrapolated using an assurmption of zero real growth and an estimate of 2.5%
for long-term inflation {combination of CPI and RPI.

The value in use for the CGU exceeded its carrying value by £15 46 millon The value in use 1s most sensitive to the assumption relating
to the growth rate outside the five year period. If the growth rate assurmption were reduced to 2.2% this would cause the CGU's
carrying amount o exceed its recoverable amount under the revised assumption

17 Other intangible assets

Computer software

Capitalised
Internally development Instrument of
generated Purchased costs and patents appointment Total
Em €m Em €m €m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 B 188 9 104 5 135 - 3069
Additions 147 145 11 - 303
Disposals 1) 12) D7) - {30)
Disposals of subsidiaries - 150 - - [50)
Exchange adjustments 02 10 - - 12
At 1 Apnil 2017 2027 1138 139 - 330 4
Additiens 78 182 04 - 28 4
Disposals 07) - (15) - (2 2)
Adyustment to provisional fair values inote 38] - - - 43 43
Disposals of subsidiaries - (72) _ _ (72]
Exchange adjustments 01 01 - - (02]
At 31 March 2018 217 124.7 12.8 4.3 3535
Amortisation _ L
At 1 April 2016 (159 1) (63 0) (12 6) - (234 7)
Amortisation for the year [77) (108 [0 8) - (19 3)
Disposals 07 03 07 - 17
Disposals of subsidiaries - 36 - - 36
Exchange adjustments 01 i07] - - 08
At 1 Aprd 2017 {166 2| 170 6 ne7 - (249 5)
Amortisation for the year (80} (12 6) 01 - [207)
Disposals 06 - - - 04
Disposals of subsidiaries - 43 - - 43
Exchange adjustments - 02 - - 0z
At 31 March 2018 173.6) (78.7) (12.8) - (265.1)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 38.1 46.0 - 4.3 88.4
At 31 March 2017 365 432 12 - 807
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18 Property, plant and equipment

i wbar g

BRNLRE R

tand and Infrastructure  Fixed plant and Maveable Assets under
buildings assets equipment plant construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 31680 49399 3,7881 670 5452 12,508 2
Additions 155 737 12 4 17 4806 5339
Transfers on commissioning - 134 4 399 2147 63 1395 3] =
Disposals (57) [07) (24 7} (38 - (34 9) ®
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 08 614 64 3 - - 1265 £
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - (47) - - (4 7) 3
Exchange adjustments - - 22 27 - 49 ;‘_
At 1 April 2017 o 33130 5114 2 4,052 3 739 4305 131839 5
Additions 91 605 164 09 604 3 69172 %
Transfers on commissioning 69 4 522 1365 44 [262 5] - -
Disposals 12 6l {0 3] (12 4} 129) 08 18 4]
Adjustment to provisional fair values [note 38! - 08 - - - 08 g
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - e 2 122) - 3a4] <€
Reclassifications 30 65 107 03l 75 -z
Exchange adjustments - - i0) 2] - 21 s
At 31 March 2018 3,384.5 5,233.9 4,166.0 55.6 979.0 13,821.0 :
Depreciation L b
At T April 2015 (11195] (1,256 5) (2,368 0) 456 - [£789¢] %
Charge for the year [812; [42 &) (178 1) 69 - 3088
Disposals 37 02 234 35 - 308 E
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 35 - - 35 =
Exchange adjustments T - - [14] [20] - [3 4] 5
At 1 Apnl 2017 (1,1970) [1.298 9] [2.570 é] 510 - (5,067 5] 5
Charge for the year 84 5) (31 5) (188 0) (4 8 - {308 8} i
Disposats 17 - 129 27 - 173
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - 102 14 8 - 250
Reclassifications 41 [15] {30] 04 - - —_
Exceptional depreciation {101) - [67] - - (16 8]
Exchange adjustments - - a7 10 - 17
At 31 March 2018 (1,285.8) (1,331.9) [2,694.5] [36.9) - 15,349.1)
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 2,100.7 3,902.0 1,471.5 18.7 979.0 8,4719
At 31 March 2017 21160 38153 15317 229 6305 8116 4

The carrying amount of property, plant and equiprment includes the following amounts In respect of assets held under finance leases

Infrastructure  Fixed plantand
assels equipment Total
£m £m £m
Net book value o
At 31 March 2018 115.8 5.4 122.2
At 31 March 2017 1188 102 12910

The depreciation charge for 2018 includes £16 8 million (2017 £5 0 mittion) in respect of the write off of redundant plant

and equipment
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19 Interests in joint ventures

Particulars of the group s principal joint venture undertaking at 31 March 2018 were:

Name Type Country of incorporation
Water Plus Limited Jomnt venture Great Britain

Class of share capital held

Ordinary B

Proportion of ownership

interest

50%

The results and net assets of the principal joint venture are shown below

Interests in jont venture

2018 2017

€m Em

Group s share of carrying value 3.6 374
Group’s share of profit and comprehensive income 0.2 (18]

All results are from continuing eperations i both the current and preceding year

As at 31 March 72018 and 7017 the jaint venture did not have any significant contingent liabilities to which the group was exposed and
the group did not have any sigrificant contingent lialities in relation to its interests in the joint venture The group had no capital

commitmentsin relation to its interests in the joint venture at 31 March 2018 or 20717

The company has given guarantees i favour of Water Plus Limited in respect of the joint venture’s liabilities to wholesalers in the
Open Water market and its loan from Severn Trent Water Lirmited The quarantee in respect of Labilities to wholesalers is capped at
£42 5 million [2017 £42 5 million] and the guarantees for the Severn Trent Water loan s for the amount due

The registered office of Water Plus is Two Smithfield, l.ecnard Coates Way, Stoke-on-Trent, ST1 4FD

20 Categories of financial assets

2018 2017
MNotee £m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted _ 5.8 236
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 11.4 236
17.2 4772
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Cross currency swaps — fair value hedges 18.7 198
Energy hedyes - cash flow hedges 0.3 -
19.0 198
Total derivative financial assets 36.2 670
Loans and receivables [including cash and cash equivalents)
Trade receivables 21 191.0 247
Loan recewvable from joint venture 21 135.6 108 6
Short term deposits 22 16.4 188
Cash at bank and in hand 22 34.7 258
Total loans and receivables 377.7 3674
Total financial assets 413.9 434 4
Disclesed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current assels
Dervative financial assets 36.0 670
Loan recevable from joint venture 135.6 90
171.6 7610
Current assets
Dervative financial assets 0.2 -
Trade and other receivables 191.0 2142
Loan recevable from joint venture - 994
Cash and cash equivalents 511 [y
242.3 358 4
4139 434 4
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21 Trade and other receivables

2018 2007
£m £m
Current assets
Trade receivables 320.0 3447
Bad debt provision {129.0} {130 5)
Net trade receivables 191.0 2142
Other amounts recevable 38.7 385
Prepayments 15.5 57
Accrued income 211.2 1598
Loan recevable from joint venture - 996
456.4 5178
Non-current assets
Other amounits recevable 1.5 -
Prepayments 131 214
Amounts recervable from service concessien arrangements B 311 277
Loan receivable from joint venture 135.46 20
181.3 581
637.7 5759
The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approxirnations of their fair values
Doubtful debts provision
Movements on the doubt’ul debts provision were as follows
2018 20T
Em fm
ALT Apri 130.5 1269
Charge for bad and doubtful debts [continuing and discontinued operations) } 27.3 219
Acquisition of Dee Valley Water - 28
Disposal of subsichary undertgking n.2) -
Amounts written off during the year {27.6) (211
At 31 March 129.0 1305
[he aged analysis of receivables that are specifically provided for 15 as follows
2018 2017
£m Em
Up to 90 days 05 10
91 - 365 days 1.2 63
1 -2years 5.2 28
2 -Jyears 25 39
More than 3 years 5.4 69
15.0 209

A collective provision is recorded against assets which are past due but for which no specific provision has been made.

This 1s calculated based on historical experience of levels of recovery
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

21 Trade and other receivables continued

The aged analysis of receivables that were overdue at the reporting date but not individually provided foris as follows

2018 017
£m Em
Up to 90 days 43.6 56 6
91 - 365 days 80.0 858
1-2years 57.5 572
2 - 3years 40.7 351
More than 3years 77.4 580
299.2 3027

The ameunts above are recancrled to gross and net debitars in the table below
2018 2017
Gross Provision Net Grose Prevision MNat
Em tm £m £m Ern €m
Not due 5.8 - 5.8 211 - 21
Overdue hot specifically provided 299.2 (114.0) 185.2 3027 (109 &) 1931
Overdue and specifically provided 15.0 (15.0 - 209 (209] -
320.0 129.0) 191.0 3447 (305 2142

Credit risk
Trade recejivables

Credit control pelicies and procedur es are determined at the indwiduat business unit level By far the most significant business urit
of the group s Severn Trent Water Lirnited, which represents 93% of group turnover and %1% of net trade receivables Severn Trent

Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and waste water services to custorners within its region Therefore thereis no
concentratien of credit nisk with respect to its trade recevables from these services and the credit quality of its customer base

reflects the wealth and prosperity of all of the domestic households within its region

Water Plus

In the current and prior year, the group’s Jaint venture, Water Plus, was the largest retailer for nen-domestic customers in the Severn

Trent region The trade receivables and amounts shown as loans receivable from joint ventures are disclosed within the related

parties note 45

22 Cash and cash equivalents

2018 7

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 347 258
Short term deposits 16.4 188
51.1 44 6

Short term bank deposits are held as security deposits for nsurance obligations, which are not available for use by the group
Ir addition, £9 8 million (2017 £18 0 mitlion] of cash at bank and in hand 1s restricted for use an the Ministry of Defence contract

and 1s not available for use by the group.

1 66 Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018



23 Borrowings

2018 2007
£m tm
Current Liabilities
Bank overdralt 12.6 -
Bank loans 2879 1512
Other loans 53 4061
Finance leases 29 21
308.7 5594
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 929.5 9271
Other loans 4,218.6 3,683 %
Finance leases ) 1M11.0 N36
5,25%9.1 47194
5,567.8 52790
24 Finance leases
Obligatiens under finance leases are as follows
2018 00
£tm £
Within 1 year B 6.5 61
1-2years 7.0 65
Z - 5years o 243 724
After more than b years w 1131 1219
Gross obligations under tinance leases 150.9 1571
Less future finance charges (37.01 [41 4]
Present value of lease obligations 1139 157
Net obligations under finance leases fatl due as follows
2018 2017
£m £m
Within 1year 2.9 21
1 -2 years 3.2 26
2-byears 13.7 15
After more than 5 years 94.1 995
ncluded in nen-current liabilities 1.0 1136
113.9 1157

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 14 years at 31 March 2618 Interest terms are set at the inception of the
leases The leases bear tixed Interest at a weighted average rale of 5 34% (2017 5 34%] The lease obligations are secured against

the related assets

There were ne contingent rents, escalation clauses or material renewat or purchase options. The terms of the finance leases do not

Impose restriction on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

25 Categories of financial liabilities

2018 2017
Notus £m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Interest rate swaps — not hedge accounted 98.8 1632
Inflation swaps - not hedge accounted 2.8 -
101.6 163 2
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 13.6 207
Cnergy hedges - cash flow hedges 0.8 08
14.4 215
Total derivative financial liabilities 116.0 184 7
Other financial liabilities
Barrowings 23 5,567.8 52790
Trade payables 26 189 240
Total other financial liabilities 5,584.7 53030
Total financial liabilities 5,702.7 5,4877
Disclosed in the balance sheet as:
Non-current liabilities
Derwvative fimancial liabilities 116.0 1841
Borrowings 5,259.1 47196
5,375.1 49037
Current liabilities
Derivative financal lisbilities - [
Baorrowings 3087 559 4
Trade payables 18.9 240
3274 584 0
5,702.7 54877
26 Trade and other payables
2018 207
£m Cm
Current liabilities
Trade payables 18.9 240
Social security and other taxes 6.9 58
Other payables 21.6 135
Deferred ncome 149 1272
Accruals 400.3 39 4
4462.6 4519
Non-current Liabilities
Accruals 0.4 21
Deferred income 1,009.0 953 6
1,009.4 9557
1,472.0 1,407 6
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27 Deferred tax
An analysis of tha movements in the major deferred tax labiliies and assets recognised by the group 1s set out below
Retirement Fairvatue
Accelerated tax benafit of financial
depreciation obligations mstruments Other Total
£m £m €m £m £m
At TApril 2016 766 2 155 8) (516 5% 6647
Reclassification - 155 (15 5] -
Charge/lcredit] to ncome 233 - 32 (01 264
[Credutl/charge ta ncame arising from rate change (42 5] - 22 05 139 8]
Acquired through business combination ne 17 - (1 125
Credit to equity - (42 2) {09 (01] (43 2]
Charge te equity artsing from rate change - 21 10 - 31
A1 April 2017 758 9 (787] (46 1) (10 4] 6237
Charge/lcredit] lo ncome 245 {03) 16 32 290
Charge for adjustments to provisional fair values 01 - - 10 11
Charge to equity - i69 24 13 204
At 31 March 2018 783.5 (62.1) (42.) (4.9) 674.4

Deferred tax assets and labililies have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recoverad/settled after more than 12 months,

are as follows

2018 27

£m £m

Deferred tax asset (109.1) 135 2)
Deferred tax liability - - 783.5 758G
674 .4 6237

28 Retirement benefit schemes

al Defined benefit pension schemes

{i) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK. The Severn Trent Pension Scheme and the Severn
Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015, while the Dee Valley Water Limited Section of the
Water Companies Pension Scheme, which 1s a secticnalised scheme, currently remains open to accrual The defined benefit pension
schemes coverincreases In accrued beneflits arsing from inflation and pension increases Their assets are held in separate funds
administered by trustees. The trustees are required to act in the best iInterests of the schemes’ beneficiaries. Aformal actuarial
valuation of each scheme 1s carried out on behalf of the trustees at triennial intervals by an independent professionally qualified
actuary, Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated by reference to their
pensionable service and pensionable salary history, with inflationary pension increases applying in line with the scheme rules

The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the dates of ther last completed fermal actuarial valuations as at the accounting date
are as follows

Date of last formal actuarial valuation

Severn Trent Pension Scheme [STPS)* 31 March 2016

Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme [STMIPS) ) 31 March 2016

Water Companies Pension Scheme - Dee Valley Water Limited Sechion IDVWS) 31 March 2017

" The STPS 15 by tar the largest o 1ne group » UK defined benefit schemes comprising ever 4G * of the group 3 overalt defined benehitobligations
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued
(i) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under the defined benefit pension schemes

2018 2017

£m £m

Fairvalue of assets 2,339.8 23528
Present value of the defined benefit obligations (2,859.61 (2927 4]
1519.8) [574 6]
Presented on the balance sheet as: )
Retirement benefit obligation - funded schemes in surplus 18.2 98
Ratirement benefit obligation ~ funded schemes in deficit (529.3) (573 9)
Retrement benefit obiigation -~ unfunded schemes 8.71 (19 5)
Retirement benefit obligation - tatal (538.0) (584 4]
Neti retirement benefit obligation [519.8) (574 &)
2018 2M7

STPS, STMIPS, and GYWS5 £m £m

Fair value of scheme assets l

Equities 360.4 914 3
Dwersified growth funds 5 o . 53 53
Gilts i B - 412 6
Corporate bonds . B25.7 é@
Liabibity driven investment funds (LD o . 783.1 42 6
Property ) . 1807 174 9
Emerging markets multi-assets funds ) _ 39 33
High-yield bends i i B 3.4 33
Hedge funds _ B N 0.6 1z
Cash 176.7 1245
2,339.8 2,352 8

The majority of the assets have quoted prices in active markets, but there are a small proportion of the equity and LDl investments
which are unguoted

Movernents in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows.

2018 2017

£m Cm

Fairvalue at 1 April 2,352.8 2,0398
Interest income on scherme assets £2.0 718
Contributions from the sponsering companies 35.2 332
Contributions from scheme members 01 -
Return on plan assets [cxcluding amounts included in finance incomel (1.3) 2276
Scheme administration costs (1.8 (33
Benefits paid (107.2) {87 2]
Acquisition of Dee Valley Water - 709
Fair value at 31 March 2,339.8 23528
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28 Retirement benefit schemes continued

a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued

lii Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s cbligations under the defined benefit pension schemes continued
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

Jaday o |

el R g |

2018 2017

£m fm

Present value at 1 Apnl (2,927.4} 12,345 3)
Service cost (0.5} - @
Exceptional past service credit 8.3 173 £
Interest cost (77.5} 827§
Contributions from scheme members (0.1 - g
Actuanal gains arising from changes in dermmographic assumptions 21.6 166 g
Actuarial gains/llosses] arising from changes in financial assumptions 69 (470 ) %
Actuariai gains/llosses] arising from exper ience adjustments L 1.9 (84 8) #

Benehts paid 107.2 872

Acquisition of Dee Valley Water - (611]

Present value at 31 March (2,859.4) (2927 4)

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted
by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to £8 7 million (2017 £10 5 rmullion) 1s included as an
unfunded scheme within the retirement henetit obligation

The group has assessed that 1s has an unconditional right ta a refund of any surptus assets in each of the Schemes following
settlerment of all obligations to scherme members and therefare the surplus in DYWS has been recogrised in full

(iii) Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2018 2017
£m {m
Amounts credited to operating costs
Current service cost (0.5) -
Excephtional past service credit B 8.3 173
Scheme administration costs (1.8} (33
8.0 140
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost (77.5) (82 7)
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest income on scheme assets 462.0 718
Total amount [charged)/credited to the income statement 19.5) 31

The actual return on scherne assets was a gain of £60 7 million (2017 gain of £299 4 million)
Actuaral gains and losses have been reported In the statement of comprehensive income

{iv] Actuarial risk factors
I he Schemes typieally expose the group to actuanal risks such as investment risk, inflation risk and longevity 11sk.

Investment risk

The group’s contributions to the Schemes are based on actuarial calculations which make assumptions about the returns expected
from the Schemes’ Investments [f the investments underperform these assumptions in the long term then the group may need to
make additicnal contributions to the Schemes in arder to fund the payment of accrued benefits.

Each plans mvestment strategy seeks to balance the level of investment return sought with the aim of reducing volatiity and risk

In undertaking this approach, reference s made to bath the maturity of labilities and the funding level of that plan A number of further
strategres are employed fo manage underlying 1isks, including hability matching asset strategies, diver sification ot asset por tfolios
and interest rate hedging

Currently the plan has a balanced appreach to investment in equity secunities, debt instruments and real estates Due to the leng term
nature of the plan babilities, the Trustees consider it appropriate to invest a partion of the plan assets in equity securities and i real
estate to leverage the return generated by the fund
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

28 Retirement benefit schemes continued
a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued
liv) Actuarial risk factors continued

Inflation risk

The benetits payable to members of the Schemes are linked to inflation measured by the RPlor CPI, subject to caps. The group's
contributions to the Schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation. If inflation 1s hugher than the levels
assurned 10 the actuarial calculations then the group may need to make additional contributions to the Schernes in order to fund
the payment of accrued benefits

The Schemes use Liability Driven Investment [LDT] within the asset portfolios to hedge against the value of liabilities changing as a
result of movernents in long-term interest rate and inflation expectations, This structure allows the Schemes to both hedge against
these risks and retain capital Investment in assets that are expected to generate higher returns

Longevity risk

The group’s contributions to the Schemes are based on assumptions about the life expectancy of Scherne members after retirerment
1f Scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuarial calculations then the group may need to make addiional contributions
to the Schernes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits.

{v] Actuarial assumptions
The major financial assumptions used in the accounting valuatian of the obligations for the STPS, which represents by far the largest
defimed benefit obligation for the group, were as tollows

2018 2007
% L
Price inflation - RPI A 31
Price inflation - CPI o } o 2.1 20
Discount rate 2.7 27
Pension Increases in payment 31 3!
Pension increases in deferment 3.1 31

The assumption for price inflatonis derved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on

index-linked gilts

In setting our discount rate, we construct a yield curve Shart-dated yields are taken from market rates for AA corporate bonds Long-
dated yields for the curve are based on the average yield avadable on ali long-dated AA corporate bonds We project the expected cash
flows of the schemes and adopt a single equivalent cash flow werghted discount rate based an this constructed yield curve

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the latest trienmial funding valuations The mortality assumptions adopted at
the year end for accounting purposes and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumptions are as follows for the STPS

2018 2017

Men Women Man Warnen

Mortality table used SZNMA S2NFA SZNMA S2NFA
Mortality table compared with standard table 5% 9% ?5% ?7%
Mortality projections CMI 2017 CM1 2017 CMI 2016 CM1 2016
Future improvement per annum 1.0% 1.0% 10% 10%
Remaining Life expectancy for members currently aged 85 [years) 22.4 24.1 225 241
Remaining life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 [years] 23.4 25.3 236 253

The calculation of the scheme obligations (s sensitive o the actuanal assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price inflation Icapped, where relevant} and mortably. The following table summarises the estimated impact on the
group’s cbligations from changes to key actuarial assumptions whiist holding all other assumptions constant
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28 Retirement benefit schemes continued
a) Defined benefit pension schemes continued

[v] Actuarial assumptions continued

Assumption Change in assumption Impact ondisclosed obligations
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 01%pa Decrease/increase by £48 million
Price inflation? Increase/decrease by 0 1% p a Increase/decrease by £43 millian
Mortality’ Increase In ife expectancy by 1 year Increase by £107 mullicn

I Achangen discounlrareis Lhely o occur as a result of changes in bond yield ano as sach would be expeclad (o be elfsel o a significant degrec by a changoin the
value of the bond agsets held by the plans

2 Treprojected impact resulting from a change in RP| roilects the underlying offect on pensions v paymenl, pensrons in gelermre~land resullant imcreases
salary assumptions

3 Thechange nassumptonis cased ontriennial s zluations and reflect the fact that ife expectancy rates are expecled .o Increaase

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assurmptions, particutarly between the discount rate and price inflation The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships Alse, In practice any movement in obligaiions arsing from
assumption changes are likely to be accompanied by movements in asset values - and so the impact on the accounting deficit may

be lower than the impact on the obligations shown above.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit cbligation has been ralculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit ohligation
tiability recogrised in the balance sheet

(vi) Effect on future cash flows

Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit abligation at the end of the year 1s 17 years for STPS and STMIPS (2077 20 years) and 16 years for
DVWS (2017 17 years)

The most recent completed format triennial actuariat valuations and funding agreements were carried out as at 31 March 2016 far the
STPS and STMIPS schemes and 31 March 2017 for DVWS As a result of the STPS and STMIPS actuanal valuations, deficit reduction
contributions of £25 mitlion were paid in the year ended 31 March 2017 and £10 million for each of the subsequent financial years
ending 31 March 2019 were agreed Payments of £8 million per annum through an asset-backed funding arrangement will continue
to 31 March 2032, Further inflation-linked payments of £15 millien per anaurn ar e being made through an additional asset-backed
funding arrangement, with payiments having started in the timancial year ended 31 March 2018 and continuing to 31 March 2031
These contributions will cease earlier should a subsequent valuation of the STPS show that these contributions are na longer needed

b) Defined contribution pension schemes

The group also operates the Severn Trent Group Personal Pension, a defined contribution scheme, for certain of its UK employees.
Cee Valley Water operates twao defined contribution pension schemnes, neither of which were material in either the current or

pricr year

The total cost charged to operating costs of €20 3 mullion (2817 restated £20 9 million] represents contributions payable to these
schemnes by the group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme As at 31 March 2018, no contributions (2017 £2 2 million)
in respect of the current reporting pericd were owed to the schemes.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

29 Provisions

Restructuring Insurance Other Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2017 - 216 122 338
Charged to iIncome statement 08 64 146 218
Utilisation of provision - {47} 07 (5 4]
Unwinding of discount - - 11 11
At 31 March 2018 0.8 23.3 27.2 51.3
2018 2017
£m £

Included m:
Current babiliies 40.6 175
Non-current habilities 10.7 163
51.3 338

[he restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of cornrmtied restructuning prograrmines. The associated outflows
are estimated to arise over a period of up to two years from the balance sheet date.

Insurance includes provisions in respect of Derwent Insurance Limited and Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited, captive insurance
companies, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the group, and insurance deductions i Severn Trent Water Limited

The assaciated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to five year s from the balance sheet date

Other provisions include provisiens for dilapidations, commercial disputes, either from continuing or discontinued operations,

and potential environmental laims, The associsted outflows ar e estimated to arise over a period up to 10years from the

balance sheet date

30 Share capital

2018 2m7
£m {m

Totalissued and fully paid share capital

240,222 617 ordinary shares of 97 /.p 2017 239793 915) 2351 2347
At 31 March 2018, treasury shares of 3,248,599 were held (2017 4 080.964]

Changes in share capital were as follows

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97"/,p
At 1 April 2016 239,344,614 2343
Shares issued under the Emnployee Sharesave Scheme 449301 04
At 1 April 2017 239793915 2347
Shares 1ssued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 428,702 04
At 31 March 2018 240,222,617 2351
31 Share premium
2018 207
£€m £m
At 1 April 12,5 106 8
Share premium arising on 1ssug of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 5.2 57
At 31 March 177 125
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32 Other reserves

Capital
redemption Transtation Hedging

reserve reserve reserve Total
Em £m €m £€m
At 1 Apri 2016 1571 379 [78 5] 1165
Total comprehensive incorne for the year - 25 28 53
At 1 April 2017 1571 404 (75 7} 1218
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - [31 4] s (198l
Transfer to retained earnings - 9 0) - (20]
At 31 March 2018 157.1 - (64.1) 23.0

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares
The translation reserve arises from exchange differences on transiation of the results and financial position of foreign subsidiaries,

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions
of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

33 Capital management
The group's principal objectives In mmanaging capital are

* 1o access a broad range of sources of finance to obtamn both the quantum required and lowest cost compatitle with the need
for continued availability,

* o rnanage exposure to Movermnents N interest rates to provide an appropriate degree of certainty as Lo its cost of funds,
* fo minimise exposure to countarparty credit nsk,

* to provide the group with an appropriate degree of certainty as to its foreign exchange exposure,

* to maintam an investrment grade credit rating, and

* tc maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure,

The group seeks to achieve a balance of long-term funding or commitment o* furids across a range of funding sources at the best
possible economic cost The group monitors future funding requirements and credit market conditions to ensure continued availability
of funds

The group has centinued to mamtan exposure to low floating interest rates, which comprises 26% of our gross debt portfolio at the
balance sheet date, with a further 26% of index-linked debt and 48% of fixed rate debt.

The group’'s dividend policy is a key tool in achieving its capital management objectives This policy is reviewed and updated in line
with Severn Trent Water s five year price control cycle and takes into account, inter alia, the planned investment programme, the
appropriate gearing level achieving a balance between an efficient cost of capital and retaining an investment grade credit rating and
delivering an attractive and sustainable return lo shareholders The board has decided to set the 2017/18 aividend at 86 55 pence, an
increase of 6 2% compared to the total dividend for 2016/17 of 81 50 pence Our policy 1s to grow the dividend annually at ne less than

RPI plus 4% untl March 2020
The group’s capital at 31 March was

2018 2017

£€m Em

Net cash and cash equivalents 385 44 8
Bank loans - 1.217.4) (1073 3)
Other loans (4,223.9) (4,090 0)
Finance leases (113.9) (115 7)
Cross currency swaps N 245 434
Loans due from joint ventures 135.6 1086
Net debt {5,356.6] (5,082 4)
Eguity attribulable to owners of the company (993.7) (923 3]
Total capital 16,350.3) {6,005 7]
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

34 Fair values of financiat instruments

al Fair value measurements

The valuation techniques that the group applies in deterrmining the fair values of its financial instrurments on a recurning basis are
described below The techriques are classified under the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13 which categorises valuation technigues into
Levels 1~ 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s cbhservable The group’s valuation technigues include Levels 2 and 3 given

the wide range of financial instruments below

2018 2017
£m £m  VYaluation techriques and key inputs
Cross currency swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 24.5 434 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates from
observable yield curves at the year end and contract interest rates
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties
The currency cash fiows are translated at spot rate
Interest rate swaps Discounted cash flow
Assels 1.4 236  Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates from
Liabilities (112.4) [1839] observable yield curves at the year end and contract interest rates
discotinted at a rate thal reflects the credit risk of counterparties
Energy swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 0.3 —  Future cash flows are estimated based on forward electricity prices from
Liabilities [0.8) [0 8] observable indices at the year end and contract prices discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties
Inflation swaps Discounted cash flow
Liabilities {2.8) - Future cash flows on the RPl leg of the instruments are estimated based

on observable forward inflalion indices

Future rash flaws on the CPlleg of the instruments are estimated based
on the future expected differantial between RPYand CPI

Both legs are discounted using observable swap rates at the year end,

at arate that reflects Lhe credit nsk of counterparties This s considered
to be a Level 3 valuation technique
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34 Fair values of financial instruments centinued

b) Comparison of fair values of financial instruments with their carrying amounts

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term deposits, bank averdrafts, loans recervable from joint
ventures, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their fair values The carrying values and estimated fair vatues of other
financial instruments are set out below

viddan at ey [

ISR VR VTaly ]

2018 2017
Carryingvalue Fair value Carrying value Fair value

£m £m £in £m >

Floating rate debt 2

Bank loans 9171 918.6 776 3 7820 %

Currency bonds 38.2 38.2 401 401 ]

Floating rate notes 147.7 153.0 1477 156 4 %

1,103.0 1,109.8 964 1 9785 ng'

Fixed rate debt 5

Bank loans 185.3 185.0 186 4 186 4 *
Sterling bonds _ 2,357.0 2,700.2 22572 27462 o

Fixed rate notes 343.4 347.6 3552 3974 -

Other loans 5.3 5.3 &7 67 %

Finance leases 1139 122.5 157 1305 ;

3,004.9 3,360.6 29212 34674 .

Index-linked debt - &

Bank loans ’ 115.0 1249 1106 1267 f

Sterling bonds i ) 1,244 .1 2,057.1 1,195 8 2,063 1 5

Other loans 88.2 87.1 873 873 <

1.447.3 2,269.1 13937 22771 3

5,655.2 56,7395 52790 67730 5

I'he above classification does not take inte account the impact of unhedyged interest rate swaps o1 Cross currency swaps.
Fixed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices, which 1s a Level 2 valuation technique

Index-linked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicator of fair value
Therefore, these bands are valued using discounted cash flow models with discount rates derwved from observed market prices
for a sample of bonds, which 1s a Level Z valuation technique.

Fair values of the other debt instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models, which s a Level 2
valuation technigue

35 Risks arising from financial instruments

The group's activities expose It to a variety of financal risks

» market nisk [including interest rate risk, exchange rate risk and other price risk,
e credit risk,

* Liquidity risk, and

» inflation risk

The group’s overalt risk management programme addresses the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential
adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position

Financial risks are managed by a central treasury department [ Group Treasury’) under policies approved by the board of directors
The board has established a Treasury Comnmittee to monstor treasury activities and to facilitate imely responses te changes in
markel condibions when necessary. Group Treasury idenlifies, cvaluates and hedges Ninancial risks in close cooperation wilh the
group s operating units. The board defines written principles for overall risk rmanagerent, as well as written palicies covering specific
areas such as exchange rate risk, interest rate rnisk, credit risk and the use of dervative and non-derivative financial instruments

The greup’s policy 1s that derivative financial instruments are not hetd for trading but may be used to mitigate the group’s exposure

to financiat risk The types of dervative instruments held and the related risks are described below,

Interest rate swaps are held to manage the group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates Further details are set cut in
section a [I) and note 36 b) [I

Cross currency swaps are held to mitigate the group s exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts borr owed in foreign
currencies Further details are set out in section a) (1] and 36 2] (1)
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

Energy swaps are held to miugate the group’s exposure to changes in electricity prices Further details are provided in note 36 b) [1] below
Severn Trent Waler, lhe graup's most significant business unit, operates under a requlatory environment where jts prices are linked
to inflation measured by RPI. In order to miligale the risks to cash flow and earmings arising from fluctuations in RPI, the group holds
debt instruments where the principal repayable and interest cost 1s inked to RPI

a) Market risk

The group 1s exposed to fluctuations in interest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates. The nature of these risks and the steps
that the group has taken to manage them are described below

{il Interest rate risk

The group’s Income and Its operating ¢ash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The group’s
interest rate nisk arises from long-term borrowings

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group to the risk of adverse cash flow impacts fromincredses ininter est rates
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to the risk of interest costs abave the market rate when interest rates decrease

The group’s policy 1s to maintain 40% ta 70% of its interest bearing Liabilities in fixed rate instruments during AMP6, In measuring
this metric, management makes adjustrments to the carrying value of debt to better reflect the amount that interest 1s calculated on.
Details of the adjustments made are set out below

208 2017

£m £m

Net debt [note 40) ~ 5,356.6 5,082 4
Cash and cash equivalents 51.1 44 &
Loan recewable fram jaint venture 135.6 108 6
Cross currency swaps Included in net debt al fair value 24.5 434
Fair value hedge accounting adjustments {30.4) [315]
Exchange on currency debt not hedge accounted N (8.9) 212
Inlerest-bearing financial babilitas 55289 52263

The group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by borrowing at fixed or index-linked rates or by using interest rate swaps

Under these swaps the group receives variable rate interest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principat amounts In practice the swaps are settled by transferring the net amount. These swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrewings f om vaiable rates to fixed rates The group has entered into a series of these Interest rate swaps to hedge
future interest payments beyond 2030

The following tables show analyses of the group's interest bearing financial iabilitios by type of interest. Debt which 1s hedged by
Interest rate swaps or cross currency swaps 1s Included in the category after taking account of the impact of the swap Debt raised in
foreign currencies has been included at the notional sterling value of the payable leg of the corresponding cross currency swap since
this is the amount that 1s exposed te changes in interest rates

Valuation adjustments that do not Impact the amount on which interest s calculated, such as fair value hedge acceunting adjustments,
are excluded from this analysis

The nel principal amount of unhedged swaps 1s shown as an adjustment to floating rate and fixed rate debt to demonstrate the impact
of the swaps on the amount of iabilities bearing fixed interest.

Floating Fixed Index-

rate rate linked Total

2018 £m £m £m £m

Overdrafts (12 &} - - [12 ¢]

Bank loans 2171] (185 3] (1150) (1,217 4}

Other loans (167 6) (2,685 0] (1,332 3 (4,184 9)

Finance leases - (113 9) - (113 9}

1,097.3] (2,984.2) 1,647.3) (5,528.9)

Impact of swaps not matched against specific debt instruments (349 ¢6) 3496 - -

Interest bearing financial liabilities 1,466.91 12,634.6) 11,447.3) (5,528.9)
Proportion of interest bearing financial liabilities that are fixed 48%
Weighted average interest rale of fixed debl 4.30%
Weighted average period for which interest s fixed [years) 8.8
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
a) Market risk continued

(il Interest rate risk continued

|

1vas wba g

27U I ,

Flaating Fized Index-
rate rate linked Total

2017 Em fm £m Cim
Bank loans [776 3 186 4 (110 é) 1,073 3}
Other loans (167 &} (2,586 4) (1,283 3) (40373 —
Finance leases - 157 - 115 7] 2

943 9) (2,885 5] [1,3939] 52263 %
Impact of swaps nat matched against spealic debt instruments {205 3} 2053 - - %
Interest bearing financial Liabilities [1.149 2] (2,683 2) [1,3939] (5.226 3] 5
Proportion of interest bearing financial iabilities that are fixed 51% I |
Werghted average interesi rale of fixed debt 5 16% :%
Weighted average periad for which interest s fixed lyears) 92

Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted
The group has a number of interest rate swaps which are nol accounted for as cash [low or fair value hedges This has led to a credit
of £79 millien (2017 charge of £3 3 million) in the iIncome staternent

Average contract fixed interest rate Notional principal amaunt Fairvalue
2018 2m7 2018 207 2018 207
%o : £m Ern £m £m
Pay fixed rate interest

5 - 10 years 5.06 506 (300.0) (450 0) (65.6) 125 3)
10-20years 5.46 545 (73.7) (68 1) [32.4) i378)
5.16 511 [373.7) (518 1] (98.2) (163 1]

Receive fixed rate interest
5-10years 3.36 334 225.0 750 11.4 58
10 - 20 years 2.75 292 400.0 2300 (0.6) 178
3.01 297 625.0 6250 10.8 236
251.3 1069 (87.4] (1395)

SIULTL P EOUPT AR L)

IRV PRV I W N Tl

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity after tax of the group s profits, cash flow and equity, including the impact on cervative financial instruments, to
changes ininterest rates at 31 March 1s as follows

2018 2017

10% -10% 107 1%,

£m £m £m £

Profitor loss (47.7) 53.9 (36 1) 543
Cash flow (11.5) 11.5 88 (88)
Equity - (47.7) 53.9 (34 1) 543

(i) Exchange rate risk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which 1s hedged. the group’s business does not invalve significant exposure to fareign
exchange transactions Substanlially all of the group’s profits and net assets anise from Severn Trenl Water, which has very Umited
and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, and therefore the sensitivity of the group’s resulls to changes in exchange rates
Is not ralerial

Certain of the group s subsidiaries enter into transactions in currencies ather than the functional currency of the operation

Exchange risks relating to such operations are not material but are managed centratly by Group Treasury through forward exchange
contracts to buy or sell currency These contracts led to a charge of £nil [2017 charge of £0 1 mullion] in the iIncome statement

In order to meet its objertive of accessing a broad range af sources of finance, the group has raised debt denominated in currencies
other than sterling In order to mitigate the group’s expusure to exchange rate fluctuations, cross currency swaps were entered into at
the time that the debt was drawn down o swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
al Market risk continued

liil Exchange rate risk continued

Where the terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt, the swaps are expected to be
effective hedges, hence the swaps have been accounted for as fair value hedges The notional value and fair value of these swaps
:s shown In note 34 a)

The group alse has cross currency swaps with a sterling value of £98 3 mitlion (2017 £98 3 million) which are not accounted for as
fair value hedges Economically these swaps act to mitigate the exchange rate risk of debt within the group which1s denominated in
foreign currency, but they do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict criteria of IAS 39 This has led to a charge of £177 mittion
(2017 credit of £131 million] in the Income staternent which 1s partly offset by the exchange gain of £12 7 million (2017 exchange loss
of £15.4 million) on the under lying debt.

The group’s gross and net currency exposures arising from currency borrowings are summarised in the tables below These show,
in the relevant currency, the amount borrowed and the notional principal of the related swap or forward contract The net position
shows the group s exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to its currency borrowings

Euro US dollar Yen
2618 €m $m ¥bn
Borrowings by currency [20 2] (150 0) (2 0]
Cross currency swaps — hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted - 1500 -
Net currency exposure (0.3) - -

Eure Usdellar Yen
2017 £m $m ¥or
Borrowings by currency B (201 (150 0] (20
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted B - 150 0 -
Net currency exposure 02 - -

b] Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant cancentrations of credit risk 1t has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with an apprepriate credit history, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited and Dee Valley Water Limited, whose
operating licences oblige them te supply domestic custamers even in cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided aganst
accounts receivable and maovements on the provision during the year are disclosed in note 21

Cash deposits and dervative contracls are only placed with high credit quality financial institutions, which have been approved by the
board. Group Treasury monitors the credit quality of the approved financial insututions and the Ust of financial institutions that may be
used s approved annually by the board. The group has policies that bmit the amount of credit exposure to any ong financial mstitut:on

Credit risk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credit irnits of autherised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposiis were as follows-

Creditlirnit Amount deposited

2018 2017 2018 2017

£m Cim £€m Cm

AAN - 50 - 12
Double Arange 105.0 1000 - 18
Single Arange 650.0 62510 1.1 138
Triple B range 10.0 100 5.3 20
765.0 7400 16.4 18 8

The fair valuas of derivative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as follows

Derivative assets

2018 2417

£m £m

Double Arange - 08
Single A range 36.2 66 2
36.2 670
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

c) Liquidity risk

[i} Committed facilities

Prudent liguidity managernent requires sufficient cash balances to be mamtained, adequate commtted facilities to be available, and

the ability to close out market positions. Group Treasury manages Liguidity and flexibility in funding by monitoring forecast ang actual
cash flows and the maturity profite of financial assets and Labilities, and by keeping commutted credit Lines available

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing facilities expiring as follows

2018 2617
£m tm
2~ 5years 710.0 1,000 0

(il Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will arise from the group’s non-dervative net financial Labilities.

The informatien presented s based on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flows including principal and interest.

Interest and inflation assumptions are based on prevailing market conditions at the year end date,

Payments

on financial

2018 Floating rate Fizedrate fndex-linked  Trade payables liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable- £m £m m £m €m
Within 1 year o 1311 4) 136 0] (27 8) a9 {494.1)
1-2years B (10 3) M6 1] (29 4, - {155.8)
?-5years - (413) (5828 1325 7) - (1,349.6)
5 - 10years (785 3) (1.333 ¢) 1999) - {2.318.8)
10 - 15years - (52 7) (1,056 Q) 4362 - (1,544.9)
15 - 20 years - - (60 9] (139 0) - (199.9)
20 - 25 years - (298 8) 1677, - (466.5])
25 - 30years L - - 199 2} - n9s.21
30 - 35years - - 1649 7) - (649.71
35 - 40 years - - (2,273 &) - (2,273.6]
40 - 45years L - - 1.0681) - [1,068.1)
45-50years - - 1374 2) - (374.2
Total (1,201.0) (3,984.0] (5,890.5) (18.9) [11,094.4)
Recelpts

Loans due Cashand from

from joint Trade shortterm financial

ventures recevables deposits assels

Undiscounted amounts recevable: £m £m £m Em
Within 1 year - 1910 511 2421
1-2years 1263 - - 126.3
5-10vyears 125 - - 12.5
Total 138.8 191.0 51.1 380.9
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued
¢) Liquidity risk continued
(i) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments continued

Fayments

on hinancial

207 Flaating rate Fixed rate Index -Linked Tradve payables Liabilities
Unidhscaunted amounts pavable £m Em Em Lm Em
Within 1 year (160 7) {538 7) 125 4) (24 0] (748 8)
1-2years (11 8] [108 7] (26 &) - (1469
Z2-5years (42 1] {469 8] (B4 &1 - (596 5]
3-10years [750 2 (1,383 4) (440 2] - (2573 8]
10 - 15 years {112 3] (1,110 0] 13471) - [1,56% 4]
15- 20 years - (60 9} (2213) - (282 2}
20 - 25 years - 1310 9] 160 3) - [4712]
25 - 30years - - - 190 1) - 1190 1]
30 -35years - - (643 2) - (643 2}
35 - 40 years - - (1,226 5) - i1.226 5]
4D - 4B years - - [2.0897) - 12,0897
45 - 50 years - - (36501 - (365 0)
Total [1.074 9 (3.982 4) {58200} (24 0] (10,903 3)
Recoipls

Loan- due Cashand from

fravm joint Trage short term financial

ventures recepables depnaits assels

Undi=c ounted amaunts recevable £m £m £m £in
Within 1 year 996 2142 [ Ay 358 4
5-10years 125 - - 125
Total 1121 214 2 [ 3 3709

Index-linked debl includes loans with maturities up to S0years The principal 1s revalued at fixed intervals and is linked to movernents
inthe RPI Interest payments are made biannually based on the revalued principal The principal repayment equals the revalued
armount at maturity The payments included in the table above arc estimates based on the forward inflation rates published by the
Bank of England at the balance sheet date.

(iii) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments
The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will arise from the group s derwvative financial instruments The tables

are based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/[outflows] on the dervative financial instruments that settle on a net basts and the
undiscounted gross inflows/loutflows] on those derivatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or recevable is
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates derived fram
the forward curves existing at the balance sheet date. Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below.

Derivative Liabilities

Derivative assets

Cross currency swaps

Interest Energy Inflation Interest Energy Cash Cash
rate swaps SWaps Swaps rate swaps swaps receipts payments Total
2018 £m £m £m £m £m £Em £m £€m
Within 1 year 149} - - 51 02 11 [02) (87)
1-2years (14 3] - - 17 - 11 03 (118
2 -5years [475) 108} 02 35 0 34 11 142 2)
5-10Years {35 8) - 08 39 - 233 [130) (20 8]
10 - 15 Years [130) - 16 - - 175 8 8} (27
15-70years - - (6 7) - - - - (67
(125.5] (0.8 {411 14.2 0.3 46.4 (23.4) (92.9]
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35 Risks arising from financial instruments continued

¢) Liquidity risk continued

(iii) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments continued

Cervative habihtes

Derwative assets

Cross currency swaps

Intere st Enerqgy Interest Cash Cash
rate swaps SWans rate swaps receipts payrments Total
2017 Crr £m £m £m £€m £m
Within 1year {25 4) (02} 659 11 (02 {17 8]
1 -2 years 24 9) 10 5] 62 11 [02) (18 3]
2 - Gyears (73 4) 03] 131 34 [08) (58 0]
5-10 Years [61 &) — 43 239 N3} [46 5)
10 - 15 Years (116 - (& 4] 181 (90} (8 7)
(196 9) (10] 241 474 (233 (149 8]

d] Inflation risk

The group's principat operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, operates under a regulatory environment where its prices are linked
to inflabian measured by RPI s operating profits and cash flows are theretore exposed to changes in RPLL In order to mitigate and
partially offset this risk, Severn Trent Water has raised debt which pays interest at a fixed coupon based en a principal amount that
15 adjusted for the change in RFI during the life of the debt instrument [ index-linked debt’] The amount of Index-linked debt at the
balance sheet date 15 shawn in section a I} Interest rate risk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shown

m secton ¢l (1] Cash flows from non-dervative financial nstruments

Ofwat has announced its plans to move towards an economic regulatory model linked to inflation measured on the CPIH index over
a period of ime. In anticipation of this the group has entered into CPI/RPI swaps with a notional value of £150 million ar 31 March 2018
in order to mitigate the risk of divergence between inflation measured by CPIH and that measured by RPI.

Inflation rate sensitivity analysis

The finance cost of the group s index-linked debt instruments varies with changes in RPl rather than interest rates The sensitivity
at 31 March of the group’s profit and equity to changes in RPLis set out in the following table This analysis relates to financial
instrurments only and excludes any RPHimpact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatary Capital Value, or accounting

for defined beneht pension schemes,

2018 2017

+1.0% -1.0% +10° RS

£m £m £m £m

Profitor loss (11.7) 1.7 ma 112

Equity 11.7) 1.7 112) 172
36 Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates.
Hedge accounting 15 adopted for such instruments where the criteria set out in JAS 37 are met

a} Fair value hedges
[i} Cross currency swaps

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than sterling Cross currency swaps are entered into at the time that the debt
15 drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR in crder to mitigate the group's exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations Where the terms of the recevable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underilying debt, the

swaps are expected to be effective hedges

At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as fair value hedges were as follows

_Notional principal amount Fair value

2018 m7 2018 2017

£m £in Em £m

Euro o o 1.4 14 10.4 104
Yen - 8.5 85 8.3 94
19.9 199 18.7 198
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36 Hedge accounting continued

b) Cash flow hedges

(i} Interest rate swaps

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
interest rate amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the risk of
changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures arising from issued variable rate debt. Where the hedge 15 expected to be
highly effective these Interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges

Details of Interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below.

Average contract fixed interest rate Notional principat amount Fair value

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2M7

Period to maturity % £ £m £m £m £m
5 - 10years 2.63 170 135.2 500 [8.6) 111)
10 - 20 years 1.83 714 298.0 384 4 (5.0 119 6]
2.08 209 £33.2 434 4 (13.6) {207)

liil Energy swaps
The group has entered into a series of energy swaps under wiich it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and market
prices of electricity at six-monthly intervais up to March 2020

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summar)sed below

Average contractprice Notional contracted amount Fair value

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 017

Period to maturity £/MWh £/MWh MWh MW £m Em
Less than 1 year 47.6 436 43.680 66272 0.2 02l
| - Zyears i 48.6 485 21,955 205296 - (g5l
? - Hyears 40.5 486 547,460 21955 0.7) 0
41.2 474 £13,095 293,523 {0.5) 08

37 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees During the pericd, the group recognised total
expanses of £6.9 million 12017, £6 1 millien] related to equity settled share hased payment transactions

The weighted average share price during the period was £21 25 (2017 £27 98}

At 31 March 2018, there were no options exercisable {2017 nonel under any of the share based remuneration schermes

al Long Term Incentive Plans ['LTIPs’]

Under the Long Term Incentive Plan [LTIP |, conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and semor staff.
Awards are subject to performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting period Awards have been
previously made on different bases to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water employees [the LTIP'| and to Severn Trent Services
ernployees {the ‘Serwces LTIP')

Awards made under the LTIP

The 2014 LTIP awards were subject to Severn Trent Water’s achievernent of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess of the level
included n the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting period The 2015, 20146 and 2017 LTIP awards are
subject to Severn Trent Water's achievernent of Return on Regulated Equity in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water
AMPS pusiness plan over a three year vesting period It has been assumed that performance aganst the LTIP non-market conditions
will be 100% (2017 100%)

Awards made under the Services LTIP
Awards were subject to achievernent of turnover and profit targets over the three year period from the financial year that the awards
were granted 'n 2017 1t was assurned that performance against the Services LTIP would be 0%
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37 Share based payments continued
al Long Term Incentive Plans ['LTIPs'} continued

Awards outstanding

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of awards
LTIP ServicesLTIP
Opening at 1 Apnl 2014 475,878 33,864
Granted during the year 195.415 -
Vested during the year {132.697) -
Lapsed during the year (21.122) [33.864)
QOutstanding at 1 April 2017 517,474 _
Granted during the year 203,035 -
Vested during the year 113%,829) -
Lapsed during the year (31,906} -
Outstanding at 31 March 2018 548,774 -
Details of LTIP and Services LTIF awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows
Normal date Number of awards
Date of grant of vesting 2018 2017
July 2014 2017 - 153,724
July 2015 2018 160,028 168,335
July 2018 2019 188,131 195,415
July 2017 2020 200,615 -
548,774 517,474
Details of the basis of the LTIP scheme are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 96 to 128
b] Employee Sharesave Scheme
Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the right to purchase ordinary shares in the cormpany to those
employees who have entered intc an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a petiod of three or five years.
Options ocutstanding
Detalls of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below
Weighted
Number average
of share exercise
aptions price
Outstanding at 1 April 2016 2,858,611 1.492p
Granted during the year 868,764 1.663p
Forfeited during the year [71.133] 1,579p
Cancelled during the year {92,095 1.636p
Exercised during the year - (449.301] 1,224p
Lapsed during the year (8.241] 1,394p
Outstanding al 1 April 2017 3,106,607 1,572p
Granted during the year o 1,087,376 1,452p
Forfeited during the year [46,715] 1,636p
Cancelled during the year 1134,768) 1,665p
Exercised during the year o (428,702 1.3G6p
Lapsed during the year (8.867) 1.367p
Outstanding at 31 March 2018 3,574,931 1,625p

Severn Trent Plc Annuat Report and Accounts 2018 1 85

i yr afis gy

HRIVIEN R LTe)

JCNELG] Y (] l SIUBLIFIP)S LRI AIjPFi\lﬁ)’) | s;uawamﬂeuueuudnwg



Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37 Share based payments continued

bl Employee Sharesave Scheme continued

Options outstanding continued
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows:

Normal date Option Number of awards
Date of grant of exercise price 2018 2017
January 2012 2017 1177p — 88,346
January 2013 2016 or 2018 1.241p 110,447 112,860
January 2014 2017 or 2019 1,331p 151,528 489937
January 2015 2018 or 2020 1,584p 846,002 883,839
January 2014 2019 or 2021 1.724p 621971 668,413
January 2017 2020 or 2022 1,663p 781,782 863.212
January 2018 2021 or 2023 1.652p 1,063,201 -

3,574,931 3,106,607

c) Share Matching Plan ['SMP’)

Under the SMP members of STEC may receive matching share awards over those shares which had been acquired under the
deferred share component of the annual bonus scherme Matching shares may be awarded at a maximum ratio of one matching share
for every deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting peried No matching shares have been awarded in the current year.
Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51 - 150 by
market capitalisation in the FTSE Index [excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will ncrease to reflect dwidends paid through the per formance period on the basis of

such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Remuneration
Committee determines that the performance condiions have been met provided that the participant remains i employment at the
end of the perforrmance period

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of

awards

Outstanding at 1 Apnil 2016 27,613
Cancelled during the year (24,682
Vested during the year (2931

Outstanding at 31 March 2017 and 2018 -

d) Fair value calculations
The fair values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the Black Scholes methad
The principal assumptions and data are set out below

2018 2m7

LTIP SAYE LTIP SAYE

3year scheme Syear scheme 3year scheme Syear scheme

Share price at grant date [pence) 2,341 2,138 2,138 2,236 2,222 2,222
Option life lyears) 3 35 5.5 3 35 35
Vesting period [years) 3 3 5 3 B 3 5
Expected volatility (%) 18.2 18.2 18.2 182 182 182
Expected dividend yield (%) 41 &1 41 37 37 37
Risk free rate [%) n/a D.5 0.8 n/a 01 05
Fair value per share [pence] 2,328 375 351 2,224 407 479

Expected volatility 1s measured over the three years prior to the date of grant of the awards or share options.
Volatility has been calculated based on historical share price movements

The nisk free rate is derived from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options
The dividend yield 1s calculated using the expected dividend far the year divided by the share price at the date of grant
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38 Acquisitions

On 15 February 2017, Severn Trent Water Limited acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Dee Valley Group Limited comprising
all subsidiaries including the requlated water comparny Dee Valley Water Limited This acquisiton was made thraugh a scherme of
arrangernent including cash consideration of £79 0 mitlion and the 1ssue of loan notes with a value of £5 2 million

The acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method Goodwill of £66 U rmullion was capitalised attributable to the
anficipated future synergles and outperformance arising as a result of the acquisition. The goodwill valuation was based on
management’s best estimates of the fair values of the assets and Labiliies acquired Given the proximity to the year end, full detaded
fair value exercises were not able to be completed befare the approval of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,

The fair value exercises were completed in the current year and resulted in the revisions tc the provisional fair values as set out in the
following table

£m
Goodwill recogrised at 1 April 2017 based on provisional fair values 66.0
Additional consideration in respect of acquisition 0.2
Adjustments to provisional fair values for
- Recognition of Dee Valley Water Limited s Instrument of Appointment 14.3)
- Rewisions to estimated fair value of property, plant and equipment (0.8)
- Deferred tax on changes in fair value 11
Goodwill recogmised at 31 March 2018 based on final fair values 62.2

Detalls of the adjustments made to the provisional fair values are set out below

Dee Yalley Water Limited holds an Instrument of Appointment as a water undertaker under the Water Act 1989 1ssued by the Secretary
of State for Wales [the Licence). The Licence has no fixed term and requires 25 years notice of termination Under the Licence, Dee
Valley Water Lirmited has an exclusive right to supply water to household and non-household customers within a geographic area
defined in the Licence. On 23 March 2018 Ofwat announced that it had agreed to vary the terms of the Licence with effect from 1 July
2018 to amend the geographic area to include those parts of Wales previously served by Severn Trent Water and to exclude certain
parts of England previcusly served by Dee Valley Water

Water undertakers are subject to a framework of ecanomic regulation operated by the Water Services Regulation Authority (Ofwat]
Under this framewor k, water undertakers are permitted to set wholesale taniffs that would enable an efficient company to earn a
post-tax return on a notional ameunt known as the Regulatory Capital Value [RCV] They are alsc allowed to earn a net margin on
their retail costs Ofwat sets the post-tax return at a rate that it considers to be the weighted average cost of capital for companies
operating In the sector based on an assurmned gearing level Therefore the Licence, together with the net operating assets, enables
Dee Valley Water Limited to earn post-tax returns with a net present value equivatent te the RCV plus a net return on retail activities

To determine the fair value of the licence we have taken the RCV at 31 March 2017 from Ofwat s Final Price Control Determination
published in Decernber 2014 adjusted to current prices at the acquisition date, added an allowance for the value of the Retall business
and compared this with the fair value of the operating assets acquired This resutted in a valuation of £4 3 mitlion for the Licence

The goodwill acquired represents future ocutperformance of the regulatory settlerent and synergies anising from the combination of
the group’s regulated water businesses

See note 16 for the reconciliation of goodwill recognised for the group

39 Discontinued operations

Operating Services US and ltaly

The disposal of the group’s US business [Operating Services, US), which farmed part of the Business Services segment, to Us
investars PPC Enterprises LLC and Alston Capital Partners |.LC was completed on 30 June 2017 The group disposed of the Operating
Services business In ftaly, which formed part of the Business Services segment, an 23 February 2017 to AceaS P A

The classification of these businesses as discontinued operaticns requires Judgements as to whether they represent a separate major
tine of business or gecgraphical area The Operating Services ltaly business was sold on 23 February 2017 At that point the process

to dispose of the Operating Services US business was underway, as part of a single coordinated plan to exit the overseas Operating
Services businesses However, at that point the disposal of the Operating Services US business was not considered to be highly
probable because the sale process was not sufficiently advanced.

Onits own, Operating Services ltaly was not considered to be a major line of business or geographical ares and so it was not classified
as a disvcontinued operation in the financial staterments for the year ended 31 March 2617,

Following the disposal of Operating Services US on 30 June 2017, the group had comptleted its plan to exit the overseas Operating
Services business It reassessed the classification of these businesses and reclassified them as discontinued operations

Prior period hgures in the consolidated income stalement and related notes have been restaled lo prosent separately amounts
relating to discontinued operations
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

39 Discontinued operations continued

Water Plus joint venture

On 1 March 2014 the group announced its Intention, subject to approval from the Competition and Markets Authority [ CMA] to enter
inte a joint venture with United Utilities PLL to compete in the non-heusehold water and waste water retail markets in England and
Scotland On 3 May 2016 the CMA announced approval of the jaint venture On this date the group determined that completion of

the proposed transaction became highly probable and the non-household retail business was classified as a disposal group and a
discontinued operation with effect from this date. On 31 May 2016 the group transferred Severn Trent Water s non-household retail
business ta Severn Trent Select Limited and on 1 June it exchanged the entire share capital of Severn Trent Select Limited for 50%
of the share capital of Water Plus | imited

During the year, the rermnaining balance on the non-household retail recevable amounts that were retained when that business was
transferred to Water Plus were written off An additional £1 5 million was charged to operating costs in discontinued operations in
respect of this

The results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately in the iIncome statement and cemprise

2018 2007
~ Irestated]
Man-
Operating Non- Operating Operating houschold
Services Us househald Servires US Serwices ltaly rodal
13 months) retait Total (12 manths) (10 menths) 12 memhsl Total
£€m £m £m Em £m €m £m
Turnover 421 - 421 160 4 208 6610 24772
Total pperating costs {40.7) [1.5) 142.21 1134 0) [202) 1673) [2435)
[Loss)/profit before interest and tax 1.4 (1.5) (0.1} 44 06 (13) 37
Net finance income - - 09 02 - 11
[Lossl/profit before tax 1.4 (1.5) o) 53 08 113 48
Atinbutable tax expense - 0.3 0.2 ) - 03 03l
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 13.0 - 13.0 - 20 14 6 166
Profit/(loss) for the year 14.4 (1.2} 13.2 47 28 1346 211
Attributable to:
Owners of the company 14.4 n.2) 13.2 47 30 136 213
Non-controlling interests - - - - 02] - (02)
14.4 1.2) 13.2 47 28 136 211

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations are as follows

2018 2017
[restated|
Profit Weighted Prafit Weighted
attributable to average attributable o Juerage
owners of the number of Per share cwners of the nurnber of Fer share
company shares amount campany shares amounl
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share 13.2 235.3 5.6 213 2350 71
Diluted earnings per share 13.2 2361 5.6 213 2360 20
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39 Discontinued operations continued
The net assets of the business at the date of disposal were

o abo ooy

IIUELLINNG

2018 2m7
Operating Operating  Man-household
Services US Sarvices Haly retail
€m £m £m
Goodwill 14.4 20 -
Other intangible assets 29 14 -
Property, plant and equipment 9.4 17 - @
Investments - 47 - %
Inventories 0.6 73 - g
Trade and other recewvables 28.2 113 06 8
Cash and bank balances 9.9 15 35 §:
Trade and other payables . _ 9.9 (150) 05 3
Borrowings - (39) - &
Provisions for Lizbilities - (23] - -
45.5 79 36 g
Attributable to: -
Owners of the company _ 455 71 36 E
Non-controlling interest - 08 - £
45.5 79 36 -
The net gain on disposals 1s calculated as follows 5
Operating Operatng  Man he ysehcld v
Serwvices US Services ltaly retal =
Em Em £m =
Consideraticn 47.8 7% 255 E
Net assets atlribulable to owners of the company {45.5) (71] (36 3
23 08 219 ¢
Tax on gain on disposal 0.7) - -
Misposat costs and provisions on disposal 18.4) 6] (73]
Foreign exchange gain recycled from reserves 29.8 28 -
Net gain on disposal 13.0 20 14 6 -
The net cash flows ansing from the disposal groups were as follows
2018 2017
Irestaterd;
Operating Operating Operating  MNon-household
Services US Services US Svrvices [taly retail
(3 maonths) £12 months] [10 manths) {2 months} Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Nel cash [lows allribulable Lo
- Operating activities 12 51 (G 7) 2% 73
- Investing activities ~ (0.6 (37] 0 - {33
- Financingachivities - 1] 11 (3 5] (35)
1.3 03 08 (0 6] 05
The net cash flows arising from dispesals were
Operating Operatng  Non-hoewsehold
Services US Services ltaly rutarl
£m £ tm
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents o 39.3 03 =
Settlernent of intercormpany loans o - 76 -
Oisposal costs paid in cash and cash equivalents 14.6) (16) (73)
Cash and bank balances disposed of (9.9) 15 [35)
24.8 48 (10 8)
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

40 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows
2018 2017
[restated]
£m Em
Prafit before interest and tax from conlinuing operations 528.4 2367
Profit before interest and tax from discontinued operations 13.6 206
Profit before interest and tax 542.0 557 3
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 308.8 3088
Amortisation of Intangible assets 20.8 193
Pension service credit (7.8 17 3)
Defined benefit pension scheme administration costs 1.8 33
Defined benetit pension scheme contributions [35.2) (33 2)
Share based payment charge 59 61
Profit on sale of property, planl and equipment and intangible assels {7.3] (5 0]
Exceptional depreciation - property, plant and equipment R 16.8 -
Profit on disposal of businesses o (13.7] (17 2}
Deferred income rovement 14.3) 139
Prowvisions charged 1o the income statement 13.8 165
Utibisation of provisions for Liabilities (5.4) (10 5}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 827.2 814 2
Increase in inventary (2.9) [13]
lincreasel/decrease in amounts recewable (58.4) 603
Increase/[decreasel in amounts payable 7.4 {22 2]
Cash generated from eperations 7733 8510
Tax received . 8.0 206
Tax paid (14.5) (42 4]
Net cash generated from operating activities 766.8 8292

bl Non-cash transactions

No additions to property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases [2017 i), A
developers at no cost were recognised at their fair value of £35 6 million {2017 £51 4 million)

¢] Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the income statemeant

ssets transferred from

2018 2017
£m Em
Costs of Pension Exchange Arrangement - 07
d] Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt
Net cash Cross Loans due
and cash Bank Other Finance currency from joint
equivalents loans loans leases swaps ventures Net debt
£m £m £m £m £m £€m £m
At 1 April 2017 4b b (1.073 3] {4,090 0] (115 7] 434 108 & (5,082 4}
Cash flow [4 8) (138 5) (98 1) 18 - 26 6 (212 8)
Fair value adjustments - - 20 - (18 9} - (16 9]
RPI uplift on index-linked debt - [4 4) [497) - - - (54 1]
Foreign exchange 15) - 127 - - - 112
Other non-cash movements - [12) 10 8l - - 04 (16)
At 31 March 2018 38.5 11,217.4) {4,223.9] (113.9} 24.5 135.4 15,354.6)

Liabibities from financing activities comprise bank loans, other loans and finance leases.
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41 Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees
Group undertakings have entered inte bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No Lability (2017 £nil] 1s expected to
arise inrespect of either bonds or guarantees

42 Service concession arrangements

The group's contract to provide water and waste watar services to the Ministry of Defence [MOD ]1s a service concession
arrangement under the definition set out In IFRIC 17 The group acts as the service provider under the MOD Projact Aquatrine
Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1.295 sites across England covering the eastern sea border and from Lancashire in the
North West to West Sussex on the South coast

Under the contract the group mamtains and upgrades the MOD infrastructure assets and provides aperating services forwater and
waste water Both the operating services and maintenance and upgrade services are charged under a volumetric tariff, along wath
standard char ges, which are adjusted with mflation as agreed i the contr act.

Since the group has an unconditional night to receive cash in exchange for the maintenance and upgrade services, the amounts
recewvable are recognised as a financial asset within prepayments and accrued incomne. At 31 March 2018 the amounts recevable
were £311 million (2017 £277 million)

There have been ne significant changes to the arrangement during the year

43 Financial and other commitments
a} Investment expenditure commitments

2018 2007
fm £m
Contracted for but not authorised in the financial statements 395.0 2210

In addition to these contractual comrmitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include
investments to achieve iImprovements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services [Dfwat] and to provide
for growth in demand tor water and waste water services

b Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding operating commitments for future minimum operating lease payments under
non-cancetlable operating leases, which fall due as follows

cirdan whoge e |
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2018 207

£m fm

Within 1 year 11 32
1-5years 2.4 76
After more than 5 years 4.8 70
8.3 178

Operating lease payments represent rentals by the group for certain of its office property, plant and equipment

44 Post balance sheet events

Sale of land in Nottinghamshire
On 30 April 2018, the sale of land from Midlands Land Portfolio Limited, a subsidiary of Severn Trent Ple, to Persimmoen Homes was
completed The sale values the land at £21 8 mullion, realising a group profit of £18 2 million in the year ending 31 March 20719,

Payrnents will be made in cash and phased over the Ufe of the project with £2 3 million payable on 30 April 2018 and the remainder
phased evenly over five further yearly payments of £3 9 million each ending on 30 April 2023.

Dividends
Following the year end the board of directors have proposed a finat dividend of 51 92 pence per share Further details of this are shown
in note 14
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

45 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidianies, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not

included in this note Trading transactions between the group and its joint venture, Water Plus, are disclosed below

Waler Plus
2018 2017
£m [X30)
Sale of services 354.9 3175
Net interest income 2.4 173
357.3 3188
Outstanding balances between the group and the joint venture as at 31 March were as follows
Water Plus
2018 2017
£m £im
Trade and other receivables due from related parties 44.9 376
Amounts due to related parties ) - (8 8)
Loans recetvable from joint ventures 135.6 108 6
180.5 1374
The retirement benefit schemes operated by the group are considered to be related parties, Details of transactions and balances with
the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 28
Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the members of STEC during the year
The remuneration of the directors 1s included within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration
of individual directors 1s prowided in the audited part of the Directors remuneration repor t on pages 110te 119,
2018 pivik
£m {m
Short term employec bencfits 6.4 72
Fost empleyment benefits - -
Share based payments 3.5 31
9.9 103

46 Alternative performance measures [APMs’]

Financial measures or metncs usedin thus repart that are not defined by IFRS are alternative performance measures The group
uses such measures for performance analysis because they provide additional useful information on the performance and
position of the group. Since the group defines its own alternative performance measures, these might not be directly comparable
to cther cornpanies alternative perforrnance measures These measures are not intended 10 be a substitute for, or superior to,
IFRS measurements

al Underlying PBIT

Underlyng profit before interest and tax s profit before interest and tax excluding exceptional items as recorded in the income
statement and restated for discontinued operations This provides a consistent measure of operating performance excluding
distortions caused by exceptional items The calculation of this APM1s shown on the face of the income statement and in note 5
for reportable segments.

b} Underlying earnings per share

Underlying earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations. These exclude the effects of exceptional items,
net gains/[losses) on financial Instruments, current tax on exceptronal items and on net gains/llosses| on financial Instruments,
exceptional current tax and deferred tax. The directors consider that the underlying figures provide a useful additionat indicator
of performance and remove non-performance related distortions See note 15
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46 Alternative performance measures [APMs’) continued

c) Effective interest rate
The effective interest rate 1s calculated as net finance costs, exctuding net finance costs from pensions, plus capitalised finance
costs divided by the monthly average net debt during the year.

[net finance costs - net hinrance costs from pensions + capitalised finance costs)

[monthly average net debt]

oy nbapeig

BIURLIANCG

2018 2017
Irestated}
£m fm

Net finance costs 219.5 2001
Net finance costs from pensians {15.5) (109
Capitalised interest 26.2 186

230.2 2128
Average net debt BI134.4 48125
Effective interest rate 4.5% 4 4%

This APM s used as It shows the average interest rate that Is attributable to the net debt o the business

d] Effective cash cost of interest
The etfective cash cost of interest 1s calculated on the sarme basis as the effective interest rate except that it excludes finance costs
that are not paid in cash but are accreted to tha carrying value of the debt [principally RP| adjustments on index-linked debt}

{net finance cosls - net finance costs from pensions - RPHinterest + capitalised hinance costs)

Imaonthly average net debt]

2018 207

[~ectated]

£m Em

Net finance costs 219.5 2051
Net finance costs from pensians 15.5) [109)
RP! interest o [54.1} 130 2]
Capitalised interest 26.2 186
1761 182 6

Average net debt 5,134.4 4,812 5
Effective cash cost of interest 3.4% 38%

This APM1s used as it shows the averags cash interest rate based on the net debt of the business

el PBIT interest cover
The ratio of profit from cantinuing operations before interest, tax and exceptional iterns te net finance costs excluding net finance
costs from pensions

Undertying FPBIT
Inet finance costs - net inance costs from pensions/

2018 7

Irestated!

£m £

Underlying PBiT 541.0 0201
Netfinance costs T ] A_WW_N T - 95 2051
Net finance costs from pensions (15.5) 10 9)
Netfinance cosls excluding finance cosis from pensiens 204.0 194 2
T o B " rato ratio

PBIT interest cover ralio 2.7 27

This APM 15 used to show how the underlying PBIT of the business covers the financing costs associated only with net debt on
a consistent basis.
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

46 Alternative performance measures {APMs) continued
fl EBITDA and EBITDA interest cover

EBITDA is a commonly used proxy for cash flow, for example by ratings agencies and in debt covenants EBITDA interest cover
I1s the ratio of EBITDA. [tis caleulated as profit from continuing operations before interest, tax, exceptionalitems, depreciation
and amortjsation.

{underiying PBIT + depreciation + amartisation)

{net finance costs — net finance costs from pensions]

2018 27

[restated]

£m £m

Underlying PBIT 541.0 5201
Depreciation 308.2 3059
Amartisation 20.5 178
EBITDA 869.7 8438
Net finance costs 219.5 2051
Net finance costs from pensions {15.5) (109
Net finance costs excluding timance costs from pensions 204.0 1942
ratio ratio

EBITODA interest cover ratio 4.3 43

This APM 15 used to show how the EBITDA of the business covers the financing costs associated only with net deb! on a
consistent basis.

g] Underlying effective current tax rate

Current tax charge for the year an continuing operations, excluding prior year charges, exceptional current tax, and current tax an
excepticnal items and on financial instruments, divided by profit from continuing operations before tax, net gains/losses on financial
Instrurnents, exceptional iterns and share of net profit of joint ventures accounted for using the equity method

[Current year current tax charge i the income statement - {ax on exceptionat ilems - tax on financal instruments|

(PBT - share of net profit of JVs - exceptional tems - net losses on financral nstruments/

2018 2017

[restated)

Current tax Current tax

thereon thereon

£€m £m £m Crey

Profit before tax 302.4 (36.8] 3280 (47 3)
Adjustments:

Share of net [profit}/loss of joint ventures {0.2) - 18 -

Exceptionaliterns 12.6 i0.7 {16 6) 01

Net losses on financial instruments 6.7 {3.3) 18 14 9]

321.5 1£0.8) 3150 (52 3)

Underlying effective current tax rate 12.7% 16 6%

This APM 15 used to remove distortions in the underlying tax charge and create a metric consistent with the calculation of underlying
carnings per share in nole 15, Share of nal profit/loss of joinl ventures s excluded from the calculation because this s included after
tax and the tax on joint venture profits s therefore not included in the current tax charge
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47 Subsidiary undertakings

Details of all subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2018 are given below Details of the joint venture are set out in note 19
All subsicdiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation

Owned directly by Severn Trent Ple
Severn Trent Investment Holdings Limited

Country of operation Percentage of Class of share
and incorporation share capital held capitak held
United Kingdorm 100% Ordinary

The foliowing subsidiary undertakings all operate and are incerporated in the United Kingdom The percentage of share capitat held

15 100+ and the class of share capital held 15 ordinary.

Allsubsidiary undertakings
Aqua Deva Limited

Severn Trent Leasing Limited

Biogas Generation Limited

Severn Trent MIS Trustees Limited

Charles Haswell and Partners Limited

Severn Trent Metering Services Limited

Chester Water Limited

Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited

City Analytical Services Limited

Severn Trent Pension Scheme Trustees Limited

Debec Debt Recovery Limited

Severn Trent PIF Trustees Limited

Dee Valley Group Limited

Severn Trent Power Generation Limited

Dee Valley Limited

Severn Trent Property Solutions Limited

Dee Valley Services Limited

Severn Trent QUEST Lirmnited

Dee Valley Water [Holdings] L imited

Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited

Dee Valley Water Limited

Severn Trent Retail and Utility Services Lirmited

East Worcester Water Limited

Severn Trent Services {Water and Sewerage) Limited

Etwall Land Limited

Severn Trent Services Defence Holdings Limited

Gunthorpe Fields Limited

Severn Trent Services Defence Limited

Midlands Land Portfolio Lirmited

Severn Trent Services Finance Limited

North Wales Gas Limited

Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited

Northern Gas Supplies Limited

Severn Trent Services International [Overseas Haldings] Limited

Severn Trent (W&S] Limited

Severn Trent Services International Limited

Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Limited

Severn Trent Services Operations UK Limited

Severn Trent Data Portal Limited

Severn frent Services Purification iLimited

Severn Trent Draycote Limited

Severn Trent Services UK Limited

Severn Trent Enterprises Limited

Severn Trent SSPS Trustees Limited

Severn Trent Finance Holdings Limited

Severn Trent Systems Lirmited

Severn Trent Finance Limited

Severn Trent Trirpley Limited

Severn Trent Financing and Investments Limited

Severn Trent US Funding Management Limited

Severn Trent Funding Limited

Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc

Severn Trent General Partnership Lirnited

Sevarn Trent Utility Services Limited

Severn Trent Green Power Limited

Severn Trent Water Limited

Severn Trent Holdings Limited

Severn Trent Wind Power Limited

Severn Trent Hame Services Limited

UKTalks Limited

Severn Trent LCP Limited Wrexharn Water Limited

Country of operatign Percentage of Class of share
Allsubsidiary undertakings and incorporation share capital held capital held
Derwent Insurance Limited Gibrattar 100% Ordinary }
Energy Supplies UK Lirmited ___Umnited Kingdom 100% Aand B Ordiary
Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited Guernsey 100% Ordinary
Procis Software Limited ?M i United Kingdormn 100% B Aand B Ordinary and Ordinary
Severn Trent Africa (Pty] Lid South Africa 100% Ordinary
Severn Trent Carsington Limited United Kingdomn 100% _Aand B Ordinary
Severn Trent Holdings 54 o Belgium 100% __ Ordirary
Severn Trent Response L imited . Ireland 60% o Ordinary
ST Delta Limited United Kingdom 100% Aand B Ordinary
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Group financial statements

Notes to the group financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

47 Subsidiary undertakings continued

Unless stated below, the registered office of the aforementioned entities 1s Severn Trent Centre, 2 5t John's Street, Coventry,
CV1 2LZ, United Kingdom

Company Reqistered office

Dee Valley Limited Packsaddle, Wrexham Road, Rhostyllen, Wrexham, LL14 4EH
Dee Valley Water Lirmited Packsaddle, Wrexham Road, Rhostyllen, Wrexham, LLT4 4EH
Derwent Insurance Lirnited 6A Queensway, PO Box 64, Gibraltar

Lyra Insurance Guernsey Limited St Martin s House, Le Bordage, St Petar Port, GY1 4AU, Guernsey
Severn Trenl Africa (Ptyl Lid 2 Flgin Road, Sunninghill, Johanneshurg, South Africa

Severn Trent General Partnership Lirited 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH3 9WJ

Severn Trent Holdings SA Rond Point Schuman 6 box b, 1040 Brussels, Belgium

Severn Trent Response Limited &th Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland

Subsidiary audit exemptions

Severn Trent Plc has issued guarantees over the Liabilities of the following companies at 31 March 2018 under section 479C of
Cornpanies Act 2006 and these entities are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of Indwdual accounts
by virtue of section 479A of the Act

Company Company Number
Charles Haswell and Partners Limited 2416605
Chester Water Limited 7888872
City Analytical Services Limited 2050581
Dee Valley Group Limited 4316484
Dee Valley Limited 2902525
Dee Valley Water [Holdings] Lirmited 4421854
East Worcester Water Limited 2757948
Guntharpe Fields Limited 4240764
Severn Trent (W&S) Limited 3995023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Lirnited 4395566
Severn Trent Data Portal Limited 8181048
Severn Trent Draycote Lirmited 7681784
Severn Trent Finance Holdings Lirmited 6044159
Severn Trent Finance Limited 6294618
Severn Trent Financing and Investments Lirnited 6312635
Severn Trent General Partnership Limited SCA16614
Severn Trent Holdings Limited 5656363
Severn Trent Investment Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent LCP Lirmited 7943556
Severn Trent Metering Services Limited 2569703
.5 Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Lirnited 2455508 4
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited 26561131
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited 3115315
Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited 4395572
Severn Trent Services International [Overseas Holdings| Limited 3125131
Severn Trent Services International Limited 2387816
Severn Trent Services Purification Limited 2409826
Severn Trent Services UK Limited 8120387
Severn Trent Systerms Limited 2394552
Severn Trent Ulility Services Limited 4125386
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Company financial statements

Company statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017

£m £m

Profit for the year 182.4 1930

Other comprehensive loss

ltemns that will nal be reclassified to the income statement

Net actuarial losses {2.1] -

Tax on net actuarial losses 15 -

Beferred tax arising on change of rate - 01

Other comprehensive loss for the year (7.5) 01

Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 174.8 1729
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Company financial statements

Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
£m Em Em £m Em

At 1 April 2016 2343 106 8 1607 29850 3,486 8
Profit for the year - - - 1730 1730
Deferred tax arising from rate change - - - 01) (01)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1729 1729
Share options and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares 1ssued 04 57 - - 61

- vatue of employees services - - - b7 62
Dwidends paid - - - (190 4] (150 4)
At 31 March 2017 2347 1125 1607 29737 34816
Profit for the year - - - 182 4 182 4
Net actuarial losses - - - 191 (91
Tax on net actuanal losses - - - 15 15
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 174 8 174 8
Share aptions and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares issued a4 52 - - 56

- value of employees services - - - 69 59
Dividends paid - - - 1970l (1970)
At 31 March 2018 2351 17z 140.7 2,958.4 34719

Included inretained earmings are profits of £1,221 2 million that arose from group restructuring arrangements in previous years and

are therefore not distributable.

1 98 Severn Trent Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013



Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2018

Lo nboneng |

2018 207 @
Notes £m £m H
Non-current assets =
intangible fixed assets 2 0.2 03 &
Tangible {ixed assets 3 0.2 03
Investments in subsidiaries 4 3,330.0 33251
Deferred tax asset b 1.5 01
Trade and other recevables 5 527.6 10
3.859.5 33268 .
Current assets N
Trade and other recevables 3 44,3 493 6 =
Current tax recewvable 15.9 214 %
60.2 5150 e
Current liabilities ;
Borrowings 7 17.2) 5 4] z
Trade and other payables 8 (137.0) (265 27
Provisions for habilities and charges g {6.0} (2 4] o
(160.2) 27321
Net current {liabilities)/assets (100.0] 2418 2
Total assets less current liabilities 3,759.5 35486 2
Non-current Liabilities 8
Borrowmngs o 7 (85.4] 823! g
Trade and other payables 8 (189.0) (3o 3
Retirement benefit obligations, 14 8.7 - &
Provisions for babilities and charges T 9 (4.5) (17 2
(287.6) (8701 :
Net assets 3,4719 34816 =
Capitat and reserves _i
Called up share capital 10 235.1 2347 ;
Share premium account 11 17.7 1125
Other reserves 12 160.7 1607
Retained earmings 2,958.4 29737 P
Total capital and reserves 3,4719 34816

The profit for the year1s £182.4 million {2017 £173.0 million]
Signed on behalf of the Board who approved the accounts on 22 May 2018

Andrew Duff James Bowling

Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Company nurnber 02366619
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Company financial statements

Notes to the parent company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Employee numbers
The average number of ernployees during the year was 9 (2017, 12)

2 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased
softwar e
Em
Cost
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 11
Amortisation
At 1 Apnil 2017 [0 8]
Amortisation for the year 01
At 31 March 2018 0.9
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 0.2
At 31 March 2017 03
3 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Othice fixtures
buildings  and equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 0.1 0.6 0.7
Depreciation
A1 Apri 2017 - (04) [0 4)
Charge for the year - 01] (01
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 - 10.5) (0.5)
Net book value o
At 31 March 2018 01 0.1 0.2
At 31 March 2017 01 02 03
4 Investments in subsidiaries
£m
AtV Aprit 2007 33251
Additions %
Impairment (2 0]
At 31 March 2018 3,330.0
Detaits of principal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 47 to the group financial staternents
5 Trade and other receivables
2018 2017
£m Em
Current assets
QOther amounts recevable 4.4 30
Prepayments 0.5 05
Amounts cwed by group undertakings under loan agreements - 4677
Amounts owed by group undertakings 39.4 224
443 493 4
Non-current assets
Other amounts recervable 1.4 -
Loan recevable 26.4 -
Amounts owed by greup undertakings under ioan agreements 499.6 10
527.6 10
571.9 494 &
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6 Deferred tax

Retirement

Fair value

Accelerated tax benefit of ivancial
depreciation obligations instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
ALT April 2016 B a1 - 01 05 07
Charge to income - - - (0 4] (04)
Credit to income arising from rate change - - 01 - 01
Charge to equity arising from rate change - - 01 - [01)
At 1 Aprit 2017 01 - 01 01 01
Charge/lcredit) to Income (01 - 01 0] 01
Credit to equity - 15 - - i5
At 31 March 2018 - 1.5 - - 1.5
7 Borrowings
2018 2017
£m Em
Current Liabilities
Bank overdraft 17.2 56
Non-current Liabilities
(ther loans 85.4 823
102.6 879

Non-current borrowings comprises the company's RP| inked retail bond issued in July 2012 The bond carries a coupon of 13% on

the princaipal amount which is uplifted by RPI The bond is repayable in July 2077

At the balance sheet date the company had £100 million {2017 £100 rmullion) undrawn borrowing facilities

8 Trade payables
2018 2007
o £m £
Current liabilities L
Trade payables 0.5 02
Social security and other taxes 0.5 01
Other payables 28 28
Accruals 4.0 17
Amounts due to group undertakings 129.2 2610
137.0 2652
Non-current liabilities
Armnounts due to group undertakings 189.0 30
326.0 268 2
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Company financial statements

Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

9 Provisions
Insyrance Qther Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2017 - 41 41
Charged to income statement - 09 6%
Utilisation of provision - ¢y [01)
Transfer from group company 56 - 56
At 31 March 2018 5.6 49 10.5
2018 2017
£m £m
Included in:
Current liabilities 6.0 24
Non-current Liabilities 4.5 17
10.5 41
Insurance includes provisions transferred from Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance cornpany, which 1s a wholly owned
subsidiary of the group. The associated claims outflows are estimated to arise over a peried of up to five years from the balance
sheet date
Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations and commercial disputes. The associated outflows are estimated to arise over
a perind up to five years from the balance sheet date
10 Share capital
2018 2017
_ £m £m
Total issued and fully paid share capital
240,222 617 ordinary shares of 97 /.p {2017 2397%3.915] 2351 2347
At 31 March 2018, treasury shares of 3,948,599 were held (2017 4,080 964)
Changes in share capital were as follows
- Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97"/p
At 1 Apnl 2016 239344614 2343
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 449,301 04
At 1 April 2017 239,793,915 2347
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 428,702 04
At 31 March 2018 240,222,617 2351
11 Share premium
2018 2017
£m £m
At 1 April 112.5 106 8
Share premium arising onissue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 5.2 57
At 31 March 177 1125
12 Other reserves
Capital
redemption Hedging
reserye reserye Tatal
Em £rn tm
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018 157.1 3.6 160.7

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares.

The hedging reserve arises frem gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions

of IAS 39 and the transition rutes of IFRS 1,
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13 Share based payments

For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the cornpany, see note 37 of the group financial
statements Oetaills of options exercised and awards vesting during the year and of the welghted average share price of the company
during the year are also disclosed in that note

14 Pensions

Defined benefit schemes

The group operates defined benefit pension schemes, of which some employees of the company are members, There 1s no
contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schemes between the compan:es that participate In the
schemes As a result, the net defined benefit cost of the scheme 1s recognised in the financial staternents of the sponsoring employer,
Severn Trent Water Limited The scheme closad to future accrual on 31 March 2015 The cost of contnibutions to the group schemes
amount to £0.6 mitlien (2017 ril] There were no amounts oulstanding for contributions to the defined benefit schernes (2017 ril)

[he cornpany has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap This unfunded scheme 1s part of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme In prioryears,
the unfunded pension scherme was recorded in Severn Trent Water Limited As the obligations under the scheme are borne by Severn
Trent Pic, the unfunded pension scheme obligation and corresponding deferred tax asset are now held within Severn Trent Plc

Information about the plans as & whole 1s disclosed in note 28 to the group financial staterments

15 Related party transactions

The retirerment benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties. Details of transactions and balances
with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed In nole 14

The company has given guarantees in favour of Water Plus Limited in respect of the joint venture s liabilities to wholesalers in the
Open Water market and its loan fram Severn Trent Water Limited The guarantee in respect of labilities to wholesalers s capped
at £42.5 million [2017 £42 5million] and the guarantee for the Severn Trent Water foan is for the amaount due

16 Contingent liabilities

a) Bonds and guarantees
The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liabilities are expected to arise In respect
of either the bonds or guarantees

bl Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate an a pocted basis with certain of 1ts subsidiary undertakings Under these
arrangements participating companies guarantea each others overdrawn balances to the extent of thewr credit balances, which
can be offset against balances of participating companies As at 31 March 2018, the company had no contingent Lizbitities (2017 rull

17 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 51 %2 pence per share,

18 Dividends

For detalls of the dividends paid in the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 see note 141n the group financial statements
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Other information

Five year summary
2018 2117 2018 2015 2014
[rstated)
£Em £m €mn £m Ern
Turnaver 1,694.1 16380 17537 1.8013 17567
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 541.0 5201 503 4 540 3 5238
Net exceptional tems before tax 12.6) 166 10 118 7] 152)
Net interest payable before (losses)/gains on financral
instruments and exceptional finance costs 219.5) (2051] (209 3 (2400 (2479}
{Lossesl/gains on financial instruments (6.7 i18) 77 1339) 58 0
Results of jaint ventures 0.2 (18) 01 01 02
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 302.4 3280 3029 148 2 3189
Current taxation on profit on ordinary activities (32.9) (36 31 (513] (37 8] (55 8]
Deferred taxation (25.00 {22 4) 37l 51 [215]
Exceptional tax - 522 786 - 2302
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 240.5 3215 3165 1155 4718
Results from discontinued operations 13.2 il 14 8 47 -
Profit for the year 253.7 342 6 3313 120 2 4718
Net assets employed
Fixed assets 8,660.1 83157 7810 8 76200 7418 3
Other net latilities excluding net debt, retirement benefit
obligation, provisions and deferred tax (960.0 {714 8] {796 41 79240 1631 1)
Derwvative financial instruments¢ (104.3] (1611] {166 3] (177 7] 11971)
Net retirement benefit obligation (519.8] (574 &) (309 5] 1468 5i (348 3)
Previsions for iabilities and charges and deferred tax 1725.7) (6575] (694 7) [725 4] 1758 5)
Net assets held for sale - - - 126 N
6.360.3 46,0057 2.8419 55216 54833
Financed by
Called up share capital 2351 2347 2343 2337 2339
Reserves 758.6 688 4 7831 5219 789 4
Total shareholders’ funds 3 993.7 9233 1.0174 755 6 10233
Non-cantrolling interests - - 11 134 125
Net debt” 5,356.6 5.082 4 48234 47526 44475
6,350.3 60057 58419 55216 54833
Statistics
Earnings per share [continuing] - pence 102.2 136 8 1335 483 198 5
Underlying basic earnings per share - pence 121.0 1ns7 1021 1072 725
Dividends per share [excluding special dvidend] - pence Bb.6 815 807 849 804
Dridend cover [before exceptional items and deferred tax) 1.4 14 13 13 12
Gearing* B4.4% B4 6% 82 6% B&1% 811%
Urdinary share price at 31 March - pocunds 18.44 2382 2173 2059 18 23
Average number of employees
- Regulated Water and Waste Water 5,660 5,273 5,234 5.532 5,634
- Other 605 556 2322 1210 1914

1 Restated as set out i note 2 to the grouo financial statements
2 Excludes instruments hedaing forcign currenc y debt
3 Includes instruments hedging foreign currency debt
4
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The Company's registraris Equiniti Equiniti's main
responsibibities include maintaining the shareholder
register and making dividend payments.

If you have any gueries relating to yaur Severn Trent Plc
shareholding you should contact Equiniti

Registrar contact details

Online: www.shareview co uk from here you will be able
to securely email Fquiniti with your guery.

Telepheone: 0371 384 2967~
Overseas enquiries: +44 121 415 7044
Text phone; 0371 384 2255*

By post: Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
West Sussex, BN99 4DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit gur website
www severntrent com which provides

« Company news and information,

& links to our operational businesses websites,

« detalls of our governance arrangements,

+ details of our strategy,

+ details of the Group s business models and business plan, and
* the Company’s appreach to operating responsibly

There s also a dedicated investors section on the website which
contains up to date in‘ormation for shareholders including

» comprehensive share price infermation,
¢ financial resulls,
* 3 hustory of dividend payment dates and amounts, and

e access to current and historical shareholder documents such
as the Annual Report and Acceunts

Electronic communications
By registering to receve shareholder documentation from
Severn Trent Plc electronically sharehotders can benefit from
being able to
» view the Annual Report and Accounts on the day it is published,
» receive an emall alert when shareholder documents
are available,
e cast their AGM vote electronically, and
» manage their shareholding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview

Electronic shareholder communications also enable the
Company to reduce its impact on the environment and benefit
from savings associated with reduced printing and matiling costs
For furtherinformatian and ta register for electronic shareholder
communications visit www shareview co uk

Dividend payments

Bank mandates
Dwadends can be paid automatically into your bank ar buitding
society account
The beneflits of daing this are that you will
« recewve cleared funds inyour bank account onthe
payment date,
» avoid postal delays, and
« remove the risk of your cheques getting lost in the post

To take advantage of this service or for further details contact
Equiniti ar visit www shareview co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan [DRIP’)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using their dividend
payments to buy more Severn Trent Ple shares instead of
recewing cash If you would like to participate in the DRI, please
request a dvidend reinvestment plan mandate from Equinit
Financial Services Limited

Telephone: 0371 384 2268*
Telephone number from outside the UK: +44 121 415 7173
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Other information

Information for shareholders continued

Buying and selling shares in the UK

i you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent Ple shares, you
may need to use a stockbroker or fugh street bank which trades
on the London Stock £xchange There are also many telephone
and online services available to you

if you are selling, you will nced to present your share certificate
at the time of sale Details of low cost dealing services may be
obtained from www shareview co uk or 0345 603 7037**

Share price information

Shareholders can find share price information on our website
and in most national newspapers For a real time buying or
selling price, you should contact a stockbraker

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasive and high pressure tactics to lure
investors inte scams They may offer to sell shares that turn out
to be worthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated
price inreturn for an upfront payment. While tugh profits are
promised, If you buy or sell shares in this way you wall probably
lose your meney

How to avoid share fraud

¢ Koep in mind that firms authornised by the Ninancial Conduct
Authority [FCA are unlikely to contact you out of the blue with
an offer to buy or sell shares

* Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the persen and
firm contacting you and then end the call.

Check the Financial Services Reqister at www fca org uk to see
if the person and firm conlacling you 1s authorised by Lhe FCA

Bewar e ot fr audsters claiming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact details

* Usethe firm’s contact details Usted on the Register if you want
to call it back

+ Caltthe FCAon 08GO 111 6748 if the firm does not have contact
details on the Register or you are told they are out of date

Search the st of unauthorised firms to avord at
www fca org uk/scams

Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthonsed
firm you will not have access to Lhe Financial Ombudsman
Serwvice or Financial Services Compensation Scheme

Think about getting independent financial and professional
advice before you hand over any money

* Remember, if it sounds too good to be true, it probably s

Ifyou are approached by fraudsiers please tell the FCA using the
share fraud reporting form at www fca org.uk/scams, where you
can find out mor e about INnvestment scarms.

You can atso call the FCA Consumer Helpling on 0800 111 46768

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300123 2040.
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Unsolicited mail

The Company 15 legally obliged to make its share reqister
avallable to the general public Consequently some shareholders
may receive unsclicited mail If you wish to Umit the amount of
unsolicited mail you receive please contact

The Maiiing Preference Service [MPST, Freepost 29 LON20771,
London WIE OZT

Alternatively, register online at www mpsonline org uk or call
the MPS Registration hine on 0845 703 459%.

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs')
Severn Trent has a sponsored Level 1 American Depasitary
Receipt (ADR’) programme, for which The Bank of New York
Mellon acts as Depositary

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCOX which 1s the
premier ter of the US over the counter OTC'] market under
the symbol STRNY (it 1s not listed on a US stock exchange)
Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent Ordinary Share

Ifyou have any enguiries regarding Severn Trent ADRs
please contact The Bank of New York Mellon

By post: BNY Mellon Shareowners Services, PO Box 30170,
College Station, TX 77842-3170, US

By telephone:

If calling from within the US. [888] 269 2377 {toll-free)

If calling from cutside the US +1 201 680 6825
By email: shrrelationsldcpushareownerservices com

Website: www rmybnymdr com

© Linesarecpen 8 30am to 5 10pm Monday to Friday fexcluding public helidays
in England and Walesl

** Lines are open Manday ta Friday, 8 00am tc % 30pm for dealing, and until
& 00pm for enquines



Financial calendar

Exdwvicend dale - fi~a' dividend 14 Jure 2018
Record date ta be ehgiole for the final dividena 15 June 2013
AGM 18 July 2018
Interim management statement - Q1 year ending 31 March 2019 18 July 2018
Final divderd payment date 20 July 208

Interim results announcement - year ending 31 March 2019

22 Navernber 2018

Ex drvidend date - interim dividend

29 Novemnber 2018

Record date to be eugible for the interim diwvidend

30 Novermnber 2018

Interim dwidend paymaent date

4 January 2019

All dates are indicative and may be subject to change
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Design and production by Radley Yeldar www ry com

This report has been printed on Galerie Satin, a paper which is
certihed by the Forest Stewar dship Counuil® The paperis made at a
millwath 150 14001 Environmental Management System accreditation

Printed by CPl Colour using vegetable oil based inks, CPlis a
CarbonNeutral® printer, certfied to |S0 140071 Environmental
Management Systern and registered to EMAS, the Eca Management
and Audit Scheme
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Severn Trent Plc
Registered office
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry CV1 27

Tel 02477 715000

www.severntrent.com
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